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THIS DOCUMENT (COMPRISING AN EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM AND NOTICE OF
GENERAL MEETING) AND THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY FORM ARE IMPORTANT AND
REQUIRE YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION. If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take,
you are recommended to seek your own financial advice immediately from your stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant or other independent professional adviser.

The release, publication or distribution of this document in certain jurisdictions other than Australia may be
restricted by laws of those jurisdictions and therefore persons in such jurisdictions into which this document is
released, published or distributed should inform themselves about and observe any such restrictions.
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(ABN 96 004 458 404)

Proposed disposal of Coal & Allied Industries Limited
to
Yancoal Australia Limited
and

Notice of Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting

This document should be read as a whole. Your attention is drawn to the letter from the Chairman of Rio
Tinto which is set out on pages 4 to 9 of this document and which contains the recommendation of the
Board that you vote in favour of the Transaction and the resolution to be proposed at the Rio Tinto
Limited General Meeting convened by the notice set out in this document. The Independent Expert has
concluded that the terms of the Transaction are fair and reasonable for Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders.
The Independent Expert’s Report is set out in Part II (Independent Expert’s Report) of this document.

Notice of the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting, to be held at 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on 29 June 2017 is set out at
the end of this document. Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders will find enclosed with this document a Proxy Form
for use in connection with the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting. To be valid, the Proxy Form should be
completed, signed and returned, with any power of attorney under which it is executed (or a duly certified copy
of any such power), must be received by Rio Tinto Limited’s share registry at Computershare Investor Services
Pty Ltd, GPO Box 242, Melbourne, Victoria, 3067, or at Rio Tinto Limited’s registered office or by facsimile to
1800 783 447 (within Australia) or +61 3 9473 2555 (outside Australia), by 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on Tuesday,
27 June 2017.

Completion and return of a completed Proxy Form will not prevent you from attending and voting in person at
the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, if you so wish and are so entitled.

This document does not constitute or form part of any offer or invitation to purchase, otherwise acquire,
subscribe for, sell, otherwise dispose of or issue, or any solicitation of any offer to sell, otherwise dispose of,
issue, purchase, otherwise acquire or subscribe for, any security.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION

Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders should rely only on the information contained in this document. No person has
been authorised to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this
document in connection with the Transaction and, if given or made, such information or representations must not
be relied upon as having been authorised by or on behalf of Rio Tinto or the Directors.



The contents of this document are not to be construed as legal, business, financial or tax advice. Each Rio Tinto
Shareholder should consult his or her own lawyer, financial adviser or tax adviser for legal, financial or tax
advice in relation to the Transaction.

PRESENTATION OF INFORMATION

Unless otherwise indicated, financial information for Coal & Allied Industries in this document is presented in
Australian dollars and has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and interpretations issued from time to time by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee which are mandatory as at 31 December 2016. Certain figures included in this
document have been subject to rounding adjustments.

DEFINITIONS

Some words and expressions used in this document have defined meanings, which are set out in Part IV
(Definitions) of this document. A reference to time in this document is to Australian Eastern Standard Time
(unless otherwise stated) for events occurring in Australia or to London time (unless otherwise stated) for events
in the UK.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document contains statements which constitute “forward-looking statements” about Rio Tinto. The words
” [ b2 (13 29 13 2 (13 2 (13 9’ [ 2 13

“intend”, “aim”, “project”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “plan”, “believes”, “expects”’, “may”, “should”, “will”, or
similar expressions, commonly identify such forward-looking statements.

Examples of forward-looking statements in this document include, among others, statements regarding the
proposed Transaction; the financial condition, results of operations or economic conditions affecting the business
of Rio Tinto; future implications of the Transaction; and management plans and objectives. Forward-looking
statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors set forth in this
document that are beyond Rio Tinto’s control.

In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, actual results could be materially different from projected
future results expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements which speak only as at the date of this
document. Except as required by applicable regulations or by law, Rio Tinto does not undertake any obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information or future
events. Rio Tinto cannot guarantee that its forward-looking statements will not differ materially from actual
results.

The date of this document is 19 May 2017.
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF RIO TINTO

Rio Tinto Limited
(ABN 96 004 458 404)

Registered and Head Office:
Level 33, 120 Collins Street
Melbourne 3000 Victoria
Australia

19 May 2017

Dear Shareholder

Proposed disposal of Rio Tinto’s shareholding in Coal & Allied Industries to Yancoal
Introduction

On 24 January 2017, Rio Tinto announced that it had reached a binding agreement for the sale of its 100 per
cent. interest in the issued share capital of Coal & Allied Industries to Yancoal. Under the Transaction, the
total purchase price payable by Yancoal amounts to US$2.45 billion, comprising:

e an initial payment of US$1.95 billion, payable at completion of the Transaction; and

e US$500 million in aggregate deferred cash payments, payable as annual instalments of US$100 million
over the five years following completion of the Transaction.

After the Transaction is completed, Rio Tinto will potentially also be entitled to royalties.

Subject to all approvals and other conditions precedent being satisfied, it is expected that the Transaction
will complete during the third quarter of 2017.

Under the ASX Listing Rules, the acquisition or disposal of a substantial asset by a listed company from or
to a person in a position of influence requires the approval of the shareholders of the listed company. For the
purposes of the ASX Listing Rules, Coal & Allied Industries is considered to be a substantial asset of
Rio Tinto and Yancoal is considered to be a person in a position of influence in relation to Rio Tinto, and
the Transaction is accordingly considered to be a transaction requiring the approval of Rio Tinto
Shareholders.

Under the UK Listing Rules, a transaction (other than a transaction in the ordinary course of business)
between a listed company and a related party requires the approval of the shareholders of the listed
company. For the purposes of the UK Listing Rules, Yancoal is considered to be a related party of Rio Tinto
and the Transaction is accordingly considered to be a related party transaction requiring the approval of
Rio Tinto Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting has been convened for 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on 29 June
2017 at the Grand Ballroom, The Westin Sydney, 1 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales and the
Rio Tinto plc General Meeting has been convened for 11.00 a.m. (London time) on 27 June 2017 at The
Queen Elizabeth II Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London, SWIP 3EE, United
Kingdom. As a Rio Tinto Limited Shareholder, you will be asked to approve the Transaction at the Rio
Tinto Limited General Meeting.

The Board considers the Transaction to be fair and reasonable as far as Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders are
concerned and in the best interests of Rio Tinto Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Board
recommends that you vote in favour of the Resolution as each member of the Board intends to do in respect
of any Rio Tinto Shares over which he or she has voting control.

Background to and reasons for the Transaction

The divestment of Coal & Allied Industries is consistent with Rio Tinto’s strategy of continuously
reviewing its asset portfolio and seeking attractive opportunities for the most effective re-allocation of
capital to ensure Rio Tinto delivers superior returns for its shareholders. Rio Tinto has announced or
completed at least US$7.7 billion of divestments since 2013. The Transaction represents the latest
divestment undertaken by Rio Tinto to ensure the most effective use of capital and delivery of returns for
Rio Tinto Shareholders.



These recent divestments include the sale of Rio Tinto’s interests in the Clermont coal mine, the Bengalla
coal mine and the Mount Pleasant coal project. In addition, prior to the sale of Rio Tinto’s interest in the
Bengalla coal mine and the Mount Pleasant coal project, a restructuring of the ownership of Coal & Allied
Industries’ assets was completed in 2016 with the Mitsubishi Group (Rio Tinto’s joint venture partner)
pursuant to which Rio Tinto agreed to assume 100 per cent. ownership of Coal & Allied Industries and the
Mitsubishi Group agreed to move from holding a 20 per cent. interest in Coal & Allied Industries to holding
a direct 32.4 per cent. interest in the Hunter Valley Joint Venture.

The Transaction represents the culmination of an extensive assessment of all strategic options for Coal &
Allied Industries’ assets. Rio Tinto has conducted a comprehensive market testing and price discovery
process and has held extensive discussions with several potential acquirers of Coal & Allied Industries’
assets. The Board of Rio Tinto believes that the terms of the Coal & Allied Industries sale, which have been
agreed with Yancoal, represent compelling value for Rio Tinto Shareholders.

Yancoal is listed on the ASX. Rio Tinto understands that Yancoal owns and operates a portfolio of nine coal
mines, numerous projects under feasibility study, a suite of exploration assets and infrastructure
shareholdings across NSW, Queensland and Western Australia.

Business description

Coal & Allied Industries is the holding company for Rio Tinto’s thermal coal business in the Hunter Valley
region of NSW. Coal & Allied Industries owns and operates multiple, multi-seam open cut mines in the
Hunter Valley. It has a 67.6 per cent. interest in the Hunter Valley Operations mine, an 80 per cent. interest
in the Mount Thorley mine, a 55.6 per cent. interest in the Warkworth mine, a 36.5 per cent. interest in Port
Waratah Coal Services (which owns a coal export terminal located at the Port of Newcastle) and other
undeveloped coal assets, including various landholdings.

The Hunter Valley Operations, Mount Thorley and Warkworth mines together produced 25.9 million tonnes
of saleable thermal and semi-soft coking coal in 2016 (17.1 million tonnes being Rio Tinto’s share). The net
assets subject to the Transaction had earnings before tax of A$347.1 million in the year to 31 December
2016, and a gross asset value attributable to them of A$1,964.2 million as at 31 December 2016.!

A summary of the recent financial performance of Coal & Allied Industries (as extracted from its audited
financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2014, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016)
together with a summary of the financial position of Coal & Allied Industries for the years ended
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 are set out in section 3.5 of the Independent Expert’s Report.

Recent geopolitical developments have led to volatility permeating across global markets and this volatility
is expected to remain an ongoing feature of seaborne coal markets. However, thermal coal is a cost-effective
and abundant energy source that plays an important role in the global energy mix and its medium to long
term demand outlook remains sound even if pricing could be more volatile.

Last year saw significant changes in the supply and demand balance, driving spot prices for both thermal
and metallurgical coal from low levels early in 2016 to favourable highs in the second half of the year. The
changing market dynamics were primarily driven by changes in Chinese policy, curtailing supply through
the implementation of restricted operating days for coal mines. This directive has since been relaxed,
however uncertainties are likely to continue to affect coal markets in the short to medium term.

Even though market prices for both thermal and metallurgical coal remain firm, producers are wary of the
potential for rapid fluctuations in market conditions. Ongoing achievements by Coal & Allied Industries in
reducing costs and improving productivity at its operations in the Hunter Valley have ensured they are well
positioned to be resilient for changes in the macro-economic environment.

In the medium to long term, it is anticipated that strong energy demand in the developing economies,
particularly China and India, combined with the rising costs and logistical constraints associated with
domestic production in these countries, will provide some support for seaborne thermal and metallurgical
coal markets.

This financial information has been prepared under International Accounting Standards and Rio Tinto accounting policies, and reflects
the financial results attributable to the net assets subject of the sale to Yancoal. The financial information given above reflects the results
of a restructure to the Coal & Allied Industries group completed on 3 February 2016 in which Rio Tinto obtained 100 per cent.
ownership of Coal & Allied Industries and a 67.6 per cent. interest in the Hunter Valley Operations joint venture. Earnings before tax and
gross assets attributable to Coal & Allied Industries’ former ownership of the Mount Pleasant project and a 40 per cent. interest in the
Bengalla joint venture have been excluded.



Key terms of the Transaction

Completion of the Transaction will deliver to Rio Tinto an initial cash payment of US$1.95 billion, payable
at completion and US$500 million in aggregate deferred cash payments, payable as annual instalments of
US$100 million over the five years following completion of the Transaction.

In addition, Rio Tinto will become entitled to a quarterly coal price linked royalty calculated as US$2 per
tonne (subject to an annual Australian CPI adjustment over the term of the royalty) of attributable saleable
production (excluding certain production) from subsidiaries of Coal & Allied Industries, for a period of
10 years beginning on the third anniversary of completion. This royalty will be payable if the Newcastle
benchmark thermal coal price exceeds US$75 per tonne (subject to an annual Australian CPI adjustment
over the term of the royalty). The aggregate amount of royalties is subject to a US$650 million cap.

In addition to the cash consideration payable by Yancoal upon completion of the Transaction and
Rio Tinto’s future royalties entitlement:

e earnings and cash flow generated by Coal & Allied Industries until completion of the Transaction will
continue for the benefit of Rio Tinto (with the exception of sales proceeds generated from the potential
sale of the Minmi landholdings in the Lower Hunter Valley. To the extent realised, any such sales
proceeds would not be material in the context of Coal & Allied Industries or the Transaction);

* Yancoal will assume an agreed base working capital value for Coal & Allied Industries of negative
A$161 million and there will be customary completion adjustments for the working capital variance
and any net debt of Coal & Allied Industries as at the effective completion time;

e there will be a reduction of US$90 million to the consideration payable by Yancoal if certain
outstanding subordinate approvals relevant to the Warkworth mine are not obtained within five years of
completion of the Transaction; and

e Yancoal will assume Rio Tinto’s coal supply obligations in relation to BLCP under the Coal Supply
and Transportation Agreement and Yancoal will continue to use Rio Tinto Marine’s freight services for
the sea freight component of such agreement.

The SPA contains customary terms and conditions that restrict Rio Tinto from soliciting a competing
proposal from any third party, or entering into negotiations or discussions in relation to a competing
proposal with any third party, subject to customary exceptions if the Board determines that a competing
proposal is (or is reasonably likely to become) a superior proposal available to Rio Tinto and that
compliance with the restriction would constitute a breach of their fiduciary or statutory duties. Please refer
to section 5 of Part I (Details of the Transaction) for further information.

In accordance with Rio Tinto’s obligations under the HVO Joint Venture Agreement, Rio Tinto will procure
that Yancoal also make a ‘tag’ offer to the relevant Mitsubishi Group member to acquire its 32.4 per cent.
interest in the Hunter Valley Joint Venture, subject to any contrary arrangements agreed between Yancoal
and the Mitsubishi Group. Please refer to section 6 of Part I (Details of the Transaction) for further
information.

Financial effect of the Transaction

Completion of the Transaction is not expected to have a material impact on Rio Tinto’s earnings per share.

Use of proceeds

Rio Tinto will use the consideration received from the Transaction for general corporate purposes. In the
near term, completion of the Transaction will reduce the net indebtedness of Rio Tinto.

Risks, regulatory consents and other conditions to the Transaction

Prior to making any decision to vote in favour of the proposed Transaction, Rio Tinto Shareholders should
carefully consider, together with all other information contained in this document, the specific factors and
risks described below. Rio Tinto considers the following to be the main factors relating to the Transaction
for Rio Tinto Shareholders to consider:

* Rio Tinto Shareholders might disagree with the assessment of the Board and the Independent Expert as
to the value of the interests which Yancoal is acquiring under the Transaction and whether Yancoal is
paying a sufficient price for those interests.



e Rio Tinto Shareholders might believe that commodity prices in the future will outperform current
expectations and that, therefore, the price that Yancoal is paying in connection with the Transaction
does not adequately compensate Rio Tinto Shareholders for the divestment of Coal & Allied Industries.

e Rio Tinto Shareholders might also wish to retain exposure to the interests being sold as part of the
Transaction and to share in the potential value that could be generated by Coal & Allied Industries in
the future.

Yancoal intends to fund the Transaction by way of a capital raising and pro-rata renounceable rights issue of
ordinary shares. The Yancoal rights issue is expected to occur in the third quarter of 2017.

The Transaction is subject to certain conditions being satisfied, including regulatory approvals (approval
from the NSW Minister for Resources, Chinese regulatory approvals, Chinese anti-trust approval, South
Korean anti-trust approval, which was received on 26 April 2017, and Australian foreign investment
approval, receipt of which was confirmed by Yancoal in an announcement on 13 April 2017) and consent
from BLCP to the novation to a Yancoal Group entity of all the rights and obligations of Rio Tinto under the
Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement (or the establishment of alternative supply arrangements). The
Transaction is also subject to a vote by the shareholders of Yanzhou. Yankuang, which owns 56 per cent. of
Yanzhou, has irrevocably undertaken to vote in favour of the Transaction at the Yanzhou shareholder
meeting.

There is a risk that one or more of these conditions may not be satisfied, which could cause the Transaction
not to complete.

Rio Tinto General Meetings

The Transaction is a transaction with a person in a position of influence for the purposes of the ASX Listing
Rules and requires shareholder approval pursuant to those rules, as well as pursuant to the related party
transaction rules under the UK Listing Rules.

Relevantly, pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 10.1, Rio Tinto shareholder approval is required for the disposal
of any substantial asset to an associate of a substantial shareholder of Rio Tinto. Coal & Allied is considered
a ‘substantial asset’ for these purposes.

Yancoal is 78 per cent. owned by Yanzhou and Yanzhou is 56 per cent. owned by Yankuang. Yankuang is
controlled by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province in
the People’s Republic of China.

Chinalco holds a 13.10 per cent. interest in Rio Tinto plc through Shining Prospect Pte. Ltd. Chinalco is
controlled by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of
the People’s Republic of China. For the purposes of the ASX Listing Rules, Chinalco is treated as a person
in a position of influence in relation to Rio Tinto since it is entitled to exercise, or to control the exercise of,
10 per cent. or more of the votes able to be cast on all or substantially all matters at general meetings.

As a result of Chinalco and Yankuang each being owned by state-owned entities ultimately controlled by
the State Council of the People’s Republic of China, Yancoal is considered to be an associate of Chinalco
and hence a person in a position of influence in relation to Rio Tinto Limited. Accordingly, the Transaction
is a transaction requiring Rio Tinto Shareholder approval pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 10.1. Since the
Transaction is between Rio Tinto and Yancoal, Yancoal has undertaken not to vote on the Resolution at the
Rio Tinto plc General Meeting and the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting and to take all reasonable steps
to ensure that its associates will not vote on the Resolution at such meetings. As at 17 May 2017, being the
latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, Rio Tinto was not aware that Yancoal held
any Rio Tinto Shares.

Separately, under the UK Listing Rules, a transaction (other than a transaction in the ordinary course of
business) between a listed company and a related party requires the approval of the shareholders of the
listed company. Under the UK Listing Rules, any person who is entitled to exercise, or to control the
exercise of, 10 per cent. or more of the votes able to be cast on all or substantially all matters at general
meetings of a listed company is considered, with its associates, to be a related party of that listed company.
Yancoal is considered to be an associate of Chinalco for the purposes of UK Listing Rule 11.1.7 as a result
of Chinalco and Yankuang each being owned by state-owned entities ultimately controlled by the State
Council of the People’s Republic of China, as described above. Accordingly, the Transaction is a related
party transaction requiring Rio Tinto Shareholder approval pursuant to UK Listing Rule 11.1.7. As the
Transaction is classified as a Class 2 transaction under the UK Listing Rules, Rio Tinto Shareholders will
not be asked to approve the Transaction for the purposes of Chapter 10 of the UK Listing Rules.
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Accordingly, the Transaction is conditional on shareholders at the Rio Tinto plc General Meeting and the
Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting approving the Transaction as a joint electorate by way of ordinary
resolution. The Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting will be held at 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on 29 June 2017 and
the Rio Tinto plc General Meeting will be held at 11.00 a.m. (London time) on 27 June 2017. The Notice
convening the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting is set out at the end of this document.

The result of the vote to approve the Transaction under the joint electorate procedure will be determined
when the relevant polls are closed at the end of the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting. The overall results
will be announced to the relevant stock exchanges and posted on Rio Tinto’s website shortly after the end of
that meeting.

Action to be taken

You will find enclosed a Proxy Form for use at the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting. Whether or not you
intend to be present at the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting, you are requested to complete the Proxy
Form and return it as soon as possible and in any case so as to be received by Rio Tinto Limited’s share
registry at Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd, GPO Box 242, Melbourne, Victoria, 3001, or Yarra
Falls, 452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford, Victoria, 3067 or at Rio Tinto Limited’s registered office or by
facsimile to 1800 783 447 (within Australia) or +61 3 9473 2555 (outside Australia), by 11.00 a.m. (AEST)
on 27 June 2017.

The completion and return of a completed Proxy Form will not prevent you from attending and voting in
person at the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, if you so wish and are so
entitled.

Shareholders can lodge their proxy forms online at investorvote.com.au. Further information can be
obtained in the Important Notes in the Notice of General Meeting that is annexed to this document.

If you have any questions in relation to the Transaction, please contact the Rio Tinto Shareholder Helpline
e within Australia on 1800 813 292 (toll free); or
¢ from outside Australia on +61 3 9415 4030,

at any time between 8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. (Melbourne time) Monday to Friday, or visit the Rio Tinto
website at riotinto.com.

Further information

Your attention is drawn to the additional information contained in Parts I to IV of this document. You are
advised to read the whole document and not merely rely on the key or summarised information in this letter
from the Chairman of Rio Tinto.

Independent Expert

Rio Tinto has engaged Ernst & Young as the Independent Expert to prepare a report opining on the fairness
and reasonableness of the Transaction to Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders. The provision of the Independent
Expert’s Report is a requirement of the ASX Listing Rules. The Independent Expert is required to be
independent from Rio Tinto in accordance with Regulatory Guide 112 issued by the Australian Securities
and Investments Commission.

The Independent Expert has concluded that the terms of the Transaction are fair and reasonable for
Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders. The Independent Expert’s Report is set out in Part II (Independent Expert’s
Report) of this document.

The Independent Expert, in its Independent Expert’s Report states that:

“The assessed value of Coal & Allied on a controlling basis is between $1,820 million and $2,173 million.
The value of the Consideration and Royalty is between $2,296 million and $2,386 million. As the range of
the Consideration and Royalty is greater than the range of values of Coal & Allied on a controlling basis we
consider the Transaction to be fair... as we consider the terms of the Transaction to be fair, we also
consider the terms to be reasonable.”

Recommendation

The Board of Rio Tinto Limited considers that the Transaction is fair and reasonable as far as the Rio Tinto
Limited Shareholders are concerned. The Board also considers that the Transaction is in the best interests of
Rio Tinto Shareholders as a whole.



Accordingly, the Board recommends that you vote in favour of the Resolution as each member of the Board
intends to do in respect of any Rio Tinto Shares over which he or she has voting control (such Rio Tinto
Shares (in aggregate) representing approximately 0.007 per cent. of voting power in Rio Tinto on joint
decision matters).

Yours faithfully

Jan du Plessis

Chairman



EXPECTED TIMETABLE OF PRINCIPAL EVENTS

Each of the times and dates in the table below is indicative only and may be subject to change.

Latest time and date for receipt of Proxy Forms for the Rio Tinto Limited 11.00 a.m. (AEST)
General MEEtiNg . . ..o v it on 27 June 2017
Rio Tinto plc General Meeting . ...ttt 11.00 a.m. (London time)
on 27 June 2017
Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting . . . ...ttt 11.00 a.m. (AEST)
on 29 June 2017
Completion of the Transaction (subject to approvals) . .......... ... ... ... .... During the third quarter
of 2017

Notes:

(1) The times and dates set out in the expected timetable of principal events above and mentioned throughout this document may be adjusted
by Rio Tinto in which event details of the new times and dates will be notified to the ASX.
(2) References to times in this timetable are to Australian Eastern Standard Time unless otherwise stated.

10



PART I
DETAILS OF THE TRANSACTION

1 Transaction

Yancoal has entered into the SPA with the Vendor and HVR in relation to the sale of all of the issued shares
in Coal & Allied Industries.

2 Purchase Price

The total purchase price payable by Yancoal comprises an initial payment of US$1.95 billion, payable at
completion of the Transaction and US$500 million in aggregate deferred cash payments, payable as annual
instalments of US$100 million over the five years following completion of the Transaction.

Yancoal, through certain subsidiaries of Coal & Allied Industries, must also pay a coal price linked royalty,
which is determined as US$2 per tonne (subject to an annual Australian CPI adjustment over the term of the
royalty) of attributable saleable coal production (excluding certain production) from Coal & Allied
Industries for a period of 10 years beginning on the third anniversary of completion. This royalty is payable
if the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal price exceeds US$75 per tonne (subject to an annual Australian
CPI adjustment over the term of the royalty). The aggregate amount of royalties is subject to a
US$650 million cap (see section 11 of this Part I (Details of the Transaction)).

In addition to the cash consideration payable by Yancoal upon completion of the Transaction and
Rio Tinto’s future royalties entitlement:

e carnings and cash flow generated by Coal & Allied Industries until completion of the Transaction will
continue for the benefit of Rio Tinto (with the exception of sales proceeds generated from the potential
sale of the Minmi landholdings in the Lower Hunter Valley. To the extent realised, any such sales
proceeds would not be material in the context of Coal & Allied Industries or the Transaction);

*  Yancoal will assume an agreed base working capital value for Coal & Allied Industries of negative
A$161 million and there will be customary completion adjustments for the working capital variance
and any net debt of Coal & Allied Industries as at the effective completion time;

o there will be a reduction of US$90 million to the consideration payable by Yancoal if certain
outstanding subordinate approvals relevant to the Warkworth mine are not obtained within five years of
completion of the Transaction; and

*  Yancoal will assume Rio Tinto’s coal supply obligations in relation to BLCP under the Coal Supply
and Transportation Agreement and Yancoal will continue to use Rio Tinto Marine’s freight services for
the sea freight component of such agreement.

3 Conditions Precedent

The completion-related obligations on the parties under the SPA do not become binding unless and until
each of the following conditions are satisfied (or waived, where applicable):

e the Transaction is approved by the NSW Minister for Resources, as required under the conditions of
certain tenements held by Coal & Allied Industries;

e the Treasurer of Australia approves the Transaction under the foreign investment approval legislation;

e approval in respect of the Transaction is received from all required authorities of the People’s Republic
of China, namely the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission, the National
Development and Reform Commission, the State Administration of Foreign Exchange and the Ministry
of Commerce (MOFCOM);

e China’s Anti-Monopoly Bureau and the Korea Fair Trade Commission each clear the Transaction;
e the shareholders of Rio Tinto Limited and Rio Tinto plc approve the Transaction;
* the shareholders of Yanzhou approve the Transaction; and

e BLCP consents to the novation of the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement from the Vendor to a
Yancoal Group entity, and executes a novation deed (or alternative supply arrangements have been
established).
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On 13 April 2017, Yancoal issued an announcement to the effect that it had received confirmation from the
Foreign Investment Review Board of the Treasurer of Australia’s approval of the Transaction. On 26 April
2017, Yancoal received merger control clearance from the Korea Fair Trade Commission.

Termination
Yancoal may terminate the SPA before completion if:

e despite having used reasonable endeavours, funding is not available to it on reasonably acceptable
terms to fund the purchase price, in which case Yancoal must pay Rio Tinto a termination fee of
US$23.5 million (however, the termination fee is not payable where Yancoal has been unable to obtain
funding under its proposed rights issue due to a regulatory order which prevents completion of the
rights issue); or

e a material adverse change in relation to Coal & Allied Industries occurs before completion (and, if
occurring before the estimated launch date of the Yancoal rights issue, is not cured before that launch
date). A material adverse change is defined to be an event that results in, or would be reasonably likely
to result in:

e a reduction in Coal & Allied Industries’ share of production of saleable coal to less than
10 million tonnes per annum during a continuous period of 18 months following completion;

* the sterilisation of more than 7.5 per cent. of Coal & Allied Industries’ stated coal reserves; or

* a reduction in the market value of Coal & Allied Industries’ consolidated net assets by at least
US$250 million against the value that would reasonably be expected at completion, but for the
material adverse change.

The Vendor or Yancoal may terminate the SPA before completion if:

e the conditions precedent (other than the BLCP consent condition) are not satisfied or waived, or have
become incapable of satisfaction, on or before 24 October 2017 (which period may be extended by the
election of either or both parties for a total of 60 days); or

e the other party fails to fulfil its obligations at completion and does not remedy that failure within five
business days.

The Vendor may terminate the SPA before completion if the BLCP consent condition has not been fulfilled
or waived and the Vendor considers that pursuing an alternative commercial approach with respect to the
Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement of the type described in section 10 of this Part I (Details of the
Transaction) would be likely to result in material adverse consequences for Rio Tinto.

The SPA will terminate automatically if any customer of or supplier to the Vendor, HVR or Coal & Allied
Industries or any of its subsidiaries obtains an injunction preventing the Vendor or HVR from fulfilling its
completion obligations under the SPA.

Exclusivity
No shop and no talk

During the period from the date of the SPA until completion or termination of the SPA, the Vendor and its
related bodies corporate must not (subject to certain limited customary carve-outs):

e solicit or invite any competing proposal for a control transaction in relation to Coal & Allied Industries
or the disposal of Coal & Allied Industries’ assets;

e participate in discussions relating to, or enter into, any arrangement that may lead to a competing
proposal;

e provide a third party with any non-public information relating to Coal & Allied Industries in
connection with the formulation of a competing proposal; or

° communicate to anyone an intention to do any of the above.

Exceptions

The restrictions described above (other than the restriction described in the first bullet) are subject to a
fiduciary carve out, such that they do not apply where the Board determines that the competing proposal is a
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‘Superior Proposal’ and compliance with the restrictions would be a breach of their directors’ duties, or that
compliance with the restrictions would otherwise be unlawful. This carve out only applies until the date on
which the Rio Tinto Shareholders have approved the Transaction.

In summary, ‘Superior Proposal’ is defined in the SPA as a bona fide competing proposal for the acquisition
of 100 per cent. of the shares in Coal & Allied Industries for a total cash consideration having a net present
value that exceeds Yancoal’s proposed consideration by at least US$100 million, and which is reasonably
considered to be no more conditional than the Transaction (including based on relative completion time
frames), and which would be more favourable to the Rio Tinto Shareholders than the Transaction. The
Board is to determine whether a bona fide competing proposal constitutes a Superior Proposal.

Notification of approaches and matching right

If the Vendor receives a competing proposal, it must (subject to a fiduciary carve-out) provide details of the
party making the competing proposal and the material terms of the proposal to Yancoal within five business
days of receipt.

If the Board determines that a competing proposal is a Superior Proposal, then Rio Tinto must not enter into
that Superior Proposal until Yancoal has had the opportunity to present a counter offer within five business
days of being notified of such Superior Proposal. If the Board determines in good faith that the counter offer
is no less favourable than the Superior Proposal, then the parties must seek to enter into documentation to
give effect to the counter offer as soon as reasonably practicable.

Mitsubishi Tag Rights

Coal & Allied Industries is a party to the HVO Joint Venture Agreement (through its subsidiary Coal &
Allied Operations Pty Ltd). Under the HVO Joint Venture Agreement, a Mitsubishi Group member has
tag-along rights that are triggered by the Transaction. As required by the SPA, Yancoal must make an offer
to the Mitsubishi Group member to acquire its 32.4 per cent. interest in the Hunter Valley Joint Venture in
accordance with the HVO Joint Venture Agreement, subject to any contrary arrangements agreed between
Yancoal and the Mitsubishi Group. The HVO Joint Venture Agreement contains a mechanism for
determining the price to be offered to the Mitsubishi Group for its interest in the Hunter Valley Joint
Venture, which involves determination of fair market value by agreement between the parties or, in default
of such agreement, by an independent valuer. Once the fair market value has been determined and an offer
has been made, the Mitsubishi Group may elect to accept or reject that offer.

As at 17 May 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, the parties
had agreed to extend the timetable for the tag-along process to allow for further discussion between the
Mitsubishi Group and Yancoal.

Warranties

Each of the parties to the SPA has given warranties that are considered customary for a transaction of this
nature.

Conduct of Business Restrictions

The Vendor and HVR must conduct the business of Coal & Allied Industries in the ordinary course between
signing of the SPA and completion of the Transaction. This includes carrying on the business in accordance
with all approved budgets and business plans (including those relating to any joint ventures). The Vendor
and HVR are also subject to certain specific restrictions, including in relation to incurring material capital
commitments, relinquishing mining tenements, disposing of assets and other restrictions that may be
considered customary for a transaction of this nature.

Transitional Services Agreement

The parties to the SPA have agreed that a Transitional Services Agreement will be entered into upon
completion of the Transaction between a related body corporate of the Vendor, Rio Tinto Services Limited,
and Coal & Allied Industries. The Transitional Services Agreement relates to the provision of various
services for short specified periods (up to six months following completion of the Transaction), depending
on the nature of the services. Services to be provided under the Transitional Services Agreement include IST
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support services, orebody knowledge support, strategic mine planning support, health, safety and
environment support, government approvals support, accounting support and payroll support. Coal & Allied
Industries must pay a fee for the provision of these services of cost plus 7.5 per cent. The Transitional
Services Agreement has a basic term of six months (with IST services to be provided for the six-month term
and shorter terms of one to three months for the remaining services). Notwithstanding these agreed service
terms, Coal & Allied Industries must use its best endeavours to take over performance of the services itself,
or procure a third party to perform them, as soon as possible after completion of the Transaction. Rio Tinto
Services Limited’s liability under the Transitional Services Agreement is capped at the total amount of the
service fees it receives.

BLCP arrangements

The Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement was entered into between the Vendor and BLCP on 13 June
2003, as amended on 25 May 2009. Coal from the Warkworth, Mount Thorley and Hunter Valley coal
operations is currently delivered to BLCP by the Vendor under the Coal Supply and Transportation
Agreement. Specifically, the Vendor must supply a minimum annual quantity of 2,560,000 tonnes of coal
and a maximum annual quantity of 3,627,000 tonnes of coal to BLCP. The term of the Coal Supply and
Transportation Agreement extends until January 2032. The Vendor has the right to exclusively supply
BLCP until BLCP purchases the maximum quantity (subject to certain limited exceptions) from the Vendor.
A supply schedule is agreed between the parties each year that must provide for the supply of at least the
minimum quantity to BLCP. The Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement contains a take or pay
obligation on BLCP to take the minimum quantity.

It is intended that the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement will be novated from the Vendor to a
Yancoal Group entity on and from completion of the Transaction pursuant to a BLCP Novation Deed.
However, if this does not occur and the Vendor does not terminate the SPA in such circumstances on the
basis set out in section 4 of this Part I (Details of the Transaction), then the Vendor and Yancoal Sales will
enter into back-to-back arrangements contained in the BLCP Back-to-Back Agreement such that Yancoal
Sales will make coal available to the Vendor to enable the Vendor’s ongoing compliance with the Coal
Supply and Transportation Agreement.

Whether or not the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement is novated to a Yancoal Group entity, certain
other agreements will be entered into as described below:

e Bee Creek Contract and related side letter: for the purpose of supporting the obligations of the
Yancoal Group entity under the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement or under the back-to-back
arrangements (as applicable), the SPA provides for the novation from the Vendor to Yancoal Sales of
various existing coal supply and freight arrangements and entry into the Bee Creek Contract and related
side letter by Yancoal Sales and Hail Creek Marketing Pty Limited (a member of the Rio Tinto Group)
pursuant to which Yancoal Sales will purchase up to 800,000 tonnes per annum of coal from Hail
Creek Marketing Pty Limited until 31 December 2020 on arms-length terms;

e Freight Transfer Deed: this will be a tripartite novation deed that the Vendor, Yancoal Sales and
Rio Tinto Shipping (Asia) Pte Limited (a member of the Rio Tinto Group) will enter into to novate
from the Vendor to Yancoal Sales the Agreement for the Supply of Chartering and Freight Services to
Port of Map Ta Phut, Thailand dated 17 May 2005 between the Vendor and Rio Tinto Shipping (Asia)
Pte Limited. This is the agreement pursuant to which the Vendor procures from Rio Tinto Shipping
(Asia) Pte Limited transportation services in respect of the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement;
and

e HVO Coal Supply Transfer Deed: this will be a tripartite deed between HVO Coal Sales Pty Ltd,
Yancoal Sales and the Vendor under which the Vendor novates to Yancoal Sales the existing HVO
Coal Supply Agreement (back-to-back sale of coal for supply to BLCP) dated 3 February 2016
between the Vendor and HVO Coal Sales Pty Ltd (an entity partly owned by the Vendor and the
Mitsubishi Group). Under this agreement, the Vendor sources a portion of coal for its annual supply
obligations to BLCP.

Royalty arrangements

As indicated in section 1 of this Part I (Details of the Transaction), the Vendor has also acquired a right to
be paid royalties in respect of Coal & Allied Industries’ share of certain coal production from the
Warkworth, Mount Thorley and Hunter Valley coal operations. These royalties are set out in four separate
royalty deeds that will be entered into before completion of the Transaction in accordance with the SPA.
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The royalty period is 10 years commencing on the day after the third anniversary of completion of the
Transaction and expiring on the thirteenth anniversary of completion of the Transaction, or the last day of
the calendar quarter during which the aggregate amount of royalty payments under all Royalty Deeds
reaches the cap amount of US$650 million, whichever is earlier.

The amount of the royalty payable under each Royalty Deed is US$2 per tonne (annually indexed to
Australian CPI over the term of the royalty) of attributable saleable production. The royalties are payable on
a quarterly basis, and are only payable in respect of a given quarter if the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal
price for that quarter exceeds the threshold amount of US$75 per tonne (annually indexed to Australian CPI
over the term of the royalty). The total amount of royalties payable under all Royalty Deeds is capped at
US$650 million. The royalties are not payable on production of amounts required for delivery to BLCP
under the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement or coal extracted from any future underground
mining.

If there is an adjustment in the purchase price due to certain outstanding subordinate approvals relating to
the Warkworth mining operations not being obtained (referred to in section 1 of this Part I (Details of the
Transaction)), the royalties payable under the Royalty Deeds relating to the Warkworth and Mount Thorley
coal operations will, in the case of coal production from the area affected by the failure to obtain the
relevant subordinate approvals, not be subject to the benchmark thermal coal price threshold referred to
above.
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Part 1 — Independent Expert’s Report

The Directors 19 May 2017
Rio Tinto Limited

120 Collins Street

MELBOURNE VIC 3000

Dear Directors

Proposed disposal of Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Background

On 24 January 2017, the Rio Tinto Group (“Rio Tinto") announced that it had reached a binding agreement for
the sale of its wholly owned subsidiary Coal & Allied Industries Limited (“Coal & Allied” or the “Company”) to
Yancoal Australia Limited (“Yancoal”) (the “Transaction”) for a cash consideration of $2.45 billion
(“Consideration”). Rio Tinto will also be entitled to a royalty. All amounts are in United States dollars
(“$” or “US$”) unless otherwise stated.

Requirement for an independent expert’s report

One of the conditions precedent to the Transaction is approval by the shareholders of Rio Tinto Limited not
associated with Yancoal (“Non-Associated Shareholders”). Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Limited, a subsidiary
of Rio Tinto Limited and part of Rio Tinto, has engaged Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited
(“EY Transaction Advisory Services”) to prepare this independent expert’s report (“IER”), a copy of which is to
be provided to Rio Tinto Limited shareholders.

In accordance with Chapter 10 of the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX") Listing Rules, the requirement for
an IER has arisen as Yancoal is considered to be a person of influence in respect of Rio Tinto for the purposes
of the ASX Listing Rules. The Notice of Meeting provided to shareholders of Rio Tinto Limited in advance of the
meeting whereby Rio Tinto will be seeking approval of the Transaction must include an IER.

Approach

Neither the Corporations Act 2001 nor the ASX Listing Rules define the term “fair and reasonable”. Australian
Securities and Investment Commission Regulatory Guide 111: Content of expert reports (“RG 111") provides
some guidance as to how the term “fair and reasonable” should be interpreted in a range of circumstances. With
respect to a related party transaction RG 111 provides:

> An offer is “fair” if the value of the “financial benefit to be provided by the entity to the related party is
equal to or less than the value of the consideration being provided to the entity”.

> An offer is “reasonable” if it is fair. It might also be “reasonable” if, despite being “not fair”, the expert
believes that there are sufficient reasons for security holders to vote for the proposal.

Accordingly, the key component of the assessment as to whether or not the Transaction is fair and reasonable
is the comparison of the fair value of Coal & Allied with the fair value of the Consideration plus royalty being
offered.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited, ABN 87 003 599 844
Australian Financial Services Licence No. 240585 18
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Summary of opinion

Fairness of the Transaction

We have determined whether the Transaction is fair by comparing the assessed fair value of Coal & Allied, on
a controlling basis, to the assessed fair value of the Consideration and royalty that will be received by Rio Tinto

in the event that the Transaction is approved and implemented.

We adopted a sum-of-the-parts approach to value Coal & Allied and our assessed range of values are set out
in detail in section 6 of this IER.

The table below presents a summary of the value of the Coal & Allied and of the Consideration and royalty.

Evaluation of the fairness of the Transaction

$m Ref Low High
Value of Coal & Allied on a controlling interest basis Section 6 1,820 2,173
Value of the Consideration and royalty Section 7 2,296 2,386

As the fair value of the Consideration and royalty is greater than the range of assessed values of Coal & Allied,
we consider the Transaction to be fair.

The value of Coal & Allied is particularly sensitive to market-based assumptions, including our assumptions
regarding forecast macro-economic factors such as the coal price. Our approach to deriving forecast coal prices,
and further details regarding the assumptions we have adopted, are outlined in section Appendix F.

Reasonableness of the Transaction

Consistent with the guidance provided by RG 111, as the Transaction is fair, it is also reasonable to the Non-
Associated Shareholders. Notwithstanding this, we have also independently considered other factors that the
Non-Associated Shareholders should consider in forming their view as to whether or not to vote in favour of the
Transaction, and consider the Transaction to be reasonable. Individual Non-Associated Shareholders may
interpret these factors differently depending on their own circumstances.

A summary of these other factors are listed below, with further explanation included in section 8. In identifying
factors to be considered, we have had reference to the factors noted in RG 111.62, as well as having regard to
the specific circumstances of the Transaction. The other factors considered include:
> The Transaction is the result of a robust sales process

Few other acquirers could extract the same value from Coal & Allied as Yancoal

Alternative options available to Rio Tinto are not considered to provide as much value as the
Transaction

> Via the royalty, Rio Tinto shareholders will be exposed to upside, should the future Newcastle
benchmark thermal coal price exceed $75 per tonne (in 2017 dollars, subject to inflation).

We also considered:

> There is limited potential for alternative superior proposals to emerge
> The impact on Non-Associated Shareholders
> Tax consequences and the costs of the Transaction.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited, ABN 87 003 599 844
Australian Financial Services Licence No. 240585 19
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Conclusion

Taking into consideration the matters detailed in this IER, in the opinion of EY Transaction Advisory Services,
the Transaction is fair and reasonable to the Non-Associated Shareholders.

Other matters

This IER has been prepared specifically for Non-Associated Shareholders. Neither EY Transaction Advisory
Services, Ernst & Young nor any employee thereof undertakes responsibility to any person, other than the Non-
Associated Shareholders in respect of this report, including any errors or omissions howsoever caused.

This IER constitutes general financial product advice only and has been prepared without taking into
consideration the individual circumstances of the Non-Associated Shareholders. The decision as to whether to
approve or not approve the Transaction is a matter for individual Non-Associated Shareholders. Non-Associated
Shareholders should have regard to the Notice of Meeting and accompanying documents prepared by Rio Tinto.
Non-Associated Shareholders who are in doubt as to the action they should take in relation to the Transaction
should consult their own professional adviser.

Our opinion is made as at the date of this report and reflects circumstances and conditions as at that date. This
letter must be read in conjunction with the full IER as attached.

EY Transaction Advisory Services has prepared a Financial Services Guide in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001. The Financial Services Guide is included as Part 2 of this report.

Yours faithfully
Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited

N

Michael Fenech Ken Pendergast
Director and Representative Director and Representative

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited, ABN 87 003 599 844
Australian Financial Services Licence No. 240585 20
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1. Introduction

1.1 Overview of the Transaction

On 24 January 2017, Rio Tinto announced that it had reached a binding agreement for the sale of Coal & Allied
to Yancoal. One of the conditions precedent to the Transaction is approval by the Non-Associated Shareholders.

Consideration for the Transaction will be $2.45 billion (cash) made up of a $1.95 billion upfront payment at the
completion of the Transaction, followed by deferred payments of $100 million per annum over five years totalling
$500 million.

Rio Tinto will also be entitled to a royalty that is based on the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal price exceeding
$75 per tonne (“t”) (in 2017 dollars, subject to inflation) (“Royalty”).

1.2 Summary of Coal & Allied

Coal & Allied is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rio Tinto which operates Rio Tinto’s thermal coal and semi-soft
coking coal (“SSCC") business in the Hunter Valley. Coal & Allied holds a 67.6% interest in the Hunter Valley
Operations mine (“HVQ"), an 80.0% interest in the Mount Thorley mine (“Mount Thorley”), a 55.6% interest in
the Warkworth mine (“Warkworth”) and a 36.5% interest in Port Waratah Coal Services (“PWCS"). The Mount
Thorley and Warkworth mines (“MTW”) are operated on an integrated basis. Coal & Allied also holds interests
in a number of undeveloped coal assets as well as various landholdings.

Coal & Allied produces thermal coal and SSCC. In 2016, Coal & Allied produced a total of 17.1 million tonnes
(“Mt”) of run of mine (“ROM”") coal (attributable to Rio Tinto) from its operating mines.

1.3 Key terms of the Transaction

The terms of the Transaction are set out in the Sale and Purchase Agreement (“SPA”). The key terms of the
SPA are summarised below.

> An initial cash payment of $1.95 billion at completion of the Transaction which will be subject to
customary completion adjustments for net debt and net working capital.

> A further $500 million in aggregate will be payable as annual instalments of $100 million each over five
years following completion.

> Following completion of the Transaction, Rio Tinto will be entitled to a quarterly coal price linked Royalty
calculated as $2/t (subject to an annual Australian Consumer Price Index (“CPI") adjustment) of
attributable saleable production, subject to certain excluded production. The Royalty will apply for a
period of 10 years commencing on the third anniversary of completion of the Transaction, and is subject
to an overall cap of $650 million. This Royalty will only be payable if the Newcastle benchmark thermal
coal price exceeds $75/t (in 2017 dollars, subject to inflation).

> Earnings and cash flow generated by Coal & Allied between the date of announcement of the
Transaction and the date of completion will continue for the benefit of Rio Tinto.

> Yancoal will assume an agreed base working capital value denominated in Australian dollars (“A$”) for
Coal & Allied of negative A$161 million (that is, a net payable position) with customary completion
adjustments for variances and any net debt incurred by Coal & Allied between announcement and
completion.

> There is a potential adjustment to the Consideration whereby Rio Tinto would be required to refund a
portion of the Consideration if certain approvals were not obtained.
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> Yancoal will assume Rio Tinto’s coal supply obligations in relation to certain coal supply contracts and
will use Rio Tinto Marine's freight services for the sea freight component of certain coal supply
agreements.

> As part of Coal & Allied’s joint venture agreement with Mitsubishi Development Pty Ltd (“Mitsubishi”)

for HVO, Mitsubishi has tag-along rights that are triggered by the Transaction. If Mitsubishi exercises
this right, Yancoal must make a tag-along offer to Mitsubishi to acquire its respective 32.4% interest in
HVO. Yancoal is currently in discussions with Mitsubishi with regards to this.

The Rio Tinto Board of Directors has unanimously recommended that the Non-Associated Shareholders, in the

absence of a superior proposal, vote in favour of the Transaction and have stated that each member of the
Board who beneficially holds Rio Tinto shares intends to do so in regards to their own beneficial holdings.

1.4 Conditions precedent

Completion of the Transaction is subject to a number of conditions including, amongst other matters:

> Shareholder approval, including approvals by the shareholders of Yanzhou Coal Mining Company
Limited (“Yanzhou”, the parent company of Yancoal), and shareholders of Rio Tinto Plc and Rio Tinto

Limited who are not associated with Yancoal.

> Receipt by Yancoal of approval from the Treasurer of Australia approving the Transaction under
Australia’s foreign investment approval legislation.

> Outbound approvals by four separate agencies within the People’s Republic of China.

> Offshore merger clearances by the Korea Fair Trade Commission and the Anti Monopoly Bureau of
Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republic of China.

> Approval by the Minister responsible for the Mining Act 1992 (NSW).
> Consent by BLCP Power Limited (“BLCP”), a Thai power generator, to the novation of all rights and
obligations of Rio Tinto under its long term coal supply agreement with Rio Tinto to Yancoal (or

alternative supply arrangements having been established).

We note that a termination fee of $23.5 million will be payable by Yancoal to Rio Tinto in certain circumstances.

1.5 Funding the Transaction

Yancoal intends to fund the Transaction through a capital raising and pro-rata renounceable rights issue of
ordinary shares.

Yanzhou has indicated that it intends to subscribe for approximately $1 billion of its entitlement in the Yancoal
capital raising. At the time of the announcement of the Transaction, Yancoal was in discussions with
underwriters and third-party investors to underwrite the balance of the capital raising.

! Yancoal ASX announcement dated 24 January 2017.
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2. Scope of the independent expert’s report

2.1 Purpose of the report

One of the conditions precedent to the Transaction is the approval by the Non-Associated Shareholders. This
shareholder approval is subject to the ASX Listing Rules, in particular Listing Rule 10.1.

We understand that, as a result of the shareholding levels of various Chinese State-owned entities in each of
Yangkuang Group Company Limited (“Yangkuang”, the parent company of Yanzhou) and Chinalco (Aluminium
Corporation of China), and Chinalco being a 10.1% shareholder in Rio Tinto, Yancoal is considered to be a
related party of Rio Tinto for the purposes of the UK Listing Rules and ASX Listing Rules. As such, the Notice
of Meeting for Shareholder approval of the Transaction must include an IER.

In accordance with ASX Listing Rule 10.10.2, the IER is required to state whether the Transaction is fair and
reasonable to the Non-Associated Shareholders of Rio Tinto Limited.

Rio Tinto Limited, through its subsidiary Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Limited, has engaged EY Transaction
Advisory Services to prepare this IER to be provided to the Non-Associated Shareholders as part of the Notice
of Meeting.

2.2 Basis of evaluation

Neither the Corporations Act 2001 nor the ASX Listing Rules define the term “fair and reasonable”. RG 111
provides some guidance as to how the term “fair and reasonable” should be interpreted in a range of
circumstances. With respect to a related party transaction this RG 111 provides:

> An offer is “fair” if the value of the “financial benefit to be provided by the entity to the related party is
equal to or less than the value of the consideration being provided to the entity”.

> An offer is “reasonable” if it is fair. It might also be “reasonable” if, despite being “not fair”, the expert
believes that there are sufficient reasons for security holders to vote for the proposal.

Accordingly, the key component of the assessment as to whether or not the Transaction is fair and reasonable
is the comparison of the fair value of Coal & Allied, underpinned by the value of HVO and MTW, with the fair
value of the Consideration and Royalty being offered.

RG 111.62 sets out certain factors which an expert might consider when deciding whether a Transaction is
“reasonable”. These factors include:

> The financial situation and solvency of the entity, including the factors set out in RG 111.26, if the
consideration for the financial benefit is cash

> Opportunity costs

> The alternative options available to the entity and the likelihood of those options occurring

> The entity’s bargaining position

> Whether there is selective treatment of any security holder, particularly the related party

> Any special value of the transaction to the purchaser, such as particular technology or the potential to

write off outstanding loans from the target
> The liquidity of the market in the entity’s securities.

Our consideration of other factors has been based on those factors suggested in RG 111, as well as the specific
circumstances of the Transaction.
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In undertaking our assessment of the Transaction, we have had regard to a number of references including
Australian Securities and Investment Commission regulatory guidelines, in particular, RG 111 and RG 112:
Independence of experts (“RG 112"), and relevant market valuation guidelines and generally accepted practices
in the preparation of expert reports. We have also had regard to the Code for the technical assessment and
valuation of mineral and petroleum assets and securities for independent expert reports (the “VALMIN Code”).
This report has also been prepared in accordance with APES 225 Valuation Services issued by the Accounting
Professional & Ethical Standards Board Limited in July 2008 (revised December 2015).

A glossary summarising the abbreviations we have used in this report is contained in Appendix H.

2.3 Fair value

We have assessed the value of Coal & Allied on a 100% controlling interest basis and the Consideration and
Royalty on a fair value basis. Fair value in this context is considered to be:

“the price at which an asset could be exchanged between a knowledgeable and willing but not anxious seller
and a knowledgeable and willing but not anxious buyer both acting at arm’s length”.

Fair value does not incorporate any special value. Special value is the additional value that may accrue to a
particular purchaser. In a competitive bidding situation, potential purchasers may be prepared to pay part, or all,
of the special value that they expect to realise from the acquisition to the seller.

2.4 Independence

Prior to accepting this engagement, we considered our independence with respect to Rio Tinto and Yancoal with
reference to RG 112. In our opinion, we are independent of Rio Tinto and Yancoal.

EY Transaction Advisory Services, Ernst & Young, and global affiliations, have not provided any services to Rio
Tinto or Yancoal in relation to the Transaction.

EY Transaction Advisory Services, Ernst & Young, and global affiliations have previously provided professional
services to both Rio Tinto and Yancoal, and subsidiaries thereof. These services included the provision of tax
and valuation advice in respect of matters not related to the Transaction. We do not consider these services to
compromise our independence.

2.5 Limitations and reliance on information and technical experts

We have considered a number of sources of information in preparing our report and arriving at our opinion.
These sources of information are detailed in Appendix G.

In particular, in considering the fair value of Coal & Allied we have relied on the independent technical report
prepared by AMC Consultants Pty Ltd (“AMC”) (the “AMC Report”), who was appointed by Rio Tinto as the
independent technical expert to, on our instruction, undertake a technical assessment of the production and
exploration assets of Coal & Allied. A copy of the AMC Report is attached in full at Appendix | and should be
read in conjunction with our report.

As per our letter of instruction to AMC dated 16 February 2017, AMC was instructed to consider the following:

> Relevant data and reports with respect to Coal & Allied’s underlying production assets (i.e. HYO and
MTW).
> The technical geophysical, geological and engineering data, JORC resources, development and drilling

plans and production profiles for each mine.
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> The reasonableness of the technical and operational assumptions upon which the supplied models are
based, including the reserves and contingent resources, production life, operating costs, capital costs
and any other technical input viewed as necessary to conclude on the reasonableness of the operating

assumptions.
> Assess the coal quality of the operating mines and consider a combined blend.
> Prepare valuations of Coal & Allied’s other undeveloped resources and exploration interests.

In placing reliance on the AMC Report, we have satisfied ourselves as to AMC’s competence, expertise and
independence. We are also satisfied that the assumptions, methodologies and source data used by AMC are
reasonable and appropriate and that the report contains sufficient information to support the conclusions drawn.

The information provided to us for the preparation of our report has been evaluated through analysis, enquiry
and review for the purposes of forming an opinion as to whether the Transaction is fair and reasonable to the
Non-Associated Shareholders. We also held discussions with management of both Rio Tinto and Coal & Allied
in relation to the Transaction, as well as the operations, financial position and operating results of Coal & Allied.
However, we do not warrant that our enquiries have identified all of the matters that an audit, an extensive
examination or tax investigation might disclose.

Preparation of this report, and inclusion of the Coal & Allied financial statements as an appendix to our report,
does not imply that we have, in any way, audited the accounts or records of Rio Tinto, or Coal & Allied. It is
understood that the accounting information that was provided was prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles including the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable.

In forming our opinion we have also assumed that:

> Matters such as title, compliance with laws and regulations and contracts in place are in good standing
and will remain so and that there are no material legal proceedings, other than as publicly disclosed

> The assessments by Rio Tinto and its advisers with regard to legal, regulatory, tax and accounting
matters relating to the transaction are complete and accurate

> The information set out in the Notice of Meeting and accompanying documents to the Non-Associated
Shareholders is complete, accurate and fairly presented in all material respects

> The publicly available information relied upon by us in our analysis was accurate and not misleading
> The Transaction will be implemented in accordance with its terms outlined in the SPA
> To the extent that there are legal issues relating to assets, properties, or business interests or issues

relating to compliance with applicable laws, regulations and policies, we assume no responsibility and
offer no legal opinion or interpretation on any issue.

The statements and opinions given in this IER are given in good faith and in the belief that such statements and
opinions are not false or misleading. This report should be read in the context of the full qualifications, limitations
and consents set out in Appendix A.

Our assessment of the Transaction is based on economic, market and other conditions prevailing as at the date
of this IER. As evidenced in recent years these conditions can change significantly over relatively short periods
of time. If they did change materially, subsequent to the date of this report, our opinion could be different.

We provided draft copies of this independent expert’s report to the Directors and management of Rio Tinto for
comments as to factual accuracy, as opposed to opinions, which are the responsibility of us alone. Amendments
made to this IER as a result of this review by the Directors and management of Rio Tinto have not changed the
conclusions reached.
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2.6 Shareholders’ decisions

This IER constitutes general financial product advice only. In forming our opinion, we have considered the
interests of the Non-Associated Shareholders as a whole, and we have not considered, nor is it practical or
possible to consider, the individual circumstances of each Non-Associated Shareholder. The decision to vote
for or against the Transaction is a matter for individual shareholders. The Non-Associated Shareholders should
consider the advice in the context of their own circumstances, including investment objectives, liquidity
preferences, risk profiles, tax position and expectations of future market conditions. Non-Associated
Shareholders should also have regard to the Notice of Meeting prepared by the Directors and management of
Rio Tinto. Non-Associated Shareholders who are in doubt as to the action they should take in relation to the
Transaction should consult their own professional adviser.

Similarly, it is a matter for individual shareholders as to whether to buy, hold or sell shares in Rio Tinto or Yancoal.
This is an investment decision upon which we do not offer an opinion and is independent of a decision to vote
for or against the Transaction. Shareholders should consult their own professional adviser in this regard.

EY Transaction Advisory Services has prepared a Financial Services Guide in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001. The Financial Services Guide is included as Part 2 of this report.
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3. Overview of Coal & Allied

3.1 Company background

Coal & Allied is a thermal coal and SSCC producer operating in the Hunter Valley, NSW. The company owns
and operates two-large scale, multi-seam, open-cut coal mining complexes. Its interests are held through three
joint ventures: HVO (Coal & Allied’s interest: 67.6%), Mount Thorley (80.0%) and Warkworth (55.6%)
(collectively, MTW). Coal & Allied also has a 36.5% interest in PWCS and holds the undeveloped Oaklands coal
deposit (100%) (“Oaklands”), also in NSW.

Coal & Allied was listed on the ASX in 1962. Coal & Allied was privatised in 2011 by Rio Tinto and Mitsubishi. A
summary of the Company’s history is shown on the following page.

In 2013, Rio Tinto announced the sale of its interest in the Clermont coal mine. Since this sale, Rio Tinto has
divested its interests in various other thermal coal assets. During this time, Rio Tinto restructured certain
segments of the Coal & Allied business in order to attract a broader pool of potential acquirers and therefore
maximise the sale price. Specifically, the key changes to Coal & Allied have involved:

> A restructure of the ownership structure of Coal & Allied, which was completed in February 2016. Under
this restructure, Rio Tinto acquired Mitsubishi’s direct and indirect interests in Coal & Allied, in exchange
for Mitsubishi taking a direct interest in HVO by way of a newly-formed joint venture. The ultimate
outcome of the restructure resulted in Mitsubishi divesting its 20.0% interest in Coal & Allied, and
acquiring a 32.4% interest in HVO. Following the restructure, Rio Tinto owned 100% of Coal & Allied.

> The divestment of two key assets, being the Bengalla mine and the Mount Pleasant development
project. These divestments reduced the number of assets which Coal & Allied owned.

The corporate structure of Coal & Allied (before the Transaction) is illustrated below.

Coal & Allied: Corporate structure

Rio Tinto
100% 100%
Australian Coal Holdings Hunter Valley Resources
75.7% 24.3%
Coal & Allied
67.6% 80.0% 55.6% 36.5% 100%
HVO Mount Thorley Warkworth PWCS Qaklands

Operated jointly

Source: Rio Tinto management
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The following timeline illustrates a summarised history of Coal & Allied:

2001
Coal & Allied 2016

purchased : Coal & Allied entered into a
Peab.od.y s Australian binding agreement to sell its
_sl:bdlar:e; t}ﬁmt ownl 100% interest in Mount
Iansgr;z Sinlcnlu;e{ngcoa Pleasant to Mach Energy for
" $220.7 million. The sale was

1699 \?\Ieanrisjvloanl:nfgr atotal completed in August 2016.
Mitsubishi acquired a acquisition \alue of Rio Tinto acquired
1982 8.2% interest in Coal $555.0 million. Mitsubishi's shares in Coal &
1979 Hunter Valley & Allied in exchange . Allied as part of the
1968 Production CHPP and for its 40.0% interegst gi)?c;r:”iaecgzlred 2011 restructure of Coal & Allied
Production commenced at Howick CHPP at in the Howick mine Narama / Privatisation and and its underlying assets. The
commenced at HVO the Hunter Valley HVO are and Oaklands joint Ravensworth thermal delisting of Coal restructure was completed in
at the West Pit. No 1 mine. constructed. venture. coal complex & Allied. February 2016.
1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010
1962 1977 1981 2000 2002 2004 2015 2017
Coal & Allied Rio Tinto The Warkworth HVO is created as a Coal & Allied sold its Rio Tinto takes Coal & Allied Yancoal has
is listed on the acquired an and Mount result of Coal & 55.0% interest in the over management entered into a entered into a
ASX interest in Coal & Thorley open-cut Allied merging the Moura JV to Mitsui. of Coal & Allied. Deed of Offer and binding agreement
Allied. operations Howick and Hunter Mitsubishi i Acceptance to to acquire a 100%
separately Valley mines. Coal & Mitsublshi increases The Mount sell its 40.0% interest in Coal &
commence. Allied acquires the its stake to 10'.2/0 in Thorley and interest in Allied from Rio
Lemington mine in Coal & Allied via an Warkworth joint Bengalla to New Tinto.
the Hunter Valley on-m.ar.k.et ventures entered Hope Corporation
and merges itinto acquisition of shares. ' into an OIA to for $616.7 million.
HVO. allow the mines to The sale was
be managed as completed in
one interegrated March 2016.

operation (MTW).

Source: Rio Tinto management, Rio Tinto ASX Announcements
Note: There are differences between the announced sale consideration and the ‘completed’ sale consideration on the Mount Pleasant and Bengalla
transactions. These differences relate to completion adjustments and are explained in Rio Tinto’s financial reports.

3.2 Coal & Allied’s assets

3.2.1 Summary
The table below provides a summary of Coal & Allied’s assets, with further detail included below.

Coal & Allied — Overview of assets?

Asset Status Operator % Ownership Other owners
HVO Production Coal & Allied 67.6% Mitsubishi (32.4%)
MTW!

Mount Thorley Production Coal & Allied 80.0% POSCO (20.0%)
Warkworth Production Coal & Allied 55.6% Mitsubishi (28.9%)

Nippon Steel (9.5%)
Mitsubishi Materials (6.0%)

PWCS Operation PWCS2 36.5% Various producers and Japanese
customers

Oaklands Exploration Coal & Allied 100% -

Source: Rio Tinto management

Notes:

1 MTW consists of two mines, Mount Thorley and Warkworth, which are operated on an integrated basis.

2 Coal & Allied has the right to appoint the Chairman of the Board of Directors and to nominate the CEO.

31n addition, Coal & Allied also owns land for operational purposes and surplus land which was originally held for operational activities.
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The map below illustrates the location of Coal & Allied’s operations in the Hunter Valley area:

Coal & Allied: Indicative tenement map

&.’ﬂ
Auckland
HVO

South ;

Golden Hwy

® CHPP
© Rail loader
~ Best coal geology
— River
Golden Hwy + Railways
W Open cut pits
[] Rio Tinto
W Closed mine
[ Other mine sites
W Towns
- Road

Wallaby Scrub Road

Putty Road

Source: Rio Tinto management, SNL

3.2.2 HVO

HVO is located 24 kilometres (“km”) northwest of Singleton in the Hunter Valley, NSW. Coal & Allied has a 67.6%
interest in HYO and manages the operations, with Mitsubishi owning the remaining 32.4%. HVO consists of
various smaller operations which, over time, have been combined into one large mining operation covering
several pits. HVO is separated by the Hunter River into HVO North and HVO South. A single bridge connects
the two sides of the complex.

Current operational activities are focused on the West and Carrington Pits in the North, and the Cheshunt and
Riverview Pits in the South. The HVO life of mine plan expects future mining to occur in the West, Carrington,
Wilton and Mitchell Pits in the North, and the Cheshunt, Chestnut Deep, Glider and Riverview Pits in the South.
In addition, the plan also considers mining in two major deposits at HYO Southern and Auckland pits. Further
consents and approvals will be required in order to execute this life of mine plan.

Saleable production from HVO has been relatively consistent in recent years, with annual production increasing
from 11.2 Mt in 2009 to 13.6 Mt in 2016 (on a 100% basis).

Mine production equipment at HVO consists of two draglines, excavators, loaders, rope shovels and a fleet of
approximately 100 dump trucks.

14
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3.2.2.1 Infrastructure

At HVO North there are two coal handling and preparation plants (“CHPP”): the Hunter Valley CHPP and the
Howick CHPP. Both plants were commissioned, separately, in 1982: the Hunter Valley CHPP has capacity to
process 20 million tonnes per annum (“Mtpa”) ROM coal, whilst the Howick CHPP has capacity to process
6 Mtpa of ROM coal. ROM coal from HVO South is trucked to HVO North in order to be processed at the Hunter
Valley CHPP. HVO is authorised to truck 16 Mtpa from HVO South to HVO North. HVO also has approval to
operate the Newdell CHPP, however this plant is not operational and the site is solely used for coal handling.

There are two rail loading facilities which service HYO’s CHPP’s. The Hunter Valley Loading Point services the
Hunter Valley CHPP. The Newdell Loading Point receives export coal from the Howick CHPP and overflow from
the Hunter Valley CHPP via conveyor, which provides additional live stockpile capacity. The Hunter Valley
Loading Point has a total stockpile capacity of 297 kt on two product stockpiles with 20 kt of additional sidecast
storage. The Newdell Loading Point has a 600 kt stockpile capacity on a single product stockpile.

There are three workshop facilities at HVO. The primary workshop is located at the former Hunter Valley No.1,
which manages the majority of the truck and mobile equipment fleet.

3.2.2.2 Approvals

HVO is subject to several approvals and licenses which provide the regulatory basis under which the mine
operates. Most of these approvals were obtained separately for HYO North and HVO South, with separate
integration approvals providing the ability to move material and equipment around the HVYO complex.

Development consents at HVO were granted on 12 June 2004 (HVO North) and 24 March 2009 (HVO South),
and are effective until 2025 and 2035, respectively. Both consents have been modified, separately, on four
occasions. Coal & Allied is in the process of obtaining a fifth modification to the HVO South consent, seeking,
among other things, an increase to the ROM coal extraction limit from 16 Mtpa to 20 Mtpa.

HVO operates under a single Environmental Protection Licence (“EPL”), EPL 640. Other licences and approvals
include licences in relation to water and tailings management. Water is mainly consumed for dust suppression
on haul roads, mining areas and coal stockpiles and coal processing plant circuit losses. HVO is not connected
to the Singleton Shire town water supply and has an active water management strategy for surface and
subsurface water. HVO has permission to use water from the Hunter River, and to discharge water back into
the river, subject to stringent requirements regarding water quality. Most of HVO’s water requirements are met
through water harvested on site.

3.2.3 MTW

MTW is located approximately 75 km northwest of Newcastle and 14 km southwest of Singleton. Coal & Allied
has an 80.0% interest in Mount Thorley with the remaining 20.0% owned by POSCO. Coal & Allied has a 55.6%
interest in Warkworth with the other joint venture partners being Mitsubishi (28.9%), Nippon Steel (9.5%) and
Mitsubishi Materials (6.0%).

In 2004, the Mount Thorley and Warkworth joint ventures entered into an Operational Integration Agreement
(“OIA™) to allow for the two mines to be managed as one integrated operation in order to improve efficiency.
Under this agreement, export coal can be produced by either mine and is allocated between the two joint
ventures based on a tonnage commitment ratio set in 2004 and then subsequently agreed upon annually. Costs
are also allocated in accordance with this ratio. The tonnage commitment ratio has been Warkworth (65.0%)
and Mount Thorley (35.0%) since entering the OIA, and as a result Coal & Allied receives a total of 64.1% of
total production from the combined MTW operation. The marketing and sale of the respective tonnages is the
responsibility of each of the joint venture pursuant to agreed marketing and sales arrangements.

The MTW life of mine plan consists of mining of the North Pit, West Pit, South Pit, CD Pit, Thorley Pit (Loders
Pit) and Abbey Green South. Mining at MTW is initially focused on West Pit, North Pit and Thorley Pit, with
future mining at Warkworth concentrated on the North Pit and West pit areas. Since 2007, MTW has been
implementing a growth strategy with a steady ramp up saleable production of 8.5 Mtpa in 2009 to 12.3 Mtpa by
2016.
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Mine production equipment at MTW consists of three draglines, excavators, loaders, rope shovels and a fleet
of dump trucks.

3.2.3.1 Infrastructure

MTW operates two CHPP's referred to as North CHPP and South CHPP. These CHPPs have a total combined
capacity of 19 Mtpa ROM and produce 12 Mtpa to 14 Mtpa of saleable production. The North CHPP (at
Warkworth) is a single product washing operation, whereas the South CHPP (located at Mount Thorley) is
capable of being a two-product washing operation.

The coal for export produced at the North CHPP and South CHPP is loaded at the Warkworth and Mount Thorley
rail load out facilities and railed approximately 82 km to Newcastle. The Mount Thorley rail load out facility is a
multi-user facility but currently only used by MTW.

3.2.3.2 Approvals

Currently MTW operations are authorised under several development consents or project approvals as modified
and issued under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW) (“EPA Act”). Open-cut mining
activities within the mining lease east of the Wallaby Scrub Road have been authorised by the 2003
Development Warkworth Consent to produce 18 Mtpa ROM until 2021.

In 2012, MTW received development consent for the extension of open-cut mining activities in the Saddleback
Ridge and to the west of the Wallaby Scrub Road (which runs across the Warkworth mining tenements). The
2012 development consent provided for production to be maintained at a level of 18 Mtpa ROM until 2032,
which extends the production for a further 11 years from the existing 2003 development consent. The 2012
development consent was later appealed by Bulga Milbrodale Progress Association Inc., which resulted in the
overturning of the NSW Government’s original decision to approve the expansion.

On 27 November 2015, MTW was granted final approval for new development consents by the NSW State
Government, through its delegate the Planning Assessment Commission. This approval permitted MTW to
continue open-cut mining at the complex for a further 21 years.

In late 2016, Coal & Allied submitted its seventh application to the Singleton Council to request the approval of
the closure of the Wallaby Scrub Road in order to progress mining at MTW in accordance with the development
consent. In early January 2017, the Singleton Council announced it would consider this request due to the mine
being essential to a significant number of workers and their families who rely on the employment the mine
provides. On 20 February 2017, the Singleton Council voted to commence the process of closing Wallaby Scrub
Road and the community consultation processes started in March.

In addition to the development consents, MTW operates under three EPLs and various water and tailings
management approvals. MTW is licensed to discharge excess mine water in the Hunter River in accordance
with stringent local requirements. The relatively small size of the site means that water management is a key
focus at MTW. Coal & Allied has sought to manage this by allowing sharing and trading of water from HVO.

3.2.4 Port and rail utilisation

Coal & Allied’'s port capacity is underpinned by 10-year rolling take-or-pay contracts with both PWCS and
Newcastle Coal Infrastructure Group (“NCIG”). Coal & Allied has a total port capacity of approximately 23 Mtpa
at PWCS and of 5 Mtpa at NCIG. The total average saleable production between 2017 and 2025 from HVO and
MTW that is shipped from PWCS is forecast to be 22 Mtpa and from NCIG is 2.7 Mtpa.

Coal & Allied’s above-rail capacity of 26 Mtpa is provided by Pacific National. Coal & Allied has a contract with
Pacific National that expires in 2021, but can be extended at Coal & Allied’s election for an additional five years.
Coal & Allied’s below-rail access is underpinned by a contract with Australia Rail Track Corporation (“ARTC"),
which is renewable annually and is aligned to contracted port volume. In December 2016, Coal & Allied issued
a ramp-down notice to Pacific National whereby the above-rail capacity will reduce to 19.7 Mtpa from 2019. This
also had the effect of extending the Pacific National agreement into 2022 at a rate of 11.7 Mtpa in the final year.
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Coal & Allied previously held 8 Mtpa of port and below rail capacity which was allocated to the Mount Pleasant
project. 4 Mtpa of port capacity at PWCS and the 8 Mtpa below rail capacity has been subsequently assigned
to Mach Energy Australia Pty Ltd (“Mach Energy”) through the divestment of the Mount Pleasant project in late
2016. Through the divestment, Coal & Allied agreed to pay for this capacity until the earlier of ‘first coal’ from
the Mount Pleasant project or 31 March 2018. The assignment of an additional 4 Mtpa of port capacity at the
NCIG terminal is conditional on Mach Energy achieving ‘first coal’ shipped through this terminal. These rail and
port take-or-pay capacity rights are surplus to the requirements of Coal & Allied’s remaining operations and, as
such, have been assessed to be onerous contracts until such time as the payment obligations for the capacity
are assumed by Mach Energy.

3.2.5 Land holdings

Coal & Allied holds large areas of land for operational purposes at both HYO and MTW and also owns adjoining
land which are termed ‘Zone of Affectation’ lands (surrounding land which is affected by noise and dust pollution
from coal mines).

Coal & Allied also owns surplus land in the Lower Hunter region located in Newcastle, Lake Macquarie and
Northern Central Coast region of New South Wales. These sites were originally held for mining or operational
activities, however are no longer required for these purposes. This land can be divested without impacting Coal
& Allied’s mine plans.

3.2.6 PWCS interest

Coal & Allied’s production is exported through coal terminals at both PWCS and NCIG located at the Port of
Newcastle. Coal & Allied has a 36.5% interest in PWCS (made up of direct and indirect interests), which is one
of the largest coal handling operations in the world with total annual capacity of 145 Mtpa. PWCS is part of the
Hunter Valley Coal Chain (“HVCC”) which is one of the world’s largest collaborative coal supply chains in the
world.

In return for an interest in PWCS, shareholders such as Coal & Allied are entitled to the payment of a dividend.
We note that dividend payments to Coal & Allied have remained consistent over the previous financial years.

Under the PWCS Constitution, Coal & Allied has the right to appoint the Chairman of the Board of Directors and
to nominate two other directors. Coal & Allied is also entitled to nominate the Chief Executive Officer subject to
the approval of the PWCS Board of Directors.

PWCS reimburses Coal & Allied per quarter in arrears payable within 30 days of the end of each quarter in
recognition of the costs incurred by Coal & Allied. These costs incurred by Coal & Allied are associated with the
employment of the executives mentioned above and making them available to PWCS, and also for the provision
of any additional administrative support services.

3.2.7 Other assets

Oaklands is an undeveloped coal exploration project located in the South Riverina district of NSW. It has a
stated, JORC compliant resource of 1,270 Mt, comprised of 596 Mt of Measured Resources, 584 Mt of Indicated
Resources, and 90 Mt of Inferred Resources.

Oaklands Coal Pty Ltd is 100% owned by Coal & Allied, and is primarily comprised of Assessment Lease 18
(“AL18") and the associated geological and mining information and records.

3.3 Rio Tinto’s divestment program

In recent years, a number of major global mining companies have embarked on portfolio rationalisation
strategies. This has included exiting non-core assets in order to focus on specific core assets. Although Rio
Tinto has not formally announced an exit from thermal coal, since 2013 it has actively divested a number of its
Australian and international thermal coal assets.

17
34



EY

Building a better
working world

According to press speculation, at the beginning of 2013, Rio Tinto commenced a targeted divestment program

regarding its Australian thermal coal assets. The table below summarises Rio Tinto's completed Australian
thermal coal divestments since 2013.

Rio Tinto - divestment program

. . . Interest Price
Date Operating mines Location Comments %)  (US$m)
27Jan16  Mount Pleasant Hunter Valley, NSW  Rio Tinto divested Coal & Allied’s interest in the Mount Pleasant 100 220.7
to Mach Energy Australia Pty Ltd (subsidiary of the Salim
Group). In addition to the transaction value, Rio Tinto will
receive royalty payments®.
30Sep15 Bengalla Coal Mine Hunter Valley, NSW  Rio Tinto divested Coal & Allied's interest in the Bengalla coal 40.0 616.7
mine to New Hope Corporation.
250ct13  Clermont Coal Mine Clermont, Qld Rio Tinto divested its stake in the Clermont coal mine to 50.1 1,015.0

Glencore and Sumitomo.

Source: Rio Tinto Annual Report 2016
Notes:
1.  Transaction dates shown above represent the announcement/agreement signing date.
2. Transaction prices shown above have been left unadjusted for any working capital adjustments, transaction costs, or cash.
3. There are differences between the announced sale consideration and the ‘completed’ sale consideration on the Mount Pleasant and Bengalla
transactions. These differences relate to completion adjustments and are explained in Rio Tinto’s financial reports.
4. Royalties are payable to Rio Tinto quarterly at 2% of Gross FOB Revenue for coal sold from the first 625 million of ROM coal produced when
prices are greater than US$72.50/tonne.

The sale of Coal & Allied would be the seventh coal transaction announced or completed by Rio Tinto since
2013. Should the Transaction complete, Rio Tinto’s coal portfolio will be reduced to two operating mines (Hail
Creek and Kestrel) and certain mining tenements in Queensland.

3.4 Production, Reserves and Resources

3.4.1 Production

The following chart summarises the saleable production (on a 100% interest basis) at HYO and MTW between
2009 and 2016.

Saleable coal production from HVO and MTW (100% interest basis)
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3.4.2 Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources
The tables below summarise Coal & Allied’s JORC compliant statement of Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources

for coal as at 31 December 2016. We note that Rio Tinto reports Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources for
Coal & Allied on a 100% basis.

JORC Coal Ore Reserves

Operating mines Proved (Mt) Probable (Mt) Total Ore Reserves (Mt)
HVO 665 206 871
Mount Thorley 7 12 19
Warkworth 183 125 308
Total 855 343 1,198
Source: Rio Tinto Annual Report 2016
Notes:

1. Amounts shown above for reserves are shown on a 100% interest basis.

2. These estimates of Coal Reserves were reported in Rio Tinto’s 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March 2017 and released to the market on 2 March
2017. The competent persons responsible for that previous reporting were A Prentice (AusIMM) and M Hillard (AusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised
that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects these reserve estimates, and has confirmed that all material assumptions
and technical parameters underpinning the estimates continue to apply and have not materially changed. The form and context in which the
competent persons’ findings are presented have not been materially modified.

JORC Mineral Resources (exclusive of Ore Reserves)

Operating mines Measured (Mt) Indicated (Mt) Inferred (Mt)  Total Mineral Resources (Mt)
HVO 348 571 912 1,831
Mount Thorley 39 226 57 322
Warkworth 141 307 517 966
Total 528 1,104 1,486 3,119
Oaklands 596 584 90 1,270
Total (including Oaklands) 1,124 1,688 1,576 4,389

Source: Rio Tinto Annual Report 2016

Notes:

1.  Amounts shown above for resources are shown on a 100% interest basis and are exclusive of reserves.

2.  These estimates of Coal Resources were reported in Rio Tinto’s 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March 2017 and released to the market on 2 March
2017. The competent person responsible for that previous reporting was R Ruddock (AusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised that it is not aware of any
new information or data that materially affects these resource estimates, and has confirmed that all material assumptions and technical
parameters underpinning the estimates continue to apply and have not materially changed. The form and context in which the competent person’s
findings are presented have not been materially modified.

Since 2013, Rio Tinto has been reassessing the historical information underpinning Coal & Allied’s tenement
portfolio, including the reinterpretation of the geological models, employment of new datasets and adoption of
improved Mineral Resource estimation methods. As a result of this work, Rio Tinto recently updated its estimates
of Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources, as detailed above, and announced on 24 January 2017.

3.4.3 Marketing and products

Coal & Allied’s assets in the Hunter Valley are comprised of multiple pits mining various seams which produce
a range of coal qualities at different yields. Given the longevity of mining operations at HYO and MTW, these
products are relatively well understood by the market, with pricing relative to the Newcastle benchmark
historically consistent.

Specifically, we note the following in relation to the coal products:

> Both the Hunter Valley CHPP and the Howick CHPP at HVO produce six export products. HVO
produces two SSCC products and four thermal coal products. HYO Reserves have a calorific value of
27.50 MJ/kg, with a sulphur content of 0.54%.

> At MTW, the North CHPP and South CHPP produce export thermal coal and SSCC for the export
market. MTW Reserves have a calorific value of between 28.98 MJ/kg to 29.09 MJ/kg, with a sulphur
content between 0.41% to 0.44%.
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Different quality coals can be blended in order to achieve higher quality attributes which can be sold at higher
prices. Coal & Allied’s products can be blended at port and sold as ‘Hunter Valley blend’, subject to the terms of
the joint venture marketing agreements, which is sold at a similar price to the Newcastle benchmark.

3.5 Adjusted financial information

A summary of Coal & Allied’s financial information is presented below. The amounts represent the financial
statements of Coal & Allied, adjusted to exclude divested assets (Bengalla and Mount Pleasant) and to reflect
the restructured ownership interest (Coal & Allied’s share of HVO reduced to 67.6% from 100.0%)
(“Carve-Out Adjustments”). The adjusted results are presented on a ‘like-for-like’ basis and are comparable
between the three periods. The financial information presented below is limited to Coal & Allied and does not
include other Rio Tinto group accounting for the coal supply agreement with BLCP.

The high level reconciliation between the General Purpose Financial Reports and the financials presented below
is summarised in Appendix K. The adjustments were prepared by Rio Tinto. EY Transaction Advisory Services
has relied on these amounts as presented by Rio Tinto and has not undertaken any procedures confirm these
amounts are correct. The General Purpose Financial Report for 2016 is included as Appendix J.

3.5.1 Adjusted financial performance

A summary of Coal & Allied’s financial performance for the last three years ended 31 December
(“FY14”, “FY15” and “FY16") adjusted for the Carve-Out Adjustments noted in section 3.5 is presented below.

Coal & Allied - Adjusted consolidated income statement summary

A$m FY14 FY15 FY16
Revenue 1,529.2 1,521.3 1,640.7
Operating expenses (1,254.5) (1,222.3) (1,149.8)
Net gain / (loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.5 (2.8) 9.6
Depreciation and amortisation expense (131.5) (130.8) (122.3)
Exploration and evaluation (0.4 (0.5) -
Sea freight and purchased coal (7.8) (28.9) (26.0)
Net foreign exchange gains / (losses) 2.2 8.1 (2.5
Finance costs (28.0) (13.5) (5.9
Redbank termination fee (51.2)

Share of profits after tax of equity accounted units 16.6 6.6 2.4
Profit before income tax expense 65.0 138.2 347.1
Income tax expense (48.4) (44.2) (100.3)
Profit after income tax expense 16.6 94.1 246.8
Profit attributable to Coal & Allied 16.0 93.1 246.2
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 0.6 1.0 0.6
Annual saleable coal production (Mt) (Coal & Allied interest basis excluding Bengalla) 17.0 16.3 17.1
Average realised coal price (A$/t) 89.8 93.4 95.9
Average total operating costs FOB (A$/t)2 73.7 75.0 67.2

Source: Coal & Allied audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, adjusted for the Carve-Out Adjustments
Notes:

1 Average realised coal price is calculated as the revenue for the year divided by the production for the year.

2 Average total operating costs Free on Board (“FOB”) is calculated as the direct operating expense for the year divided by the production for the year.

In relation to the financial performance we note:

> Revenue increased by A$119.4 million in FY16 to A$1.6 billion as a result of a combination of higher
realised SSCC prices, higher volume at HVYO and the weaker exchange rate which impacts sales made
in US$ but presented in A$. In FY16, approximately 52% of revenue was attributable to the sale of coal
from HVO, approximately 44% to the sale of coal from MTW and the remainder related to the sale of
purchased coal, management fee income and interest revenue.
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>

The average realised coal price was A$95.9/t in FY16, representing an increase of approximately 2.7%
from A$93.4/t in FY15.

Operating expenses decreased by A$72.5 millionin FY16 to A$1,149.8 million representing an average
total operating cost of A$67.2/t. Average operating expenses on a per tonne basis decreased by
approximately 10.5% from A$75.0/t in FY15 as a result of a decrease in raw materials and consumables
expense and a reduction in employee benefits as a result of labour productivity initiatives at both mines.

The Redbank termination fee of A$51.2 million in FY14 related to a contract with Australian power utility
which the Warkworth joint venture ended in 2014.

Share of profits after tax of equity accounted units relates to Coal & Allied’s interest in PWCS. Coal &
Allied’s share of profit from PWCS decreased over the period shown above as PWCS has reduced port
charges, with this reduction in port charges resulting in lower operating costs for Coal & Allied.
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3.5.2 Adjusted financial position

Provided below is a summary of Coal & Allied’s adjusted financial position as at 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016 as extracted from Coal & Allied’s audited financial statements for FY15 and FY16, adjusted
for the Carve-Out Adjustments noted in section 3.5.

Coal & Allied — Adjusted consolidated balance sheet summary

A$m Dec 15 Dec 16
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 208.6 311.7
Trade and other receivables 152.0 329.7
Inventories 69.0 60.7
Assets classified as held for sale (0.0 0.0
Total current assets 429.6 702.1
Non-current assets

Receivables 11.3 11.3
Investments accounted for using the equity method 216.3 205.9
Land held for development or future sale 11 0.9
PPE 1,009.9 914.4
Deferred tax assets 1185 1275
Intangible assets 2.8 2.1
Total non-current assets 1,360.0 1,262.1
Total assets 1,789.6 1,964.2
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 2111 354.8
Bank overdraft 0.6 -
Provisions 103.7 131.3
Current tax liabilities (0.3) 4.4
Liabilities classified as held for sale (0.0 -
Total current liabilities 315.0 490.5
Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 0.1 (0.0
Deferred income 31 2.9
Deferred tax liabilities - (0.0
Provisions 135.7 1311
Total non-current liabilities 138.9 134.0
Total liabilities 454.0 624.5
Net assets 1,335.7 1,339.6
Equity

Contributed equity 440.9 59.7
Other reserves 10.4 10.3
Retained earnings 881.6 1,266.9
Non-controlling interests 2.7 2.7
Total Equity 1,335.7 1,339.6

Source: Coal & Allied audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, adjusted for the Carve-Out Adjustments.
Notes: These results have been adjusted to exclude divested assets and to reflect the restructured ownership interest.
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In relation to the financial position we note:

>

Cash and equivalents balances increased by A$103.1 million to A$311.7 million in FY16. We note the
Consideration will be adjusted for net debt and working capital adjustments. Yancoal will acquire
Coal & Allied with a sufficient level of cash to meet minimum working capital requirements at the time
of completion. As such, it is intended that any cash balance deemed to be surplus to manage minimum
working capital requirements at the time of completion of the Transaction will be paid out as a dividend
to Rio Tinto prior to completion of the Transaction.

Trade and other receivables increased by A$177.7 million to A$329.7 million in FY16 as a result higher
sales prices from the previous year and the timing of receipts. Trade and other receivables also consists
of amounts due from related parties, other receivables and prepayments (related to rates, levy and
mining tenements and insurance). Related party amounts represent intercompany receivable from Rio
Tinto entities and an external portion of receivables from external joint venture partners at arm’s length
terms.

Inventories remained fairly stable, decreasing by A$8.3 million in FY16 to A$60.7 million. Inventories
consists of coal stocks (including finished goods and work in progress) of A$23.2 million and stores of
A$37.5 million in FY16. Finished goods include coal stocks at site, on transit in trains and in stockpiles
at the ports. Work in progress stocks refer to ROM coal stocks which are either bypassed or which are
waiting to be processed through the CHPP.

Property, plant and equipment (“PPE”") decreased by A$95.5 million to A$914.4 million in FY16 due to
a combination of the purchase of equipment and the depreciation of existing assets used in operations.

Coal & Allied had a deferred tax asset of A$127.5 million as at the end of FY16, representing timing
differences between the book and tax values of various assets and liabilities. At December 2016 Coal
& Allied did not have any carry forward tax losses.

Trade and other payables increased by A$143.7 million to A$354.8 million in FY16. Trade and other
payables is mainly attributable to the purchase of operating supplies and services used in the production
process. Trade and other payables also consist of amounts due to related parties, intercompany
payable in respect of income tax and other payables. Related party amounts represent intercompany
payables from Rio Tinto entities and external portion of payables from external joint venture partners at
arm’s length terms.

There are no significant borrowings in the business.

Current provisions primarily relate to employee benefits and have increased by A$27.6 million to
A$131.3 million in FY16.

Net assets remained broadly consistent over FY15 and FY16, with a balance of A$1.3 billion at
31 December 2016.

The consolidated entity has a number of contingent liabilities. These include bank guarantees for
restoration obligations, bank guarantees for land conservation and environmental land offsets, bank
guarantees for infrastructure and emergency services and bank guarantees for other miscellaneous
obligations.
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3.5.3 Adjusted cash flow

Provided below is a summary of Coal & Allied’s adjusted cash flow continuing operations for FY14, FY15 and
FY16 as extracted from Coal & Allied’s audited financial statements for FY14, FY15 and FY16, adjusted for the
Carve-Out Adjustments noted in section 3.5.

Coal & Allied - Consolidated cash flow summary

A$m FY14 FY15 FY16
Receipts from customers 1,574.2 1,539.7 1,459.4
Payments to suppliers and employees (1,241.2) (1,075.8) (889.6)
Interest paid (21.6) 8.1) 0.0
Income taxes paid (30.2) (61.2) (83.4)
Dividends received 12.4 12.2 13.0
Interest received 5.3 5.5 17.5
Net cash provided by operating activities 298.9 412.3 517.0
Payments for PPE (57.4) (42.8) (40.5)
Payment for exploration (0.5) (0.5)

Proceeds on the sale of PPE 2.2 16 9.0
Net cash used in investing activities (55.7) (417 (31.5)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (0.6) (0.6) (0.6)
Dividends paid - (100.0)

Capital return - - (381.2)
Repayment of loan facilities (301.0) (292.7) (0.1)
Repayment of advances from related entities 0.2) (0.4

Net cash used in financing activities (301.8) (393.7) (381.9)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (58.6) (23.1) 103.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 289.7 2311 208.0
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 2311 208.0 311.7

Source: Coal & Allied audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, adjusted for the Carve-Out Adjustments

In relation to the cash flow statement we note:

>

Net cash provided by operating activities increased between FY15 and FY16 to A$517.0 million
primarily as a result of lower cash payments to suppliers and employees. Cash flows from operating
activities is impacted by factors including changes in coal price, exchange rate movements and changes
in sales volume as a result of changes in production.

Dividends received from PWCS have been between A$12.2 million and A$13.0 million in each of the
last three years.

During FY16, there was a capital return of A$381.2 million to the shareholders of Coal & Allied.
Repayment of loan facilities was A$0.1 million in FY16, as most loans were repaid in FY15.

Payments for PPE of A$40.5 million in FY16 reflects capital expenditure at HVO and MTW.
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3.6 Rio Tinto

On 24 January 2017, being the date of the announcement of the Transaction, Rio Tinto Limited’s share price
increased by 3.8% to close at A$64.76 per share. Given that a 3.8% movement in the Rio Tinto share price
equates to a movement in market capitalisation which is greater than the Consideration and Royalty, we expect
it is more likely that Rio Tinto’s share price was impacted on this date by market factors not necessarily related
to the Transaction. For example, we note that on 24 January 2017, the price of iron ore (one of Rio Tinto’s key
products) increased by 3.2% to a spot price of $80.69/t. In any event, it is not possible to determine how much,

if any, of the share price movement on the date the Transaction was announced was as a result of the
Transaction.

The following chart summarises Rio Tinto’s gross sale revenue share per business segment in 2016:

Rio Tinto - Gross sales revenue by business segment
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Source: Rio Tinto Annual Report 2016

In 2016, Rio Tinto's Australian coal assets (which includes Queensland coking coal assets as well as
Coal & Allied) contributed underlying earnings of $382 million, representing 6.3% of total underlying earnings
for the group (of $6.1 billion for 2016).

3.7 Broker coverage

Rio Tinto is well covered by equities research analysts. Around the time of the announcement of the Transaction,
we have sighted broker coverage which presented values for Coal & Allied in the range of $1.8 billion to
$2.9 billion, with an average valuation of $2.3 billion. This represents approximately 2.8% of Rio Tinto’s market
capitalisation of $88.3 billion (as at 24 January 2017). These values were presented as part of the analysts’
sum-of-the-parts valuations of Rio Tinto. Given the relatively small size of Coal & Allied in the context of Rio
Tinto’s wider portfolio of assets, and the limited information available in the public domain regarding Coal &
Allied, we expect the scope of analysis undertaken by analysts to be limited. As such we have not placed
significant reliance on these ‘consensus’ broker valuations.
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4.

4.1

Yancoal

Overview of Yancoal

Company background

is an ASX listed coal miner producing approximately 15.5 Mt (equity basis) of saleable thermal and

metallurgical coal per annum for export into international markets. Yancoal operates four sites and manages
five others across NSW, Queensland and Western Australia, as shown in the table below.

Asset Status Operator Location % Ownership  Other stakeholders
Moolarben Production Yancoal Hunter Valley, NSW 81.0% Kores (9.0%)
Sojitz (10.0%)
Stratford Duralie Production Yancoal Gloucester Basin, NSW 100%
Middlemount Production Yancoal / Bowen Basin, Qld 50.0% Peabody Energy (50.0%)
Peabody Energy
Yarrabee Production Yancoal Bowen Basin, Qld 100%
Sites managed by Yancoal
Ashton Production Yancoal Hunter Valley, NSW - Watagan
Austar Production Yancoal Newcastle Coalfields, NSW - Watagan
Donaldson Care & Maintenance Yancoal Hunter Valley, NSW - Watagan
Cameby Downs Production Yancoal Chinachilla, Qld - Yanzhou
Premier Production Yancoal Collie, WA - Yanzhou

Source: Yancoal ASX Announcements, Yancoal website

Yancoal’

>

s Hunter Valley assets are further described below:

The Moolarben Coal Mine is 81% owned by Yancoal and is operated by a subsidiary of Yancoal.
Moolarben is jointly owned with a consortium of companies represented by Kores Australia Moolarben
Coal Pty Ltd (9.0%) and Sojitz Moolarben Resources Pty Ltd (10.0%). The operations consist of an
open-cut mine (Stage One) which produces export quality thermal coal and an underground and open-
cut thermal coal development project (Stage Two). The Moolarben operations on a 100% basis
produced 9.35 Mt of coal for the year ending 31 December 2016.

The Ashton Coal Mine is an underground mine which produces high quality SSCC for export through
the Port of Newcastle. The Ashton operation includes the mine, a CHPP and a rail siding. On a 100%
basis the Ashton operation produced approximately 1.1 Mt of coal in the year ending 31 December
2016.

Donaldson is also located in the Hunter Valley and includes the Abel underground mine which produces
thermal and SSCC. The Donaldson operation is currently on care and maintenance following the
reduction in mining activities and commencement of new feasibility studies. On a 100% basis the
Donaldson operation produced approximately 1.1 Mt of coal in the year ending December 2016.

On 17 February 2016, Yancoal announced it would raise $950 million in new debt funding via the issue
of nine-year secured debt bonds in order to support continued business growth. These bonds were
issued by Yancoal through its subsidiary, Watagan. Yancoal's interest in the Ashton, Donaldson and
Austar operations were transferred to and are now held by Watagan. As at 31 March 2016, Yancoal
ceased control over Watagan, however, continues to manage these assets on behalf of Watagan under
10 year contracts.
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41.1

Yancoal

NCIG interest

has a 27.0% interest in the NCIG export coal terminal and has an allocation of approximately 14.6 Mtpa

of capacity at NCIG. The Moolarben mine is the largest of Yancoal's Hunter Valley assets which uses this

terminal.

4.2

Yancoal
>

>

Major shareholders
currently has 994,216,659 shares outstanding. The two largest shareholders are:
Yanzhou, with a 78.0% interest

Noble Group Limited (“Noble”), with a 13.2% interest.

With respect to Yancoal being listed on the ASX, we note:

>

With Yanzhou and Noble owning more than 91% of the total shares on issue, the ‘free float’ is less than
9% of total shares on issue.

During the 12 month period up to 24 January 2017, the total trading volume of Yancoal shares was less
than 3% of the total shares on issue. The average volume traded per day was approximately 0.01% of
total shares outstanding.

On the day after the announcement of the Transaction, the total share volume traded was less than
0.1% of total shares on issue. The share price on this date did not move from the share price on the
two previous trading days.

Yancoal's market capitalisation as at the day of the Transaction, was $361.8 million.
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5. Valuation approach

51 Definition of fair value

As noted in section 2.2, we have considered whether the Transaction is fair by comparing our assessed fair
value of Coal & Allied with the fair value of the Consideration and Royalty being offered by Yancoal.

Fair value is generally defined as “the price at which an asset could be exchanged between a knowledgeable
and willing but not anxious seller and a knowledgeable and willing but not anxious buyer both acting at arm’s
length”. Our assessment of the fair value of Coal & Allied has been performed on a basis consistent with this
definition assuming 100% ownership, which implicitly includes a control premium.

Fair value does not incorporate any special value. Special value is the additional value that may accrue to a
particular purchaser rather than being available to all potential purchasers. In a competitive bidding situation,
potential purchasers may be prepared to pay part, or all, of the special value that they expect to realise from the
acquisition to the seller.

In a related party transaction, RG 111 considers an offer to be ‘fair’ if the value of the financial benefit to be
provided by the entity to the related party is equal to or less than the value of the consideration being provided
to the entity.

In assessing the fair value of Coal & Allied, AMC was engaged to undertake a technical assessment of the
Company’s mining assets and an independent valuation of Coal & Allied’s exploration and development assets.
The AMC Report is included as Appendix | of this report. Consistent with the VALMIN Code, AMC describes the
values determined for Coal & Allied’s mining assets as representing a technical value (“Technical Value”). Under
the VALMIN Code, Technical Value excludes “any premium or discount for such factors as market and strategic
considerations”. Given the methodologies applied and the assumptions upon which the valuation of Coal &
Allied’s mining assets are based, in our opinion, the Technical Values implied by AMC are representative of the
fair values of each of the assets under the abovementioned definition.

5.2  Valuation methodologies adopted

Given the nature of Coal & Allied as a coal mining company, we have assessed the value of the Company on a
net asset backing basis after considering the underlying value of its assets and liabilities on a going concern
basis. In adopting this approach, a key component of the valuation is the assessment of the value of
Coal & Allied’s operating mining assets, being its interests in HYO and MTW (“Operating Projects”).

By their nature, mineral assets are difficult to value. Key considerations in valuing mineral assets include long
term views on commodity prices, development, operational and financial risks, quality of the underlying resource
base and expectations on the timing of any future development of the asset. While the valuation approaches
and assumptions represented EY Transaction Advisory Services and AMC'’s views at the time of preparing this
report, changes to market views on these key considerations could materially impact the values of the assets.

5.2.1 Operating Projects

Coal projects in the later stages of development or in production are typically valued using a discounted cash
flow (“DCF”") approach as projects of this type are generally well defined technically and supported by reliable
cash flows forecasts.

Given Coal & Allied’s Operating Projects have a long production history and detailed forecast life of mine (“LOM”)
models available, we have valued HVO and MTW using the DCF methodology.
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To assist in our DCF analysis and to be consistent with the requirements of the VALMIN Code, the technical,
production and cost assumptions adopted in the LOM models have been reviewed by AMC. Based on their
review, AMC formulated production cases for each of the Operating Projects. All other inputs, including
commodity prices, foreign exchange rates, discount rates and taxation analysis were determined by EY
Transaction Advisory Services. AMC’s comments and findings are detailed in the AMC Report, which is included
as Appendix .

We have included Coal & Allied’s 36.5% interest in PWCS within our valuation of the Operating Projects on the
basis that the operations of PWCS are an extension of the Company’s coal operations and part of the overall
supply chain. PWCS’ shareholders consist of Hunter Valley coal producers and Japanese coal customers? who
receive dividends for their respective ownership in PWCS. We view the dividends received by Coal & Allied as
an offset to port and shipping costs and as such lower Coal & Allied’s effective operating costs. PWCS has
historically paid stable dividends regardless of reported earnings (as a result of having a large retained earnings
balance) and have decreased the coal handling charge to customers in recent years, indicating that the asset
is run for the benefit of the users, rather than as a profit making enterprise.

We have assessed the value of Coal & Allied’s interest in PWCS adopting a DCF approach, including the present
value of the dividend stream within the value of the Operating Projects.

We have also included the value assessed from Coal & Allied’s coal supply agreement with BLCP within our
valuation of the Operating Projects. This agreement represents the supply of coal to a Thai power generator,
BLCP, and includes a maximum coal sale price within the agreement, which is below current market prices
(i.e. an out-of-the-money contract).

We have assessed the value of Coal & Allied’s coal supply agreement adopting a DCF approach. This has been
reflected within the revenue of the Operating Projects.

The forecast cash flows for the Operating Projects were estimated on a US$ ungeared, real, post-tax basis.

5.2.2 Other assets and liabilities
We have assessed the value of Coal & Allied’s other assets and liabilities as follows:

> In relation to the Oaklands deposit, there are no current plans to develop this asset due to being
uneconomic at current coal prices and capital requirements. In the context of the regulatory environment
in NSW, the probability of the project receiving approvals is low and as such AMC considers that no
material value will be able to be realised for this asset. We have discussed this in more detail in
section 6.4.

> Surplus land assets were valued based on the present value of the expected cash flows to be realised
from the completion of the sale of these assets. The surplus land assets represent land which has
already been sold or committed to be sold through option agreements. As the forecast cash flows
associated with land sales are on a A$ nominal basis, we have deflated the expected cash flows and
converted to US$ to be consistent with the LOM models.

> As previously discussed, the rail and port take-or-pay capacity entittements referable to the divestment
of the Mount Pleasant project to Mach Energy, have been assessed to be onerous to Coal & Allied. The
value of the onerous contracts have been assessed on the present value of the future cash outflows to
be incurred by Coal & Allied. These cash outflows are not included within the cash flows of the Operating
Projects however were included separately within the Financial Model. As such the value of the onerous
contracts have been separately assessed.

> Any corporate costs not allocated to the Operating Projects LOM models have been separately
assessed using a standalone DCF.

2 PWCS website, accessed 15 March 2017
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5.3 Control premium

As noted previously, our valuation of Coal & Allied has been assessed on a 100% controlling interest basis and
as such includes a premium for control. This is consistent with the requirements of RG 111.

54 Valuation cross checks

Prior to finalising our valuation of Coal & Allied, we considered the reasonableness of our assessed valuation
range for the Operating Projects with reference to trading multiples of companies with similar, but not necessarily
the same, operations to Coal & Allied. We also considered transaction multiples as a cross check to our
assessed value of the Operating Projects.

In addition, we compared our overall valuation of Coal & Allied to the valuation ranges disclosed by equity
analysts covering Rio Tinto.
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6. Valuation of Coal & Allied

6.1 Summary of values

We have valued Coal & Allied based on the sum of the fair values of its underlying net assets and liabilities, on
a going concern basis. Our sum-of-the-parts valuation is summarised in the following table.

Coal & Allied - Valuation

US$m Ref Low Base High
Operating Projects 6.3 1,804 2,080 2,153
Non-producing assets 6.4

Surplus land 6.5.1 32 32 32
Onerous contracts 6.5.2 (23) (23) (23)
Other assets and liabilities 6.5.3 8 9 11
Fair value of Coal & Allied 1,820 2,098 2,173

We have considered the fair value of Coal & Allied to be in the range of $1,820 million to $2,173 million, with a
base case value of $2,098 million. Given the valuation methods applied, this assessment represents the value
of Coal & Allied on a 100% interest basis, which by definition includes a control premium.

We note the following in respect of the specific items noted in the table above:

> The fair value of the Operating Projects is based on a DCF analysis. Assumptions underpinning the
production, operating costs and capex forecasts reflected in the DCF analysis have been reviewed by
AMC whose report is included in Appendix |. The DCF values were assessed on a 100% interest basis,
adjusted to reflect Coal & Allied’s interest in each asset. The fair value of the Operating Projects includes
Coal & Allied’s 36.5% interest in PWCS as well as the BLCP coal supply agreement.

> The base case value of the Operating Projects adopts AMC'’s base production case, being the case
which AMC considers to be the most likely outcome under current market conditions. We have
considered AMC’s low and high production cases as part of our sensitivity analysis and overall
determination of the low and high valuation range.

> The valuation of the Operating Projects is sensitive to movements in the underlying coal benchmark
prices with discount rate movements having minimal impact. Increasing or decreasing the benchmark
coal price forecasts by 2.5% provides a valuation range broadly consistent with our valuation range
which has had reference to AMC'’s low and high production cases.

> The value of non-producing assets (Oaklands) has been assessed by AMC to be nil, for the reasons
outlined in section 6.4 below.

> Surplus land relates to land held by Coal & Allied that is not required in order to run its mining operations.
No income from the use of this land has been included within our DCF analysis. The value ascribed to
surplus land is based on the expected cash flow from land which has already been sold or committed
to be sold.

> The onerous contracts reflect rail and port take-or-pay arrangements which are surplus to Coal &
Allied’s requirements as part of the divestment of the Mount Pleasant project to Mach Energy.

> Other assets and liabilities include management income received by Coal & Allied for the various
management/joint venture agreements in place at HYO and MTW (which are not otherwise included in
the value of the Operating Projects), asset and resource recovery fees (i.e. the OIA) and corporate
costs.
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Our assessed valuation range for Coal & Allied has been considered in conjunction with various cross checks,
including various benchmark analysis based on trading multiples of comparable companies and precedent
transactions as well as recent broker valuations. Refer to section 6.7 for our analysis of the cross checks
considered.

6.2 Financial Model

We have been provided with a financial model summarising the forecast LOM cash flows for the Operating
Projects as well as the forecast cash flows for Coal & Allied’s other assets and liabilities (“Financial Model”). The
Financial Model was prepared by Rio Tinto management and includes forecast cash flows presented on a US$
ungeared, real, post-tax basis. The forecast cash flows associated with the Operating Projects within the
Financial Model have been extracted from the LOM models underpinning the approved mine plans.

The Financial Model was prepared based on the following:

> Rio Tinto’s five year plan from 2017 to 2022, approved internally with each of the joint venture
participants approving the first forecast year. Subsequent to 2022, the Financial Model relies on the
LOM models.

> The latest Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources statement as at 31 December 2016, reviewed by AMC.

AMC has also reviewed the underlying LOM models and the Ore Reserves and Mineral Resources
included within the mine plans.

> Forecast cash flows for the Operating Projects within the Financial Model and underlying LOM models
have been prepared on a 100% project basis. As such, all cash flow items discussed below are shown
on a 100% interest basis, with our valuation of Coal & Allied adjusted to reflect the Company’s
respective interests in the projects.

We used the Financial Model as the basis for our assessment of the range of values for the Operating Projects
and other assets and liabilities. We adjusted various aspects of the Financial Model, including:

> The technical input from the independent technical specialist, AMC, regarding technical assumptions
following their review of the Financial Model, the underlying LOM models and assumptions
underpinning these models. AMC reviewed various aspects including resource and reserve estimation,
production volumes, operating expenses, capital costs and other environmental and infrastructure
related considerations. Full details of the work undertaken by AMC is set out the AMC Report in
Appendix I.

> Our view of economic assumptions including future expected coal benchmark prices, exchange rates
and tax assumptions. Forecast assumptions denominated in A$ within the Financial Model have been
converted to US$ cash flows adopting forecast exchange rates.

> Rehabilitation and closure costs expected to be incurred over the LOM in addition to the end of the
economic life of each mining asset, assessed by AMC.

> Our view of the discount rates to apply to the forecast cash flows of the Operating Projects and other
assets and liabilities, reflecting their respective underlying risks.

We note that we have not undertaken a detailed review or audit of the Financial Model. We have, however,
performed limited analytical procedures regarding the mathematical accuracy of the Financial Model and held
discussions with Rio Tinto management regarding the preparation of the Financial Model and the assumptions
contained therein.
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6.3 Operating Projects

6.3.1 Revenue

Revenue derived from the Operating Projects are a function of the volume of coal production and the
corresponding forecast coal prices.

6.3.1.1 AMC production cases

AMC has undertaken a technical assessment of the production assets of Coal & Allied. As such, AMC has
provided various production case scenarios for the operations at HVO and MTW categorised as low, base and
high case scenarios. AMC'’s base case scenario represents, in their view, the expected outcome under the
current assumptions and market conditions.

A summary of the production cases considered by AMC within the valuation are below on a 100% basis:

Coal & Allied - AMC cases

ROM Total Total

HVO Description production ROM (kt) saleable Yield (%) Mine life
rate (Mtpa) (kt)

Low Mining at approximately 95% of the LOM plan 20.3 677 494 73.0% 33

production rate. Excludes mining at the Auckland
and Southern pits due to approvals. 1.0% yield
improvement to the LOM plan.
Base Mining production will ramp up to the LOM plan 21.2 871 642 73.7% 40
over 3 years. Only includes the mining of reserves.
2.25% yield improvement to the LOM plan (1.0%
from blending synergies).

High Mining at the LOM plan production rate. 4.2% yield 21.4 1,308 980 74.9% 64
improvement to the LOM plan (2.0% from blending
synergies).

MTW

Low Mining at approximately 95% of the LOM plan 17.2 403 268 66.4% 24

production rate. 0.3% yield increase to the LOM
plan. Excludes approximately 80Mt of resources
due to assuming that additional subordinate
approvals will not be forthcoming.
Base Mining at the LOM plan production rate. 1.9% yield 17.8 484 327 67.7% 29
increase to the LOM plan (1.0% from blending
synergies). Mining of reserves plus additional
resources deemed economic.
High Mining at the LOM plan production rate. 3.0% yield 17.8 511 351 68.6% 32
improvement to the LOM plan (2.0% from blending
synergies).

Source: AMC, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
Notes: The amounts displayed above are on a 100% interest basis for HYO and MTW.

Yield

In assessing the relevant yields adopted within each production case summarised above, AMC considered
historical yields achieved by HYO and MTW compared to LOM plan yields. According to the AMC Report, actual
yields realised at HVO exceeded forecast yields by an average of 2.2% over the previous three years, 1.25%
over the previous two years and 1.0% for 2016. Actual yields realised at MTW exceeded forecast yields by an
average of 0.3% over the previous three years, 0.9% over the previous two years and 1.0% for 2016.

In addition to the yield improvements realised over the LOM plan, AMC also considered the inclusion of
additional yield adjustments of 1.0% and 2.0% for the base cases and high cases, respectively, resulting from
synergies available to Coal & Allied through the blending of HYO and MTW coal.
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Approvals
HVO and MTW require various approvals to carry out mining and coal processing operations. These include

approvals relating to allowable production levels, lease boundaries, land offsets, land disturbance, waste dump
heights, water extraction, and noise and dust limits. As discussed in the AMC Report, community and political
factors can effect the timeframe of receiving operational approvals and may also limit the opportunities for Coal
& Allied to expand its existing mines.

In preparing the production cases, AMC has considered the existing approvals and the regulatory environment
in which the Operating Projects are located. In doing so, AMC has considered a range of possible scenarios as
follows:

> Scenario 1 (base case): Assumes continuation of operations as planned under existing approvals. This
scenario would however require mining some coal from currently unapproved lease areas.

> Scenario 2 (high case): Assumes ongoing approvals are granted, subject to current regulatory regimes
and approval policies for coal operations. This scenario assumes that the mine life is not significantly
restricted by approval limitations.

> Scenario 3 (low case): Assumes increasing restrictions and limitations to future approvals. Assumes
that no new mining leases will be approved and that the mine life is restricted to current approvals.

The following sections outline the assumptions applied within our valuation using AMC'’s ‘base case’ production
profile, being the production profile that AMC considers is most likely based on the information available. In
assessing a range of values for the Operating Projects, we have considered AMC's three cases in conjunction
with sensitivity analysis presented in section 6.6.

6.3.1.2 Production

Production volumes are forecast based on ROM tonnes and gross yield, which underpin forecast saleable
tonnes. Saleable tonnes are further allocated within the Financial Model into specific products.

The chart below summarises the forecast production profile of HYO and MTW on a saleable production basis
as per the Financial Model, after adjustment by AMC. These below amounts include all contracted volumes.

HVO forecast production profile - 100% basis (base case)
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Source: Financial Model
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Total production (kt)

MTW forecast production profile - 100% basis (base case)
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We note the following in relation to the charts above:

>

The profiles shown above reflect AMC'’s ‘base case’ production profile, being the profile that AMC
considers is most likely based on the information available.

ROM production per annum is expected to be 21.2 Mtpa for HYO and 17.8 Mtpa for MTW. This is higher
than the actual ROM production rates historically achieved by Coal & Allied, however is consistent with
the ROM production rates set out in the LOM models.

The AMC ‘base case’ assumes that mining will continue at HVO until 2056 and at MTW until 2045. Total
ROM production over the LOM is expected to be 871 Mt for HVO and 484 Mt for MTW. This reflects
mining of all JORC Ore Reserves, but only 31% of total Mineral Resources (inclusive of Ore Reserves).
We note that significant additional JORC Mineral Resource has been defined over and above the
volumes expected to be mined in the LOM plan. The LOM plan does not assume mining of the
remaining resource, or any potential upside, due to annual ROM production volumes currently being
constrained by existing approvals and infrastructure. Further, the mine life has been abbreviated based
on approvals that can reasonably be expected to be obtained, based on information available at the
current point in time.

The saleable production volumes shown above imply an overall LOM average yield of 73.7% for HYO
and 67.7% for MTW. These yields are in line with the historical yields actually achieved, after the impact
of blending between the sites. Annual saleable production is expected to be approximately 16.0 Mtpa
for HVO and 12.0 Mtpa for MTW. These annual saleable production rates are within the constraints
allowed for by current approvals, and by Coal & Allied’s infrastructure access agreements.

Over the LOM, the product mix is expected to change slightly year on year, as mining takes place
across different coal seams and different parts of each seam. Broadly, Coal & Allied is assumed to sell
83% thermal coal product and 17% SSCC product over the LOM.

The Financial Model assumes that all of the saleable production from the Operating Projects is to be
sold into the export coal market with no coal expected to be sold locally.

6.3.1.3 Revenue

The chart below summarises our assessment of the revenue for HYO and MTW under the base case as
assessed by AMC. We have adopted the median forecast coal price to apply to our valuation of the Operating
Projects within the Financial Model.
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Forecast revenue - 100% basis (base case)
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Source: Financial Model

We note the following in relation to the chart above:

> Revenue decreases from approximately $2.3 billion in 2017 to $1.7 billion in 2021. This decrease is
largely due to price declines in real terms for SSCC, as production slightly increases over the same
period.

> Revenue for MTW ceases in 2045, representing the end of the forecast mine plan. While both mines

are in production, HVO contributes approximately 59% of total revenue compared to 41% from MTW.

> Over the entire LOM, HVO contributes approximately 66% to the total revenue, with MTW contributing
34%.

6.3.2 Operating expenditure

The Financial Model includes forecast operating costs for the Operating Projects (i.e. HYO and MTW).

The net present value within the Financial Model has been prepared on a US$ real basis. As such, we have
converted A$ denominated operating cost forecasts to US$ adopting consensus broker exchange rate forecasts.

Refer to Appendix F for our foreign exchange assumptions.

The chart below shows the major categories of operating costs for HYO and MTW over the forecast period
under the base case scenario.

HVO forecast operating expenditure - 100% basis (base case)
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Source: Financial Model
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6.3.3

MTW forecast operating expenditure - 100% basis (base case)
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ancial Model
the following in relation to the charts above:

Operating costs are based on Rio Tinto’s internally approved five year budget for the period 2017 to
2022, with the subsequent operating expenditure relating to the HYO and MTW LOM plans.

Mining costs include costs associated with the extraction and processing of ROM coal such as waste
movement, open-cut mining costs and processing costs. Mining costs represent approximately 50% of
the total operating expenditure for both mines over the LOM.

Overheads and administration costs include site administration costs and overheads associated with
the operations of HYO and MTW.

Royalties have been assessed at a rate of 8.2% of the assessable coal revenue, which is the current
coal royalty payable in NSW for open-cut mining.®

Rehabilitation and closure costs include a component of ongoing site maintenance costs throughout
the forecast period as well as closure costs at the end of the life of mine. Coal & Allied is forecast to
spend approximately $10.5 million per year (on a real 2017 basis), with a total of approximately
$255.6 million spent over the final 10 years at HVO relating to the final closure costs and $3.5 million
per year on an ongoing basis. At MTW, a total of $206.8 million is forecast to be incurred over the final
10 years relating to final closure costs. These amounts have been reviewed by AMC.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure has been reviewed by AMC for the specific production profile and has been classified as

‘growth’

capital expenditure and ‘sustaining’ capital expenditure. The charts on the next page show the growth

and sustaining capital expenditure for HVO and MTW over the forecast period considered appropriate by AMC.

3 NSW Department of Industry website, accessed 9 March 2017.
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HVO forecast capital expenditure - 100% basis (base case)

©
(3]
=
£ 100 A
&
[%2]
> 50
0 L e B e e e e L S e e e e B e e L S B e e B e e B LI B m s e e s e e
OO T NMITOLOM~EO0ONDO AANMITOOM-O0ODNDOAANMITLOMNE0ODOANMSTL ORS00 O A
A A AN AN AN ANANANNANANNDNNMMMMOMMOOMISESTI T I T ILOLW0LLW0LWLWLWLWLWLW0 OO
DO OO0 OO0 ODO0DODO0DO0ODO0ODO0ODO0DO0ODODODO0ODODO0OODODODODODODODODO0DODO0DODO0DODODO0DODO0O0O0 OO0 OO O
AN AN AN NN ANANANANANANANNANNANANANANANANANANAN NN NN NANANANNANANANNNNNNNNNN

Source: Financial Model

MTW forecast capital expenditure - 100% basis (base case)
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We note the following in relation to the charts above:

> The forecasts are based on Rio Tinto's five year plan for the period 2017 to 2022, followed by broader
assumptions for the remaining forecast period. These assumptions are linked to the production profile
as assessed by AMC (i.e. there is an expectation that the production profiles are driven by capex
spend).

> Total capital expenditure represents ongoing capital costs including equipment purchases, study
expenditure, permitting, land purchases and maintaining all plant and equipment at appropriate working
order over the LOM.

> Coal & Allied undertakes a comprehensive equipment replacement program every 10 years based on
detailed internal records and schedules. As such the above profiles are cyclical in nature with a large
amount of capex forecast every approximate 10 years.

6.3.4 Other cash flow items

6.3.4.1 Changes in working capital

Working capital is calculated as the net of trade receivables, stores and spares and payables. These balances
are forecast for the duration of the Financial Model based on Coal & Allied’s expected average payment terms
for debtors and creditors. We have benchmarked these payment terms to market comparables. The change in
working capital from year to year is reflected in the cash flow forecasts over the LOM.

Cash flows resulting from changes in working capital are inherently assumed to be prepared on a nominal basis.
As such, we have deflated nominal working capital cash flows to be on a real basis for inclusion within the
valuation assessment.

The opening working capital balances in our analysis reflect the agreed working capital balance in the SPA of
negative A$161 million (i.e. net payables position).
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6.3.4.2 Income tax

We have determined post-tax, real cash flows for Coal & Allied at an asset level. As such we have adopted the
Australian corporate tax rate of 30% to assess the notional tax payment or benefit attributable to each
asset/liability. In assessing taxable income we adopted Coal & Allied’s taxable values or have assumed the tax
values could be written up in accordance with Australian tax rules. No carried forward tax losses were included
within our analysis.

6.3.4.3 Provisions

Restoration and rehabilitation provisions include the Company’'s obligation to restore operating locations,
rehabilitating mines, dismantling operating facilities, closure of plant and waste sites and restoration. AMC has
reviewed Coal & Allied’s restoration and rehabilitation provisions included in the Financial Model for the
Operating Projects and made adjustments where necessary within the production cases. As a result, all
restoration and rehabilitation costs have been included in the Operating Projects value and therefore not
separately valued.

6.3.5 Discount rate

To value the Operating Projects using a DCF approach, we applied a US$ denominated real, post-tax discount
rate range of 8.0% to 9.0% with a midpoint of 8.5% based on a weighted average cost of capital basis (“WACC").
A single point estimate of 8.5% has been chosen based on the range of scenarios that it is being applied to. A
detailed description of the discount rate determination is set out in Appendix D.

6.3.6 Valuation range

Based on our analysis and through discussions with AMC regarding the factors considered in assessing the low,
base and high production cases, the value of the Operating Projects is limited by, and highly dependent on the
adopted forecast ROM production rates. With the maximum achievable production at HVO and MTW limited by
regulatory approvals as well as the availability of required infrastructure, we have placed a greater reliance on
achievable annual production rates as opposed to the Operating Project’s total amount of Mineral Resources.
In this regard, we have assessed our value range of the Operating Projects to include the AMC low and high
production cases, reflecting AMC'’s views of a range of achievable production scenarios.

The valuation range determined for the Operating Projects (adopting AMC'’s production cases) considers mining
less coal than reported in the JORC Mineral Resources reported by Rio Tinto. The mine lives have been
restricted to the extent that mining of Mineral Resources would require extensions of lease approval (in
unapproved areas), or conversion of indicated resources to inferred. On the basis that HYO and MTW has a
mine life of 40 years and 29 years, respectively under AMC’s base case, any additional mining of Mineral
Resources beyond these years will have minimal impact on the overall value of the Operating Projects.

Based on the analysis detailed above, we have assessed the fair value of the Operating Projects in a range of
$1,804 million to $2,153 million, with a base case value of $2,080 million, reflecting AMC'’s base case scenario.
We note that the implied Ore Reserve and Mineral Resource multiples for the Operating Projects are broadly
consistent with the implied multiples of comparable companies as referred to in the valuation cross checks
section 6.7.

6.4 Non-producing assets

AMC reviewed Coal & Allied’s other undeveloped resources and exploration interests, being the Oaklands
deposit.

The Oaklands deposit represents Coal & Allied’s only Mineral Resource which is not included within the
Operating Projects. Oaklands has a total JORC Mineral Resource of 1,270Mt, mainly attributable to Measured
and Indicated Resources.

Based on an evaluation of Oaklands completed in 2011, the initial capital cost to develop a mine and the forecast
operating costs used in the economic assessment determined that the mine was not economic at that time.
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The AMC Report considers that there is no material value associated with Coal & Allied’s ownership of the
Oaklands deposit on the basis that:

> The coal at Oaklands is of lower quality and would not attract a premium price in the market.

> The project would require significant upfront capital to develop.

> The project would not be economically viable at current coal prices.

> Mining of the deposit has not received the relevant government approvals. AMC considers the

probability of receiving the appropriate approvals to be low.

> Transporting the coal to the market will require significant capital investment in infrastructure due to the
location of the deposit in relation to existing infrastructure. Similarly, this would also require appropriate
approvals, which AMC considers to have a low probability.

We also note that as at the time of Coal & Allied delisting in 2011, the Company expressed a willingness to sell
Oaklands. Over the period of 2011 to 2017 the market for coal has substantially changed, with the approvals
and the regulatory requirements for further exploration and development of existing and potential coal projects
becoming increasingly complicated. This adds further uncertainty when assessing the value potential of
undeveloped coal projects, and creates significant risk when assessing the potential for a new, large, greenfield
coal project in NSW.

AMC has assessed the Oaklands deposit to have minimal value. We concluded that any value attributable to
the Oaklands deposit would be immaterial in comparison to our assessed value of Coal & Allied and as such,
we have adopted the Oaklands deposit to have nil value for the purposes of our valuation.

6.5 Other assets and liabilities

6.5.1 Surplus land sales

As discussed in section 3.2.7, Coal & Allied holds large areas of land for operational purposes at HVO and
MTW, some of which is classified as surplus. This surplus land has either been sold or committed to be sold as
at the time of this report. Rio Tinto has provided us with estimates of the expected sale prices to be received
from these sales over the years 2017 to 2019.

The total value we have included related to surplus land is $32 million.
6.5.2 Onerous contracts

Coal & Allied has an interest in certain contracts that were assessed to be onerous (i.e. a liability to the
Company) as at the date of this report and which is not otherwise represented in the LOM models presented to
us. The onerous contracts relate to the below rail and port take-or-pay capacity previously retained by
Coal & Allied as part of the Mount Pleasant project. As previously discussed, 4Mtpa of port capacity at PWCS
and the 8Mtpa below rail capacity has been subsequently assigned to Mach Energy through the divestment of
the Mount Pleasant project in late 2016. Through the divestment, Coal & Allied agreed to pay for this capacity
until the earlier of ‘first coal’ from the Mount Pleasant project or 31 March 2018. The assignment of an additional
4Mtpa of port capacity at the NCIG terminal is conditional on Mach Energy achieving ‘first coal’ shipped through
this terminal.

The expiry date of the onerous contracts within the Financial Model is 31 March 2018. Our understanding is that
Mach Energy is targeting ‘first coal’ by 31 March 2018. We have valued the onerous take-or-pay contracts
adopting a real, post-tax discount rate of 0.4%. The total value of the onerous contract we have included within
our valuation of Coal & Allied is a liability of $23 million.
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6.5.3 Other assets and liabilities

Other assets and liabilities include corporate costs, asset and resource recovery fees attributable to the recovery
of shared costs between the Mount Thorley and the Warkworth to the joint venture owners. This is dependent
on the relative ownership interests and various management fee income received by Coal & Allied for the various
management/joint venture agreements they have in place over the mining operations at HYO and MTW.

Coal & Allied incurs corporate costs that have not been included in the valuation of the Operating Projects
however support the operations of both HYO and MTW. These corporate costs do not include corporate costs
associated with Rio Tinto. Corporate costs include scheduling for port and rail infrastructure, the blending of
coal between the mines as a way of optimising sales revenue, costs associated with land and tenements and
human resourcing. Coal & Allied estimated corporate costs to be approximately $3 million per year on a real
basis. In assessing the present value of the corporate costs, we applied the discount rate used for the Operating
Projects of 8.5% to the post-tax cash flows.

The cash flows associated with the recovery of fees between Mount Thorley and Warkworth as well as the
various management fee income Coal & Allied receives for the operation of HYO and MTW is directly related to
actual production and revenue received. As such, the net present value of these cash flows will vary depending
on the chosen production profile in addition to the underlying commodity and exchange rate forecasts.

The total value of other assets and liabilities we have included within our valuation of is in the range of
$7.9 million and $10.9 million, with a base case value of $9.2 million.

6.6  Sensitivity analysis

The following chart outlines the base case value of Coal & Allied under our base case assumptions and the
sensitivity of the value to changes in the following valuation parameters and production cases (assuming all
other assumptions are held constant):

> Change in the rehabilitation and closure costs by +/-2.5%

> Change in the capital expenditure costs by +/-2.5%

> Change in the discount rate by +/-50bps (i.e. 0.5%)

> Change in the exchange rate forecast by +/-2.5%

> Change in the production profile and associated technical assumptions as assessed by AMC in their

low and high case

> Change in benchmark thermal and SSCC price by +/-2.5%.
Rehab & closure +/- 2.5% ] 01% | 0.1%
Capex +/- 2.5% 1 1.3% Il 1.3%
Discount rate +/- 50bps 1 3.8% [ 4.1%
FX +- 2.5% | 8.3% I 8.3%
AMC production cases ] 13.2% s 3.6%
Coal price +/- 2.5% 1 10.4% . 10.4%
1,700 1,8IOO 1,9IOO 2,OIOO 2,1IOO 2,2IOO 2,3IOO 2,4IOO

We note the following in relation to the chart above:
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> The value of the Operating Projects represents the majority of the total assessed value for Coal & Allied.
In this regard the sensitivity of the cash flows underpinning the value of the other assets and liabilities
is minimal.

> With the exception of the production cases assessed by AMC, the most sensitive input to the valuation

of Coal & Allied is the forecast benchmark coal price followed by the forecast exchange rate. A +/-2.5%
change in the coal price and foreign exchange rate results in a change to the base case value of
approximately 10.4% and 8.3%, respectively.

> AMC provided a high case and low case scenario for HYO and MTW outlining key production and
technical assumptions based on their detailed analysis of LOM plans. Our assessed range is based on
the AMC low and high production case. As shown in the sensitivity chart above, the value derived by
adopting AMC's high production case is closer to the base case value than the value that would be
derived by adopting AMC'’s low production case. This indicates that whilst there is a higher value impact
of the low case, AMC's base production case is more closely aligned with the high case assumptions.
Upside potential on the high case is limited by the current approvals restraints and processes at HVO
and MTW, in addition to the regulatory requirements surrounding future coal mining approvals in NSW.

> The sensitivity of the base case value to changes in AMC’s assessed production and technical
assumptions is approximately 3.6% on the upside and approximately 13.2% on the downside.

6.7 Valuation cross check

We have considered the reasonableness of our valuation using a number of cross-checks. These include
consideration of the comparison of the resource and reserve multiples implied by our valuation with the resource
multiples of broadly comparable coal production companies and recent industry transactions (between 2013
and 2017). The implied multiples from our valuation of the Operating Projects are shown in the table below:

Coal & Allied - Implied multiples

Low Base High
Operating Projects value $1,804m $2,080m $2,153m
Operating Projects reserve — Coal & Allied interest! 798 Mt 798 Mt 798 Mt
Coal & Allied average yearly ROM production? 25.8 Mtpa 25.8 Mtpa 25.8 Mtpa
Operating Projects reserve multiple $2.31t $2.6/t $2.71t
Operating Projects ROM production multiple $70.0/t $80.7/t $83.5/t

Notes:

1. Coal & Allied’s interest in the total reserves has been calculated with respect to its 67.6% interest in HVO and its effective interest of 64.1% in
MTW. Coal & Allied’s effective interest in MTW is a result of the commitment ratio from Warkworth and Mount Thorley of 65.0% and 35.0%,
respectively as part of the OIA. Coal & Allied’s reserves are calculated as 871 Mt x 67.6% + 327 Mt x 64.1% = 798 Mt.

2. Coal & Allied’s average yearly ROM production has been assessed as the average ROM production over the first 15 forecast years for HVO and
MTW adjusted for Coal & Allied respective interest. Coal & Allied’s average yearly ROM production is calculated as 21.2 Mtpa x 67.6% + 17.8 Mtpa
x 64.1% = 25.8 Mtpa.

We have assessed resource multiples inclusive of reserves. On the basis that our assessment of the fair value
of Coal & Allied is on a 100% basis, which implicitly includes a control premium, we have considered the trading
multiples of the comparable companies inclusive of a premium for control.

We have assessed the level of comparability of the observed broadly comparable trading companies and
transactions and giving consideration to a number of factors, we have considered Whitehaven Coal Limited and
New Hope Corporation Limited, and the Bengalla and Moolarben transactions to be the most comparable to
Coal & Allied.
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Implied reserve multiples

The implied EV/reserve multiples of closely comparable companies and transactions compared to our implied
Operating Projects multiples is shown in the chart below.

EV/Total reserves multiple (US$/t)

701 _ EV / total reserve multiple (US$/t)

Trading multiples

6.0 1

5.0 A

4.0 1

3.0

2.0 1

1.0 4

0.0 T
New Hope Corporation ~ Operating Projects - NPV Moolarben Whitehaven Coal Limited Bengalla
Limited implied multiple

Source: S&P Capital 1Q, comparables company announcements, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
Notes: Operating Projects — NPV implied multiple has been assessed on Coal & Allied’s interest basis

We note the following in relation to the chart above:

>

Transaction reserve multiples have been highlighted in grey, whereas trading reserve multiples have
been highlighted in yellow.

We have included the Moolarben transaction above as Moolarben produces thermal coal and operates
in the Hunter Valley. However we note that this transaction is less comparable than the other
benchmarks as it involved the acquisition of a very small (1%) stake in this asset.

We note that Whitehaven Coal Limited is comparable to Coal & Allied in terms of location of operations
and port and rail, however we would expect it to have a higher multiple due to it producing metallurgical
coal in addition to thermal coal (with metallurgical coal having a higher price per tonne compared to
thermal coal).

New Hope Corporation Limited’s acquisition of Rio Tinto’s interest in the Bengalla coal mine represents
the most comparable transaction to Coal & Allied. We would expect Bengalla to have a higher multiple
than Coal & Allied due primarily to its higher yield and lower cost of operation.

While broadly consistent with the closely comparable companies, Coal & Allied’s implied EV/reserve
multiple is below the median of $4.5/t. This is not unexpected, for the reasons outlined above, and
considering the production and approvals constraints noted in this report.

Please refer to Appendix E for further information on trading and transaction reserve and resource multiples of
broadly comparable companies.

The implied reserve multiple for our assessed valuation range for Coal & Allied is broadly consistent with
comparable companies and precedent transactions. The implied resource multiple for our assessed valuation
range for Coal & Allied is also broadly consistent with comparable companies and precedent transactions.

The implied EV/ROM production multiples of closely comparable companies and transactions compared to our
implied Operating Projects multiples is shown in the chart below.
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EV/ROM multiple (US$/t)

250.0 4 _ EV/ROM prOdUCtion multiple (US$/t)
200.0 - Trading multiples
----- Median

150.0
100.0 A

50.0

0.0 + T T T )
Operating Projects - NPV New Hope Corporation Moolarben Bengalla Whitehaven Coal Limited
implied multiple Limited

Source: S&P Capital 1Q, comparables company announcements, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
Notes: Operating Projects — NPV implied multiple has been assessed on Coal & Allied’s interest basis

We note the following in relation to the graph above:

>

As previously stated on page 43, we would expect Whitehaven Coal Limited to have a higher multiple
due to it producing metallurgical coal in addition to thermal coal.

We are limited in our ability to rely on New Hope Corporation Limited’'s implied multiples due to the low
trading volumes of their respective shares, and as such their multiples may not be truly representative
of the market assessment of the value of these companies. We note New Hope Corporation Limited
also includes operations in other industries and as such does not represent a pure coal player like Coal
& Allied.

As previously stated on page 43, we would expect Bengalla to have a higher multiple than Coal & Allied
due primarily to its higher yield and lower cost of operation.

While broadly consistent with the closely comparable companies, Coal & Allied’s implied EV/ROM
production multiple is below the median of $131.0/t.

We note we also assessed the EV/Saleable production multiples of closely comparable companies and
transactions compared to our implied Operating Projects multiples. These multiples differ to EV/ROM
production multiples due to yield of production. We note that the relativity between Coal & Allied’s
implied EV/Saleable production multiples and the comparable companies is not inconsistent with the
relativity of the EV/ROM production multiples shown above.

In addition we assessed EV/EBITDA multiples of Whitehaven Coal Limited and New Hope Corporation
Limited compared to our implied Operating Project multiples. We note that it is broadly consistent with
other comparable trading companies.

The implied EV/ROM production, EV/Saleable production and EV/EBITDA multiples for our assessed valuation
range for Coal & Allied are broadly consistent with comparable companies and precedent transactions.

Please refer to Appendix E for further information on closely comparable trading companies and transactions to
Coal & Allied.

Comparison to analyst valuations
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In addition to trading and transaction multiples of comparable companies discussed above, we have compared
our valuation range for Coal & Allied to the values implied by equity analysts. The analysts reports we have
access to present values for Coal & Allied in the range of $1.8 billion to $2.9 billion with an average of $2.3 billion.

We conclude that our assessed valuation range for Coal & Allied is not inconsistent with values derived from
equities analysts. Refer to section 3.7 for further commentary in respect of the broker coverage.

45

62



EY

Building a better
working world

7. Valuation of the Consideration and Royalty

7.1  Overview of the Consideration and Royalty

As previously discussed, on 24 January 2017, Rio Tinto announced that it had reached a binding agreement for
the sale of Coal & Allied to Yancoal. One of the conditions precedent to the Transaction is approval by the
Non-Associated Shareholders.

Consideration for the Transaction will be $2.45 billion (cash) made up of a $1.95 billion upfront payment at the
completion of the Transaction, followed by deferred payments of $100 million per annum over five years totalling
$500 million.

Rio Tinto will also be entitled to a Royalty that is based on the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal price
exceeding $75/t (in 2017 dollars, subject to inflation).

7.2  Summary of the valuation of the Consideration and Royalty

Transaction Consideration and Royalty - Valuation

US$m Ref Low High
Upfront cash payment 7.3.1 1,950 1,950
Deferred payments 7.3.2 436 436
Royalty 7.33

Approvals and conditions precedent 7.34 (90)

Fair value of the Consideration and Royalty 2,296 2,386

7.3  Valuation of the Consideration and Royalty

7.3.1 Upfront cash payment

Rio Tinto will be receiving the upfront cash portion of the Consideration from Yancoal on completion of the
Transaction. As such, we have valued the upfront cash payment to be $1,950 million.

7.3.2 Deferred payments

Yancoal will pay Rio Tinto five annual payments of $100 million, totalling $500 million, starting from the first
anniversary on completion of the Transaction. The delayed nature of the deferred consideration results in an
opportunity cost to Rio Tinto and to a lesser extent counterparty risk.

As the deferred annual payments of $100 million are not adjusted for inflation (i.e. are not escalated each year
to include increases as a result of inflation), we have valued the net present value of the deferred consideration
adopting a nominal, pre-tax discount rate of 4.7%. We applied a discount rate based on an assumed cost of
debt, rather than the Operating Projects WACC. This rate was selected as the deferred payments are considered
to be relatively certain, do not bear project risk, and are secured by way of bank guarantees. The total value of
the deferred consideration we have included within our valuation of the Consideration is $436 million.

7.3.3 Royalty

Following completion of the Transaction, Rio Tinto will be entitled to a quarterly coal price linked Royalty
calculated as $2/t (subject to an annual CPI adjustment) of attributable saleable production excluding certain
customer tonnes. The Royalty will extend for a period of 10 years commencing on the third anniversary of
completion of the Transaction. This Royalty will be payable if the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal price
exceeds $75/t (in 2017 dollars, subject to inflation).
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The chart below summarises the forecast benchmark thermal coal price compared to the Royalty trigger price
of $75/t (in 2017 real dollars), adjusted for inflation over the term of the Royalty agreement.

Rio Tinto Royalty payment trigger

100 A

80 A

US$/t, nominal

70 A

50 T T T T T T T T T T T T T ]
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

s Broker range Median Royalty trigger price

We note that based on our analysis of forecast benchmark thermal coal prices as at the date of this report, the
price target at which the Royalty payment is triggered (i.e. $75/t) is unlikely to eventuate. As such the total value
of the Royalty we have included within our valuation is nil.

7.3.4 Approvals and adjustment to the Consideration

There is a potential adjustment to the Consideration for receipt of certain outstanding subordinate approvals as
set out in the SPA. The SPA states that the Consideration will be reduced by $90 million if outstanding
subordinate approvals relevant to the Warkworth mine are not obtained within five years of the completion of
the Transaction.

The AMC low production case includes a decrease in mining of approximately 80 Mt to account for these
additional mining approvals not being forthcoming. As such the low end of our valuation range should be
compared to the low end of the Consideration range for consistency.

We have included the total value of the approvals and adjustment to the Consideration and Royalty to be
negative $90 million on the low end of our valuation range of the Consideration and Royalty.
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8. Evaluation of the Transaction

8.1 Overview

In forming our opinion as to whether the Transaction is fair and reasonable to the Non-Associated Shareholders,
we have considered a number of factors including:

> Whether the fair value of Coal & Allied, on a controlling interest basis, is higher or lower than the fair
value of the Consideration and Royalty that will be received by Rio Tinto in the event that the
Transaction is approved and implemented.

> The strategic rationale for the Transaction, whether there has been any special treatment of Yancoal
as a related party, Rio Tinto’s bargaining position, and the alternative options available to Rio Tinto.

> The impact on Rio Tinto and the Non-Associated Shareholders.
> The likelihood of an alternative superior proposal being received.
> The advantages and disadvantages relevant to the Non-Associated Shareholders if the Transaction

proceeds compared to if it does not proceed.

8.2 Fairness

In determining whether the Transaction is fair, we have compared the assessed fair value of Coal & Allied on a
controlling interest basis, with the fair value of the Consideration and Royalty. The following table summarises
this comparison:

Evaluation of the fairness of the Transaction

US$m Ref Low High
Value of Coal & Allied on a controlling interest basis 6.1 1,820 2,173
Value of Consideration and Royalty 7.2 2,296 2,386

Source: EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis

The assessed value of Coal & Allied on a controlling basis is between $1,820 million and $2,173 million. The
value of the Consideration and Royalty is between $2,296 million and $2,386 million. As the range of the
Consideration and Royalty is greater than the range of values of Coal & Allied on a controlling basis we consider
the Transaction to be fair.

Evaluation of the Transaction

Value of Coal & Allied

Value of the Consideration and Royalty

1,700 1,800 1,900 2,000 2100 2,200 2,300 2,400 2,500
US$m
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8.3 Reasonableness

Under the guidance provided by RG 111, as we consider the terms of the Transaction to be fair, we also consider
the terms to be reasonable. Notwithstanding this conclusion, we have also considered other factors that the
Non-Associated Shareholders should consider in forming their view as to whether or not to vote in favour of the
Transaction. Individual Non-Associated Shareholders may interpret these factors differently depending on their
own circumstances.

The sub sections below outlined the other factors we have considered. In identifying these factors, we have had
reference to the factors noted in RG 111.62, as well as having regard to the specific circumstances of the
Transaction.

8.3.1 The Transaction is the result of a robust sale process

RG 111.62 provides a number of factors to be taken into account when assessing the reasonableness of a
related party transaction. In the context of the Transaction, these factors include considering whether there has
been selective treatment of Yancoal and considering the bargaining position of Rio Tinto. In our view, Rio Tinto
was in a strong bargaining position, acting in the interests of all of its shareholders, and no selective treatment
was provided to Yancoal. This is evidenced by our fairness conclusion outlined above (i.e. that the value of the
Consideration and Royalty is higher than our assessed value of Coal & Allied), however as further consideration
we have also had regard to of the divestment process undertaken by Rio Tinto.

The Transaction will be Rio Tinto’s seventh divestment of a major coal asset since 2013, and leaves only two
material coal assets and certain mining tenements remaining in the Rio Tinto portfolio. Rio Tinto’s thermal coal
divestments have raised approximately $1.9 billion since 2014 (not including the Transaction). Divestments to
date have included the Clermont coal mine in Queensland (announced October 2013), Rio Tinto’s coal assets
in Mozambique (announced July 2014), as well as Bengalla (announced September 2015) and Mount Pleasant
in NSW (announced January 2016).

Based on our understanding of the process from discussions with Rio Tinto and its advisers, as well as Rio
Tinto’s market announcements, we observe that the Transaction is the culmination of an extensive sale process
for the Coal & Allied assets. As Rio Tinto noted in its announcement dated 24 January 2017, discussions were
held with several potential acquirers and Yancoal's offer provided the best value for Rio Tinto shareholders.

8.3.2 Few other acquirers could extract the same value as Yancoal

In accordance with the RG 111, our fair value assessment of Coal & Allied does not include any consideration
of the value associated with possible synergies specific to Yancoal. As such, we have not quantified any such
potential synergies. We expect that there are few other potential acquirers who could extract the same value
out of the Coal & Allied assets as Yancoal. In making this statement, we note the following:

> Yancoal already owns and operates coal mines in the Hunter Valley, and could potentially realise
operational synergies from owning Coal & Allied. Whilst we have not quantified these synergies, and
we note that structural change may be required to certain joint venture arrangements to achieve these
synergies, we do consider there to be potential upside value for Yancoal if these synergies can be
implemented. According to Yancoal's market announcement dated 24 January 2017, Yancoal expects
to be able to realise synergies through blending of product to realise a higher overall price, as well as
cost savings from integrating certain operations and functions of Coal & Allied with its existing business.

> Yancoal has significant carried-forward tax losses, recognised as a deferred tax asset on its balance
sheet, which it may be able to utilise by integrating a profit-making business into its existing portfolio.
The addition of Coal & Allied within Yancoal's portfolio of coal assets will allow it to realise its deferred
tax assets in a shorter timeframe.
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> Yancoal is a ‘pure-play’ coal mining company, meaning that its management team is solely focused on
coal mining assets. In the hands of Yancoal, Coal & Allied’s assets will not be competing for capital with
much larger, assets in other commodities, as they are in the hands of Rio Tinto. Given the capital costs
required in order to achieve the life of mine plans for HYO and MTW, we consider that availability of
capital is a key value driver for the Coal & Allied business.

8.3.3 Alternative options available to Rio Tinto are not considered to provide
as much value

Rio Tinto was not an ‘anxious seller’ of Coal & Allied, and based on its most recent balance sheet, the group
does not have any solvency issues which would indicate that it had been forced into a divestment in order to
realise cash. As stated in Rio Tinto’'s announcement on 24 January 2017, Yancoal's offer represented the best
value to Rio Tinto shareholders of all the options considered by Rio Tinto management.

We expect that Rio Tinto would not have agreed to divest Coal & Allied if it considered that better options were
available to realise from continued ownership. As noted in section 8.3.1 above, since 2013, Rio Tinto has
divested a number of its global thermal coal assets. The result of these divestments is that, at the current point
in time, there are few coal assets remaining in the Rio Tinto portfolio, and the relative value contribution of these
assets is small compared to the other parts of Rio Tinto’s business. This means that the remaining assets
(including Coal & Allied) are competing for capital, and for management time and attention, with much larger,
more profitable assets in other parts of the portfolio.

We provide no comment on the validity of any strategy driving Rio Tinto’s previous actions regarding its
divestment of global thermal coal assets. We have not observed any significant opposition to previous thermal
coal divestments from shareholders or the market in general, and we note that the exiting of non-core assets is
a strategy that has been employed recently by other major global mining companies. The Transaction is not
being undertaken due to any special treatment of a related party, but rather is consistent with previous actions
in divesting its thermal coal assets. These actions have been clear to shareholders for some time. Should the
Transaction be approved and completed, Rio Tinto will receive a relatively significant cash injection which it can
use to focus on the core assets in its portfolio.

8.3.4 Rio Tinto shareholders will be exposed to upside, should the coal price
increase in the future above certain levels

The Royalty payable to Rio Tinto after the sale is linked to the coal price and is payable on attributable saleable
production, subject to certain excluded production. Based on the coal price forecasts applied in our valuation,
this Royalty is not currently ‘in-the-money’. As such, we have not ascribed any value to this Royalty in our fair
valuation. However, in the event that the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal price exceeds $75/t (in 2017
dollars, subject to inflation), Rio Tinto’s shareholders will share in some of this upside through exposure to the
coal Royalty. Further analysis of the sensitivity of the value of Coal & Allied to movements in coal prices is
contained in section 6.6.

8.4 Other considerations

8.4.1 Thereis limited potential for alternative superior proposals to emerge

While it is possible that an alternative proposal involving Coal & Allied may emerge, we note that since the
announcement of the Transaction, no superior proposals have been received and the Directors of Rio Tinto are
not aware of any potential superior alternative proposal likely to emerge. The Transaction is the result of an
extensive divestment process for the Coal & Allied assets, conducted over a number of years. The Directors of
Rio Tinto have satisfied themselves that the offer received under the Transaction was the best possible offer for
Coal & Allied under this process.

The terms of the SPA prevent Rio Tinto from actively seeking any competing proposals. Further, given the
similarities between the Coal & Allied and Yancoal businesses, there are few other potential acquirers of Coal
& Allied that would be able to realise the same level of synergistic value as Yancoal.

These factors may reduce the likelihood of any superior proposals emerging.
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8.4.2 Impact on Non-Associated Shareholders

As noted in section 3.6, it is difficult to discern whether the price of Rio Tinto Shares reacted to the
announcement of the Transaction. Noting that the fair value of the Consideration and Royalty (presented in
section 7.2) makes up approximately 2.7% of Rio Tinto’s overall market capitalisation of $88.3 billion (as at 24
January 2017), we do not expect the Transaction to have a significant immediate impact on Non-Associated
Shareholders.

Assuming the Transaction goes ahead, the key impacts for Non-Associated Shareholders will be:

> Rio Tinto will have continued its previous actions of divesting its thermal coal assets, and to focus on
other parts of its business. In the long term, execution of these divestments is aimed at driving greater
shareholder value through focusing on the remaining parts of the portfolio.

> Rio Tinto will be able to use the cash raised from the Transaction to invest in other areas of the business,
or to pay down debt. The immediate impact of the Transaction for Non-Associated Shareholders will be
that the group’s net debt position will be reduced, and its balance sheet strengthened. As reported in
its 2016 Annual Report, as at 31 December 2016 Rio Tinto had consolidated net debt (gross debt less
cash) of $10.2 billion. The funds expected to be raised by the Transaction represent approximately 25%
of this amount.

8.4.3 Tax consequences

There may be tax implications for Rio Tinto in connection with the Transaction if it is approved and implemented.
Our analysis takes into account tax as it relates to the fair value of Coal & Allied, however we have not
considered all of the specific tax implications for Rio Tinto of the Transaction being approved and implemented.

The Rio Tinto Limited Australian Tax Consolidated Group will recognise a capital gain from the Transaction. The
capital gain will be taxable at the corporate tax rate of 30% subject to the utilisation of carried forward capital
losses. The quantum of tax payable will depend on the final proceeds (after taking into account working capital
adjustments) and the total of capital gains and losses realised by the Rio Tinto Limited Tax Consolidated Group
as at 31 December 2017.

There will be no specific tax consequences for individual Rio Tinto shareholders as a result of the Transaction.
8.4.4 Costs associated with the Transaction

Rio Tinto will have incurred or committed to incurring various one-off transaction costs. These transaction costs
will be payable by Rio Tinto regardless of whether the Transaction is implemented.

If the Transaction is not approved, and in the absence of an alternative offer, Coal & Allied will remain part of
the Rio Tinto portfolio. As a consequence:

> The advantages, disadvantages and risks of the proposal will not occur other than with respect to the
one-off transaction costs incurred or committed prior to the Transaction.

> Rio Tinto shareholders will retain an exposure to thermal coal. Following the previous divestments of
coal assets from the Rio Tinto portfolio, these coal assets form a much smaller part of the broader Rio
Tinto business, meaning that projects are competing for capital with much larger assets in other
commodities. This is likely to mean that the Coal & Allied assets would remain capital constrained, and
that full value would not be realised for these assets.
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8.5 Conclusion

In the absence of a superior proposal, based on the matters outlined above, in our opinion, the Transaction is
fair and reasonable to Non-Associated Shareholders.

This IER has been prepared to assist Non-Associated Shareholders in assessing the merits of the Transaction.
In doing so, the report provides general information only and does not consider the individual situation,
objectives and needs of each Non-Associated Shareholder. On this basis, Non-Associated Shareholders should
consider whether this report is appropriate for their circumstances, having regard to their own situation,
objectives and needs before relying on or taking action based on this report. If there is any doubt, Non-
Associated Shareholders should seek their own professional advice.
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Appendix A Statement of qualifications and declarations

EY Transaction Advisory Services, which is wholly owned by Ernst & Young, holds an Australian Financial
Services Licence under the Corporations Act 2001 and its representatives are qualified to provide this report.
The directors of EY Transaction Advisory Services responsible for this report have not provided financial advice
to Rio Tinto.

Prior to accepting this engagement, EY Transaction Advisory Services considered its independence with respect
to Rio Tinto and Yancoal with reference to RG112.

This report has been prepared specifically for the Non-Associated Shareholders in relation to the proposed sale
of Coal & Allied to Yancoal. Neither EY Transaction Advisory Services, Ernst & Young and any employee thereof
undertakes responsibility to any person, other than the Non-Associated Shareholders, in respect of this report,
including any errors or omissions howsoever caused.

The statements and opinions given in this report are given in good faith and the belief that such statements and
opinions are not false or misleading. In the preparation of this report EY Transaction Advisory Services has
relied upon and considered information believed after due inquiry to be reliable and accurate. EY Transaction
Advisory Services has no reason to believe that any information supplied to it was false or that any material
information has been withheld from it. EY Transaction Advisory Services has evaluated the information provided
to it by Rio Tinto its advisors, as well as other parties, through inquiry, analysis and review, and nothing has
come to its attention to indicate the information provided was materially mis-stated or would not afford
reasonable grounds upon which to base its report. EY Transaction Advisory Services does not imply and it
should not be construed that it has audited or in any way verified any of the information provided to it, or that its
inquiries could have verified any matter which a more extensive examination might disclose.

The information relied upon in the preparation of this report is set out in Appendix G to this report.

Rio Tinto has provided an indemnity to EY Transaction Advisory Services for any claims suffered or incurred by
EY Transaction Services directly arising out of any mis-statement or omission in any material or information
provided to EY Transaction Advisory Services and used or relied upon by it in the preparation of this report.

EY Transaction Advisory Services provided draft copies of this report to Rio Tinto for comments as to factual
accuracy, as opposed to opinions, which are the responsibility of EY Transaction Advisory Services alone.
Changes made to this report as a result of this review by the Directors and management of Rio Tinto have not
changed the methodology or conclusions reached by EY Transaction Advisory Services.

EY Transaction Advisory Services will receive a professional fee based on time spent in the preparation of this
report estimated at approximately A$200,000 (exclusive of GST). EY Transaction Advisory Services will not be
entitled to any other pecuniary or other benefit whether direct or indirect, in connection with the making of this
report.

Mr Michael Fenech a director and representative of EY Transaction Advisory Services and a partner of
Ernst & Young and Mr Ken Pendergast, a director and representative of EY Transaction Advisory Services and
a partner of Ernst & Young have assumed overall responsibility for this report. Both have the necessary
experience and professional qualifications appropriate to the advice being offered. Other staff have been
consulted in the preparation of this report where appropriate.

It is not intended that the report should be used for any other purpose other than to be included in the Notice of
Meeting to be sent to the Non-Associated Shareholders be used for any other purpose other than as an
expression of its opinion as to whether or not the proposed sale of Coal & Allied by Yancoal is fair and reasonable
to the Non-Associated Shareholders.

EY Transaction Advisory Services consents to the issue of this report in the form and context in which it is
included in the Notice of Meeting.
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Appendix B Valuation methodologies

RG 111 provides guidance on the valuation methods that an independent expert should consider when valuing
a company. These methods include the:

> DCF method and the estimated realisable value of any surplus assets.

> Application of earnings multiples (appropriate to the business or industry in which the entity operates)
to the estimated future maintainable earnings or cash flows of the entity, added to the estimated
realisable value of any surplus assets.

> Amount that would be available for distribution to security holders on an orderly realisation of assets.

> Quoted price for listed securities, when there is a liquid and active market and allowing for the fact that
the quoted price may not reflect their value, should 100% of the securities be available for sale.

> Recent genuine offers, if any, received by the target for any business units or assets as a basis for
valuation of those business units or assets, and

> Amount that any alternative acquirer might be willing to offer if all the securities in the target were
available for purchase.

Each methodology is appropriate in certain circumstances. The decision as to which methodology to apply
generally depends on the nature of the asset being valued, the methodology most commonly adopted in valuing
such an asset and the availability of appropriate information.

The DCF methodology involves calculating the net present value of cash flows that are expected to be derived
from future activities. The forecast cash flows are discounted by a discount rate that reflects the time value of
money and the risk inherent in the cash flows. This methodology is particularly appropriate in valuing projects,
businesses and companies that are in a start-up phase and are expecting considerable volatility and/or growth
in earnings during the growth phase, as well as businesses with a finite life (such as oil and gas projects). The
utilisation of this methodology generally requires that the asset be sufficiently advanced to enable management
to provide long term cash flows with some degree of robustness.

The capitalisation of earnings methodology involves capitalising the earnings of a project, a business or a
company at an appropriate multiple, which reflects the risks underlying the earnings together with growth
prospects. This methodology is theoretically most appropriate where a company or business is expected to
generate a relatively stable level of earnings but in practice, is also frequently used in a range of other
circumstances.

The net asset backing methodology involves consideration of the net realisable value of the assets of a business
or company on a going concern basis, assuming an orderly realisation of those assets. This value includes a
discount to allow for the time value of money and for reasonable costs of undertaking the realisation. It is not a
valuation on the basis of a forced sale, where assets may be sold at values materially different to their fair value.

Market based assessments relate to the valuation of companies, the shares of which are traded on a stock
exchange. While the relevant share price would, prima facie, constitute the market value of the shares, such
market prices usually reflect the prices paid for small parcels of shares and as such do not include a control
premium relevant to a significant parcel of shares.
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Appendix C Industry overview
Coal

Coal is an abundant fossil fuel that is formed when prehistoric vegetation undergoes changes as a result of
bacterial decay, pressure, temperature and time. The degree of transformation has an important bearing on the
coal’'s physical and chemical properties, which in turn determines the type or “rank” of the coal. Higher rank
coals have lower moisture contents, contain higher carbon, and produce more energy, which imparts a higher
economic value on higher ranked coals over lower ranked coals. * An overview of coal types and subtypes is
presented in the diagram below.

Types of coal
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There are two primary types of coal produced in Australia, namely thermal coal and metallurgical coal.
Metallurgical coal has several subtypes, including hard coking coal (“HCC”"), semi-hard coking coal (“SHCC"),
SSCC and pulverised coal injection (“PCI").

Thermal coal, also known as steaming coal, is used primarily in the generation of electricity as a fuel for the
combustion process to produce steam. It also has secondary uses in other industrial processes that are reliant
on heating, such as cement manufacturing. Total energy output is an important characteristic for these
processes and thermal coal prices typically reflect the overall energy content of the coal.

Metallurgical coal, also known as coking coal, is used primarily in the steel-making process. Coking coal is
heated in ovens to create coke for use in blast furnaces. There are a number of characteristics which are
important in this context, including ‘caking’ properties, volatile matter content, hardness and strength of the coke
formed, fluidity, and the free swelling index®. These properties affect the value of the product, which is ranked
in different grades, from HCC (the highest grade) down to SSCC (the lowest grade).

There is some degree of substitution between different types of coal. For example, higher grade thermal coal
can be potentially substituted for SSCC through a washing process to lower its ash content. SSCC can also be
used in electricity generation processes. Coal users may also choose to blend different coal types to create an
optimum product for a specific purpose. Technological developments in the steel making process have also
allowed for higher grades of coking coal to be replaced with lower grades such as PCI.

Coal & Allied produces both metallurgical and thermal coal, however its primary product by volume is thermal
coal. Coal quality can be assessed across a number of dimensions, including calorific value, ash content,
sulphur, and total moisture content.

“World Coal Institute, ‘The Coal Resource — A comprehensive overview of coal’ (2009)
5 The free swelling index is used to evaluate the suitability of coal for coke production by comparing the cross sectional profile of a
coal sample post-heating to a set of standardised profiles.
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The following figure displays a summary of the quality for thermal coal across geographic regions, as well as
the specific characteristics of Coal & Allied’s product. On most measures, Coal & Allied’s product is higher quality
than most thermal coals produced around the world.

Thermal coal quality comparisons by key producing regions
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Coal mining

Coal is mined by two methods: open-cut (or surface mining) or underground (or deep mining). The choice of
method mainly depends on the geological characteristics of the coal deposit.

Open-cut mining is only economical when the coal deposit is near the surface. This method involves removal of
the coal from an open pit. This is achieved by first using a dragline, excavator and/or truck/shovel fleet to remove
the overlaying waste material (overburden). The uncovered coal is subsequently extracted using trucks,
excavators and/or draglines. More than 90% of the coal deposit can typically be recovered using this method.®

Underground mining is undertaken using two main methods: longwall or bord and pillar (or room and pillar). The
longwall method involves cutting underground roads into the coal seam to expose blocks of coal up to several
hundreds of metres in width and several kilometres in length. Hydraulic chocks act as roof supports and allow
an automated shearer to remove coal, which is then removed from the mine using a conveyor. When coal has
been extracted from the area, the roof is allowed to collapse. Over 75% of the coal can be recovered using this
method. With the bord and pillar method, the coal deposit is mined by cutting a network of rooms into the coal
seam leaving behind pillars of coal to support the roof. These pillars can be up to 40% of the coal in the seam.”

Global coal supply, demand and price determinants

Demand

Thermal coal is used primarily as an input for electricity generation, thus the demand for thermal coal is driven
by both the global production of electricity and the relative appeal of coal as an input to the process. In addition
to market dynamics, political, legislative and trade policies influence the use of coal within regional energy mixes.

8 World Coal Institute, ‘The Coal Resource — A comprehensive overview of coal’ (2009)
"World Coal Institute, ‘The Coal Resource — A comprehensive overview of coal’ (2009)
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The five largest importers of thermal coal over the four year period from 2013 and 2016 were China, the
European Union, India, Japan and South Korea. Over time, China’s reliance on imports has trended downwards,

with a deviation in 2016 as a result of its supply side reforms. Of these importers, Japan, South Korea, and
China have customarily been Australia’s largest thermal export customers in respective order.

Major thermal coal importers, 2013-2016
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Source: Australian Department of Industry, Innovation and Science (December 2016)

In recent years, climate change has emerged as a core focus of international bodies targeted through the
widespread introduction of carbon emission reduction policies. The Paris Agreement — ratified in 2016 and now
in effect - formed the world’s first universal and legally-binding global climate change deal, seeking to limit
increases to global average temperatures to less than 2°C below pre-industrial levels. The impact of this deal
will involve changes in the global energy mix, including an impact on the role of thermal coal as a fuel source.

The International Energy Agency (“IEA”) is a global body which develops projections as to the future levels of
demand for, and consumption of, energy resources. In its 2016 World Energy Outlook, the IEA has developed
a ‘New Policies’ scenario that takes into account policy commitments of countries relating to carbon emissions
and fossil-fuel subsidies, and projects the expected impact of these policy commitments on the global energy
mix, including demand for coal. Under the New Policies scenario, between now and 2040, the IEA expects coal’s
proportion of the energy mix to decrease, but the overall volume of coal consumption to increase as global
energy usage rises. In particular, the IEA expects India and Southeast Asia to be the largest contributors to
growth in coal demand to 2040, with China’s demand remaining relatively stable.

With a focus on reducing carbon emissions, many countries including Japan and China have commenced the
process of replacing dated low-efficiency coal generation plants with high efficiency, low emission (‘HELE”") coal
powered electricity plants. Plants of this nature are often subject to technical restrictions on the quality of coal
used, operating most effectively with higher quality thermal coal characteristically similar to Australia’s produce.
By contrast, Indonesian thermal coal is typically lower in quality, which creates an opportunity for Australian
producers to capitalise on expected demand from HELE plants within the Asia-Pacific region.

On a global level, significant capacity increases for coal-powered electricity are on the horizon with Asian
markets in particular recording substantial investments in the planning or construction stage as at January 2017.
For example, India’s forecast growth in demand is underpinned by the country’s power sector reform with
approximately 100 coal fired power plants currently in the construction stage.® Under IEA forecasts, the technical
lifespan of coal-powered plants is assumed as 50 years, however only the U.S. and EU have material portions
of the power plant fleet in excess of this threshold.® HELE plants are typically designed with a lifespan of 30 to
50 years.'® While some of the demand for coal generated by these new plants is expected to be satisfied by
increased domestic production within each of these countries, a deficit is anticipated to exist that will be fulfilled
by exports.

8 Australian Department of Industry, Innovation and Science, Resources and Energy Quarterly (December 2016)
® WIREs Energy and Environment, ‘Constraints to the transformation rate of energy infrastructure’ (January 2016)
10 The University of Queensland, ‘Energy Security and Prosperity in Australia — A roadmap for CCS’ (2016)
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Generating capacity of planned coal powered plants, January 2017
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Source: Coalswarm, Global Coal Plant Tracker (January 2017)

After including recoupment of upfront capital expenditure, coal remains the most affordable source of electricity
available.!! Governments of developing countries (notably India) have commented on the balance to be struck
between restricting carbon emissions and improving living standards for their citizens, facilitated by cheap
energy. As such, much of the global reduction in coal fired generation is expected to come from developed
Western countries rather than from the developing world. Within Southeast Asia, increased electricity
consumption is expected to drive future demand for coal as well as an increase in coal's share of the energy
mix. Australia’s largest thermal coal export partner, Japan, has also signalled its intent to progressively shift
reliance away from nuclear in favour of coal-powered energy, further bolstering expected growth in demand for
coal from Australian producers.*?

Southeast Asia projected electricity generation by Historical and forecast coal-powered energy
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The IEA’'s New Policies scenario assumes a degree of carbon capture and storage (“CCS”) factored into
forecasts to offset emissions created by production. This technology is still in the early commercialisation stage
and efforts to develop it have been undertaken by many of the world’s largest producers, including Rio Tinto
and BHP Billiton amongst others'®. The Minerals Council of Australia has also developed the COAL21 fund with
13 CCS projects underway or completed as at October 2015. Assuming this technology can be successfully
implemented economically on a large scale and combined with ongoing introduction of HELE coal power plants,
a future for coal to operate as a low net carbon emitter is a possible eventuality that would protect coal’s place
in the global energy mix.

1 International Energy Agency, World Energy Outlook 2016
12 Australian Department of Industry, Innovation and Science, Resources and Energy Quarterly (December 2016)
13 The Peter Cook Centre for Carbon Capture and Storage Research, Sydney Morning Herald, company websites
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Supply

The production of thermal coal is largely driven by prevailing spot prices, production costs, and political and
commercial decisions relating to the reliance on coal within the energy mix.

Global thermal coal production has historically been dominated by China, India and the U.S., which collectively
are responsible for approximately 75% of global production. Despite these large production volumes,
transportation costs and legislative and regulatory influences ensure that the majority of coal produced in these
countries is consumed domestically.*

Over time, the world seaborne coal trade has been segmented into two broad regions largely as a result of the
significant costs attributable to international transportation: the Atlantic market, encompassing America and
Europe, and the Asia-Pacific market, within which the majority of global exports originate.

At current levels, Australia is the second largest exporter of thermal coal behind Indonesia. In 2016, Australia
exported 200 Mt of thermal coal and Indonesia exported 340 Mt.*

During 2016, the Government of the People’s Republic of China undertook supply-side reforms by targeting
oversupply in the domestic coal market through output target reductions. As a result, domestic thermal coal
production was reduced with Chinese coal consumers turning to imports to support the deficit created in energy
feedstock. These domestic supply-side reforms have since been eased, although a commitment remains to
reducing oversupply in domestic markets.

According to projections developed by the U.S. Energy Information Administration (“EIA”), total coal production
is anticipated to increase by 1,088 Mtpa from 2012 to 2040. Thermal coal production is supported by ongoing
investments in coal-powered electricity generation in major markets and elevated pricing levels in the short-
term.® India’s total production is expected to increase by 635 Mtpa, but much of this production will be allocated
towards satisfying rising domestic consumption. Over the same period, Indonesian export volumes are expected
to decline by 21% by 2040 while Australian exports are forecast to rise by 16% bolstered by improvements to
production cost competitiveness.’

Thermal coal export forecasts, 2013 - 2040 Australian coal export destinations, 2008 - 2015
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Further, over the long-term the characteristics typifying Australia’s high quality thermal coal — high calorific
content, low moisture, low ash and sulphur content — are expected to assist in securing supply to HELE power
plants.

14 RBA Bulletin (June Quarter 2015)

15 Australian Department of Industry, Innovation and Science, Resources and Energy Quarterly (December 2016)
16 U.S. Energy Information Administration, International Energy Outlook 2016

17U.S. Energy Information Administration, International Energy Outlook 2016
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Pricing

Within the Asia-Pacific market, thermal coal is traded predominantly using term contracts whereby prices and
volumes are renegotiated quarterly. Thermal coal prices are set based on a benchmark calorific value for a
particular region, with adjustments made to the contract prices of an individual cargo of coal to reflect its specific
characteristics, such as differences in energy content and impurities. Pricing arrangements can vary between
the place of export and destination.

Coal contract prices are usually quoted as either FOB or Cost, Insurance and Freight (“CIF”). FOB indicates
that the seller bears all costs up to the point of loading the coal on board the vessel, and the buyer bears all
costs and risk to the goods past this point. Under CIF terms, the seller is responsible for the costs and freight
necessary to deliver the coal to the buyer’s specified destination, and must contract for insurance coverage over
the coal delivery until it reaches its destination.

Between 2010 and 2016, thermal coal prices underwent a period of significant volatility. The following key factors
contributed to the movements observed in global spot prices:

> In January 2011, thermal coal prices peaked at $132/t for Newcastle FOB (6,260 kcal/kg GAR) spot
prices. Several factors combined to influence this steep rise, including disruptions to Australian coal
supply chains caused by largescale flooding of Queensland mining production areas and transport
corridors in 2010 which damaged rail and port infrastructure. At a similar time, global coal demand
increased as China surpassed the Euro Area to become the world’s largest net importer of thermal coal
reflecting the country’s growing energy demands and low cost of imports relative to domestic
production. Indian demand for thermal coal also increased rapidly over the five years to 2012.

> Between 2011 and 2016, thermal coal prices declined steadily to a low of $48/t in January 2016,
reflecting a shift towards renewables, as well as a general oversupply in the coal market.

> In the second half of 2016, a rapid rise in spot prices emerged with the Australian benchmark Newcastle
FOB spot price reaching a high of $103/t (6,260 kcal/kg GAR) in November 2016. This price had not
been reached since April 2012, and represented a 100% price increase from the same the period in
2015. These prices have largely been attributed to China’s supply-side reforms undertaken in the
second half of 2016, exacerbated by a decline in exports from the world’s largest exporter, Indonesia,
in year-on-year terms. Over the same period, Chinese domestic energy consumption was elevated due
to unfavourable weather patterns. These conditions have now subsided with the easing of several
supply-side measures, and China’s import balances are expected to normalise accordingly.

Thermal coal spot price historical and consensus forecasts (6,260 kcal/kg GAR)
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The price movement in 2016 is an indication of the influence that China has on global coal markets. China is
expected to continue to be a key driver behind global thermal coal prices into the future. With large thermal coal
import balances and sizeable planned investments in HELE coal-powered energy generation, India also exerts
significant influence over current and future spot price movements.

China’s reliance on imports is expected to return to ‘normal’ levels in 2017, thereby prompting spot prices to
move towards 2014-2015 levels which occurred under similar conditions.’® Spot prices trended sharply
downwards towards the end of 2016, which suggests this movement may be underway.

Hunter Valley
Overview of the Hunter Valley coal industry

NSW Coalfields The NSW coal industry is an important component of the
NSW economy, with significant contribution to State
revenue, employment and power generation. The NSW
coalfields are spread across the Sydney, Gunnedah,
Gloucester and Oaklands basins and produced a combined
195 Mt of saleable coal in 2016.° The Hunter Valley
coalfield is located on the North Eastern boundary of the
Sydney Basin, which forms a part of the five major
—— coalfields in NSW. Occupying an area of 2,100 square
NTER kilometres, there are currently 16 operating mines within
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There are over 60 coal seams in this area distributed
throughout the Greta, Wittingham and Newcastle Coal
Measures. The vast majority of reserves in the region are
export quality low-ash, high energy thermal coal and low-
ash soft coking coal?.

U
Cosfield boundary

———+—  Main raiway

Major producers in the Hunter Coalfield include Glencore,
Rio Tinto (Coal & Allied), Peabody Energy, Yancoal, and BHP Billiton. The largest producer is Glencore,
operating eight mines in the region. BHP Billiton operates Mount Arthur, which is the largest single coal mine.

18 Australian Department of Industry, Innovation and Science, Resources and Energy Quarterly (December 2016)
9 Factiva 2017
20 NSW Trade and Investment, NSW Coal Industry Profile 2014
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The following map highlights the location of Coal & Allied’s operations relative to other mines in the area:

Hunter Valley coal mines: Indicative mine map
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Infrastructure

The Hunter Valley region’s coal transportation is facilitated by the HVCC, which is the largest coal export
operation in the world. This chain follows the export of coal from producers, through the train haulage process
up until the distribution amongst three port terminals. The service chain spreads over 450km and services
approximately 35 coal mines owned by 11 coal producers in various coalfields within the NSW region, namely
Hunter, Newcastle, Gunnedah, Western and Gloucester coalfields.?

Rail

The Hunter Valley region has extensive rail infrastructure which is held and managed by ARTC. Producers must
enter into below-rail access contractual agreements with ARTC in order to gain access to the network. Above-
rail services are to be arranged between rail operators and coal producers. Rail operators in the region include
Pacific National, Aurizon, Freightliner, Southern Shorthaul Railroad and GRail. In late 2016, Gennesse &
Wyoming acquired Glencore’s coal rail haulage business, Glencore GRail.

The HVCC covers over 30 load points and services three terminals at the Port of Newcastle. In order to facilitate
future coal demand, the ARTC has recently developed the 2015 to 2024 Hunter Valley Corridor Capacity
Strategy, which details required expansion and development plans.

Hunter Valley Coal Chain

2 Hunter Valley Coal Chain Coordinator website, retrieved March 2017
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Port

Hunter Valley coal is exported through the Port of Newcastle which is the largest coal export port in the world.
In 2015, the Port of Newcastle reported total coal exports of 158 Mt, accounting for 96% of the trade volume
from the port.2? Infrastructure in the region consists of two terminal operators, PWCS and the NCIG which
together provide over 200 Mtpa in installed port capacity. PWCS’ operations date back to 1976 and have over
twice the capacity of NCIG, which entered the market in 2004 when it began developing the third terminal at the
Port.

PWCS operates the Carrington and Kooragang terminals, which have capacities of 120 Mtpa and 25 Mtpa,
respectively. In September 2015, PWCS received regulatory approval for the development of Terminal 4 which,
if built, will introduce an additional 70 Mtpa in capacity when operational. There is no immediate intention to
proceed with construction of Terminal 4 in the short-term.% In 2016 the Carrington and Kooragang terminals
handled approximately 110 Mt of coal, which represents a small increase from the 2015 year.2* PWCS has in
recent years reduced its coal handling charges citing challenging conditions for producers in the Hunter Valley.?
Coal handling charges were reduced from $4.5/t in 2012 to $2.3/t 2016, which has assisted in managing
transportation costs for producers in a period of depressed coal prices.

22 port of Newcastle 2015 Annual Trade Report

2 Australian Rail Track Corporation, Hunter Valley Corridor Capacity Strategy 2015 — 2024.
24 PWCS Annual report 2015

25 PWCS Annual report 2015
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Port Waratah Coal Services operational metrics, 2012-2016
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NCIG operates a single export facility on Kooragang Island, which in 2014 after expansion reached a maximum
design capacity of 66 Mtpa. Although NCIG does not publically report company data, Platts Coal Trader's
suggest that 51 Mt of coal was exported from their facilities in 2016.2°

Regulatory environment

The coal mining industry is regulated by both State and Federal governments in relation to development,
operations, and royalties, taxes and levies payable arising from operations.

At a state level, the conduct of mining and exploration activities within NSW requires an authority acquired
pursuant to the Mining Act 1992 (NSW), which takes the form of an exploration license, assessment lease, or a
mining lease. The Titles Recommendation Committee informs relevant decision-maker for titles approvals, and
gives consideration to various principles and policies in determining the outcome of an application. Depending
on the type of activity considered, other legislative approvals may also be triggered.

Running parallel with this process is a requirement for major mining projects to undertake the Mineral
Exploration and Development Assessment Process according to the provisions of the EPA Act. An application
under the EPA Act undertakes submissions of a mine plan, environmental impact statement (“EIS”), and
community consultation.

In addition, coal mining operations must be granted an environment protection license under the provisions of
the Protection of the Environment Operations Act 1997 (NSW). For many large-scale mining developments,
approval must also be sought from the Commonwealth under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Act
1999 (Cth) through the submission of a separate Environmental Impact Statement.

Coal mines in NSW are often challenged by rival industry groups, communities and environmental associations.
Notable recent opposition to mine development and expansion in the Hunter region includes Anglo American’s
Drayton South mine. In February 2017, the mine’s expansion was rejected for the fourth time under significant
opposition from the neighbouring horse breeding industry.

As in other states, royalties are levied on the right to extract coal and applied to all coal recovered within NSW.
Two types of royalties apply, depending on the nature of the coal produced: Ad Valorem Royalty, which is applied
as a percentage of the value of production and is currently set at 8.2% for open cut mines; and Coal Reject
Royalty, which applies to by-products created in the mining or processing of coal, and which are below set ash
and energy thresholds. The royalty rate for Coal Reject is no more than half of the applicable Ad VValorem Royalty.
In 2016, the NSW Office of State Revenue received A$1,081 billion in coal royalties.

Industry-based associations also play an important role in regulating and developing the coal industry. For
example, the Australian Coal Industry Research Program (“ACIRP”) receives 5 cents per saleable tonne as a
levy from industry members. ACIRP directs this funding towards research and development programs to
improve the efficiency of mining operations, and explore innovative technologies.

% Factiva, 2017 ‘Australia’s Newcastle port sets record for monthly coal exports in Dec’
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Appendix D Determination of discount rate

Our DCF valuation of Coal & Allied’s assets have been performed on the basis that cash flows were prepared
on a real, un-geared and post-tax basis denominated in US dollars.

To determine the net present value of the cash flows for Operating Projects, we have assessed the appropriate
WACC.

The WACC represents the average of the rates of return required by providers of debt and equity capital to
compensate for the time value of money and the perceived risk or uncertainty of the cash flows, weighted in
proportion to the market value of the debt and equity capital provided.

Under a classical tax system the post-tax WACC is commonly calculated as follows:

WACC =R,

D
+R,;(1-t.)x
D+E d( c) D+E

Where:

WACC - post tax weighted average cost of capital

Re - required rate of return on equity capital

E - market value of equity capital

D - market value of debt

Rq - required rate of return on debt capital

tc - statutory corporate tax rate

In the following paragraphs we comment on each of the assumptions we make in respect of each of the main
variables in this formula.

Required rate of return on equity

The capital asset pricing model (“CAPM”) is a model for estimating the rate of return required by an equity
investor on an investment.

Under CAPM the required rate of return on equity (“R¢") is calculated as follows:

Re=Ri+ b,(R. - R) -Rs

Where:

Re - rate of return on equity

Ry - risk free rate of return

[3e - expected equity beta of the investment

Rm - expected rate of return on the market portfolio of risky investments

(Rm- Ry) - excess return of the market over the risk free rate, or the market risk premium

Rs - specific risk premium
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Risk free rate

The 20 year government bond market is a widely adopted proxy for the risk free rate. The risk free rate for the
US denominated WACC was based on the 20 year US Treasury bond yield as at 7 April 2017 of 2.74%.

Market risk premium

> The market risk premium (Rm — Rf) represents the additional return an investor expects to receive to
compensate for additional risk associated with investing in equities as opposed to assets on which a
risk free rate of return is earned. Generally, most estimates fall within a range of approximately 4.0% to
8.0%. However, investors’ expectations of the premium can change as the market fluctuates and
perceptions of the riskiness of equities change.

> We have adopted a market risk premium of 6.0% in calculating our US denominated WACC.
Beta

The beta measures the expected relative risk of the equity in a company. The choice of the beta requires
judgement and necessarily involves subjective assessment as it is exposed to deviations in measurement
approaches and a high degree of variation. In order to determine an appropriate beta to use for the valuation of
Coal and Allied’s operations, we have considered the observed betas of comparable companies and applied
our professional judgement.

Beta can be expressed as an equity beta, which includes the effect of gearing on equity returns, or as an asset
beta, which removes the impact of gearing. The asset beta will be lower than the equity beta for any given
investment, with the extent of the difference dependent on the level of debt in the capital structure. The greater
the level of gearing, the greater is the risk faced by equity holders (as debt holders have a contractual right of
return and so first claim on the operating income). Accordingly, for a given asset beta, the equity beta will
increase as the level of gearing increases.

We used the following formula to undertake the de-gearing and re-gearing exercise:

be = bagl-}-g(]‘_tc)9
e E 0

Where:

Be — the equity or geared beta

Ba — the ungeared beta

tc — the statutory corporate tax rate

D/E - equals the market value of debt divided by the market value of equity capital

In assessing a range of betas, we selected a group of companies deemed broadly comparable to Coal & Allied.
We selected those companies with producing coal projects within Australia, as well as diversified miners with
coal projects in Australia and internationally. Our data set included both companies with small scale operations
limited to a single country and those with more diversified operations.

We note that for many of the comparable companies, the data sourced for calculating the betas resulted in non-
meaningful data. We have excluded any betas where the R-squared value was less than 0.04 as these betas
are not meaningful.

The table on the next page summarises the beta information of broadly comparable companies to Coal & Allied.
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Beta analysis as at 7 April 2017

4 year 5 year

Comparable company Market Cap (US$m)2 Raw Net D?bt’ ASSEF " RaW Net D?bt’ ASSEF "

Beta® Equity* beta® squared Beta3 Equity*  betas squared
Producing companies
New Hope Corporation Limited 1,155 0.95 -40% 0.95 0.17 0.93 -41% 0.93 0.18
Whitehaven Coal Limited 2,452 1.22 55% 0.88 0.06 114 44% 0.87 0.05
Wollongong Coal Limited 56 432  619% 0.81 0.04 3.42 537% 0.72 0.04
Yancoal Australia Ltd 254 -0.34  2136% -0.02 0.00 -0.58 1785%  -0.04 0.01
High (excl. outliers) 1.22 55% 0.95 114 44% 0.93
Mean (excl. outliers) 1.09 8% 0.92 1.03 2% 0.90
Median (excl. outliers) 1.09 8% 0.92 1.03 2% 0.90
Low (excl. outliers) 0.95 -40% 0.88 0.93 -41% 0.87
Diversified miners
Anglo American plc 21,639 1.62 56% 1.16 0.07 151 49% 112 0.08
BHP Billiton Limited 100,326 1.15 24% 1.00 0.27 112 23% 0.98 0.29
Glencore Plc 55,657 2.00 128% 1.05 0.15 1.91 123% 1.03 0.15
Rio Tinto Limited 84,121 0.97 16% 0.89 0.25 1.01 16% 0.94 0.25
Vale S.A. 52,756 1.46 81% 0.93 0.41 1.46 69% 0.98 0.41
High (excl. outliers) 2.00 128% 1.16 1.91 123% 112
Mean (excl. outliers) 1.44 61% 1.01 1.40 56% 1.01
Median (excl. outliers) 1.46 56% 1.00 1.46 49% 0.98
Low (excl. outliers) 0.97 16% 0.89 1.01 16% 0.94
Total
High (excl. outliers) 2.00 128% 1.16 1.91 123% 112
Mean (excl. outliers) 1.34 46% 0.98 1.30 41% 0.98
Median (excl. outliers) 1.22 55% 0.95 1.14 44% 0.98
Low (excl. outliers) 0.95 -40% 0.88 0.93 -41% 0.87
Source: S&P Capital 1Q, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
T.Otesitems shaded in grey have been excluded due to a lack of liquidity or where their R-squared value is less than 0.04.
2. Values in millions US$.
3. Equity beta calculated over a four and five year period with monthly observations, regressed against the company’s local index.
4. Net debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents averaged over a historical period (where available).
5.  Where the net debt/equity ratio is negative, it is taken to equal nil and the asset beta has been taken to equal the equity beta.

For the purposes of our analysis, we have adopted an asset beta range of 1.20 to 1.30, with a midpoint of 1.25.
In selecting this beta, we have considered the following:

>

Observed betas for individual companies fall within a wide range and also vary depending on the data
source considered. Many of the companies have betas that are not statistically significant because the
share price performance of coal producing companies tend to follow the coal price, rather than broader
market movements.

We have initially considered ASX listed companies with coal producing assets situated in Australia to
be comparable to the activities of Coal & Allied. We note many of the companies within this comparable
set exhibit low levels of liquidity and/or have demonstrated betas that were not statistically significant.
As such, we have expanded our analysis to selected multinational diversified miners who have coal
assets in Australia.

We note that the operations of the selected diversified miners are spread across multiple geographies
and resource types. Given that Coal & Allied has much more narrower operations and is considerably
smaller (in terms of enterprise value) compared to the selected diversified miners, we consider the
selected asset beta for Coal & Allied should be higher than those observed for the diversified miners.

We note that the demonstrated betas for the selected ASX listed coal producing companies (i.e.
Whitehaven Coal Limited and New Hope Corporation Limited) are below those of the selected
diversified miners. We have placed limited weight on the selected ASX listed coal producing companies
on the basis that the shares of those companies exhibit lower levels of liquidity.
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Capital structure

In calculating the WACC, we need to make an assumption regarding an optimal capital structure at which to re-
gear the asset beta, and with which to weight the cost of equity and cost of debt. Generally, the gearing level
adopted should reflect the level of debt that can reasonably be sustained by any company operating in an
industry, rather than actual gearing maintained by the current business owners.

In order to determine an appropriate capital structure, we have had regard to both the capital structures of Coal
& Allied, and the capital structure of other companies in the industry. In relation to the capital structure, we note:

> Coal & Allied’'s debt to equity ratio was approximately 0.1% in December 2015, and nil in December
2016.
> The steep decline in global coal prices over the preceding five years has influenced the profitability and

equity values of producing firms, and to a lesser extent diversified miners. As such, prevailing debt to
equity levels are considered higher than long-term optimal capital structures.

> The funding structure of coal production projects typically shifts over time as the asset becomes
operational and matures. In the initial stages debt is often incorporated within the funding structure, yet
as projects mature funding is generally sourced from equity. We note that Coal & Allied has been
established since 1960 with production commencing at the HVO in 1968 and MTW in 1981. Thus, we
consider Coal & Allied’s operations to be relatively mature and should reflect a lower level of gearing
when compared to companies with less established operations.

Accordingly, we have assumed a debt to equity ratio range of nil to 20% to be appropriate as a proxy for the
optimal gearing ratio for Coal & Allied.

Cost of debt

The estimated cost of debt for the US denominated WACC is based on the margin over the yield on 20 year US
Treasury bonds.

The debt premium over the risk free rate reflects debt related risks specific to the business being valued (i.e.
the risk that the business will default on payments). The cost of debt represents the cost of funding over the life
of the cash flow model, which is ultimately a proxy for the rate of return that providers of debt would require for
compensating the time-value of money and the risk associated with the particular business. In arriving at an
appropriate debt premium we have had regard to a number of factors including:

> The margin implicit in corporate bond yields over US Treasury bond yields. Implied yields reflect the
market’s view of risk as at a point in time and care should be exercised before incorporating these into
any assessment of an entity’s cost of debt.

> The debt ratings of comparable companies. We note that Standard & Poor’'s BBB credit ratings are
typical for medium to large scale mining companies who lack of geographical and commodity
diversification, such as Coal & Allied. We thus we consider this rating appropriate for Coal & Allied.

> Long-term average historical monthly BBB corporate bond yields, published by S&P Capital IQ. With
reference to historical yields observed, we have chosen to adopt a spread of 2.0% over the long-term
risk free rate. The following table details historical US BBB-rated bond yields and spread over 20 year
US Treasury bond rates between 2012 and 2017.
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US Corporate BBB bond yields and spreads, 2012-2017
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We have also considered recent debt issues from comparable companies within the diversified miners set, but
have chosen not to rely on the yields observed as these companies represent significantly different risk profiles
to Coal & Allied. The companies in this set have larger operations and are diversified across geographies and
resource types, thus their funding rates are not necessarily indicative of Coal & Allied.

After considering the above factors, we have adopted a nominal, pre-tax cost of debt of 4.7% based on a risk
free rate of 2.7% and a spread of 2.0%.

Asset size risk premium

Asset size risk premium removes the return due to beta and isolates the return attributable solely to the size of
the asset. The argument is that investors may demand a higher rate of return on small companies than they do
for large companies due to the increased risk associated with small company investments. We have included
an asset size risk premium range of nil to 1.0%, with a midpoint rate of 0.5% for Coal & Allied to reflect its small-
to-medium size relative to the comparable companies.

Inflation

We have adopted an inflation estimate of 2.0% based on the US Federal Reserve Inflation Target.
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WACC

On the basis of the above, we have adopted the following inputs in our calculation of the nominal and real post-

tax WACCs as shown in the table below.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital

Parameters Low Base High
Cost of equity calculation
Long term risk free rate (US Govt. 20 yr bond - spot rate) 2.7% 2.7% 2.7%
Selected asset beta 1.20 1.25 1.30
Debt to equity market value 0.0% 10.0% 20.0%
Income tax rate 30.0% 30.0% 30.0%
Relevered beta 1.20 134 1.48
Equity market risk premium 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%
Asset size risk premium 0.0% 0.5% 1.0%
Cost of equity capital 9.9% 11.3% 12.6%
Cost of debt calculation
Long term risk free rate (US Govt. 20 yr bond - spot rate) 2.7% 2.7% 2.7%
Company-specific adjustment 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
Income tax rate 30.0% 30.0% 30.0%
After-tax cost of debt 3.3% 3.3% 3.3%
Capital structure
Debt to Enterprise value 0.0% 9.1% 16.7%
Equity to Enterprise value 100.0% 90.9% 83.3%
Adopted:
WACC (post-tax, nominal) 10.0% 10.5% 11.0%
WACC (post-tax, real) 8.0% 8.5% 9.0%
Source: EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
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Appendix E Valuation cross check
Trading multiples of comparable companies

To assess the reasonableness of the values assessed for Coal & Allied, we have compared the resource and
reserve multiples implied by our valuation range with resources and reserves multiples calculated for broadly
comparable listed companies with producing coal projects in Australia. These are shown in the tables below.

Implied multiples (US$/t)

Enterprise M+ Total Total
value resource  resource reserve M+ Total Total Primary coal

Company (US$m) (Mt) (Mt) (Mt) resource  resource  reserve type Location of operations
Yancoal 3,773 2,225 2,879 555 170 131 6.80 Metallurgical 37‘5”5 nNSW. QLD &
Whitehaven 3,644 2,191 3,608 778 1.66 1.0 4.68 #"ﬁéfr':gﬁica” Basins in NSW & QLD
New Hope 1,398 1,527 2,271 668 0.92 0.62 2.09 Thermal Basins in NSW & QLD
Wollongong 637 230 652 94 2.77 0.98 6.80 Metallurgical Sydney Basin
Bathurst 59 61 108 21 0.97 0.54 2.83 Metallurgical New Zealand
High 1.70 131 6.80
Mean 1.42 0.98 4.52
Median 1.66 1.01 4.68
Low 0.92 0.62 2.09

Source: S&P Capital IQ, comparable companies announcements, Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services analysis

Notes:

1.  Amounts presented in US dollars

M + | refers to the aggregated Measured and Indicated resource

Enterprise value calculated based on the market capitalisation of the comparable companies as at 7 April 2017.

Enterprise value includes an assumed notional control premium of 30%.

Wollongong has been excluded from the analysis on the basis that the company is currently under financial distress.

Stanmore has been excluded from the analysis on the basis that the majority of their resources relate to exploration assets as opposed to
producing assets.

oG~ WN

On the basis that our assessment of the fair value of Coal & Allied is on a 100% basis, which implicitly includes
a control premium, we have considered the trading multiples inclusive of a control premium. In our assessment
of the appropriate control premium we have considered the following:

> The median bid premium paid on global transactions for publically listed companies across all industries
in the 12 months to December 2016 was 32% based on 534 transactions.?”

> The median bid premium paid on global transactions publically listed companies within the mining
industry in the 12 months to December 2016 was 62% based on 31 transactions. 28

> The range of control premiums consistently referred to in Australia is generally between 20% and 40%2°,
which recognises that such premium will vary from circumstance to circumstance.

Based on the above, we consider it appropriate to adopt a control premium of 30%.

Industry transaction multiples

We have also considered the prices achieved from transactions from 2013 involving the sale of coal producing
companies or assets in Australia. The implied multiples of the observed comparable transactions are presented
in the tables in the following pages.

27 Factset Mergerstat — Control Premium Study 4™ Quarter 2016
2 Factset Mergerstat — Control Premium Study 4™ Quarter 2016
2 Lonergan, W, The Valuation of Businesses, Shares and Other Equity 4" Edition, 2003
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EV/resource ($/t) Additional information

Enterprise  Percentage Total Total
value acquired M + | resource  resource reserve M+ Total Total Primary coal
Date Target Acquirer ($ million) (%) (Mt) (Mt) (Mt) resource resource reserve type Location of operations
Acquisitions > 50%
2-Nov-16 Metropolitan South32 200 100% na na 25 na na 8.00 Metallurgical Helensburgh, NSW
4-Jul-16 Blair Athol Orion Mining nla 100% 7 7 na na na na Thermal Bowen Basin, QLD
4-Apr-16 Foxleigh Realm Resources 33 100% 15 38 13 2.23 0.88 2.55 Metallurgical Bowen Basin, QLD
20-Jan-16 Callide Batchfire Resources n/a 100% 457 534 195 na na na Thermal Callide Basin, QLD
30-Jul-15 Isaac Plains Stanmore 23 100% 19 30 5 1.19 0.76 4.55 Metallurgical Bowen Basin, QLD
8-Jul-15 Wilkie Creek Sekitan Resources 75 100% na na na na na na Thermal Surat Basin, QLD
11-Jul-14 Baralaba JV Cockatoo Coal 46 100% 28 75 18 1.67 0.61 2.56 Metallurgical Bowen and Surat Basins,
LD
Acquisitions < 50% .
5-Dec-16 NCA JV Glencore n/a 45% 361 819 84 na na na Thermal Bowen Basin, QLD
30-Sep-15 Bengalla New Hope 1,542 40% 375 455 269 411 3.39 5.73 Thermal Hunter Valley, NSW
28-Aug-15 Moolarben Yancoal 1471 1% 1,076 1,326 334 1.37 111 4.40 Thermal Western Coalfields, NSW
11-Nov-14 Ashton Yancoal 185 10% 222 268 57 0.84 0.69 3.28 Metallurgical Hunter Valley, NSW
26-Aug-14 Whitehaven AMCI 2,174 6% 2,101 3,430 709 1.03 0.63 3.07 Thermal Gunnedah Basin, NSW
11-Dec-13 Integra Vale 560 4% na na 34 na na 16.40 Metallurgical Hunter Valley, NSW
25-Oct-13 Clermont Sumitomo; Glencore 2,026 50% 172 176 161 11.78 11.53 12.61 Thermal Bowen Basin, QLD
19-Jun-13 Whitehaven Farallon Capital 3,310 10% 2,220 3,308 709 1.49 1.00 4.67 Thermal Gunnedah Basin, NSW
28-Jan-13 Coppabella and Moorvale 3V CITIC 1,686 % 400 516 163 4.22 3.27 10.35 Metallurgical Bowen Basin, QLD
High 11.78 11.53 12.61
Mean 319 257 5.47
Median 1.67 1.00 4.40
Low 0.84 0.61 2.55
Source: S&P Capital IQ, company announcements, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
Notes:

1.  Amounts presented in US dollars

Reserve and resource based on information as contemporaneous as possible to the transaction announcement date

M + | refers to the aggregated Measured and Indicated resource

Total resource for Coal & Allied, Bengalla and Clermont were initially reported exclusive of reserve. The numbers above assume proven and probable reserve to be part of M + | resource and have been added to the M + |
resource and total resource

Transactions highlighted in light grey have been excluded from the analysis as they are considered outliers

The table includes multiples for transactions which have been announced as well as for those that have been completed

Some of the transactions involve acquisitions of non-controlling interests and therefore the implied multiples may not reflect a control value

The table excludes transactions for which there was not sufficient data to calculate the implied multiples (i.e. Metropolitan, Blair Athol, Callide, Wilkie Creek, NCA JV, and Integra).

Isaac Plains has been excluded on the basis that the mine was in ‘care and maintenance’ at the time of the transaction.

pwn

©oNo O
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Analysis of comparability

We have assessed the level of comparability of the observed broadly comparable trading companies and
transactions giving consideration to a number of factors, including: operational stage, size of defined
resources, location of operations, primary product type and access to infrastructure, among other factors.
Based on this analysis, we consider the following trading companies and transactions to be most comparable
to Coal & Allied.

Selected comparable trading companies and transactions

Trading companies Transactions
Whitehaven Bengalla
New Hope Moolarben

In regards to the selected comparable transactions, we acknowledge the fact that these transactions reflect
acquisitions of minority stakes, and therefore may not be fully comparable to the Transaction (which is on a
controlling interest basis). Notwithstanding the above, we have specifically selected these transactions on the
basis that they share similarities to Coal & Allied in terms of the factors listed above.

Although not directly comparable to Coal & Allied, analysis of these transactions does provide a broad
indication of the level of multiple that the market places on thermal producing coal assets in NSW mining
regions.

Implied historical and forecast EBITDA and production multiples of selected comparable companies

Enterprise value Implied yield EV/EBITDA EV/ROM (US$/t) EV/Saleable (US$/t) Reserve life

Company ($ million) LFY NFY LFY NFY LFY NFY LFY NFY Years

Yancoal 3,773 75% na 238.2 n/a 178 nla 236 n/a 26

Whitehaven 3,644 96% 95% 8.8 6.3 231 211 241 221 45

New Hope 1,398 53% 58% 28.2 5.9 112 94 212 160 45
Source: S&P Capital IQ, comparable companies announcements, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis

Notes:

3. Amounts presented in US dollars

4. Enterprise value calculated based on the market capitalisation of the comparable companies as at 7 April 2017.

5. Enterprise value includes an assumed notional control premium of 30%.

6 Implied yield calculated based on ROM production and saleable production

7 Reserve life calculated based on total reserve and NFY ROM production (with the exception of Yancoal, which is calculated based on LFY
ROM production)

Implied production multiples of selected comparable transactions

Implied EV/Saleable
Date Enterprise Value Implied yield EV/ROM (US$/t) (US$/t) Reserves life
Announced US$m LFY LFY NFY LFY NEY LFY NFY Years
30-Sep-15 Bengalla 1,542 2015 8% 81% 144 141 185 174 25
28-Aug-15 Moolarben 1,471 2015 % 76% 163 121 213 158 27
Source: S&P Capital 1Q, comparables companies announcements, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
Notes:
1.  Amounts presented in US dollars

2 LFY represents the financial year ended closer to the announcement date
3. Implied yield calculated based on ROM production and saleable production
4 Reserves life calculated based on total reserves at the time of the acquisition and NFY ROM production
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Implied production multiples of selected comparable transactions

Newcastle FOB

price ($/t) Quality
Date Implied Long- Mining CV (kcallkg Ash Sulphur  Moisture
Announced yield Spot term method Port GAR) (% adb) (% adb) (% arb)
30-Sep-15 Bengalla 8% 56.70 76.67 oc PWCS 6,543 13.5% 0.57% 10%
28-Aug-15 Moolarben % 56.65 78.44 0OC/UG NCIG/ PWCS 6,567 17.0% 0.60% 10%

Source: EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis, S&P Capital IQ, company announcements, annual reports, IHS McCloskey, Consensus

Economics, NSW Department of Industry

Notes:

1. Implied yield calculated based on ROM production and saleable production as at the announcement date

2. Spot prices represent the weekly average price closest to the transaction announcement date

3. Long-term prices represent the mean if long-term forecast contract prices as reported by Consensus Economics as contemporaneous as
possible to the transaction announcement date.

4.  Long-term prices are expressed in real dollars

Although is it difficult to determine which factors are likely to influence the implied multiples of trading companies
and transactions and to quantify their impact, when analysed individually, some factors are likely to contribute
to a particular operation attracting higher multiples than others. A number of key factors we have consider in our
analysis and their potential impact on multiples are listed below.

> Product type and quality: Metallurgical coals attract a higher price per tonne compared to thermal
coal. In addition, higher quality products within a specific rank attract a higher price per tonne compared
to lower quality ones. Higher prices generally translate in higher multiples.

> Mining method: underground mines are generally riskier than open-cut mines. Therefore open-cut
operations may attract higher multiples.

> Production costs: high cost operations generally have lower profit potential and higher risk to a
downturn in coal prices. Therefore they would be expected to trade at a lower multiple.

> Proximity to port infrastructure: Operations with are located closer to port infrastructure generally
incur lower railing costs.

> Long-term price expectations: Expectations around long-term prices may influence the price paid for
a particular asset/company in a market transaction at a given point in time. Transactions that occur
during periods of relatively higher long-term price expectations are likely to attract a higher multiple.

We have considered the above mentioned factors and whether they are likely to attract a higher, similar or lower
multiples for each of the selected comparable companies and transactions compared to Coal & Allied. Our
analysis is presented in the table below.
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Selected key factors influencing multiples

Comparables

Coal type/quality

Implied yield

Proximity to port

Long-term price
expectations

Reserves life

Actual resource
multiple

Selected trading comparables

*

*

) 4

*

Yancoal
Whitehaven ' f ‘
New Hope N/A: ‘

Selected comparable transactions

Bengalla

1 )

*

Moolarben

¥

*

¥

*

aa e

> |6

Source: EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis, ASX announcements, NSW Department of Industry, Consensus Economics

Notes

1. No publicly available information

2. In analysing the likely impact on implied multiples, the factors noted above have been considered ‘ceteris paribus’

3. Long-term price expectations are represented by the average of Consensus Economics as at the valuation date for trading

comparables and as at the transactions announcement date for comparable transactions

Key

+ Atftracts a higher multiple
§ Attracts a lower multiple
Attracts a similar multiple

Based on the above, we do not consider the multiples implied by our valuation of Coal & Allied to be

unreasonable.

92

75



EY

Building a better
working world

Appendix F Forecast macroeconomic assumptions
Forecast coal prices

Our adopted forecast coal prices are based on broker consensus estimates, forward prices and recent spot
prices and rates. Our forecast coal prices have been assessed as at a date up to and including 7 April 2017.
These prices represent our view of the forecast prices that a market participant would apply when considering
a transaction. It is important to note that the value of the mining assets will be materially impacted by any
significant change in forecast coal prices.

In assessing forecast coal prices for each of producing coal products, we have relied on broker consensus
forecasts for thermal coal and SSCC. Adjustments have been made to the realised prices to allow for the various
qualities of HYO and MTW's coal. For thermal coal, these adjustments have based on the energy content
(measured as kcal/kg gross as received (“GAR”) compared to the export thermal coal benchmark quality). For
SSCC, we have assumed that SSCC produced at HYO and MTW can be sold at prices in line with the Newcastle
SSCC benchmark. The energy content, quality, and relative pricing of HYO and MTW's coal products have been
reviewed by AMC.

A summary of the data observed and our adopted forecast coal prices used in the valuation of the Operating
Projects are outlined below. These have been presented and are adopted on a real (2017) basis consistent with
the Financial Model (that is, the prices are shown before any impact of inflation). Price forecasts have been
adjusted to reflect an average price over the calendar year ended 31 December.
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Coal & Allied - Coal price forecast (6,260kcal/kg GAR)

US$/t, real 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026+
Thermal coal price 82 73 67 63 60 60 61 61 62 62
adopted

Number of observations 11 11 11 11 8 - - - - 6
Semi-soft coking coal 124 87 81 83 81 81 81 80 80 80
price adopted

Number of observations 5 5 5 4 2 - - - - 5

Source: Consensus broker reports, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis

We have adopted the median forecast coal price to apply to our valuation of the Operating Projects within the
Financial Model.

Foreign exchange rate

In determining the forecast AUD:USD exchange rate, we have considered the following:

> Consensus estimates from recent analysts’ reports
> Foreign exchange forward rates sourced from Bloomberg and Reuters
> Other publicly available exchange rate estimates

Our preferred exchange rate assumption is based on forward exchange rates, converted to a real basis, in order
to be applied to real cash flow forecasts. We note that the nominal forward exchange rate has been deflated
adopting the purchase price parity (“PPP”") formula, adopting forecast US inflation estimates and Australian
inflation estimates, sourced from consensus broker reports. Exchange rate forecasts have been adjusted to
reflect an average price over the calendar year ending 31 December. The tables below summarise our US and
Australian inflation forecasts as well as the resulting PPP.

Coal & Allied - Inflation forecast

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026+
Australian CPI 100 102 105 107 109 111 114 116 118 121
US CPI 100 102 105 107 110 113 116 119 122 125
PPP factor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.01 1.01 1.01 1.02 1.02 1.03 1.03

Source: Consensus broker reports, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis

+ 77

94



EY

Building a better
working world

Based on our analysis, we have adopted forward foreign exchange rates (to be applied to real A$ price
forecasts) as follows, presented on a real basis:

AUD:USD consensus forecast
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Source: Consensus broker reports, EY Transaction Advisory Services analysis
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Appendix G Sources of information

In arriving at our views, we have had regard to the following sources of information:

>

audited financial statements of Coal & Allied for the financial years ended 31 December 2014, 2015
and 2016

the AMC Report, included in Appendix | of this report
the SPA
the draft Notice of Extraordinary Meeting

the Financial Model prepared by Rio Tinto management, with operational and technical assumptions
updated by AMC

ASX announcements for Rio Tinto and Yancoal
company websites for Rio Tinto, Yancoal and comparable companies

market data obtained from sources including ThomsonOne, S&P Capital 1Q, mergermarket and
DatAnalysis

In addition we held discussions with various members of senior management of Rio Tinto.
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Appendix H

Glossary

Abbreviation

Full Title / Description

$/US$

A$

ACIRP
AL18

AMC

AMC Report
ARTC

ASX

BLCP
CAPM

Carve-Out Adjustments

CCS

CHPP

CIF

Coal & Allied / Company

Consideration

CPI
DCF
EIA

EIS
EPA Act
EPL

United States dollar

Australian dollar

Australian Coal Industry Research Program
Assessment Lease 18

AMC Consultants Pty Ltd

Independent technical report prepared by AMC
Australia Rail Track Corporation

Australian Securities Exchange

BLCP Power Limited

Capital asset pricing model

Adjustments to Coal & Allied's financial statements to exclude divested assets (Bengalla and Mount
Pleasant) and to reflect the restructured ownership interest (Coal & Allied's share of HVO reduced to 67.6%
from 100.0%)

Carbon capture and storage

Coal handling and preparation plant
Cost, Insurance and Freight
Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Rio Tinto will receive cash only (no scrip) in the form of an upfront payment, deferred consideration (unless
Yancoal elects to make a larger upfront payment)
Australian Consumer Price Index

Discounted cash flow

U.S. Energy Information Administration

Environmental impact statement

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (NSW)

Environmental Protection Licence

EY Transaction Advisory Services / EY / Ernst & Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited

Young / we / us / our
Financial Model

FOB

FYXX

GAR

HCC

HELE

HVCC

HVO

IEA

IER

kcal/kg

km

LOM

Mach Energy Australia Pty Ltd
MJ

Mitsubishi
Mount Thorley

Financial model summarising the forecast LOM cash flows for the Operating Projects as well as the forecast
cash flows for Coal & Allied's other assets and liabilities
Free on Board

Financial year ending 31 December XX
Gross as received

Hard coking coal

High efficiency, low emission

Hunter Valley Coal Chain

Hunter Valley Operations
International Energy Agency
Independent expert report

Energy content measurement for coal
Kilometre

Life of mine

Mach Energy

Megajoule

Mitsubishi Development Pty Ltd

Mount Thorley mine
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Abbreviation Full Title / Description

Mt Million tonnes

Mtpa Million tonnes per annum

MTW The Mount Thorley mine and Warkworth mine integrated operation
NCIG Newcastle Coal Infrastructure Group

Noble Noble Group Limited

Non-Associated Shareholders
Oaklands

OIA

Operating Projects
PCI

PPE

PPP

PWCS

Re

RG 111

RG 112

Rio Tinto

ROM

Royalty

SHCC

SPA

SSCC
Technical Value
t

Transaction
VALMIN Code

WACC
Warkworth
Yancoal
Yangkuang

Yanzhou

Rio Tinto shareholders not associated with Yancoal
Oaklands coal deposit

Operational Integration Agreement

Coal & Allied's mining assets, being its operating projects at HYO and MTW
Pulverised coal injection

Plant, property and equipment

Purchase price parity

Port Waratah Coal Services

Return on equity

Regulatory Guide 111: Content of expert reports
Regulatory Guide 112: Independence of experts
Rio Tinto Group

Run of mine

Rio Tinto will also be entitled to a royalty that is based on the Newcastle benchmark thermal coal price
exceeding $75/t (in 2017 dollars, subject to inflation)
Semi-hard coking coal

Sale and Purchase Agreement

Semi-soft coking coal

Values determined for Coal & Allied mining assets as representing a technical value

Tonne

Rio Tinto reached a binding agreement for the sale of its 100% interest in Coal & Allied to Yancoal

Code for the technical assessment and valuation of mineral and petroleum assets and securities for
independent expert reports
Weighted average cost of capital basis

Warkworth mine
Yancoal Australia Limited
Yangkuang Group Company Limited

Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited
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The AMC Report
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19 May 2017

The Directors

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited
111 Eagle Street

BRISBANE QLD 4000

Dear Sirs

Independent Technical Specialist's Report
Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Limited

Rio Tinto (comprising Rio Tinto Limited and Rio Tinto plc) announced on 24 January 2017, that:

. Rio Tinto and Yancoal Australia Ltd (Yancoal) had reached a binding agreement for the sale of Rio
Tinto’s wholly-owned Australian subsidiary Coal & Allied Industries Limited (C&A) to Yancoal
(Proposed Transaction).

. Because of the shareholding levels of various Chinese state-owned entities in the Rio Tinto Group,
Yancoal is considered to be a related party of Rio Tinto for the purposes of the UK Listing Rules and
the ASX Listing Rules, and the Proposed Transaction requires approval from a majority of
independent Rio Tinto shareholders.

C&A operates Rio Tinto’s thermal coal business in the Hunter Valley of New South Wales (NSW). C&A holds
a 67.6% interest in the Hunter Valley Operations mine (HVO), an 80.0% interest in the Mount Thorley mine,
a 55.6% interest in the Warkworth mine, and a 36.5% interest in Port Waratah Coal Services Limited
(PWCS), which operates port facilities at Newcastle. The Mount Thorley and Warkworth mines (MTW) are
operated on an integrated basis. HVO adjoins the northern lease boundary of MTW. The two mines produce
a mix of thermal and semi-soft coking coal (SSCC) for the export market, which is railed from on-site coal
handling and preparation plants to the coal export facilities near Newcastle. C&A has contracts in place for
below rail access to the Hunter Valley rail network, above rail haulage services, and port capacity at export
facilities near Newcastle to transport product coal from their mines to market.

Rio Tinto has informed AMC that Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Limited (Rio Tinto Coal), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Rio Tinto Limited, has appointed Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited
(EYTAS) as an independent expert (Expert) to prepare an independent expert’s report (IER) in relation to the
Proposed Transaction.

Rio Tinto Coal appointed AMC Consultants Pty Ltd (AMC) to act as an independent technical specialist to
assist the Expert by providing the necessary technical support (a description of C&A’s mineral assets, and
production and cost schedules) and an independent valuation of C&A’s exploration and development assets.
The results of AMC’s work are presented in this independent technical specialist’s report (ITSR), addressed
to the Expert.

This ITSR will be attached in full as an appendix to the IER, which will be provided to the shareholders of Rio
Tinto. In the preparation of this ITSR, AMC took instruction from, and reported to, the Expert.

EYTAS instructed AMC to review estimates of Coal Resources and Coal Reserves, life-of-mine (LOM) plans,
production schedules, and estimates of capital and operating costs for C&A’s mineral assets, and advise
EYTAS as to whether these estimates are reasonable for valuation purposes. EYTAS advised that AMC was
to consider production/development scenarios for C&A’s mineral assets, and these scenarios may be based
on LOM plans that extend beyond Coal Reserves and/or have the potential for variations in future production
rates.

In addition, EYTAS required AMC to prepare valuations of C&A’s other undeveloped resources and
exploration interests.

EYTAS directed AMC to prepare an ITSR setting out:

. The scope of AMC’s engagement.
. The nature of the work performed.
. A description of C&A’s mineral assets and their planned development.

amcconsultants.com i
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. AMC’s conclusions as to the technical assumptions regarding mining inventory, capital costs,
production profiles, and operating costs for each of the production/development scenarios, which AMC
refers to in this report as its Production Cases.

. AMC'’s valuations of C&A’s other undeveloped resources and exploration interests.

The Production Cases provided by AMC to EYTAS include mining and processing schedules, and capital
and operating cost estimates, and are based on information provided by Rio Tinto Coal Australia. AMC
considers that the Production Cases cover a range of reasonable operating strategies and are based on
reasonable grounds and assumptions. AMC considers that the information it has in relation to the valuation
of the undeveloped resources and exploration interests, is sufficient.

The Production Cases developed by AMC do not include off-site costs such as head office or corporate
costs, which are considered by EYTAS, rail and port costs, or a valuation of the assets of PWCS.

AMC has undertaken its commission to prepare this ITSR as a Specialist in accordance with the VALMIN
Code' to the extent that the code is relevant to AMC's engagement.

AMC's use, in this ITSR, of the terms Coal Resources and Coal Reserves is in accordance with the JORC
Code®. The totals of Coal Resources and Coal Reserves estimates presented in this ITSR have been
rounded.

For the purposes of preparing this ITSR, AMC visited (in March 2017) C&A's Hunter Valley Operations and
Mt Thorley Warkworth mines, reviewed material technical reports and management information, and
communicated with management staff at the mine sites and in the Brisbane office of Rio Tinto Coal. AMC
has not visited the exploration projects or the port and rail operations of Port Waratah Coal Services. AMC is
satisfied that Rio Tinto Coal has provided sufficient information for AMC’s informed appraisal to be made
without such site visits.

AMC has not audited the information provided to it, but has aimed to satisfy itself that all the information has
been prepared in accordance with proper industry standards and is based on data that AMC considers to be
of acceptable quality and reliability. Where AMC has not been so satisfied, AMC has included comment in
this ITSR and made modifications in the Production Cases provided to EYTAS.

This ITSR can be summarized as follows:

AMC’s Production Cases

The Production Cases, with their respective life-of-mine (LOM) product, run-of-mine (ROM) coal, and cost
attributes, are summarized in Table I. AMC considers that the Production Cases are based on reasonable
grounds and assumptions, but are exposed to technical risks and opportunities.

The Production Cases do not include off-site costs such as head office or corporate costs, which are
considered by EYTAS.

Code for the Technical Assessment and Valuation of Mineral and Petroleum Assets and Securities for Independent Expert Reports,
The VALMIN Code 2005 Edition, Prepared by The VALMIN Committee, a joint committee of the Australasian Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy, the Australian Institute of Geoscientists and the Mineral industry Consultants Association with the participation of the
Australian Securities and Investment Commission, the Australian Stock Exchange Limited, the Minerals Council of Australia, the
Petroleum Exploration Society of Australia, the Securities Association of Australia and representatives from the Australian finance
sector.

Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves, The JORC Code 2012 Edition,
Effective 20 December 2012, Mandatory from 1 December 2013. Prepared by the Joint Ore Reserves Committee of the
Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, Australian Institute of Geoscientists and Minerals Council of Australia (JORC).
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Production Product Product ROM Total Production Rate LOM Capital Operating
Case Tonnes Tonnes Waste 15-year average Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mtpa ROM coal t) ($/product t) ($/product t)

HVO Base Thermal & SSCC 642 871 5,553 21.2 7.0 46.2

HVO Low Thermal & SSCC 494 677 4,401 20.3 8.8 49.1

HVO High Thermal & SSCC 980 1,308 8,141 21.4 7.0 47.0

MTW Base Thermal & SSCC 327 484 3,358 17.8 5.8 54.3

MTW Low Thermal & SSCC 268 403 2,793 17.2 6.9 56.1

MTW High Thermal & SSCC 351 511 3,546 17.8 5.4 54.8

AMC’s exploration valuations

AMC has reviewed C&A’s mineral assets that are not included in the Production Cases to assess their
additional value. These assets are not approved for development, and with the long life of C&A’s existing
operations, the likely capital costs to develop the assets, and operating costs in producing product from the
assets, AMC has not ascribed material value to C&A’s ownership of these assets.

Details of this ITSR

Details of this ITSR are attached in the form of:

. Mineral assets.

. Hunter Valley Operations open cut mine.
. Mt Thorley open cut mine.

. Warkworth open cut mine.

. Exploration properties.

. Qualifications.

All references to Coal Resources, Coal Reserves, and actual and scheduled production and costs are
presented in this ITSR on a 100% basis.

Production and costs are presented in this ITSR are on a calendar year (January to December) basis unless
otherwise specified.

Coals have been analysed on an “air dried” moisture basis in accordance with Australian Standards.

All monetary figures expressed in this ITSR are in 2016 Australian dollars ($). Costs are presented on a cash
cost basis unless otherwise specified.

For definitions of abbreviations used in this ITSR, refer to Appendix A, and for contributors to this ITSR, refer
to Appendix B.

Exclusions

Exclusions from this ISTR, as directed by EYTAS, are:

. Standing of tenements and approvals.

. Rail and port operations.

. Operations of PWCS.

. Marketing, commodity prices and exchange rates.

. Determination of product royalty charges.

. Financial and taxation analysis, including inflation and discount rates.

. Estimation of corporate, funding, head office, insurances costs, and working capital.
. Assessment of sovereign risk.

. Legal aspects of contracts.

. Legal and social considerations.
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. Valuation of C&A’s operations or non-mineral assets.
AMC understands that these are addressed by others to the extent necessary.

Yours faithfully

%Lw N&)\LMM

G Williamson M Thomas

FAusIMM (CP) FAusIMM (CP)

Principal Mining Engineer Principal Consultant
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1 Mineral assets

1.1 Location of assets

Coal & Allied Industries Limited (C&A) operates Rio Tinto’s thermal coal business in the Hunter Valley of
New South Wales (NSW). C&A holds a 67.6% interest in the Hunter Valley Operations mine (HVO), an
80.0% interest in the Mount Thorley mine, a 55.6% interest in the Warkworth mine and a 36.5% interest in
Port Waratah Coal Services Limited (PWCS), which operates port facilities at Newcastle. The Mount Thorley
and Warkworth mines (MTW) are operated on an integrated basis. The MTW and HVO mines are located to
the west of the major regional centre of Singleton and north-west of Newcastle. HYO adjoins the northern
lease boundary of MTW.

The locations of C&A’s HVO and MTW and mines in the Hunter Valley in relation to major regional towns,
surrounding projects, local infrastructure, and the port at Newcastle are shown in Figure 1.1.

Figure 1.1 Locations of C&A’s operations
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The two mines produce a mix of thermal and semi-soft coking coal (SSCC) for the export market, which is
railed from on-site coal handling and preparation plants (CHPP) to coal export facilities near Newcastle
operated by PWCS and the Newcastle Coal Infrastructure Group (NCIG).

The Hunter Valley is a major coal mining region, with numerous open cut and underground coal mines. Other
major local infrastructure includes the Liddell and Bayswater coal-fired power stations. Major local land use is
for coal mining and agricultural (mixed cropping and grazing). There are humerous towns in the local area,
which host a skilled workforce and numerous accommodation options for the workforce. It is also well
serviced by power, water, telecommunications, and transport infrastructure.

The Hunter River runs along the valley through the HVO leases and to the east of the MTW leases. The New
England highway runs along the Hunter Valley to the east of the mines between the major regional towns of
Muswellbrook and Singleton. The Muswellbrook to Newcastle rail line runs along the Hunter Valley to the
east of the mines, and provides a rail connection to PWCS facilities.

The climate of the Hunter Valley is temperate. Average annual precipitation (for nearby Cessnock airport) is
743 mm, with slightly higher rainfall during the summer months than in winter months. Mean monthly
maximum temperatures range from 17.3° C in winter to 30° C in summer. Mean monthly minimum
temperatures vary from 4.1° C in winter to 16.9° C in summer. Weather related issues for the mining
operations and the coal transport chain can occur from infrequent frosts during the winter months, summer
storms with high intensity rainfall, sustained high rainfall events associated with intense low pressure
systems, heatwaves, and sustained droughts.

The mean maximum temperature and mean rainfall from 1981 to 2010 for Cessnock airport for each month
is shown in Figure 1.2
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C&A also owns an exploration and development lease for the undeveloped Oaklands coal deposit in the
Southern Riverina district of NSW, approximately 600 km south-west of Sydney.

1.2 Historical performance

C&A’s annual production over the three years from 2014 to 2016 is set out in Table 1.1.
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Operation 2014 2015 2016 3-year Average
HVO - SSCC (‘000 t) 1,935 2,966 3,720 2,874
HVO - thermal (‘000 t) 11,924 10,048 9,925 10,632
HVO - total (‘000 t) 13,859 13,014 13,645 13,506
MTW — SSCC (‘000 t) 2,885 2,251 2,229 2,455
MTW - thermal (‘000 t) 9,044 9,478 10,075 9,532
MTW - total (‘000 t) 11,929 11,729 12,304 11,987
Total — SSCC (‘000 t) 4,820 5,217 5,949 5,329
Total — thermal (‘000 t) 20,968 19,526 20,000 20,165
Total product (‘000 t) 25,788 24,743 25,949 25,493

Source: Rio Tinto’s 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March 2017 and released to the market on 2 March 2017

1.3 Tenements and approvals

AMC’s scope of work excludes a review of the status of C&A’s underlying tenements and approvals.
However, the following section provides an overview of the tenements and approvals.

HVO comprises 45 separate mining tenements and operates under two planning approvals, HVO North and
HVO South, separated by the Hunter River.

The current approvals impose the following production limits on the HVO operations:

. HVO North mining limits — 22 Mtpa run-of-mine (ROM) coal until 2025.

. HVO South mining limits — 16 Mtpa ROM coal until 2030.

. HVO CHPP limits — 26 Mtpa (maximum of 16 Mtpa from HVO South) until 2025.

AMC understands that current approval applications seek to increase the mining limit from HVO South to
20 Mtpa, and that approval was received to reactivate the abandoned Lemington CHPP to 16 Mtpa, but C&A
has not acted upon this approval.

MTW comprises eight separate mining tenements and operates under separate development consents for
Mt Thorley and for Warkworth (separated by the Putty Road). The current approvals impose the following
production limits apply to the MTW operations:

. Mt Thorley mining limits — 10 Mtpa ROM coal until 2036.
. Warkworth mining limits — 18 Mtpa ROM coal until 2036.
. No separate CHPP limits apply.

HVO and MTW require multiple approvals to carry out mining and coal processing operations, including
approvals related to allowable production levels, lease boundaries, land offsets, land disturbance, waste
dump heights, water extraction, and noise and dust limits. Community and political issues can affect the
timeframe of receiving operational approvals and opportunities for C&A to expand or extend its existing
mines, and what conditions the government may impose on their approval.

C&A’s LOM plans assume that HYO and MTW will continue to hold the variety of approvals that they need to
continue mining and coal processing operations until the completion of their respective life-of-mine LOM
plans in approximately 2080 and 2048.

1.4 Health and safety

AMC’s scope of work excludes a review of the status of C&A’s health and safety performance. However,
AMC notes from statistics presented in internal Rio Tinto presentations that C&A’s all injury frequency rate
(AIFR) has been lower than the average total recordable injury frequency rate (TRIFR) for NSW open cut
coal mines over the last eight years. C&A appears to have a well-resourced health, safety, environment and
community (HSEC) group at each site and a comprehensive list of applicable health and safety procedures,
standards and guidelines.

AIFR results from 2008 to 2015 for HYO and MTW are presented in Figure 1.3.
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Figure 1.3 C&A safety performance 2008 — 2015
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1.5 Community

AMC'’s scope of work excludes a review of community consultation and social performance relating to the
operation of C&A’s mineral assets. However, AMC notes that the Hunter Valley has a long history of coal
mining from open cut and underground mines, and several companies operate coal mines in the area,
including large multinational companies.

Both HVO and MTW operate less than 5 km from residential land. Thus, they face typical operational
constraints relating to dust, noise, blast overpressures and fume, and surface water runoff. These issues are
managed on an ongoing basis. Approximately 86% of complaints regarding MTW over the four years from
2012 to 2015 were complaints about noise.

Extensions to mining operations at HYO and MTW will take mining activities closer to the local communities
of Mason Dieu (Auckland deposit at HVO) and Bulga (East and North pits at MTW), and these extensions
may face community opposition.

C&A community complaints from 2008 to 2015 are shown in Figure 1.4.

Figure 1.4 C&A community complaints 2008 to 2015
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1.6 Environment

AMC’s scope of work excludes a review of the status of C&A’s underlying environmental approvals and
environmental performance. However, AMC notes that HYO and MTW have developed mine closure plans,
an ongoing programme of progressive rehabilitation for mined out areas and waste dumps, a well-resourced
HSEC group, and a comprehensive list of applicable environmental management plans, procedures,
standards and guidelines.

Community and political issues influence expectations in environmental performance standards and
compliance costs for all mines. They can also affect the timeframe of C&A receiving approvals for continued
operation and opportunities to expand or extend their existing mines, and the conditions that the government
may impose on their approval.
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1.6.1 Environmental incidents

Surface water control, groundwater management, land rehabilitation and standards, and ecological
management are managed on an ongoing basis. Incidents of non-conformance with environmental
standards and other environmental requirements are routinely, reported, recorded and are dealt with.

C&A environmental incidents from 2008 to 2015 are shown in Figure 1.5.

Figure 1.5 C&A environmental incidents 2008 to 2015
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1.6.2 Environmental security bonds in NSW

C&A is required to submit security deposits that cover the full rehabilitation costs for its authorized mining
operations. C&A has calculated environmental bonds in accordance with NSW Government — Department of
Resources and Energy’s rehabilitation policy and guidelines using the Rehabilitation Cost Calculation Tool.

The Rehabilitation Cost Calculation Tool is a spreadsheet pre-populated with set rates for rehabilitation of
various types of land disturbance found at mining operations. The spreadsheet allows for input of area, size
and volume of the disturbance, and from this data, produces a cost estimate for environmental rehabilitation
of the current land disturbance, or the maximum land disturbance anticipated to occur during the period of
the Mine Operations Plan. The estimate is used by the Department of Resources and Energy as the basis for
setting an environmental security bond for the operation.

The Rehabilitation Cost Calculation Tool covers predominantly environmental rehabilitation costs. It includes
some study costs, third party project management costs and a contingency. It does not include other mine
closure costs, such as owner’s costs, human resources/redundancy costs (if applicable) for demobilization of
the workforce, land rates, land sale costs or revenues, rent on mineral tenures, tenure relinquishment costs
and various socio-economic programmes that may be incurred by the operator as part of actual mine
closure.

Environmental security bonds may be paid in cash or as bank guarantees. C&A has lodged a set of bank
guarantees to cover the current agreed environmental security bonds.

1.6.3 Risks with potentially material effects on closure costs

AMC notes that mine closure costs are based on current industry standards and regulatory requirements.
Historical observations suggest that community expectations, industry standards and regulatory
requirements for mine closure increase over time, and future requirements may be significantly more
onerous and costly than is currently the case.

The mine closure plans prepared by C&A included risk assessments to identify where technical issues or
additional costs may arise. The cost risks, together with additional potential risks identified by AMC, include:

. Potential requirement to backfill voids (no final voids).

. Change in legislation with new rehabilitation requirements/relinquishment requirements.

. Change in security/pit slope limits for voids, waste rock dump slopes, and embankment slopes.
amcconsultants.com 5
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. Timing of mine closure brought forward, resulting in an impact to net present value (NPV) and closure
financial provisions.

. Future community expectations exceed current estimates/allowances.

. Delays to progressive rehabilitation.

. Change in community and regulatory requirements regarding management of saline water in final
voids.

AMC notes that potentially the most significant risk is the requirement to backfill final voids. Such a
requirement would materially increase closure costs. Management of saline drainage from disturbed rock
profiles and an increased focus on demonstrating a return to full land capabilities could also present material
increases in closure costs.

These potential risks have not been included in mine closure cost allowances.

While AMC has not tried to predict how environmental standards and approvals requirements will change in
future years, AMC considers it likely that mine closure costs will increase over time. AMC considers that a
contingency for increased mine closure costs related to higher mine closure standards should be included in
economic evaluations.

Any requirement to substantially bring forward mine closure has the potential to materially affect the NPV of
both HVO and MTO.

1.7 Production Cases

AMC’s Production Cases are described in detail under each of the operations. In preparing these cases,
AMC has not tried to predict how approval requirements may change in future years, however the Production
Cases cover the following possible approvals scenarios:

. Approvals Scenario 1 (Base Production Case) — Mining of the existing development consent,
plus some additional mining from unapproved lease areas.

The Base Production Case mine life is consistent with current approvals and development consent,
however also includes a mining extension for MTW in mining lease areas for which further
development consent would be required.

. Approvals Scenario 2 (High Production Case) — Ongoing approvals.

The High Production Case mine life is consistent with Rio Tinto mine plans and mine life is not
significantly affected by approvals limitations.

. Approvals Scenario 3 (Low Production Case) — Mining of most of the existing development
consent, plus some additional mining from unapproved lease areas

The Low Production Case mine life is affected by approvals limitations, however also includes a
mining extension for MTW in mining lease areas for which further development consent would be
required.
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2 Hunter Valley Operations open cut mine
2.1 Location

C&A’s HVO mine is approximately 24 km north-west of Singleton and 75 km north-west of Newcastle. The
rail distance from HVO to the PWCS facilities is 108 km.

Open cut coal mining commenced in the area in 1949, when the operating arm of the Joint Coal Board, the
New South Wales Mining Company, started the Foybrook Open Cut. The Howick open cut mine commenced
shortly afterwards in 1952, followed by the Lemington open cut and underground mine in 1971, and the
Hunter Valley No.1 open cut mine in 1979. Through acquisition and expansion, HVO now consists of all
these mines, which were amalgamated into a single combined coal mining operation.

The HVO mine layout showing open cut, CHPP, and rail loadout infrastructure locations with respect to the
lease boundary, neighbouring coal mining operations, major watercourses, major roads, and the rail line are
shown in Figure 2.1.

HVO comprises 45 separate mining tenements, shown in Figure 2.2.

Figure 2.1 HVO mine layout
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Figure 2.2 HVO mining tenements
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Open cuts, coal processing infrastructure, and supporting infrastructure are separated by the Hunter River
into HYO South and HVO North areas. While HVO South and HVO North each have separate approvals,
HVO is managed as an integrated operation, with coal, coarse and fine reject, overburden, topsoil, mobile
equipment, materials, and personnel moved between the two areas.

HVO North comprises West, Carrington, Wilton, and Mitchell pits and the mined-out Alluvial Lands. Two
operating coal preparation plants are in HVO North; Hunter Valley Coal Preparation Plant (HVCPP), Howick
Coal Preparation Plant (HCPP). A third plant, the Newdell Coal Preparation Plant, is no longer used for coal
preparation, with much of the infrastructure demolished, but it is still used for coal handling and rail loadout
activities. There are two train load out areas; Hunter Valley Load Point (HVLP) and Newdell Load Point
(NLP).

HVO South comprises the Cheshunt, Cheshunt Deep, Glider, Riverview, Auckland, and Southern pits. The
Lemington Coal Preparation Plant (LCPP) is in this area, but is not used and has been largely demolished.
Approvals to recommission this plant have been obtained by C&A, but have not been actioned because
constraints in the logistics chain will not allow the additional coal product to be transported to market.

ROM coal mined from both HVO North and HVO South is processed through the two coal preparation plants
in HVO North, to produce SSCC and low, medium, and high ash thermal coal for the export market. Product
coal is railed 107 km through the Hunter Valley rail network to the PWCS and NCIG coal loading terminals.

2.2 Geology and mineralization
221 Regional and local geology

C&A’s operations are in the Hunter Coalfield in the northern part of the Sydney Basin. The Hunter Coalfield
is a geographical division comprising the traditional coal mining leases around the towns of Muswellbrook,
Singleton, and Cessnock. The main coal sequences in this area are the Greta, Wittingham, and Newcastle
Coal Measures. Commercial coal mining in the Hunter Valley has been from the Greta and Wittingham Coal
measures.

The coal seams located at both HYO and MTW are within the Wittingham Coal Measures. The main rock
types within the area are sandstones, siltstones, conglomerates, coal and tuffaceous claystone. These same
coal seams are mined across the Hunter Valley.

The HVO deposit extends approximately 20 km north-west, 10 km in width and down to a depth of 515 m.

2.3 Coal Resources

Published total HVO Coal Resources, exclusive of Coal Reserves, at 31 December 2016 (HVO Coal
Resources), classified and reported in accordance with the guidelines of the JORC Code are shown in
Table 2.1. C&A reports Coal Resources on a 100% basis, exclusive of Coal Reserves, and on an in situ
moisture basis.

Table 2.1 HVO Coal Resources as at December 2016
Type Measured | Indicated Inferred Total
(Mt) (Mt) (Mt) (Mt)
Open-cut and underground (export thermal and semi-soft coking coal) 348 571 912 1,831

Note: These estimates of Coal Resources were reported in Rio Tinto’s 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March 2017 and released on
2 March 2017. The Competent Person responsible for that previous reporting was R Ruddock (MAusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised that it
is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects these Coal Resource estimates, and has confirmed that all material
assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates continue to apply and have not materially changed. The form and
context in which the Competent Person’s findings are presented have not been materially modified.

The processes used by C&A to estimate the HVO Coal Resources are summarized as follows.
Coal seams were modelled using Minescape software, finite element modelling of the seam location and
thickness, and coal quality estimation using an inverse distance squared method at a 1,000 m search

distance. This method is consistent with the general industry practice.

A total of 19 coal seams are modelled for long-term planning at the Rio Tinto Brisbane office. Updating of the
long-term model is carried out by site personnel on a 50 m grid at HVO and a 25 m grid for short term

amcconsultants.com 9

116



Coal & Allied Independent Technical Specialist's Report

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited 217016

modelling at MTW and. A new coal quality model is being produced. A minimum seam thickness of 0.25 m
and a maximum of 50% ash is required for a seam to be included in the HVO Coal Resources estimate.

Coal seam data is collected by both core and open drillholes with a stated 95% recovery of samples. Seam
locations and marker horizons are checked against down-hole geophysical logs. Prior to May 2013, samples
were analysed by ALS at their Newcastle laboratory. Post-May 2013, samples have been analysed by the
Bureau Veritas laboratory in Queensland. All coal analysis is conducted according to procedures which
adhere to the Australian Standards in a National Association of Testing Authorities certified laboratory.
Standardized Rio Tinto logging and sampling procedures are employed at both mines. Only minor intrusive
have been identified at the base of the current open cuts. Faults are identified from core logging and
geophysical logs with their throw determined by surveyed seams in the pit.

The in situ relative density is calculated using the Preston and Sanders equation, which is the industry
standard method as stated in the Australian Guidelines for the Estimation and Classification of Coal
Resources (March 2014).

The HVO Coal Resources are classified based on Rio Tinto’s standardized process, utilizing points of
observation. The points of observation observed in the drillholes include:

. Structure with a general radius of 175 m to 250 m for high confidence.
. Coal quality with a general radius of 450 m to 500 m for high confidence.

Based on the knowledge of the seams and structure observed from past mining, AMC considers the
classification to be appropriate for reporting of Coal Resources and, consequently, Coal Reserves.

Drilling is generally based on a 500 m grid for cored drillholes and 250 m grid for other holes. A total of 94
faults are included in the structural model.

Coal quality estimates used for mine production planning are based on the average historical quality for coal
mined from that seam. Individual coal seams are stacked on the ROM pad prior to batch processing through
the CHPP.

A summary of the average seam qualities on an air-dried basis is listed in Table 2.2.

Seam Group Ash RD SE Total Sulphur CSN
(%) (in situ) (kcal/kg) (%)

Glen Munro (GM) 23.2 1.3 5,689 0.5 1.0
Woodlands Hill (WH) 21.4 1.3 6,362 0.6 2.2
Arrowfield (AF) 28.3 1.3 5,916 0.5 24
Bowfield (BF) 223 1.3 6,101 0.4 2.0
Warkworth (WK) 23.8 1.3 5,977 0.4 2.2
Mount Arthur (MA) 20.3 1.3 6,160 0.4 2.1
Piercefield (PF) 14.8 1.3 6,842 0.4 4.6
Vaux (VA) 15.6 14 6,814 0.5 5.0
Broonie (BR) 21.6 14 6,016 0.6 3.7
Bayswater (BY) 234 15 5,887 0.4 1.6
Lemington (LM) 32.8 1.6 5,196 1.2 2.0
Pikes Gully (PG) 254 15 5,841 0.7 3.7
Arties (AR) 25.9 15 5,601 0.7 2.3
Liddell (LL) 241 15 5,989 0.7 3.2
Barrett (BA) 36.6 1.8 5,517 0.5 2.1

Blast hole data based on the results of down-hole geophysics is used to define the floor and roof of seams
during mining.
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Rio Tinto’s standard annual reconciliation procedures have been carried out. This involves highlighting
differences between the long and short term resource models, the tonnages and quality of coal mined and
processed, and the tonnage and quality of marketable coal produced. Previous reconciliation has highlighted
the need to calibrate weightometers regularly. AMC is not aware if this is occurring. AMC also notes that no
sampling of the feed into the wash plant is currently being undertaken, which has limited the scope of
reconciliation analyses between the coal mined over short periods of time and the resource models.

AMC’s discussions with site geologists have referred to possible over-estimation of the coal ash content
when a seam includes stone partings. Past reconciliations generally show a plus/minus 5% difference in
tonnes between the mine and coal reserve model and that coal product was within 3% of tonnage estimates.
On this basis, the reconciliation process provides reasonable support for the robustness of the coal resource
models.

2.4 Coal Reserves

Published total HVO Coal Reserves as at 31 December 2016 (HVO Coal Reserves), classified and reported
in accordance with the guidelines of the JORC Code, are shown in Table 2.3. The HVO Coal Reserves have
been prepared by depleting the December 2015 Coal Reserves estimate by the coal recovered during the
intervening 12-month period (approximately 18 Mt).

Table 2.3 HVO Coal Reserves as at December 2016
Recoverable Coal Reserves (Mt) Marketable Coal Reserves (Mt)
Proved Probable Total Average Proved Probable Total
Yield
(%)
665 206 871 71 471 144 616

Note: These estimates of Coal Reserves were reported in Rio Tinto’'s 2016 Annual Report dated
1 March 2017 and released on 2 March 2017. The Competent Persons responsible for that previous
reporting were A Prentice (MAusIMM) and M Hillard (MAusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised that it is not
aware of any new information or data that materially affects these Coal Reserves estimates, and has
confirmed that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates
continue to apply and have not materially changed. The form and context in which the Competent
Persons’ findings are presented have not been materially modified.

Coals have been analysed on an “air dried” moisture basis in accordance with Australian Standards. For
coal, the yield factors shown reflect the impact of further processing, where necessary, to provide marketable
coal. Marketable Coal Reserves tonnages are reported on a product moisture basis.

At the average rate of coal processing over the last three years, the HVO Coal Reserves represents
approximately 48 years of remaining scheduled mine life.

The processes used by C&A to estimate HVO Coal Reserves are summarized as follows.

HVO Coal Reserves were estimated using an industry standard approach, Rio Tinto standard procedures
and guidelines, and prices and exchange rates determined by Rio Tinto. Recovered coal tonnes and quality
were estimated using coal loss and waste rock dilution factors on seam roofs and floors, selected according
to the assigned mining method. A database of historical costs, adjusted using results from mine planning,
were used to estimate future operating costs. Along with expected product prices, geotechnical parameters,
and other costs applicable to extracting the coal, the recoverable coal model and costs were used as input to
a process of pit optimization to determine the economic pit limits. Geotechnical design parameters, haul road
access, and waste dumping strategies were then allowed for in the mine design process. A schedule
optimization process was then used to identify blocks of coal that contribute to the required product coal
quality and project economics, and that fell within the statutory approval limits for the mine.

Economic coal blocks outside the approved mining limits, or that were derived from Inferred Coal Resources
or any other coal that did not meet the JORC Code confidence levels for converting to Coal Reserves are
included in the LOM plan. The schedule identified from this process forms the basis for the HVO LOM plan.

AMC has reviewed the modifying factors and the process of estimation used by C&A to convert HVO Coal
Resources to HVO Coal Reserves, and considers them to be appropriate for the HVO operation. AMC also
considers the process used to generate the LOM plan to be reasonable, but that equipment productivities
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used in the plan to estimate production rates represent a stretch target. Consequently, there is a risk that
additional unplanned expenditure may be required to achieve the production rates included in the LOM plan.

2.5 Mining operations

Mining at HVO is by conventional large-scale open cut methods using a C&A owned and operated mining
equipment fleet. Mining is carried out in multiple pits and is spread over a large area. This, in some cases,
restricts the ability to share facilities and mobile equipment between the different operations.

The standard mining sequence is for vegetation and topsoil to be removed for use in later rehabilitation.
Overburden is then drilled and blasted before removal by a combination of draglines, shovels, excavators
and haul trucks to either an in-pit or ex-pit waste dump, depending on in-pit dumping space. Coal is broken
by drill and blast or ripping by dozer, before front-end-loaders and excavators load it into haul trucks for
haulage to the coal preparation plants. Up to 15 coal seams are mined from several pits and blended to
achieve coal quality requirements. Coal mining thicknesses vary from 0.3 m to around 6 m.

The average annual production from HVO over the last three years from 2014 to 2016 was 17.7 Mt of ROM
coal processed, for 13.8 Mt of product coal.

A schematic showing the activities described above for mining at HVO is included in Figure 2.3.

—
®

@

@

9 Owverburden drilling and blasting

€) Overburden removal using shovel
and trucks

© Coal removal using FELs and
Coal will be either drilled and bl
or ripped with dozers, depending

on the thickness

25.1 Mine designh and LOM planning process

The C&A LOM planning process involves using data from both HYO and MTW to provide a detailed plan for
the first five years (the 5-year plan). From year six onward, LOM plans are developed using long-term
planning assumptions based on a combination of historical data and future targets for the operating pits. This
strategy allows a smooth delivery of product coal and opens additional blending opportunities. Typically, the
assumptions used in the 5-year plan varies slightly from the assumptions used in the LOM plan, as additional
and better known modifying factors are applied in the 5-year plan. Block by block scheduling is undertaken
for each item of equipment in XPAC software, with haulage and dumping analysis conducted using Deswik
software.

Strategic options are assessed using MineMax software to determine value-adding areas in the operating
footprint, and to determine the base seam for each pit. Expansion cases are assessed, including potential
underground options. However, while these cases add value, they are very sensitive to the capital
expenditure required to increase processing capacities and have been excluded from C&A’s LOM plans.
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25.2 C&A’s LOM plan

AMC has been provided with a copy of C&A’s most recent LOM plan prepared in Quarter-Three 2016 (the
16Q3 LOM Plan). For the HVO operation, the plan envisages product coal increasing to 15.2 Mt in 2017,
15.5 Mt in 2018, and to approximately 16 Mt from 2019 onwards. ROM coal processed increases to 20.0 Mt
in 2017, 20.4 Mt in 2018, and to between approximately 20 Mt and 22 Mt from 2019 onwards. Product coal is
planned to remain at these levels until 2060, at which time product coal output becomes more variable as the
Coal Reserves are depleted. To achieve the planned product coal increases, prime overburden (not
including dragline rehandle) removal is planned to increase from 113 Mbcm prime in 2016 to between
123 Mbcm and 162 Mbcm from 2017 onwards.

C&A’s forecast, from the HVO 16Q3 LOM Plan, for product coal tonnes by product coal type to 2080, is
shown in Figure 2.4. C&A notes that the spike in high ash thermal coal in 2021 is a product of forecast
supply sourced from a concentrated number of Bayswater seams in Cheshunt and Carrington West pits with
high average ash ranges, and will be addressed in the next LOM plan to smooth out coal presentation to the
CHPP.

AMC has smoothed the product output in the Production Cases by averaging the production forecast for
2021, with the production forecasts for 2020 and 2022.

Figure 2.4 HVO forecast product tonnes (16Q3 LOM Plan)
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AMC considers there are four principal risks to the delivery of the HVO 16Q3 LOM Plan. These are
discussed below:

Risk 1

The equipment productivity rates, and the resulting estimated annual production rate is
higher than has been achieved at HVO over the last three years. The productivity rates
are considered by AMC to represent a stretch target, rather than a realistically achievable
forecast. This stretch target forecasting in the 16Q3 LOM Plan has been applied across
the entire mining fleet, and Figure 2.5 shows a comparison of:

. The 16Q3 LOM Plan dig rate for the excavator fleet.
. The average actual dig rates for the HVO excavator fleet (Ex5500s and Ex5600s).
. Average dig rates for the same equipment type from AMC benchmark database.
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Figure 2.5 Planned HVO excavator loading rates compared to historical and AMC benchmark
rates
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Risk 2

The approved waste dump space is limited, and most waste dumps will need to be raised
in height above their current approved level to accommodate the waste volumes
produced in the 16Q3 LOM Plan. Although the waste dump approval process is managed
on an ongoing basis, AMC considers this to be a risk to the delivery of the mine plan, and
could result in higher haulage costs for waste to be diverted to less favourable locations if
approvals are not granted, or not granted in time.

Risk 3

The HVO operation relies on producing coal from multiple pits at any one time.
Transitioning between pits creates scheduling complexities and equipment interactions
that will need to be managed to maintain the forecast schedule rates. Figure 2.6 shows
the total overburden mined and the number of pit operating areas per year for the 16Q3
LOM Plan.
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HVO 16Q3 LOM Plan Waste Mining
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Notes: 1. Auckland Pit is included in 16Q3 LOM plan, but not included in the 2016 Coal Reserve estimate.
2. Southern and Auckland South do not currently have full mining approvals.

Risk 4

The 16Q3 LOM Plan includes; mining the Coal Reserves, plus coal not currently
classified as such because of uncertainty associated with geological and/or mining
modifying factors, which includes the granting of approvals. Ongoing approvals are
required for the delivery of most the 16Q3 LOM Plan. Coal Reserves are considered to
have a reasonable expectation of receiving approvals. Whereas, a lesser expectation
applies to material that is not currently approved and is not currently classified as a Coal
Reserve.

2.6 Quality
26.1 Raw coal quality

The raw coal ash for individual seams varies from approximately 15 to 33%, while the averages for all seams
are above 20%. Therefore, opportunities to produce a bypass component that will meet product
specifications without blending with processed coal is limited. The average total sulphur (TS) is low
compared to similar coals.

2.6.2 Product coal quality

Coal products from HVO include thermal coal and SSCC, which are processed in a selective mining,
washing, and stockpiling operation.

The thermal product is presently produced and sold in three grades based on ash content — Low ash, Mid
ash and High ash. The product calorific value is directly linked to the ash content.

The SSCC conforms to the established Newcastle SSCC. Crucible Swelling Number (CSN) is the initial
indicator used to delineate SSCC.

There are some coal quality differences between product coal derived from different seams, but within
individual seams there is broad consistency. To demonstrate the deposit patterns, a comparison between
two datasets is shown in Figure 2.7. The two datasets are derived from; all drillhole samples for the entire
deposit, and samples from the area selected for mining in the next 10 years.
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The product coal ash content is generally consistent within seams, even though there is variability between
seams. Similarly, for coking properties, there is variability between seams, but within seams there is
consistency. The seams producing product coal with higher CSN values contribute to the SSCC component
of the product mix. The data suggests a similar pattern will continue for future production.

Figure 2.7 shows ash content and CSN values of the material floated at a density of 1.6 /m® (F1.60) within
samples on a seam by seam basis.

Figure 2.7 HVO seam F1.60 ash and CSN for total dataset and 10-year plan
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Other basic quality parameters such as volatile content, nitrogen, sulphur, ash fusion temperature, and
Hardgrove grindability index (HGI) show consistency across the entire dataset with very little variation
between or within seams.

When compared to recent coal shipment qualities, AMC considers that future production should continue to
meet the current quality specifications, provided a reasonable level of quality control and stockpile
management is maintained. A comparison of clean coal F1.60 data from the drillhole database for TS and
nitrogen (N), to the average of recent shipments (2014-15) is shown in Figure 2.8.

Figure 2.8 HVO TS and N F1.60 v shipping results

2000 1 — 100 —
Average all shipping results Average all shipping

1800 2014-2015 0.49 % 90 -

1600 ~7000 samples 80

1400 Simple Average 0.50;1 70 225 caios
& 1200 : 3 60 i -
C C
()] (0]
- 1000 - > 50
3 8
— 800 — 40
L L

600 - 30

400 + 20

200 + 10

0 0
) 13 ) © A > 9 N % &) v N 9 o
N N N ° N N I\ o N N & v Nig "3
NN N N R R °© N ¥ a v Vv o
i 0,
Total Sulphur % ad Total Nitrogen % daf
amcconsultants.com 16

123



Coal & Allied Independent Technical Specialist's Report

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited 217016

There is comparability between past production (shipping) and the predicted drillhole database. It is therefore
reasonable to assume coal quality from future production will have similar properties to recent production,
provided mining and processing procedures and strategies remain similar.

2.6.3 Yield

HVO yield for 2014-16 averaged approximately 75%. Yields are forecast to be maintained out to 2019 in the
16Q3 LOM Plan, with a small decline in future years.

Figure 2.9 HVO, MTW, and combined actual and modelled yield
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Yield estimates for the first five years of the 16Q3 LOM Plan are based on detailed yield models. From year
six onwards, adjustments have been made to the forecast yields from the coal quality model. The adjustment
has been guided by historical reconciliations between forecast and actual yields and improvements expected
from synergies and new technology. Actual yields have historically exceeded forecast yields by between 1%
and 5%, and averaged 2.2% over the last three years, 1.25% over the last two years, and was 1.0% for
2016. The adjustments have also taken account of the synergies available to C&A of up to 2.0% through
blending between the HVYO and MTW operations to take advantage of better than expected quality from
either mine, on both a planned and an opportunistic basis. Yield adjustments are assumed to lead to an
increase in high ash thermal coal product.

264 Summary

AMC considers that various product coal types, and the associated coal quality parameters included in the
16Q3 LOM Plan are consistent with past production results and the coal quality data derived from drillholes.

2.7 Coal preparation
2.7.1 CHPP arrangement

The ROM coal processing capacities for HYO North and HVO South are shown in Table 2.4. Coal
processing approval permits are assigned to the various areas, not to the individual processing plants. The
permitted capacities total 66 Mtpa comprising; HYO North and South - 22 Mtpa and 16 Mtpa respectively,
and Mount Thorley and Warkworth = 10 Mtpa and 18 Mtpa respectively. The Lemington CHPP, in HVO
South, has been de-commissioned. However, the HVO South permit allows transport of ROM coal from HVO
South to the CHPPs in HVO North, up to the permitted maximum of 16 Mtpa.
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Table 2.4 CHPP ROM coal processing capacities
Entity ROM feed capacity
(Mtpa)
HVO North
HVCPP (Hunter Valley) 16.8
HCPP (Howick) 3.2
NCHPP (Newdell) — used for coal handling only -
Lemington CHPP - decommissioned -
Total HVO North 20
Mount Thorley Warkworth (MTW)
Mt Thorley — South CHPP 8.4
Warkworth — North CHPP 11.2
Total MTW 19.6
Total C&A 39.6

217016

The flow of ROM coal and product streams in HYO-MTW complex is shown schematically in Figure 2.10.
The arrangements are typical for coal mines in the region, with ROM coal delivered to the CHPPs by truck,
coarse rejects removed by truck, fine tailings pumped to tailings storage facilities, and product delivered by
conveyors and truck to rail loading points.
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Figure 2.10 General flow diagram for ROM and product coal streams
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The general arrangement of the HVCPP is shown in Figure 2.11. The plant was commissioned in 1982, and
is typical for plants of that era. ROM coal is reduced in size to minus 50 mm. Material finer than 0.125 mm is
discarded to tailings. A size split at 2 mm is made, with the -50 mm to +2 mm fraction treated in dense
medium cyclones (DMC), and the -2mm to +0.125 mm fraction treated using spirals. Product coal is
dewatered to specification using cyclones and centrifuges.

The nominal feed rate of the plant is 2,400 tph (set by six modules of DMC and spirals at 400 tph each). The
guoted capacity of the plant assumes annual run-time of 7,000 hours (full plant equivalent). The DMC circuit
operates in a high-density range (1.60 t/m® to 1.65 t/m3) and can produce thermal and semi-soft coking coal
products.
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Figure 2.11 HVCPP block flow diagram
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The general arrangement of HCPP is similar to HVCPP, and is shown in Figure 2.12. ROM coal can be
bypassed directly to the product stockpile when required. The plant was commissioned in 1982. The quoted
capacity of the plant of 3.2 Mtpa is based on nominal feed rate of 450 tph (set by two DMC and spirals
modules) and an annual run-time of 7,000 hours (full plant equivalent). The DMC circuit operates in the same
high-density range as the HVYCPP and can produce the same coal product types.

Figure 2.12 HCPP block flow diagram
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2.7.2 Historical performance

The combined historical performance of the HVO plants is shown in Table 2.5. The plants have operated for
many years treating similar ROM feed, and have reliably demonstrated the ability to use their operational
flexibility to produce products to required specification. Yields exceeding 75% have been achieved while
producing 13.5% to 27.9% ash SSCC which is a premium-priced product. The plants have consistently
exceeded the yields predicted from resource modelling and the LOM plan.

In general, the plants have not met planned throughput. While feed rates and plant run-times have reached
nominal capacity levels from time to time over the last three years, extended operation at these rates has not
been achieved. Approximately 7,000 run-time hours would be required to achieve the 2017 planned
throughput of 20.0 Mtpa, which represents an overall utilization for the combined plant capacity of 79%. In
AMC'’s opinion, 79% is reasonable and achievable from plants in reasonable mechanical condition, and with
reasonably effective management control of operational utilization of available plant run-time.
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Item Basis Unit 2013 2014 2015 2016

ROM coal processed Actual Mtpa 18.2 18.0 171 18.1

Plan Mtpa 18.2 19.4 19.8 19.2

Product coal Actual Mtpa 13.6 13.9 13.0 13.6

Plan Mtpa 13.0 14.0 14.6 14.5

Product coal yield Actual % 75.0 76.0 75.2 76.0

Plan % 71.0 72.0 73.7 75.0

Semi-soft coking coal (SSCC) as | Actual % 19.9 13.5 22.3 27.9

% of product coal Plan % 23.1 15.7 20.8 20.7

The CHPPs were commissioned in 1982 and have operated continuously from that time. Basic structures
and equipment are old, and show evidence of degradation due to corrosion and wear. Reduced expenditure
on sustaining maintenance in recent years has left the plants in need of significant work to maintain the
ability to operate with industry-average reliability. During AMC’s site visit, a reasonable level of basic
housekeeping was observed.

Plant-wide maintenance is managed using the SAP maintenance system. Basic systems and metrics are in
place. 70% planned work is reported versus a goal of 76%, and 85% schedule compliance is achieved.

Plant staff are focused on a breakthrough project to deliver 15.2 Mtpa of product coal from the HVO site in
2017. Senior technical and operational staff have been assigned to the project, and pathways to achieving
the 2017 goal have been identified. Detailed metrics and tracking systems are in place, and operators can
discuss progress versus goals knowledgeably. Year-to-date, HVCPP is averaging 91.2% mechanical
availability (MA) versus the goal of 92.0%, and 83.3% effective utilization (EU) versus the goal of 88.9%. On
a shift-by-shift basis, targets for feed rate and run-time are often met or exceeded, and operators are
committed to completing improvement activities and achieving the 2017 goal.

2.8 Infrastructure and services
28.1 Overland conveyors, stockpiles, train loadouts

Product coal from HVCPP is conveyed approximately 8 km to the HVLP using a deep-trough cable belt. An
on-stream ash analyser has recently been installed on the product belt. The capacity of the belt is 2,100 tph.
Working storage capacity of 250,000 t (297,000t nominal capacity) is available in two stockpiles. Two
2,000 tph reclaimers permit loading at a nominal 4,000 tph rate; either from one load point, or from two
simultaneously “loading both ways” on the loop. Trains with a capacity of 9,100 t comprising 96 cars are
typically loaded in 140 minutes.

The NLP located nearby (see Figure 2.1) is also used to load product trains. Product coal is delivered to NLP
from HCPP by 38 t capacity, B-Double trucks (prime mover coupled to two trailers) using a private, gravel
road. Wet weather causes significant loss of plant run-time at HCPP due to unsafe/unworkable conditions on
this road. Approximately 600,000 t storage capacity is available at NLP. Significant loading flexibility was
achieved in 2012 with the construction of a crossover belt to permit transfer of product coal from HVCPP
conveyor surge bin to the NLP stockpile. Similar train-loading rates to HVLP are achieved.

2.8.2 Tailings storage

Multiple options exist for disposal and storage of CHPP tailings. Currently, the primary tailings storage facility
(TSF) for HVCPP is North Void, while Cumnock Dam is the primary TSF for HCPP. A detailed assessment of
TSF options has recently been completed. The study estimates that permitted and configured TSF locations
will reach capacity by April 2019, at which time new facilities will be required. Several pit void options exist
after this time. Operators report that approximately $16M will be required to prepare a new pit void TSF.

2.8.3 Power supply

Power for HVO is supplied at 66 kV from the NSW power grid via dedicated sub-stations and switchyards.
Systems are well established and reliable.
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2.8.4 Water supply

Water can be supplied to the HVO site from three sources; surplus mine water collected in mining pits,
surface catchment, and permitted pumping from the Hunter River. In general, HVO operates as a zero-
discharge facility, although water can be discharged to the Hunter River system under high-rainfall conditions
when sufficient diluting flow is running in the river. Sufficient water is available under most conditions,
primarily due to the large available catchment area, and the availability of multiple locations to dam and hold
water during periods of high rainfall.

Systems have recently been installed to pump water to MTW where the water supply is less abundant.

HVO operates standard mine-site water systems; with potable, clean, and plant water systems segregated.
Potable water is supplied to the site by truck. Fresh irrigation water for rehabilitated lands is supplied using
an agricultural licence issued by NSW Office of Water.

2.8.5 Logistics

Supplies are brought to the HVO site by road. All logistic services are well developed and reliable. HVO is
less than 100 km from Newcastle (a major coastal port and reliable source of international supply) using the
New England Highway, and is approximately 25 km from the significant regional centres of Singleton and
Muswellbrook. In addition, major vendors of mine-related equipment maintain workshops and service centres
in the Mount Thorley Warkworth Industrial Estate located at the MTW mine entrance on the Golden Highway.
All interconnections feature good quality sealed roads.

Product coal is sold for export, and is delivered by rail to Newcastle.

2.9 Operating costs

C&A provided operating and capital cost estimates for its HVO operations aligned to the HVO 16Q3 LOM
Plan (C&A cost model). AMC reviewed the operating cost estimates in the 16Q3 LOM Plan and the cost
model, and has compared operating cost estimates with AMC’s experience with other sites and observations
from its site visit. Detailed operating estimates are made on site for 2017-2021 for the 5-year plan, which
forms the first five years of the 16Q3 LOM Plan, and long term planning estimates are used for the remainder
of the plan. C&A has estimated operating costs for mining, coal processing, site administration, and
corporate overheads. In general, AMC considers that operating costs are appropriate for an operation of this
size and complexity.

However, AMC notes that C&A has had a programme of cost reductions over the last three years, which
have largely been very successful in removing costs from most areas of the operation. AMC’s experience
with similar cost reduction programmes is that not all cost reductions are sustainable, and may lead to
production reduction or inefficiency that is not always obvious at the time. Thus, some costs may need to be
reintroduced to maintain operational efficiency and production levels.

No change to operating cost estimates provided by C&A was made to the Base and High Production Cases,
with the following change made to the Low Production Cases:

. $0.25/ROM coal tonne is added to the variable site administration cost for the Low Production Cases.

2.10 Capital costs

AMC reviewed the capital expenditure estimates provided by C&A for its operations in the 16Q3 LOM Plan
and C&A cost models, and has compared capital estimates with AMC benchmarks and experience with other
sites. Detailed capital expenditure estimates are made on site for 2017-2021 for the 5-year plan, which forms
the first five years of the 16Q3 LOM Plan, and long term planning estimates are used for the remainder of the
plan. C&A has allowed capital for environmental infrastructure, health and safety initiatives, mobile
equipment additions and replacements, shovel and dragline rebuilds and shutdowns, mining sustaining
capital, CHPP sustaining capital, and land purchases and offsets.

AMC notes from discussions with C&A staff that capital has been constrained over the last few years and
that the 15Q3 LOM Plan (not the most recent LOM plan, but the most detailed LOM documentation available
at the time of the review) notes that major capital items were pushed out beyond the initial five-year period.
Although in general, AMC considers that capital costs are appropriate for an operation of this size and
complexity, AMC considers that some capital allocations may need to be brought forward.
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Fixed infrastructure sustaining capital

AMC considers that sustaining capital for fixed infrastructure should be in the range of 0.5% to 1.0% of the
installed cost of the infrastructure. For ageing infrastructure, such as HVO, AMC expects that that the
sustaining capital spend would be at the upper end of the range. Sustaining capital for fixed infrastructure
was at the upper end of AMC’s expected range.

After AMC’s site visit to HVO to inspect infrastructure and discuss maintenance issues with site staff, AMC
considered that the capital included by C&A in the 16Q3 LOM Plan is adequate.

Mobile equipment replacement

AMC considers sustaining capital for mobile equipment replacement should be 5% to 8% of the initial capital
cost of the mobile equipment fleet. For an older mobile equipment fleet, such as HVO, AMC expects that the
sustaining capital expenditure would be at the upper end of the range. AMC reviewed the capital in the first
five years of the 16Q3 LOM Plan, and sustaining capital for mobile equipment replacement was within AMC’s
expected range, but weighted heavily towards the final year of the 5-year plan.

AMC considers digger productivity used to forecast annual production in 16Q3 LOM Plan is optimistic and
will tend to overestimate the amount each digger can contribute to production, and therefore underestimate
the capital expenditure required to achieve the 16Q3 LOM Plan production targets.

For all cases, AMC considers that $10M per annum of replacement capital should be brought forward from
2022 to maintain fleet capability. For AMC’s HVO Base Production Case and HVO High Production Case,
which assume that production levels will ramp up to the levels of the 16Q3 LOM Plan, AMC considers that
$15M over two years should be included to increase mobile equipment output. For AMC’s HVO Low
Production Case, which assumes lower production levels, AMC considers that $10M over two years should
be included to achieve the scheduled mobile equipment output.

Land

C&A has allowed significant capital for land purchases, levees, and associated infrastructure for the
commencement of Southern pit, Auckland South pit (both within the Coal Reserve), and Auckland pit. For the
HVO Base Production Case, AMC has excluded capital for Auckland pit. For the HVO Low Production Case,
AMC has excluded capital for Southern, Auckland South, and Auckland pits.

2.11 Environmental and mine closure costs
2.11.1  Annual health, safety, environmental and community costs

Annual HSEC costs are rolled up in the general and administrative cost lines of the economic models
provided to AMC. C&A advised that environmental expenditure at each site varied from year to year,
depending on expenditure on special projects or unforeseen actions and activities. C&A advised that
recurrent environmental expenditure (excluding progressive rehabilitation) for HYO and MTW combined was
approximately $3M to $5M per annum.

2.11.2 Progressive rehabilitation costs

The 2015 Hunter Valley Operations Annual Environmental Monitoring Report indicates that 129.6 ha of land
rehabilitation was completed in 2015. LOM plans indicate planned land disturbances of approximately 100
ha per annum, varying from year to year. AMC anticipates that total land disturbance will generally reach a
‘steady state’ as the mine progresses, with rehabilitation balancing out new land disturbances.

Actual rehabilitation costs were not provided to AMC. Published costs (from various Australian state
governments) for rehabilitation of mined land vary from approximately $30,000/ha to $136,000/ha. The large
range accounts for the condition of the land at the start of rehabilitation and the requirement for special
treatments, such as engineered multi-layered capping for potential acid generating materials. For the
HVO-MTW complex, this equates to a rehabilitation cost range of $3.9M to $17.6M for 2015. Annual
progressive rehabilitation costs are shown in the C&A cost model as ranging from $1M to $17M, and
averaging approximately $13M. AMC considers the progressive rehabilitation cost allowances in the C&A
cost model to be reasonable.
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2.11.3 Environmental bonds

Copies of the rehabilitation cost calculation tool spreadsheets for Rio Tinto Coal were provided to AMC. The
estimates for Hunter Valley Operations were:

. HVO North 2016 rehabilitation cost calculation = $93M.

. HVO South 2016 rehabilitation cost calculation = $49M.

. HVO Total 2016 rehabilitation cost calculation = $142M.

Total bank guarantees for HYO summed to $143M.
The 2015 Hunter Valley Operations Annual Environmental Monitoring Report indicates that the total area of
‘active disturbance’ in 2015 was 3,679.1 ha with an additional 49.3 ha of land ‘being prepared for

rehabilitation’ and 2,733.6 ha of land under ‘active rehabilitation’.

2.11.4 Mine closure costs

Rio Tinto Coal prepared a mine closure plan for the Hunter Valley Operations, dated 22 May 2015. The
closure plan identifies that the total projected cost of closure as at 2014 was $168M.

The closure cost estimates include:

. Infrastructure decommissioning and demolition.

. Environmental rehabilitation.

. Human resources and employee costs.

. Post closure monitoring.

. Closure support facilities.

. Closure management (contractor) services.

. Owner’s costs such as property rates and land costs.

. A contingency based on residual risks for key line items in the estimate.
. Offset requirements are already fully met or self-funded.

AMC reviewed the closure cost estimates in comparison to the rehabilitation cost estimates prepared for the
environmental bonds and noted the following:

. Some estimates were slightly higher in the rehabilitation cost estimates.

. Some items that were included in the closure cost estimates (owner’s costs and human resources and
employee costs) were not included in the rehabilitation cost estimates.

In preparing the HVO Production Cases, AMC selected the higher estimates, added in the owner’s costs and
human resources costs and corrected an error in the rehabilitation cost estimate.

AMC’s consolidated mine closure cost estimate for HVO is $224M.

2.12 HVO Production Cases

AMC has developed the three HVO Production Cases, to assist EYTAS in the preparation of its IER in
relation to the Proposed Transaction. Each HVO Production Case has been prepared by adjusting the 16Q3
LOM Plan. The 16Q3 LOM Plan extends for 64 years at the current production rates and is based on Coal
Reserves plus the expectation other coal, not yet in Coal Reserves, will be mined.

AMC notes that detailed knowledge of the HVO coal deposits exists, based on an extensive drilling database
containing more than 4,700 drillholes, and historical operations dating back to 1949. The HVO footprint
contains a reported Coal Reserve of 871 Mt, plus substantial quantities of coal not currently classified as
Coal Reserve.

AMC considers the key risk to the continuation of operations, as planned, is the need to mine some coal from
currently unapproved lease areas. To reflect this risk, AMC adjusted the total quantity of material mined over
the mine life, the annual production rates, and the capital and operating cost estimates.
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The three HVO Production Cases are as follows:

. HVO Base Production Case — mining of the Coal Reserve (871 Mt), at an annual production rate that
ramps up from current levels, to the 16Q3 LOM Plan levels over three years.
. HVO Low Production Case — mining of the Coal Reserve, minus the parts of Southern and Auckland

pits that are in Coal Reserve, (a total of 677 Mt), at an annual production rate required to maintain
annual product coal of 15.2 Mtpa, which is the target of HVO’s current improvement programme on
site.

. HVO High Production Case — mining all the coal within the 16Q3 LOM Plan (1,308 Mt), at the annual
production rate estimated within the plan.

Figure 2.13 through Figure 2.15 show the ROM coal tonnes mined, product coal tonnes railed, and waste
movements for the three HVO Production Cases.
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2.12.1 HVO Base Production Case

In preparing the HVO Base Production Case, AMC has adjusted the 16Q3 LOM Plan based on the following
assumptions:

. C&A'’s long production history and recent production and cost performance will underpin the ramp up
in production levels and that C&A will continue to receive approvals as expected.
. Annual production will ramp up over three years from the average of the last three years (18 Mtpa

ROM coal tonnes processed) to the rate forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan (up to 22 Mtpa). This
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assumes a higher productivity rate from the mining equipment that has historically been achieved at
HVO and significantly higher than the range expected from AMC’s benchmarking database.

The higher yield of 2015-2016 (average of +1.25%) compared to the coal quality model forecast will
continue. Consequently, AMC has added 1.25% to the yield in the 16Q3 LOM Plan from 2022 (beyond
the 5-year plan). Improvement initiatives from new technology and synergies with blending the HVO
and MTW products as a single product will provide a further 1% increase in yield from 2022. All
increases in yield over the modelled yield are assumed to result in increased high ash thermal coal
product.

Only the coal reserve (871 Mt) will be mined. Generally, coal not included in the HVO coal reserve was
excluded at the time the ore reserve was prepared because it was not considered to be economically
viable, or did not having reasonable prospects of receiving approvals.

$40M in capital will need to be brought forward over four years for mobile equipment replacements. A
further $15M will be required over two years for extra digging capacity to achieve the planned
production rate.

The capital required to develop the Auckland pit was excluded.
No change will be required to the planned operating costs.

A summary of the results for the HVO Base Production Case is shown in Table 2.6.

Table 2.6 HVO Base Production Case
Production Case Product Product ROM Total Production Rate LOM Capital Operating
Tonnes Tonnes Waste 15-year average Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mtpa ROM coal) ($/product t) ($/product t)
HVO Base Thermal & SSCC 642 871 5,553 21.2 7.0 46.2
2.12.2 HVO Low Production Case

AMC assumed for the HVO Low Production Case that:

The current HVYO improvement programme to increase product coal output to 15.2 Mtpa will be
successful, and annual production will continue at that level.

The higher yields achieved in 2016 (+1.0%) compared to the coal quality model forecast will continue.
Consequently, AMC added 1.0% to the yield in the 16Q3 LOM Plan from 2022 (beyond the 5-year
plan). The Improvement initiatives from new technology and synergies with blending the HVO and
MTW products as a single product will underpin this increase but will not increase yield further. All
increases in yield over the modelled yield are assumed to result in increased high ash thermal coal
product.

Coal Reserves in the Southern and Auckland pits will not be mined, on the basis that these deposits
are closer to local communities and there is a risk that C&A will not receive approvals for extending
their mine life. The remaining HVO Coal Reserves in AMC’s HVO Low Production Case total 677 Mt.

$40M in capital will need to be brought forward over four years for mobile equipment replacements. A
further $10M will be required over two years for extra digging capacity to achieve the planned
production rate. No capital will be required for the Auckland South, and Auckland pits.

Operating costs will increase by $0.25/ROM coal tonne, as AMC considers that C&A’s cost reductions
over the last three years will not be sustainable in some areas, resulting in minor cost increases.

A summary of the HVO Low Production Case is shown in Table 2.7.
Table 2.7 HVO Low Production Case
Production Case Product Product ROM Total Production Rate LOM Capital Operating
Tonnes Tonnes Waste Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mt/yr Product) ($/product t) ($/product t)
HVO Low Thermal & SSCC 494 677 4,401 20.3 8.8 49.1
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2.12.3

HVO High Production Case

AMC assumed for the HVO High Production Case that:

C&A’s long production history and recent production and cost performance will underpin an
improvement in operating performance over what has historically been achieved at HVO, to the level
forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan, and that C&A will continue to receive approvals beyond those
currently expected.

Annual production will be at the rate forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan (ramping up to 22 Mtpa ROM coal
tonnes processed), which assumes a higher productivity rate from the mining equipment that has
historically been achieved at HVO and significantly higher than the range expected from AMC’s
benchmarking database.

The higher yield of 2014-2016 (average of +2.2%) compared to the coal quality model forecast will
continue. Consequently, AMC has added 2.2% to the yield in the 16Q3 LOM Plan from 2022 (beyond
the 5-year plan). Improvement initiatives from new technology and synergies with blending the HVO
and MTW products as a single product will provide a further 2% increase in yield from 2022. All
increases in yield over the modelled yield are assumed to result in increased high ash thermal coal
product.

The total coal mined will match the 16Q3 LOM Plan (1,308 Mt), which included the coal reserve coal
plus a quantity of coal that is in HVO Coal Resources and was identified as economically viable, but
not currently classified as coal reserve. This assumes that C&A will continue to receive approvals for
mine extensions and that extensions to Coal Reserves will take place in the normal course of
business.

$40M in capital will be brought forward over four years for mobile equipment replacements. $10M will
be included over two years to fund additional mobile equipment purchases (an extra digger) to achieve
higher production rate.

No change will be required to the planned operating costs.

A summary of the HVO High Production Case is shown in Table 2.8.

Production Product Product ROM Total Production Rate LOM Capital Operating
Case Tonnes Tonnes Waste Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mtpa product) ($/product t) ($/product t)
HVO High Thermal & SSCC 980 1,308 8,141 21.4 7.0 47.0

2.13 Risks and opportunities

AMC considers that the principal risks to the HVO Production Cases are the ability to:

Get the multiple layers of approvals required to continue operations.
Continue to increase the capacity of waste dumps to accommodate increasing waste volumes.

Control operating costs, with continuing pressure caused by increasing standards in compliance and
for environmental and community management.

Control capital costs, with continuing pressure on sustaining capital for ageing infrastructure and for
environmental and community compliance.

AMC considers that the principal opportunities for the HVO Production Cases are:

Extension of mine life for open cut production, if approvals for continued mining can be achieved.

Extension of mine life from underground production, if capital and operating costs can be reduced or in
increased production, if plant throughput and approvals can be increased.

Synergies from blending between HVO, MTW, and possibly other operations.

Synergies from operating costs associated with a combined operation of HVO, MTW, and possibly
other operations.
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3 Mt Thorley Warkworth open cut mine
3.1 Location

C&A’s MTW mine is in the upper Hunter Valley, approximately 14 km south-west of Singleton and 75 km
north-west of Newcastle. The rail distance from MTW to the PWCS facilities is 82 km.

MTW comprises two mines owned by separate joint ventures: Mount Thorley Co-venture, owned 80% C&A
and 20% Pohang Iron and Steel Co. Ltd; and the Warkworth Joint Venture, owned 55.574% C&A, 28.898%
Mitsubishi Development Pty Ltd, 6.000% Mitsubishi Materials Corporation, and 9.528% Nippon Steel &
Sumitomo Metals Corporation. The separate Warkworth and Mt Thorley open cut operations commenced in
April and July 1981 respectively. The two joint ventures entered a formal agreement to integrate their
operations in January 2004, with operational integration occurring on 12 February 2004. C&A operates MTW
on behalf of the owners.

The MTW mine layout showing open cut and CHPP and rail loadout infrastructure locations with respect to
the lease boundaries, major watercourses, major roads, and the rail line are shown in Figure 3.1.

Figure 3.1 MTW mine layout
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MTW comprises eight separate mining tenements, shown in Figure 3.2.
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Figure 3.2 MTW mining tenements

MTW Tenements
Location: Warkworth
Council: Singleton

A
Ly v
Ll

3 %
LAND OWNED BY = LAND Wﬁ;ﬂ:ﬂcgﬁ ‘.S'L:\LL‘ED
"OTHER ENTITY Rl et
e ! : OR QROWN

ML 1751: SUHFACE:TOZUM
CEL753 Z‘QM
TO UNLIMITED DEPTH - 1§

:'EZ&L 1752 SUREACE TO 20M
: b‘: 20M 70 10M BELOW

ALD OR 30!14 ABOVE BAYSWATER.
WHLHEVER IS'DEEPER

7712: 100M BELOW AHD CR

40/ ABOVE BAYSWATER.

'wmbuwm IS DEEPER TO
&1 M BELOW BAYSWATER)

- 4 IEVERIS :}EEPEH
EL ;?12 mw ELOW AHD OR
300 ABOVE BAYSWATER,
L WHIGHEVER IS DEEPERI TO

10M BELOW. BAVSWA

— l'
SUBLEASE CL a;,xgsﬁ,
BULGA'COAL LEROM:
SURFACE.Fok
*AREA B SEJ‘BLEI\§E

- FOR MINING PURPOSEAT smrnc.\;gﬁh

- DEPTH RESTRICTION POTENTIALLY DXFENDED "Ta! N

DEFTHOEC L._‘:*SLJEUE”TTOM"DAPF‘ gﬁ’ A
- PLURPOSE POTENTRLLY EXTENDED TD""CW.=
MNNG SUBJECT TOMTD APFQI‘NB{,{\

ALLIED

Coal & Allied - Land & Tenements Depariment

amcconsultants.com

217016

A3

P_HVO MTW_Tenameant
Summary 161123.wor

g

LAND OWNED BY
OTHER ENTITY

CCL 753 :20 MTO
UNLIMITED DEPTH

o
SUELEAS:—_ CLEIQQY
JEULGA COAL EROM

'%’y_hmcg T0 -mM
-‘.'" UBLEASE

%

2 ¢

;"‘J;




Coal & Allied Independent Technical Specialist's Report

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited 217016

While Mt Thorley (in the south) and Warkworth (in the north) each have separate approvals, MTW is
managed as an integrated operation, with coal, coarse and fine reject, overburden, topsoil, mobile
equipment, materials, and personnel moved between the two areas. The Putty Road, the main link between
Singleton and Windsor/Richmond, separates the two mining areas.

MTW mining operations comprises the Thorley pit, the West pit and the North pit. There are two separate
CHPPs: one within the Mt Thorley leases (the South Plant) and one within the Warkworth leases (the North
Plant). All coal is railed from the Mt Thorley rail loop.

ROM coal mined from both leases is processed through the CHPPs to produce SSCC and low, medium and
high ash thermal coal for the export market. Product coal is railed through the Hunter Valley rail network to
the PWCS and NCIG coal loading terminals.

3.2 Geology and mineralization
3.2.1 Regional and local geology
MTW adjoins the southern boundary of the HVO leases and the mines share a common geological setting. A

discussion on regional and local geology is provided in Section 2.2.

The MTW deposit extends 8 km north-west, 8.5 km in width, and to a depth of 460 m. Only minor faulting
occurs with minor intrusions at depth. Geologists in the pit check the areas being mined and material being
sent to the ROM or waste as a means of grade control.

3.3 Coal Resources

On the 24 January 2017, Rio Tinto announced an increase of 208 Mt in the MTW Coal Resources (exclusive
of Coal Reserves), as at 31 December 2016 (MTW Coal Resources) as shown in Table 3.1 are classified
and reported in accordance with the guidelines of the JORC Code. Rio Tinto reports Coal Resources on a
100% basis, exclusive of Coal Reserves, and on an in situ moisture basis.

Table 3.1 MTW Coal Resources as at December 2016
Type Measured Indicated Inferred Total
(Mt) (Mt) (Mt) (Mt)
MTO (open cut) 39 226 57 322
Warkworth (open cut and underground) 141 307 517 966
Open-cut and underground (thermal and SSCC) 180 533 574 1,288

Note: These estimates of Coal Resources were reported in Rio Tinto’'s 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March 2017 and
released on 2 March 2017. The Competent Person responsible for that previous reporting was R Ruddock
(MAusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised that it is not aware of any new information or data that materially affects these
Coal Resource estimates, and has confirmed that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning
the estimates continue to apply and have not materially changed. The form and context in which the Competent
Person’s findings are presented have not been materially modified.

AMC notes that the MTW Coal Resources are based on recently updated geological models, a new model
for the Van sub-group coal seams, and reclassification using 2,670 drillholes. No additional drilling has been
carried out since the previous resource statement in 2015. All underground Coal Resources on the Mt
Thorley lease have now been classified as open cut resources.

Coal seams were modelled using Minescape software, finite element modelling of the seam location and
thickness, and coal quality estimation using an inverse distance squared method at a 1,000 m search
distance. This is standard practice within the industry.

There are 20 coal seams that are modelled for long-term planning at the Rio Tinto Brisbane office. Updating
of the long-term model is carried out by site personnel on a 25 m grid for short term modelling at MTW. A
new coal quality model is currently being produced with updated information. A minimum of 0.25 m thick
seam and a maximum of 50% ash is required for a seam to be included in the MTW Coal Resources.

Coal seam data is collected by both core and open holes with a stated 95% recovery of samples. Seam
locations and marker horizons are checked against down-hole geophysical logs. All coal assaying is
conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards. Standardized Rio Tinto logging and sampling
procedures are employed at both mines.
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The in situ relative density is calculated using the Preston and Sanders equation.

The MTW Coal Resources are classified based on Rio Tinto’s standardized process, utilizing points of
observation. The points of observation include structure and quality observed in the drillholes. AMC
considers the classification to be appropriate for reporting of Coal Resources and, consequently, Coal
Reserves.

Drilling is generally based on a 250 m grid for core holes and 125 m grid for open holes and includes holes
drilled from 2004. MTW has permits to mine to 10 m below the Bayswater seam on the Mt Thorley leases
and to the Warkworth seam on the Warkworth leases.

Coal quality estimates used for mine production planning, are based on the average quality for coal mined
from that seam. Individual coal seams are stacked on the ROM pad prior to batch processing through the
CHPP.

A summary of the average seam qualities on an air-dried basis is listed in Table 3.2.

Seam Group Ash RD SE Total Sulphur CSN
(from top to bottom) (%) (in situ) (Mj/kg) (%)

Whybrow (WY) 29.9 15 23.0 0.5 0.8
Redbank Creek (RC) 28.3 15 23.2 0.4 2.5
Wambo (WB) 17.8 14 26.7 0.5 24
Whynot (WN) 17.6 14 25.9 0.3 2.8
Blakefield (BL) 26.3 15 241 0.3 3.1
Glen Munro (GM) 20.2 14 26.7 0.3 2.9
Woodlands Hill (WH) 22.4 14 255 0.3 3.0
Arrowfield (AF) 23.8 14 26.0 0.3 3.0
Bowfield (BF) 22.2 14 26.7 0.3 3.9
Warkworth (WW) 27.0 15 24.8 0.3 3.0
Mount Arthur (MA) 26.3 15 24.4 0.2 3.6
Piecefield (PF) 15.6 14 28.9 0.3 7.4
Vaux (VA) 19.7 14 27.2 0.4 4.9
Broonie (BN) 21.3 14 27.0 0.4 4.2
Bayswater (BW) 24.4 15 26.0 0.5 1.5

Discussions with site geologists indicated that recent reconciliation with the wash plant production has shown
that the existing coal quality model tends to over-estimate the amount of non-coal material. This model is
being updated. Currently, coal quality selected during mining is based on the results of previous coal quality
drilling results and not the coal quality model.

Based on the discussions with C&A geologists and results and data collected over many years of mining,
AMC considers the process for estimating MTW Coal Resources as the basis for assessment of open cut
mining are appropriate.

3.4 Coal Reserves

Published total MTW Coal Reserves as at 31 December 2016 (MTW Coal Reserves), classified and reported
in accordance with the guidelines of the JORC Code are shown in Table 3.2. The MTW Coal Reserves have
been prepared by depleting the December 2015 Coal Reserves estimate by the coal recovered during the
intervening 12-month period (approximately 18 Mt).
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Table 3.3 MTW Coal Reserve as at December 2016
Recoverable Coal Reserves (Mt) Marketable Coal Reserves (Mt)
Proved Probable Total Average Proved Probable Total
Yield
(%)
190 137 327 65 128 89 218

Note: These estimates of Coal Reserves were reported in Rio Tinto’s 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March
2017 and released on 2 March 2017. The Competent Persons responsible for that previous reporting
were A Prentice (MAusIMM) and M Hillard (MAusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised that it is not aware of
any new information or data that materially affects these Coal Reserves estimates, and has confirmed
that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates continue to apply
and have not materially changed. The form and context in which the Competent Persons’ findings are
presented have not been materially modified.

Coals have been analysed on an “air dried” moisture basis in accordance with Australian Standards. For
coal, the yield factors shown reflect the impact of further processing, where necessary, to provide marketable
coal. Marketable Coal Reserves tonnages are reported on a product moisture basis.

At the average rate of coal processing over the last three years, the MTW Coal Reserves represents
approximately 18 years of remaining scheduled mine life.

The processes used by C&A to estimate the MTW Coal Reserves are the same as discussed in Section 2.4.

AMC has reviewed the Modifying Factors and the process of estimation used by C&A to convert Coal
Resources to Coal Reserves and considers them to be appropriate for the MTW operation. AMC notes that
the MTW 16Q3 LOM Plan pre-dates the MTW Coal Resources (31 December 2016) and, as a result, is not
based on the most recent MTW coal resource model. This is not considered unusual by AMC, with LOM
plans using the most up to date information available at the time, with updates to coal resource models then
being used in the next update to the LOM plan.

AMC also considers the process used to generate the MTW 16Q3 LOM plan to be reasonable, although
once mining operations are completed in Loders pit and South pit and mining activities are restricted to North
and West pits, AMC considers that it will take a more concentrated mine scheduling and mine operations
supervision effort to consistently maintain production at the current levels.

3.5 Mining operations

Mining at MTW is by conventional open cut mining methods, typical of other large coal mining operations in
the Hunter Valley, undertaken using a C&A owned and operated mining equipment fleet.

Vegetation and topsoil is removed for use in later rehabilitation, and then overburden is drilled and blasted
before removal by a combination of draglines, shovels, excavators and haul trucks to either an in-pit or ex-pit
waste dump, depending on in-pit dumping space. Coal is broken by drill and blast or ripping by dozer, before
front-end-loaders and excavators load it into specialized coal haulage trucks for haulage to the coal
preparation plants. Up to 25 coal seams are mined from several pits and blended to achieve coal quality
requirements. Mining thicknesses vary.

The average annual production from MTW over the last three years from 2014 to 2016 was 17.7 Mt of ROM
coal processed for 12 Mt of product coal.

At both Warkworth and Mount Thorley, multiple bench pre-stripping is used to expose shallow coal seams
down to the Glen Munro seam using truck and shovel fleets. Below the Glen Munro seam, rock is removed
by a combination of shovel and dragline operations. Figure 3.3 shows a schematic of the mining process at
MTW.

amcconsultants.com 33

140



Coal & Allied Independent Technical Specialist's Report

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited 217016

Figure 3.3 MTW Mining Schematic

3.5.1 Mine design and LOM plan

The 16Q3 LOM Plan for MTW envisages product coal production being maintained at 17.9 Mt in 2017 with a
small increase to a maximum of 18.3 Mtpa periodically over the mine life. To achieve this planned production
rate, annual prime overburden removal will need to be maintained at approximately 125 Mt. Overburden and
coal production are planned to remain at these expanded levels until 2041, at which time coal output will
start to reduce as MTW Coal Reserves are depleted. To sustain production rates beyond 2025, a portion of
the MTW Coal Resources currently lying outside the planned pit outlines will need to be converted to Coal
Reserves.

The MTW LOM planning process includes reconciliation with the on-site mine planning for the first five years
followed by LOM assumptions being used to progress the mine schedule to the end of the mine life. The
MTW mine plan has remained predominately the same since 2011, with no significant geology updates until
those applied for the MTW Coal Resources (31 December 2016), which has not yet been included in LOM
plans. A pit optimization was carried out to determine the breakeven pit limits and basal seams, which were
adopted for the 16Q3 LOM Plan. The 16Q3 LOM Plan was scheduled on a block by block basis for each
item of equipment, including a haulage and waste destination schedule in Deswik mining software.

3.5.2 C&A’s LOM plan
The 16Q3 LOM Plan forecast for product tonnes by product type to 2047 is shown in Figure 3.4.
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Figure 3.4 MTW forecast coal products (16Q3 LOM Plan)

14.0
=
~ 10.0
[
e
€ g0
2
« 6.0
[*]
3 40
T
° .
a
2.0
M~ 0O OO O «— N M T IO O~ 00 O «—~ N ST I OO OO O — N M IS W0 O M~ O
T T T AN AN N AN AN N AN AN ANANOO OO O®OOOOOO®OST I T T T T T TS
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O
AN AN N AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN N N AN AN N AN N AN AN NN NN AN

m Export Semi-Soft m Export Hi-Ash Thermal = Export Mid-Ash Thermal = Export Lo-Ash Thermal m Export ByPass

AMC considers there are five principal risks in the delivery of the MTW 16Q3 LOM Plan. These are
discussed below:

Risk 1

Approvals are required to shut a local road (Wallaby Scrub Road), which traverses close to the
west of the current North and West pit mining operations, or relocate it around the end of the
proposed mining area to enable mining to progress in North and West pits through this area
beyond approximately 2020. Failure or delay in achieving these approvals, will result in MTW
having to expend capital to develop a new pit on the other side of Wallaby Scrub Road, and
develop a means of relocating coal from this new pit to the CHPP, and overburden to the waste
dump across Wallaby Scrub Road (through tunnels or across road bridges).

Risk 2

With the completion of Loders and South pits, there will be a reduction in the number of working
areas from the four areas currently being worked to two areas beyond 2020. This will reduce
options available to overcome mine scheduling issues caused by production disruptions in
either area. These can be caused by major equipment breakdowns, ramp closures,
geotechnical issues, flooding, coal faulting or intrusions, and noise or dust limitations. This will
make it difficult to maintain current production levels. Figure 3.5 shows the increased
productivity demand on the North and West pits once the Loders and South pits are completed.
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MTW Operating Pit Areas

Risk 3
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The 16Q3 LOM Plan assumes overburden equipment productivity rates will be higher than has
been achieved at MTW over the last three years. However, overall waste production has been
achieved. Figure 3.6 shows a comparison of the MTW excavator fleet average actual dig rate
and the 16Q3 LOM Plan dig rate against AMC benchmark database. This stretch target
forecasting is consistent across all scheduled fleet in the 16Q3 LOM Plan. AMC considers this
forecast will be more difficult to achieve when the operation is reduced to two operating pits in
2021.
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Risk 4

Waste dump space at MTW is limited and detailed scheduling is required to ensure that
sufficient waste dump room is available to accommodate the waste volumes planned in the
16Q3 LOM Plan. Once alternative waste dumping locations have been exhausted and waste
dumping is restricted to the waste dumps following North and West pits, waste dump scheduling
will become more difficult.

Risk 5

There is a water shortage on the MTW leases due to lack of space for water storage. As a
result, there is a requirement to transfer water from HVO to MTW to meet water demand for the
MTW CHPP. While this has not been an issue to date, there is potential for regulatory
restrictions to be placed on the transfer of water that would restrict coal processing operations.

3.6 Quality
3.6.1 Raw coal quality

The coal measures across both MTW and HVO have similar quality characteristics. Whilst the seam
sequence mined at MTW varies to that at HVO, similar quality patterns occur at both operations.

The opportunity for thermal coal to bypass coal processing is restricted by the raw coal ash (~range 15% to
30%). CHPP processing is anticipated necessary for all seams. The TS is low for all seams.

3.6.2 Product coal qualities

Selective mining and washing is required to produce the current thermal and SSCC coal types.

Both ash and CSN vary moderately from seam to seam, however, each individual seam shows relative
consistency.

Examples of the variable pattern between and within seams for the content of the F1.60 samples on a seam
by seam basis are shown for ash and yield in Figure 3.7.

Figure 3.7 MTW seam F1.60 ash and yield for the entire dataset and 10-year plan
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AMC concludes that ash and yield vary between seams, but are generally consistent within seams across
the dataset. Other basic quality parameters, such as volatile content, nitrogen, TS, ash fusion temperature,
and HGI were also investigated and, broadly, showed consistency across the entire dataset. Examples for
TS (Figure 3.8) and HGI (Figure 3.9) are shown.
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It appears reasonable to conclude that future production from MTW will be generally consistent with recent
production. This assumes CHPP procedures and mining strategies remain similar.

3.6.3 Yield

MTW vyield has averaged approximately 67% from 2014-2016. There is a slight increase modelled for 2017
to 2019, and a return to 67% in the longer term.

Figure 3.9 MTW, HVO, and combined actual and modelled yield
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Total yield (MTW and HVO combined) has averaged approximately 72% between 2014 and 2016. The
modelled total yield marginally increases from 2017 to 2019 to over 72%, but declines slightly in the longer
term with the average 2017 to 2025 yield being 71%.

The modelled total yield through to 2040 averages 70%.

Yield estimates for the first five years of the 16Q3 LOM Plan are based on detailed yield models. From year
six onwards, adjustments have been made to the forecast yields from the coal quality model. The adjustment
has been guided by historical reconciliations between forecast and actual yields and improvements expected
from synergies and new technology. Actual yields have varied from forecast yields by between -3% and
+2%, and averaged 0.3% over the last three years, 0.9% over the last two years, and was 1.0% for 2016.
The adjustments have also taken account of the synergies available to C&A of up to 2.0% through blending
between the HVO and MTW operations to take advantage of better than expected quality from either mine,
on both a planned and an opportunistic basis. Yield adjustments are assumed to lead to an increase in high
ash thermal coal product in LOM plans.

AMC also notes that capital is included in the 5-year plan at MTW for installation of a mid-size circuit at the
Mt Thorley CHPP, which is expected to increase yield by up to 2.2%, which will provide an overall increase in
yield at MTW of up to 1%. This has not been factored into coal yields, but is expected to form part of the
improvement programme.

3.6.4 Summary

The product coal splits and coal quality reported from MTW is consistent with the coal quality data reported
from drillholes. AMC considers that predicted coal quality and product splits in the LOM plan are consistent
with actual production results and drillhole data.

3.7 Coal preparation

3.7.1 CHPP arrangement

The general layout of facilities is shown in Figure 3.1. ROM coal from the Warkworth pits is processed by the
North CHPP, while the South CHPP processes ROM coal from the Mount Thorley pits. The permitted ROM
coal capacities for Warkworth and Mount Thorley are 18 Mtpa and 10 Mtpa respectively.

Figure 3.10 shows the movement of materials at MTW. Product coal from both CHPPs is conveyed to the
Mount Thorley Rail Loading Point for dispatch to coal shipping terminals at PWCS and NCIG.
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Figure 3.10 MTW = general flow diagram for ROM and product coal streams

North and South

CHPP

The general arrangement of the North CHPP is shown in Figure 3.11. The plant was commissioned in 1981
using technology typical of that era. Coarser material [-50 mm +1.4 mm] is treated in a DMC circuit (two
modules of 800 tph) while the finer fraction [-1.4 mm +0.125 mm] is treated in a two-stage spiral circuit.
Centrifuges, cyclones and dewatering screens are used to reduce moisture content of product coal to
specification. A single product stream is generated.

Minus 0.125 mm fines and reclaimed fine tailings can be treated by froth flotation in a column flotation circuit
that was added in 1990 to produce a fine thermal coal product for domestic sale. This circuit is not currently
in operation, and the whole fine stream is discarded to tailings.

The nominal capacity of the plant is 11.2 Mtpa; calculated using a feed rate of 1,600 tph (set by the two-
module DMC, spirals, flotation capacity).
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Figure 3.11 North CHPP block flow diagram
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The general arrangement of the South CHPP is shown in Figure 3.12. The plant was commissioned in 1985.
The two-module circuit treats minus 125 mm ROM coal in three size fractions. [-125 mm +25.4 mm] feed is
treated using dense-medium baths; [-25.4 mm +0.50 mm] feed reports to a two-stage DMC circuit; and [-0.50
mm +0.063 mm)] fines are treated by froth flotation using conventional flotation cells. Minus 0.063 mm slimes
are discarded to tailings. Moisture content of product coal is controlled using centrifuging. The plant
generates two product streams using two operating densities (1.2/1.3 and 1.7/1.8), and can attain five
product ash specifications (9%, 11%, 13%, 15%, “High Ash”).

Operators intend to add a new circuit based on teeter-bed technology to isolate and treat an intermediate
size fraction. An increase in yield of 2.2% is expected by increasing the efficiency of separation in the [-
1.0 mm +0.1 mm] range.

Stated capacity of the South CHPP is 8.4 Mtpa; calculated using the nominal feed rate of 1,200 tph and
annual run-time of 7,000 hours (full plant equivalent).

Figure 3.12 South CHPP block flow diagram
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3.7.2 Historical performance

Historical performance of the MTW CHPPs is shown in Table 3.4. Throughput targets have been met in each
year; except for 2015 when actual throughput fell short of plan by 200,000 t. Planned yields and SSCC splits
have also been achieved.
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Table 3.4 MTW historical performance (100% basis)
Item Basis Unit 2013 2014 2015 2016
ROM coal processed Actual Mtpa 18.7 17.7 171 18.1
Plan Mtpa 18.0 16.8 17.3 17.4
Product coal Actual Mtpa 125 11.9 11.7 12.3
Plan Mtpa 11.8 11.2 11.7 11.8
Product coal yield Actual % 65.0 66.0 68.4 68.0
Plan % 64.0 67.0 67.6 67.0
Actual % 25.0 25.0 19.3 17.7
Semi-soft coking coal (SSCC) as . 0
% of product coal Plan % 25.6 24.8 17.8 18.6

The CHPPs have operated continuously from the 1980s and require regular maintenance to maintain
structural integrity. Buildings and grounds were observed to be neat and tidy with unwanted materials
removed and coal spillage picked up. Over recent years, an annual sustaining maintenance allocation has
been reserved within the operating cost budget. Annual amounts up to $3.0M were spent, predominantly by
in-house maintenance crews; resulting in effective corrosion control and well maintained plants. In 2017, it is
anticipated that $1.0M will be spent for this work, and operators are confident that the overall integrity of the
plants can be maintained with this level of spending.

In general, MTW production is constrained by ROM coal supply, not processing capacity. In 2017, 11.7 Mt of
product coal is planned from ROM feed of 17.9 Mtpa. This level of performance is similar to 2016 actuals.
Combined feed rates for the MTW plants in excess of 3,000 tph are possible. These rates, coupled with
modest annual run-times over 6,500 hours provide ample plant capacity to reliably meet this planned
production rate.

3.8 Infrastructure and services
3.8.1 Overland conveyors, stockpiles, train loadouts

Product coal from the North CHPP reports by conveyor to loading stockpiles with a combined capacity of
160,000 t. Trains are loaded from the Mount Thorley Coal Loader (MTCL) at the standard nominal rate of
4,000 tph. Product from the South CHPP reports by conveyor to four stockpiles with combined capacity of
340,000 t. MTCL is capable of loading product from both plants simultaneously using two loading bins with
sufficient capacity (9,000 t) to load a complete train.

MTCL is a common-user facility, however MTW is currently the sole user and operates and maintains it for
their use only. All systems at the MTCL have recently been modernized or upgraded and are in excellent
condition. The system operates automatically, and is controlled from the South CHPP control centre.

Reject coal from both plants is backhauled to disposal areas by mining trucks.

3.8.2 Tailings storage

Tailings from MTW currently report to the Centre Ramp Tailings Facility (CRTF). This major TSF facility was
designed by ATC Williams Pty Ltd (ATCW), a well-known Australian specialist in the field. ATCW also
inspects the dam (and others on the property) on a regular basis. The overall tailings management system is
peer reviewed by GHD Pty Ltd, a well-known international engineering company with specific expertise in the
field.

The CRTF has sufficient capacity to hold tailings until mid-2018 at current production rates. Approved plans
are in place for a further two 10 m raises of the containment wall. Construction work on the first raise will
begin later in 2017. Operators also intend to place tailings in a portion of the Loders pit void. A detailed
analysis of tailings requirements and options has recently been completed, and plans for future requirements
appear well in hand.
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3.8.3 Power supply

Power for MTW is supplied at 66 kV from the Ausgrid switchyard via two dedicated feeders and sub-stations,
and a ring main arrangement. Systems are well established and reliable. Operators will spend approximately
$1M in 2017 to upgrade switching equipment in the Mount Thorley sub-station.

3.8.4 Water supply

Procurement of sufficient water to maintain operations at MTW during the dry season has been problematic
in the past. In contrast to HVO where sufficient land area exists to catch and harvest water for year-round
operation, MTW has had trouble reliably procuring the required volume of approximately 30 ML/d. Significant
attention has been given to the issue and operators are now confident that the risk of production curtailment,
due to insufficient water, has largely been mitigated. The South out-of-pit dam (SOOP), with a capacity of
2.5 GL has been constructed, and a dual pumping system to transfer water from HVO has been installed. A
current project in the southern rehabilitated areas of the site will permit harvesting of clean water for the site,
or discharge excess clean water to the Hunter River system. Metrics for water storage and usage rates have
been established, and the overall water management system appears sound.

MTW operates standard mine-site water systems; with potable, clean, and plant water systems segregated.
Potable water is supplied to the site by truck.

3.8.5 Logistics

Supplies are brought to site by road. All logistic services are well developed and reliable. MTW is located
75 km north-west of Newcastle using the New England Highway, and is approximately 14 km from Singleton.
In addition, major vendors of mine-related equipment maintain workshops and service centres in the Mount
Thorley Warkworth Industrial Estate.

Product coal is predominantly sold for export, and is delivered by rail to Newcastle.

3.9 Operating costs

AMC reviewed the operating costs provided by C&A for their MTW operations in the 16Q3 LOM Plan and
C&A cost models and has compared operating cost estimates with AMC’s experience with other sites and
AMC’s observations on the site visit. AMC found the MTW site to be well run and well planned, and
considers that operating costs are appropriate for an operation of this size and complexity.

Similar to HVO, AMC notes that C&A has had a programme of cost reductions over the last three years.

The change made by AMC to the operating cost estimates provided by C&A for AMC’s Production Cases is
$0.25/ROM coal tonne was added to the variable site administration cost for the Low Production Cases only.

3.10 Capital costs

AMC reviewed the capital costs provided by C&A for their MTW operations in the 16Q3 LOM Plan and C&A
cost models and has compared capital estimates with AMC benchmarks and experience with other sites.

AMC notes that major capital items for MTW were pushed out beyond the period of the 5-year plan. Although
in general, AMC considers that capital costs are appropriate for an operation of this size and complexity,
AMC considers that some capital allocations may need to be brought forward.

Fixed infrastructure sustaining capital

AMC reviewed fixed infrastructure capital allocations for MTW and considers that sustaining capital was
appropriate. AMC’s site visit to MTW to inspect infrastructure and discuss maintenance issues with site staff
demonstrated to AMC that infrastructure was in good condition and AMC considered that additional capital is
not required.

Mobile equipment replacement

AMC reviewed mobile equipment capital allocations for MTW and considers that sustaining capital was
appropriate, but heavily weighted towards the end of the 5-year planning period. AMC’s site visit to MTW to
mining operations and discuss maintenance issues with site staff demonstrated to AMC that mining
equipment was in reasonable condition and AMC considered that additional capital is not required.
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However, AMC considered that some capital allocated outside the 5-year plan should be brought forward to
2017-2018, and understands from discussions on site that this is already planned.

AMC’s changes to capital allocation are $13M of replacement capital should be brought forward from 2022 to
2017 for replacement of a Hitachi EX5500 and $9M brought forward to 2018 for replacement of an EX3600
excavator.

3.11 Environmental and community issues
3.11.1  Annual health, safety, environmental and community costs

Annual HSEC costs are discussed in section 2.11.

3.11.2 Progressive rehabilitation costs

The 2015 Mount Thorley Warkworth Annual Environmental Monitoring Report indicates that 75.7 ha of land
rehabilitation was completed in 2015. Actual rehabilitation costs were not provided to AMC. However, based
on published rates, AMC estimates that 2015 rehabilitation costs could have ranged from $2.3M to $10.3M
for year 2015, depending on the site-specific conditions. Annual progressive rehabilitation costs are shown in
the financial model as ranging from $1M to $17M, and averaging approximately $6M. AMC considers the
progressive rehabilitation cost allowances in the financial model to be reasonable.

3.11.3 Environmental bonds

Copies of the rehabilitation cost calculation tool spreadsheets for Rio Tinto Coal were provided to AMC.
Estimates for MTW were:

. Mt Thorley 2016 rehabilitation cost calculation = $46M.

. Warkworth 2016 rehabilitation cost calculation = $69M.

. MTW Total 2016 rehabilitation cost calculation = $115M.

Total bank guarantees for MTW summed to $127M (including Warkworth Sands regeneration).

The 2015 Mount Thorley Warkworth Annual Environmental Monitoring Report indicates that the total area of
‘active disturbance’ in 2015 was 2,466.3 ha with an additional 26.7 ha of land ‘being prepared for
rehabilitation’ and 1,007.6 ha of land under ‘active rehabilitation’.

3.11.4 Mine closure costs

Rio Tinto Coal prepared a mine closure plan for the MTW, dated 22 May 2015. The closure plan identifies
the total projected cost of closure (as at 2014) at $150M. The closure costs were calculated using the same
inclusions as for HVO.

AMC reviewed the closure cost estimates in comparison to the rehabilitation cost estimates prepared for the
environmental bonds and noted the following:

. Some estimates were slightly higher in the rehabilitation cost estimates.

. Some items that were included in the closure cost estimates (owner’s costs and human resources and
employee costs) were not included in the rehabilitation cost estimates.

In preparing the Production Cases, AMC has selected the higher estimates, added in the owner’s costs and
human resources costs, and corrected an error in the rehabilitation cost estimate for MTW.

AMC'’s consolidated closure cost estimate for MTW is $169M.

3.12 AMC Production Cases

AMC has developed the three Production Cases for MTW, to assist EYTAS in the preparation of its IER in
relation to the Proposed Transaction. Each Production Case has been prepared by adjusting the 16Q3 LOM
Plan. The 16Q3 LOM Plan extends for 32 years at the current production rates and is based on Coal
Reserves plus the expectation other coal in the Coal Resource, but not yet in Coal Reserves, will be mined.
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AMC notes that knowledge of the MTW coal deposits exists, but is not as detailed as at HYO. The MTW
footprint contains a reported MTW Coal Reserve of 330 Mt, plus substantial quantities of coal not currently
classified as Coal Reserves.

AMC considers the key risk to the continuation of operations, as planned, is the need to mine some coal from
currently unapproved lease areas and to convert Coal Resources (particularly Inferred Coal Resources) to
Coal Reserves. To reflect this risk, AMC adjusted the total quantity of material mined over the mine life, the
annual production rates, and the capital and operating cost estimates.

The three MTW Production Cases are as follows:

. MTW Base Production Case — mining of the MTW Coal Reserves plus Measured, Indicated, and 50%
of Inferred MTW Coal Resources (total of 484 Mt) at the LOM plan rate.
. MTW Low Production Case — mining of the MTW Coal Reserves plus Measured, Indicated, and 50%

of Inferred MTW Coal Resources minus 80 Mt of coal that would not receive approval for mining (total
of 403 Mt) at LOM plan rate for four years and then 95% of planned rate (when down to two pits).

. MTW High Production Case — mining all the coal within the 16Q3 LOM Plan (511 Mt), at the annual
production rate estimated within the plan.

Figure 3.13 through Figure 3.15 show a comparison of the ROM coal tonnes mined, product coal tonnes
railed, and waste movements for the three MTW Production Cases.
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Figure 3.14 MTW Production Cases = product coal tonnes railed
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Figure 3.15 MTW Production Cases —total waste volumes moved
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3.12.1 MTW Base Production Case

Mining inventory for the MTW Base Production Case (480 Mt) is restricted to MTW Coal Reserves plus
Measured, Indicated, and 50% of Inferred MTW Coal Resources.
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In preparing its MTW Base Production Case, AMC has adjusted the 16Q3 LOM Plan based on the following
assumptions:

C&A’s long production history and recent production and cost performance will underpin MTW
maintaining production at planned levels, C&A will continue to receive approvals as expected, and a
proportion of Inferred MTW Coal Resources will not be converted to MTW Coal Reserves.

Annual production will continue at the rate forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan (up to 18 Mtpa). MTW has
generally achieved planned production levels and AMC considers the operation is well run and well
planned from observations on their site visit.

The higher yield of 2015-2016 (average of +0.9%) compared to the coal quality model forecast will
continue. Consequently, AMC has added 0.9% to the yield in the 16Q3 LOM Plan from 2022.
Improvement initiatives from new technology and synergies with blending the HVO and MTW products
as a single product will provide a further 1% increase in yield from 2022. All increases in yield over the
modelled yield are assumed to result in increased high ash thermal coal product.

The coal reserve plus Measured, Indicated, and 50% of Inferred MTW Coal Resources within the
16Q3 LOM Plan (484 Mt) will be mined. This case assumes that 50% of the Inferred MTW Coal
Resources will not be converted to MTW Coal Reserves due to seam splitting/narrowing or approvals
issues.

$22M in capital will need to be brought forward over two years for mobile equipment replacements.

No change will be required to the planned operating costs.

A summary of the MTW Base Production Case is shown in Table 3.5.

Production Case Product Product ROM Total Production LOM Capital Operating
Tonnes Tonnes Waste Rate Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mtpa ROM) ($/product t) ($/product t)
MTW Base Thermal & SSCC 327 484 3,358 17.8 5.8 54.3
3.12.2 MTW Low Production Case

Operating costs were adjusted by $0.25/ROM coal tonne, as AMC considers that C&A’s focus on cost
reduction over the last three years will not be sustainable in some areas, resulting in minor cost increases.

AMC’s MTW Low Production Case assumes that:

Annual production is assumed to continue at the rate forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan until Loders and
South pits are completed, and then reduce production to 95% of the LOM plan rate to account for the
increased congestion that comes from operations being restricted to two pits. A reduction in mining
rate can result from congestion as well as interactions caused by noise and dust issue for the local
community.

The higher yields achieved from 2014-2016 (+0.3%) compared to the coal quality model forecast will
continue. Consequently, AMC has added 0.3% to the yield in the 16Q3 LOM Plan from 2022. The
Improvement initiatives from new technology and synergies with blending the HVO and MTW products
as a single product will underpin this increase but will not increase yield further. All increases in yield
over the modelled yield are assumed to result in increased high ash thermal coal product.

Approvals will not be achieved for mining 80 Mt of coal, either from not being able to close Wallaby
Scrub Road, or elsewhere on the lease as mining gets closer to local communities, on the basis that
as mining progresses closer to local communities, there is a risk that C&A will not receive approvals
for extending their mine life. This case assumes that 50% of the Inferred MTW Coal Resources will not
be converted to MTW Coal Reserves due to seam splitting/narrowing or approvals issues. The
remaining MTW Coal Reserves in AMC’s MTW Low Production Case total 403 Mt.

$22M in capital will need to be brought forward over two years for mobile equipment replacements.

A summary of the AMC MTW Low Production Case is shown in Table 3.6.
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Table 3.6 MTW Low Production Case
Production Case Product Product ROM Total Production LOM Capital Operating
Tonnes Tonnes Waste Rate Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mtpa product) ($/product t) ($/product t)
MTW Low Thermal & SSCC 268 403 2,793 17.2 6.9 56.1

3.12.3 MTW High Production Case

AMC’s MTW High Production Case assumes that:

. C&A’s long production history and recent production and cost performance will underpin MTW
achieving the production levels forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan, C&A will continue to receive approvals
to the economic limits of mining, and that exploration success will continue.

. Annual production will be at the rate forecast in the 16Q3 LOM Plan (ramping up to 18 Mtpa ROM coal
tonnes processed).

. The higher yield of 2016 (+1.0%) compared to the coal quality model forecast will continue.
Consequently, AMC has added 1.0% to the yield in the 16Q3 LOM Plan from 2022. Improvement
initiatives from new technology and synergies with blending the HVO and MTW products as a single
product will provide a further 2% increase in yield from 2022. All increases in yield over the modelled
yield are assumed to result in increased high ash thermal coal product.

. The total coal mined will match the 16Q3 LOM Plan (511 Mt), which included the MTW Coal Reserves
plus a quantity of coal that is in MTW Coal Resources and was identified as economically viable, but
not classified as Coal Reserves. This case assumes that all of the Inferred MTW Coal Resources will
be converted to MTW Coal Reserves and that C&A will continue to receive approvals for mine
extensions in the normal course of business.

. $22M in capital will need to be brought forward over two years for mobile equipment replacements.

. No change will be required to the planned operating costs.

A summary of the AMC MTW High Production Case is shown in Table 3.7.

Table 3.7 MTW High Production Case
Production Case Product Product ROM Total Production LOM Capital Operating
Tonnes Tonnes Waste Rate Cost Cost
(Mt) (Mt) (Mbcm) (Mtpa product) ($/product t) ($/product t)
MTW High Thermal & SSCC 351 511 3,546 17.8 5.4 54.8

3.13 Risks and opportunities

AMC considers the principal risks to the MTW Production Cases are:

. Get approval to close Wallaby Scrub Road to access MTW Coal Resources to the west of the current
operation and continue mining to the economic limit as mining approaches the Bulga township.

. Convert Inferred MTW Coal Resources west of Wallaby Scrub Road to MTW Coal Reserves.

. Continue to increase the capacity of waste dumps to accommodate increasing waste volumes.

. Control operating costs, with continuing pressure caused by increasing standards in compliance and

for environmental and community management.

. Control capital costs, with continuing pressure on sustaining capital for ageing infrastructure and for
environmental and community compliance.

AMC considers the major opportunities for the MTW Production Cases are:
. Extension of mine life for open cut production, if approvals for continued mining can be achieved

. Extension of mine life from underground production, if capital and operating costs can be reduced or in
increased production, if plant throughput and approvals can be increased.

. Synergies from blending between HVO, MTW, and possibly other operations.

. Synergies from operating costs associated with a combined operation of HYO, MTW, and possibly
other operations.
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4 Rail and port access

AMC'’s scope of work excluded a review of the PWCS assets or the operation of the rail system or the PWCS
and NCIG port logistics networks. AMC has reviewed information provided by C&A relating to the port and
rail infrastructure to form a view on the ability of C&A to meet its LOM plan in respect of the delivery of coal
by rail to the port.

The location of rail and port infrastructure used by C&A’s operations is shown in Figure 4.1. The rail
distances from each operation to the Newcastle port facilities is shown.

Figure 4.1 Hunter Valley rail and port infrastructure used by C&A

" Muswellbrook

% - Singleton
—

Maitland

++ Railway

Rail distances to PWCS
0 10__20 30 HVO: 107km Newcasts

Kilometres MTW: 82km

Source: Coal & Allied Information Memorandum, February 2016

Track capacity on the Hunter Valley rail system is provided by Australian Rail Track Corporation (ARTC),
which is owned by the federal government and operates and coordinates the national rail network. Rail
haulage and port access is separately contracted between C&A and commercial operators. AMC notes that
the logistics network is facilitated through the Hunter Valley Coal Chain Coordinator (HVCCC) processes and
systems, which helps to optimize rail and port utilization by monitoring and controlling system efficiency.

The capacity of the Hunter Valley rail and port network represents a potential constraint to the achievement
of expanded production volumes from either C&A or any of the other participating coal mines in the Hunter
Valley. However, AMC considers that there is low risk of rail and port logistics infrastructure not meeting
C&A’s capacity requirements or the production capacity modelled in schedules developed by AMC for its
Production Cases and provided to EYTAS.

C&A holds the following contracts for transport of coal to market:

. Above rail services with Pacific National until 2022, with an option to extend for a further five years.

. Below rail access with ARTC under a 10-year rolling take-or-pay contract.

. Port capacity with PWCS under a 10-year rolling take-or-pay contract.

. Port capacity with NCIG under a 10-year rolling take-or-pay contract.

amcconsultants.com 49

156



Coal & Allied Independent Technical Specialist's Report

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited 217016

C&A has total port capacity of approximately 23 Mtpa at PWCS and 5 Mtpa at NCIG. C&A’s above-rail
capacity is 26.0 Mtpa, which will reduce to 19.7 Mtpa from 2019 unless additional capacity is negotiated with
Pacific National. C&A’s below-rail access is renewable annually and is aligned to contracted port volume.

C&A previously held 8 Mtpa of port and below-rail capacity, which was allocated to the Mount Pleasant
Project (MTP). 4 Mtpa of port capacity at PWCS and the 8 Mtpa below-rail capacity has been subsequently
assigned to Mach Energy Australia Pty Ltd through the divestment of MTP in late 2016. Through the
divestment, C&A agreed to pay for this capacity until the earlier of ‘first coal’ from MTP or 31 March 2018.
The assignment of an additional 4 Mtpa of port capacity at the NCIG terminal is conditional on MACH
achieving ‘first coal’ shipped through this terminal.

Maximum total production from HVO plus MTW in AMC’s Base Production Cases is estimated to be
25.5 Mtpa which is below the contracted rail capacity of 26 Mtpa. The highest annual total production in
AMC'’s High Production Cases is scheduled to be 28 Mtpa in years from 2019 to 2028. Additional haulage
capacity will be required from Pacific National from 2019 in all cases examined. Operators anticipate that
occasional requirements for rail capacity beyond contracted levels will be able to be met by purchasing
capacity from other users of the line.
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5.1 Oaklands deposit
5.1.1 Project location

C&A also owns the Oaklands coal project, classified as a domestic thermal coal prospect. The project has
published Coal Resources, but not Coal Reserves.

The Oaklands project lies at the southern end of the Oaklands Basin, near the town of Oaklands, and is
approximately 600 km south-west of Sydney and 300 km north of Melbourne. The nearest ports for coal
export are Geelong, which has limited vessel size capability, and Port Kembla, which can accommodate
larger vessels than Geelong, but is further away from the project site.

The Oaklands project holds an Assessment Lease, which is an intermediate step between exploration and
production tenure. Further work will be required to develop the project to a point where a mining lease
application may be made. C&A expects the Oaklands product coal to be broadly comparable with a number
of low-rank Indonesian thermal coals traded on the international export market.

A three-year Assessment Lease (AL18) was granted on 25 June 2009.

5.1.2 Geology

The coal is located within the Oaklands Basin, which is considered an asymmetrical, plunging syncline. Two
coal seams are found in the basin:

. Coorabin Coal Measures, which is sub-divided into three formations:
—  Narrow plain Formation.
—  Loughmore Formation.
— Nowranie Creek Formation.

. Lanes Shaft Coal Measure.

Due to the Corrabin Coal Measures being thin and high in ash, coal from these measures have not been
included in any Coal Resource estimate.

The Lanes Shaft Coal Member consists of:

. Low rank, sub-bituminous coal.

. Generally dull, with rare bright bands.

. Typically 4 m thick over most of the basin but reaches >20 m in parts.
. Contains a stone band ranging in thickness up to 3 m.

Within AL18, the minimum depth to the top of the coal is approximately 42 m with an average of 80 m. The
average seam thickness is 14 m with a maximum thickness of 23 m.

In 2010, Rio Tinto carried out a study into the potential of the Oaklands project. The drillhole database was
updated and corrected, and seam and quality models were prepared.

A total of 359 drillholes contained geological descriptions, and 145 drilholes contained coal quality
information. Micromine software was used to model the Lanes Shaft Coal Member, based on 50 m x 50 m
cells and using an inverse distance squared estimator to define the floor and thickness. Coal quality was also
estimated based on a full seam composite, excluding high-ash material at the floor and roof.

5.1.3 Coal Resources

The Coal Resources estimate prepared in 2010 is shown in Table 5.1. Coal is located within an optimized
open cut. No updated Coal Resources estimate has been reported.
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Table 5.1 Oakland Coal Resources
Parameter Measured Indicated Inferred Total
Tonnes (Mt) 596 584 90 1,270
Ash (%) 12.0 12.4 11.7 12.2
Total Moisture (%) 28.5 28.4 28.6 28.5
Relative Density (t/m®) 1.39 1.39 1.38 1.39
Specific Energy (MJ/kg) 175 17.4 17.6 175

Note: These estimates of Coal Resources were reported in Rio Tinto’s 2016 Annual Report dated
1 March 2017 and released on 2 March 2017. The Competent Person responsible for that
previous reporting was R Ruddock (MAusIMM). Rio Tinto has advised that it is not aware of any
new information or data that materially affects these Coal Resources estimates, and has
confirmed that all material assumptions and technical parameters underpinning the estimates
continue to apply and have not materially changed. The form and context in which the Competent
Person’s findings are presented have not been materially modified.

The Coal Resources classification is based on the drillhole density:

. Measured Resources are based on 500 m drillhole spacing.
. Indicated Resources are based on 1,000 m drillhole spacing.
. Inferred Resources are based on 1,500 m drillhole spacing.

Based on the information available, AMC considers the classification and reporting of the estimated Coal
Resources are appropriate.

5.1.4 Project evaluation

An evaluation for the Oaklands project was completed for C&A in 2011 for an 8 Mtpa open cut mining
operation producing thermal coal for export from Coal Resources that could potentially be mined by open cut
dragline and truck and shovel mining methods.

The initial capital cost to develop the mine and the operating cost were used in an economic assessment to
determine that the mine was not economic at the time.

AMC considers that there is no material value associated with C&A’s ownership of the Oaklands project on
the basis that:

. The coal at Oaklands is low rank sub-bituminous coal with moderate energy and high moisture
content, which would not attract a premium price in the market.

. The project would require significant capital to develop.

. At the likely product price, the operation is not economically viable.

. Mining of the deposit has not received government approvals, and AMC considers that, given the

location of the deposit in the Southern Riverina district of NSW, the probability of the project receiving
approvals is very low.

. Transporting the coal to market will require significant capital investment in infrastructure. This
infrastructure would need to gain approvals through a significant and complex approval process. AMC
considers that the risk of not receiving approvals for product transport is high, given that the nearest
port facility is in Geelong, approximately 300 km away.

5.2  HVOunderground

There are several underground coal mines near HVO, and several of the seams at HVO are potentially
amenable to underground mining using longwall panels.

C&A’s December 2016 HVO Coal Resource includes coal that is amenable to underground extraction. A
breakdown of open pit and underground Coal Resources was not provided. C&A has additional underground
coal exploration targets from up to five target seams, based on a minimum coal seam thickness of 1.8 m and
a seam depth of less than 600 m. Detailed mine planning and evaluation of the underground potential at
HVO has not been completed.

An assessment was undertaken in 2013 to identify the potential value of a combined underground coal
mining operation at both HVO and MTW, which identified four seams at HVO that could be mined using
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longwall techniques. A capital cost and operating cost were estimated and used in an economic assessment
to determine that underground mining was not economically viable at that time.

Additional data on seam thickness, seam splits, and offsets from potential constraints, such as alluvial sands,
and proposed infrastructure for the open cut operations is required before more detailed planning can be
completed.

Key risks for underground development were considered to be inadequate knowledge of the Foybrook coal
seams at depth, potential for sterilization of significant areas due to geological structures, and potential
issues involved with maintaining consistent longwall production from multi-seam mining.

Key opportunities for underground development were considered to be flexibility in production scheduling,
reduction in community concerns around open cut mining, operational continuity when open cut Coal
Reserves are depleted, and potentially higher CHPP yields from reduced dilution.

AMC considers that there is no material value associated with underground mining at HVO on the basis that:

. HVO production is constrained by CHPP throughput, and therefore, underground coal production is
unlikely to commence until cheaper open cut sources of coal are depleted.

. Development of underground production will require significant capital cost, which is unlikely to be
offset by a reduction in cost or increase in revenue.

. Mining by underground methods has not received government approvals, and AMC considers that the

risk of the project not receiving approvals is moderate to high.

However, AMC considers that the flexibility provided by the underground mining options at HVO provides a
risk mitigation strategy against not receiving approvals for future open cut operations to enable production to
continue at HVO.

53 MTW underground

There are also several seams at MTW that are potentially amenable to underground mining using longwall
panels or a combination of longwall and bord and pillar mining.

C&A’s MTW Coal Resources includes coal that is amenable to underground extraction. Underground Coal
Resources at Mt Thorley were written off in the December 2015 Coal Resource estimate, however,
underground Coal Resources were included for Warkworth. A breakdown of open pit and underground Coal
Resources was not provided with the 2016 Coal Resource estimate. Underground MTW Coal Resources are
based on a minimum coal seam thickness of 1.8 m and a seam depth of less than 600 m.

Detailed mine planning and evaluation of the underground potential at MTW has not been completed,
although C&A completed a MTW Underground Order of Magnitude Study (OoM) in 2012. The OoM
estimated capital costs to develop a longwall operation and an operating cost, which were used in an
economic assessment to determine that underground mining was not economically viable at that time.

AMC considers that there is not material value associated with underground mining at MTW on the basis
that:

. MTW production is constrained by CHPP throughput, and therefore, underground coal production is
unlikely to commence until cheaper open cut sources of coal are depleted.

. Development of underground production will require significant capital cost ($475M) which is unlikely
to be offset by a reduction in cost or increase in revenue.

. Mining by underground methods has not received government approvals, and AMC considers that the

risk of the project not receiving approvals is moderate to high.

However, AMC considers that the flexibility provided by the underground mining options at MTW provides a
risk mitigation strategy against not receiving approvals for future open cut operations to enable production to
continue at MTW, particularly as open cut operations progress closer towards the town of Bulga.
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AMC is a firm of mineral industry consultants whose activities include the preparation of independent
technical specialist’s reports, and due diligence reports on, and reviews of, mining and exploration projects
for purposes related to equity and debt funding, and public reports. In these assignments, AMC and its sub-
consultants act as an independent party.

Based on our checks of AMC'’s project database, and enquiries of our team members who have contributed
to the preparation this ITSR, we advise that we do not have a conflict of interest in preparing this ITSR.

AMC has carried out numerous technical consulting assignments for Rio Tinto and related companies in the
period 2014 to 2016. AMC also completed a consulting assignment in 2013 to develop Yancoal's Yarrabee
coal mine life-of-mine plan and, in 2015, we completed a labour productivity benchmark report for Yancoal.

In carrying out these consulting assignments, AMC and its sub-consultants have acted as independent
parties and have no business relationship with either Rio Tinto or Yancoal, other than the carrying out of
individual consulting assignments, as engaged.

While some employees of AMC and its subconsultants may have direct or beneficial shareholdings in Rio
Tinto, neither AMC nor the contributors to this report nor members of their immediate families have any
interests in Rio Tinto that could be reasonably construed to affect their independence. AMC has no
pecuniary interest, association or employment relationship with Rio Tinto.

Rio Tinto will pay AMC a professional fee of approximately $170,000 according to AMC’s normal per diem
rates for the preparation of this ITSR, plus reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses. The fee is not
contingent upon the outcome of announcement by Rio Tinto on 24 January 2017 that Rio Tinto and Yancoal
had reached a binding agreement for the sale of C&A to Yancoal, and AMC will receive no other benefit for
the preparation of this ITSR.

In a letter relating to our engagement, Rio Tinto agreed to comply with those obligations of the
commissioning entity under the VALMIN Code including that to the best of its knowledge and understanding,
complete, accurate and true disclosure of all relevant material information will be made.

Rio Tinto represented in writing that, to the best of its knowledge, it has provided AMC with all material
information relevant to its mineral assets described in this ITSR.

AMC has not audited the Coal Resources and Coal Reserves, mining and processing schedules, cost
estimates or other information provided by Rio Tinto. AMC has reviewed that information to the extent
necessary to satisfy itself that the Production Cases presented in this report are based on reasonable
grounds and assumptions, and that the information AMC has in relation to valuation of the exploration
properties, is sufficient.

Rio Tinto has been provided with drafts of this ITSR to enable correction of any factual errors and notation of
any material omissions.

This ITSR and the conclusions in it are effective at 31 March 2017. Those conclusions may change in the
future with changes in relevant coal prices, exploration and other technical developments in regard to the
operation, underground resource and exploration tenements and the market for mineral properties.

Rio Tinto has provided AMC with indemnities regarding damages, losses and liabilities related to or arising
out of its engagement other than those arising from illegal acts, bad faith or negligence on its part or its
reliance on unauthorized statements from third parties.

This ITSR has been provided to EYTAS for the purposes of it forming its opinion and preparing its IER in
relation to the Proposed Transaction. AMC has given its consent for its report to be appended to the IER and
for it to be provided to shareholders and has not withdrawn that consent before their lodgement with the
Australian Securities & Investments Commission. Neither this ITSR nor any part of it may be used for any
other purpose without written consent.
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The signatories to this report are corporate members of the AusIMM and bound by its Code of Ethics.

Yours faithfully

fgw Wllomspo, -

G Williamson M Thomas

FAusIMM (CP) FAusIMM (CP)

Principal Mining Engineer Principal Consultant
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Appendix A
List of abbreviations

$ Australia dollars

™M dollars million

% percent

2D two-dimensional

3D three-dimensional

AIFR all injury frequency rate

AMC AMC Consultants Pty Ltd

AMD Acid and metalliferous drainage

ARD Acid rock drainage

ARTC Australian Rail Track Corporation

ASX Australian Securities Exchange

BSL Beam-stage loader

C&A Coal & Allied Industries Limited

CHPP Coal handling and preparation plant

CSN Crucible Swelling Number

CSR Coke strength after reaction

DCF Discounted cash flow

DFS Definitive Feasibility Study

DM Dense medium

DMC Dense medium cyclone

DMS Dense media separation

EIA Environmental Impact Assessment

EIS Environmental Impact Statement

EM Plan Environmental Management Plan

EP Act State Environmental Protection Act

EPBC Act | Environmental Protection and Biodiversity
Conservation Act

EPBC Act | Commonwealth Environment Protection and
Biodiversity Act 1999

EPCs Exploration permits for coal

EU effective utilization

EYTAS Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services
Limited

FOR Free on rail

GL Gigalitres (millions of litres)

GPS global positioning system

h hour

ha Hectares

HGI Hardgrove grindability index

HSEC health, safety, environment and community

HVCCC Hunter Valley Coal Chain Coordinator

HVLP Hunter Valley Load Point

HVO Hunter Valley Operations mine

IER independent expert’s report

IRTM Interactive Resource and Tenure Mapping

ITSR Independent Technical Specialist's Report

JORC Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration

Code Results, Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves, The JORC Code 2012 Edition.
Effective 20 December 2012 and mandatory
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from 1 December 2013. Prepared by the Joint
Ore Reserves Committee of the Australasian
Institute  of  Mining and  Metallurgy,
Australasian Institute of Geoscientists and
Minerals Council of Australia (JORC).

JORC Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration

Code Results, Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves, The JORC Code 2012 Edition,
Effective 20 December 2012, Mandatory from
1 December 2013. Prepared by the Joint Ore
Reserves Committee of the Australasian
Institute of Mining and Metallurgy, Australian
Institute of Geoscientists and Minerals Council
of Australia (JORC).

km Kilometres

kt Thousand tonnes

ktpa Thousand tonnes per annum

kv Thousands of volts

LCPP Lemington Coal Preparation

LOM Life-of-mine

LV Low volatile

M Million

m Metres

m? Square metre

m® Cubic metres

MA mechanical availability

Mbcm Million bank cubic metres

ML Mining Lease

mL/d

mm Millimetres

mRL Reduced level

Mt Million tonnes

MTO Mt Thorley Operations

Mtpa Million tonnes per annum

MTW Mount Thorley and Warkworth mines

N nitrogen

NAF Non acid forming

NCIG Newcastle Infrastructure Group

NLP Newdell Load Point

NPV Net present value

NSW New South Wales

Offer Off-market takeover offer

OoM Order of magnitude

PAF Potentially acid forming

PCI Pulverized coal injection

PEM Prospectivity enhancement multiplier

PFS Pre-feasibility study

PPs Prospecting Permits

PWCS Port Waratah Coal Services Limited

RC Reverse circulation

ROM Run-of-mine
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RPI Regional planning interest

SCA Strategic cropping land

SOOP South out-of-pit dam

SSCC Semi-soft coking coal

t Tonnes

t/m? Tonnes per cubic metres

TECs Threatened Ecological Communities
TMM Total material movement

tpa Tonnes per annum

tph Tonnes per hour

TRIFR total recordable injury frequency rate
TS total sulphur

TSF Tailings storage facility

ucs unconfined compressive strength
uUss United States dollars
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VALMIN
Code

Code for the Technical Assessment and
Valuation of Mineral and Petroleum Assets
and Securities for Independent Expert
Reports. The VALMIN Code 2005 Edition,
Prepared by the VALMIN Committee, a joint
committee of the Australasian Institute of
Mining and Metallurgy, the Australian Institute
of Geoscientists and the Mineral Industry
Consultants Association with the participation
of the Australian Securities and Investment
Commission, the Australian Stock Exchange
Limited, the Minerals Council of Australia, the
Petroleum Exploration Society of Australia, the
Securities  Association of Australia and
representatives from the Australian finance
sector.

Yancoal

Yancoal Australia Ltd
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Appendix B
Report contributors

The contributors to this report include:

Name

Quialifications

Affiliations

Involvement

Daniel Ross

Glen Williamson
lan Lipton
Lawrie Gillett
Mike Thomas

Paul Keleher
Peter Allen

Rob Chesher

Rod Webster

Ross Stainley

BEng (Mining)

BEng (Mining) (Hons)

BSc (Geological Sciences) (Hons)

BEng (Mining) (Hons)
DipGeosc (Mineral Economics)

Higher National Diploma of Mining
Engineering

BSc (Geology)
BEng (Environmental)

BSc Metallurgy (Hons)

Bachelor of Applied Science in Applied
Geology (with Distinction)

BEng (Mining) (Hons)

AMC Senior Mining Engineer

AMC Principal Mining Engineer

AMC Corporate Consulting
Manager/Principal Geologist

AMC Practice Leader — Corporate
Consultancy Australia

AMC Principal Mining Consultant

AMC Subconsultant

AMC Principal Environmental
Engineer

AMC General Manager — Brisbane
Principal Consultant
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Rio Tinto has provided AMC with information to prepare this report. The information was sourced from an
electronic data room and consisted of humerous spreadsheets, reports, data room notes, design files, and
animations. AMC also relied on information obtained from site visits, conversations with Rio Tinto personnel,
and email correspondence.

AMC has not audited the information provided by Rio Tinto. AMC has, however, reviewed the information to
the extent necessary to satisfy itself that the Production Cases presented in this report are based on
reasonable grounds and assumptions.

The principal sources of information used by AMC in the preparation of the report and for cross-checking of
data are listed below. This list is not exhaustive.

Publicly available information

. Australian Government, Bureau of Meteorology, Hunter Valley weather graphs.
. NSW Government Department of Resources and Energy’s Rehabilitation Cost Calculation Tool
spreadsheet.

. Rio Tinto ASX Release, Rio Tinto Agrees Sale of Coal & Allied, January 2017.
. Yancoal ASX Release, Acquisition of Coal & Allied from Rio Tinto, January 2017.
. Rio Tinto 2016 Annual Report dated 1 March 2017 and released on 2 March 2017.

. Rio Tinto press releases, public announcements, and other public filings by Rio Tinto available on Rio
Tinto’s website.

Non-public information provided by Rio Tinto

Combined operations

. Coal & Allied Information Memorandum, February 2016.

. Rio Tinto Coal & Allied Management Presentation, June 2016.

. Coal & Allied Financial Model spreadsheet, February 2017.

. HVO MTW 16Q3 Annual Operating Plan Capital Expenditure Plan spreadsheet, April 2017.
. Coal & Allied 2016 Annual Operating Plan Presentation, October 2015.

. HVO MTW Forecast Rehabilitation and Closure Costs, April 2016.

. Data room note LOM Reports and Bidder Model Variance Analysis, March 2016.
. Data room note Hunter Valley Infrastructure Arrangements, March 2016.

. Data room note Consented Mining Rates at HVO & MTW, May 2016.

. HVO MTW Historical to Forecast Cost spreadsheet, April 2016.

. HVO and MTW Production by pit, undated.

. NSW shipping 2014-2015 spreadsheet, May 2016.

. Various spreadsheets and documents related to the 15Q3 LOM Plan, 16Q3 LOM plan, and 2014-2016
historical costs and production.

. RTCA HVO 2015 Competent Persons Report, February 2016.

. RTCA HVO 16Q3_LOM spreadsheet, April 2017.

. HVO 15Q3 LOM Report Final, February 2016.

. HVO 15Q3 LOM Final Xeras Inputs, undated.

. Reconciliation of HYO 15Q3 LOM and Bidder Model spreadsheet, March 2016.
. HVO Forecast 5 Year Capital Summary spreadsheet, April 2016.

. HVO Forecast Equipment Numbers, Age, purchases, April 2016.

. HVO 2016 ROM Breakdown spreadsheet, undated.
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. HVO Closure Management Plan 2014, May 2015.

. HVO Annual Reconciliation Return, September 2015.

. HVON_database and HVOS_database spreadsheets, May 2013.

. HVO North and South resource model, survey, pit design, and Xeras model files.
. Coal & Allied Site Management Reports 2013-2016.

. Hunter Valley Loading Point Conveyors and equipment general layout, 24/06/03.
. Hunter Valley Operations Process Flow Diagrams, 05/12/2012.

. Hunter Valley Coal Preparation Plant Coal Handling and Preparation Plant General Layout,
01/04/2003.

. CNA HVO Newdell CHP Conveyors.

. C&A Hunter Valley Operations Concept Phase Study Proposal, Recovery of Coal Ultra-Fines in
Hunter Valley CHPP, 14 October 2011.

. HVO 16Q3 Capital Expenditure.

. RTCA MTW 2015 Competent Persons Report, February 2016.

. RTCA MTW 16Q3_LOM spreadsheet, April 2017.

. MTW 15Q3 LOM Report, February 2016.

. MTW 15Q3 LOM Final Xeras Inputs, undated.

. Data room note MTW 15Q3 LOM Equipment Parameters and 2014 & 2015 Actuals, March 2016.
. MTW Forecast 5 Year Capital Summary spreadsheet, April 2016.
. MTW Forecast Equipment Numbers, Age, purchases, April 2016.
. MTW 2016 ROM Breakdown spreadsheet, undated.

. MTW Closure Management Plan 2014, May 2015.

. MTW Annual Reconciliation Return, September 2015.

. MTW_database spreadsheet, January 2013.

. MTW resource model, survey, pit design, and Xeras model files.
. MTW_LD_Cores (WT)-All_new spreadsheet, undated.

. Coal & Allied Site Management Reports 2013-2016.

. MTW Structural Integrity Inspection Report, 30 May 2016.

. Warkworth 16Q3 Capital Expenditure.

. Mount Thorley 16Q3 Capital Expenditure.

Oaklands
. RTCA The Coal Resources of the Oaklands Project, March 2013.
. Coal & Allied Information Memorandum Oakland Coal project, September 2011.

. Oaklands Coal Project Independent Technical Report, Xstract Mining Consultants Pty Ltd, July 2011.

Underground
. Report of Lower Hunter Underground Independent Technical Review, Palaris Mining Pty Ltd, June
2013.

. Rio Tinto Underground Growth Projects Order of Magnitude Study, December 2010.
. MTW Underground Quickstart Order of Magnitude Study Report, December 2013.
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General purpose financial report
31 December 2016

Contents

General purpose financial report _
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated statement of financial position
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Directors' declaration

Independent auditor's report to the members

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity consisting of Coal
& Allied Industries Limited ('Coal & Allied') and its subsidiaries. A list of the major subsidiaries is included in note

33. The financial statements are presented in the Australian currency.

Coal & Allied Industries Limited is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. lts

registered office and principal place of business is:

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
123 Albert Street
Brisbane QLD 4000

A description of the nature of the consolidated entity's operations and its principal actiivities is included in Note 1.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 31 March 2017. The directors have the

power to amend and reissue the financial statements.
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Revenue

Other income

Changes in inventories of finished goods and WIP
Raw materials and consumables used

Employee benefits expense

External services

Distribution

Debt forgiveness

Other operating expenses

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Exploration and evaluation

Sea freight and purchased coal

Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains

Redbank termination fee

Finance costs

Share of profits after tax of equity accounted units
Profit before income tax

Income tax (expense)/benefit
Profit for the year

Profit is attributable to: _
Owners of Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive income of equity
accounted units

Exchange differences on translation

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable
to:
Owners of Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Non-controlling interests

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.

Notes

N~
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2016

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $m $M
1,705.6 2,155.0 2,186.7
1,860.3 - -
(5.8) (22.4) (30.1)
(356.8) (523.5) (547.7)
(253.1) (332.9) (350.5)
(192.4) (255.6) (250.5)
(322.0) (437.2) (454.9)
(1,475.0) R .
(89.8) (108.1) (85.7)
9.5 2.2) 0.6
(124.9) (184.2) (194.6)
- (8.4) (8.1)
(26.4) (40.4) (27.3)
(1.6) 10.4 4.4
- - (51.2)
(6.7) (15.7) (31.1)
2.4 6.6 16.6
7233 241.4 176.6
(326.5) 42.4 (87.9)
396.8 2838 88.7
396.2 282.8 88.1
0.6 1.0 0.6
396.8 283.8 88.7

- 0.7 -

- (0.1) -

- 06 -
396.8 284.4 88.7
396.2 283.4 88.1
0.6 1.0 0.6
396.8 284.4 88.7




ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories

Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Receivables

- Investments accounted for using the equity method

Land held for development or future sale
Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

Borrowings

Current tax payable
Provisions

Liabilities classified as held for sale
Total current liabilltles
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income

Deferred tax liabilities
Provisions

Total non-current liabllities

Total liabllities
Net assets

EQUITY

Contributed equity

Other reserves

Retained earnings
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Notes

10
11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24

25

27(a)

27(b)
28

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2016

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
M SM $M
311.7 213.0 241.8
329.7 176.9 232.1
60.7 86.5 136.1
- 320.5 -
702.1 796.9 610.0
1.3 13.0 11.9
205.9 216.3 221.9
0.9 1.1 1.1
914.4 1,403.8 1,822.8
143.8 9.1 -
241 27.5 28.8
1,278.4 1,670.8 2,086.5
1,980.5 2,467.7 2,696.5
345.9 252.2 263.9
- 06 -
- - 292.7
4.4 6.7 40.9
171.5 122.9 139.9
- 441 -
521.8 426.5 737.4
- 0.1 -
2.9 3.1 .-
- - 111.2
144.0 171.0 169.1
146.9 174.2 280.3
668.7 600.7 1,017.7
1,311.8 1,867.0 1,678.8
59.7 440.9 440.9
10.3 1.7 6.7
1,239.1 1411.7 1,228.9
2.7 2.7 2.3
1,311.8 1,867.0 1,678.8

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the

year

Transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners:
Dividends paid
Employee share schemes

Balance at 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2015

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the

year

Transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners:
Dividends paid
Employee share schemes

Balance at 31 December 2015

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2016

Attributable to owners of
Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Non-

Contributed Other Retalned controlling Total
equity reserves earnings Total interests equity
Notes $M $M $M $M $M $M
440.9 3.7 1,140.8 1,685.4 2.3 1,687.7

- - 88.1 88.1 0.6 88.7

- - 88.1 88.1 0.6 88.7

26 - - - - (0.6) (0.6)
- 3.0 - 3.0 - 3.0

- 3.0 - 3.0 (0.6) 2.4

440.9 6.7 1,228.9 1,676.5 2.3 1,678.8

Attributable to owners of
Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Non-

Contributed Other Retained controlling Total

equity reserves earnings Total interests equity

Notes $M $M $M $M $M $M
440.9 6.7 1,228.9 1,676.5 2.3 1,678.8

- - 282.8 282.8 1.0 283.8

- 0.6 - 0.6 - 0.6

- 0.6 282.8 283.4 1.0 284.4

26 - - (100.0) (100.0) (0.6) (100.6)
- 4.4 - 4.4 - 4.4

- 4.4 (100.0) (95.6) (0.6) (96.2)

440.9 11.7 1,411.7 1,864.3 2.7 1,867.0

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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Balance at 1 January 2016

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Transactions with owners In their
capacity as owners:

Capital return

Dividends paid

Employee share schemes

Balance at 31 December 2016

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2016
(continued)

Attributable to owners of
Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Non-
Other Retalned controlling Total
Share capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
Notes . $M $M $M $M $™M ™
440.9 11.7 1,411.7 1,864.3 2.7 1,867.0
- - 396.2 396.2 0.6 396.8
- - 396.2 396.2 0.6 396.8
25 (381.2) - - (381.2) - (381.2)
26 - - (568.8) (568.8) (0.6) (569.4)
- (1.4) - (1.4) - (1.4)
(381.2) (1.4) (568.8) (951.4) (0.6) (952.0)
59.7 103 1,239.1 1,309.1 2.7 1,311.8

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying

notes.
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Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest paid

Income taxes paid

Tax paid to tax consolidated group head entity
Dividends received

Interest received

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for exploration

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from divestments, net of cash divested

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest
Dividends paid

Capital return

Repayment of loan facilities

Repayment of advances from related entities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

34

15

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
1,555.2 2,175.0 2,239.3
(1,121.8) (1,642.4) (1,837.4)
433.4 532.6 401.9
- (7.9) 21.1)
(11.7) (110.2) (63.4)
(439.5) - .
13.0 12.2 12.4
17.5 5.5 5.3
12.7 432.2 335.1
(40.7) (63.6) (79.2)
- (8.4) (8.1)

9.0 4.1 2.0
1,069.0 - -
1,037.3 67.9) (85.3)
(0.6) (0.6) (0.6)
(568.8) (100.0) -
(381.2) - -
(0.1) (292.7) (301.0)
- (0.4) 0.2)
(950.7) (393.7) (301.8)
99.3 (29.4) (52.0)
212.4 241.8 293.8
311.7 212.4 241.8

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

5
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of all significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated. The consolidated financial statements are for the Group consisting of Coal & Allied Industries Limited and
its subsidiaries.

The principal continuing activities of the entities in the Group during the course of the year ended 31 December
2016 were coal mining and related coal preparation and marketing.

(a) Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
Coal & Allied Industries Limited is a for-profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

The periods presented are for the years ended 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
Where necessary, some balances have been reclassified to align with current year presentation

Compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group also comply with Interational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

+ available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) certain
classes of property, plant and equipment and investment property - measured at fair value, and

+ assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs of disposal.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Company has applied the following interpretations, standards and amendments for the first time in its annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2016:

+ AASB 2014-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations and

+ AASB 2014-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation.

+ AASB 2015-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual improvements to Australian
Accounting Standards 2012 - 2014 cycle, and

+ AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure initiative: Amendments to AASB
101. '

The adoption of these standards did not have any impact on the current period or any prior period and is not
likely to affect future periods.

The Company has not early adopted any amendments, standards or interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet mandatory.
(i) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2016 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s assessment of
the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Mandatory application

Title of date/ Date of adoption by
standard Nature of change Impact group
AASB 9 AASB 9 addresses the The Company is still assessing the Must be applied for
Financial classification, impact. financial years
Instruments | measurement and commencing on or after 1
derecognition of financial January 2018.
assets and financial Based on the transitional
liabilities, introduces new . provisions in the
rules for hedge completed AASB 9, early
accounting and a new adoption in phases was
impairment model for only permitted for annual
financial assets. reporting periods

beginning before 1
February 2015. After that
date, the new rules must
be adopted in their
entirety.

The Company is currently
assessing whether it
should adopt AASB 9
before its. mandatory date.

AASB 15 The AASB has issued a | At this stage, the Company is not Mandatory for financial

Revenue from| new standard for the able to estimate the effect of the new | years commencing on or
Contracts with| recognition of revenue. rules on the Company’s financial after 1 January 2018, but
Customers This will replace AASB statements. available for early

118 which covers revenue adoption.

arising from the sale of Expected date of adoption

goods and the rendering by the group: 1 January

of services and AASB 111 2018.

which covers construction

contracts.

The new standard is
based on the principle
that revenue is
recognised when control
of a good or service
transfers to a customer.
The standard permits
either a full retrospective
or a modified
retrospective approach for
the adoption.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Mandatory application
Title of date/ Date of adoption by
standard Nature of change Impact the group
AASB 16 AASB 16 was issued in | The standard will affect primarily the | Mandatory for financial
Leases February 2016. It will accounting for the Company’s years commencing on or
result in almost all leases | operating leases. Information on the | after 1 January 2019. At
being recognised on the | undiscounted amount of the this stage, the Company
balance sheet, as the Company’s operating lease does not intend to adopt
distinction between commitments at 31 December 2016 | the standard before its
operating and finance under AASB 117, the current leases | operative date.
leases is removed. Under | standard, is disclosed in note 28. The
the new standard, an Company has not yet determined to
asset (the right to use the | what extent its operating lease
leased item) and a commitments will result in the
financial liability to pay recognition of an asset and a liability
rentals are recognised. for future payments and how this will
The only exceptions are | affect the Company’s profit and
short-term and low-value | classification of cash flows. Some of
leases. The accounting the commitments may be covered by
for lessors will not the exception for short-term and
significantly change. low-value leases and some
commitments may relate to -
arrangements that will not qualify as
leases under AASB16.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact on
the entity in the current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

(b) Principles of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the Company.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated uniess the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Coal & Allied
Industries Limited (‘Company' or 'parent entity') as at 31 December 2016 and the results of all subsidiaries for the
year then ended. Coal & Allied Industries Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in this financial
report as the Group or the consolidated entity.




Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(b) Principles of consolidation (continued)

(i) Joint arrangements

Under AASB 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement. Coal & Allied Industries Limited has both joint operations and joint
ventures.

Joint operations

Coal & Allied Industries Limited has recognised its direct right to, and its share of jointly held assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses of joint operations. These have been incorporated in the financial statements under the
appropriate headings. Details of the joint operation are set out in Note 29.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been changed
where necessary, to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Coal & Allied Industries Limited's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resuiting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to
part of the investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a net basis within other income or other expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation differences on non-monetary
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as part of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue
are net of returns, trade allowances, rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's
activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the
type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend Income
Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment is established.

Management Fees and other recoveries

Management fees are charges to related parties for corporate services, global business services, people and
organisational support, and technology and innovation. Recoveries comprise charges to related and external
parties for the rendering of administration and general services.

Coal sales

Revenue comprises sales to third parties at invoiced amounts, with most sales being priced ex works, free on
board (f.o0.b.) or cartage, insurance and freight (c.i.f.). Amounts billed to customers in respect of shipping and
handling are classed as revenue where the Company is responsible for carriage, insurance and freight. All
shipping and handling costs incurred by the Company are recognised as operating costs. Revenue from
continuing operations shown in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes the Company's
share of revenue of joint operations.

Revenue is recognised on individual sales when persuasive evidence exists indicating that all the following
criteria are met:

+ the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the product have been transferred to the buyer;

+ neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold has been retained,;

» the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

+ itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale will flow to the Company; and

» the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the sale can be measured reliably.

These conditions are generally satisfied when title passes to the customer. In most instances revenue is
recognised when the product is delivered to the destination specified by the customer, which is typically the
vessel on which it will be shipped, the destination port or the customer's premises.

In some circumstances the terms of executed sales agreements allow for an adjustment to the sales price based
on the global COAL index. These adjustments are settled quarterly in arrears. Revenue on such provisionally
priced sales is initially recognised at estimated fair value of the total consideration to be received. The fair value
of the final sales price adjustment is continually re-estimated and measured with reference to the global COAL
index. The associated fair value movement is recognised as an adjustment to sales revenue.

(e) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities, which are not an incremental cost relating to the actual
draw-down of the facility, are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight line basis over the term of
the facility.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

(f) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are classified during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the assets for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs (or "finance costs") are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except
where they are included in the cost of qualifying assets. Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts and
short term and long term borrowings, and certain exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings.

(g) Exploration and evaluation expenditure
Exploration and evaluation expenditure comprises costs which are directly attributable to:

researching and analysing existing exploration data;

conducting geological studies, exploratory drilling and sampling;
examining and testing extraction and treatment methods; and
compiling pre-feasibility and feasibility studies.

Exploration and evaluation expenditure also includes the costs incurred in acquiring mineral rights, the entry
premiums paid to gain access to areas of interest and amounts payable to third parties to acquire interests in
existing projects.

Capitalisation of exploration expenditure commences when there is a high degree of confidence in the project's
viability and hence it is probable that future economic benefits associated with that area of interest will flow to the
Company.

Capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure is reviewed for impairment at each reporting date.
Subsequent recovery of the resulting carrying value depends on successful development of the area of interest or
sale of the project. If a project does not prove viable, all irrecoverable costs associated with the project and any
related impairment provisions are written off. If the project proceeds to development, the amounts included within
intangible assets are transferred to property, plant and equipment. ‘

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and with Rio
Tinto Finance Limited, other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, bank overdrafts and amounts payable to
Rio Tinto Finance Limited. Bank overdrafts and amounts owing to Rio Tinto Finance Limited are disclosed within
current liabilities on the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows, movements in the Rio Tinto Finance Limited
payable or receivable balance have been accounted for as cash movements.

(i) Assets and liabilities held for sale

Individual non-current assets or "disposal groups" (i.e. groups of assets and liabilities) to be disposed of, by sale
or otherwise in a single transaction, are classified as "held for sale" if the following criteria are met at period end:
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Assets and liabilities held for sale (continued)

» the carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use; and

+ the disposal group is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual
and customary for such sales; and

» the sale is highly probable.

Disposal groups held for sale are carried at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The comparative balance sheet is not restated. )

Disposal groups acquired with a view to resale are held at the fair value determined at the acquisition date. For
these assets acquired for resale no profits or losses are recognised between the acquisition date and the
disposal date, unless there is a subsequent impairment.

On classification as held for sale, the assets are no longer depreciated.

If control is lost, any interest in the entity retained by the Group is remeasured to its fair value and the change in
carrying amount is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The retained interest
may be subsequently accounted for as a joint venture, joint operation, associate or financial asset depending on
the facts. Any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of the entity disposed of,
or for which control, joint control or significant influence has ceased, may be recycled to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in proportion to the interest disposed of. The cash proceeds of disposals are
included within “Investing activities” in the consolidated cash flow statement.

Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests where control is retained are recorded in equity. The
cash proceeds of such disposals are included within “Financing activities” in the consolidated cash flow
statement.

(J) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

(k) Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at the end of the reporting
period.

() Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except:

» where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or
» for receivables and payables which are recognised inclusive of GST,

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables
or payables.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating
cash flows.
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31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Income tax

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable or receivable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(n) Tax consolidation

The Company became a member of the tax consolidated group on 2 February 2016, of which Rio Tinto Limited is
the head entity.

Prior to joining the Rio Tinto Limited tax consolidated group in 2016, Coal & Allied and its wholly owned
Australian controlled entities formed a separate group. Coal & Allied was the head entity and implemented the
same structure as below.

The head entity, Rio Tinto Limited, and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group account for their own
current and deferred tax amounts. These tax amounts are measured as if each entity in the tax consolidated
group continues to be a stand alone taxpayer in its own right.

The Company has entered into a tax sharing and funding agreement with the head entity of the tax consolidated
group, Rio Tinto Limited, in relation to their participation in the tax consolidation regime. Under the terms of this
agreement, the subsidiary entities in the tax consolidated group have agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment to
or from the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax asset of the entity. The reimbursements
are payable at the same time as the associated income tax liability falis due and have therefore been recognised
as a “current intercompany payable/receivable in respect of tax” by the Company.

(o) Investments and other financial assets

Classification
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Investments and othef financial assets (continued)

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

+ financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

+ loans and receivables,

* held-to-maturity investments, and

+ available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity,
re-evaluates this designation at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Company classifies financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term, ie are held for trading. They are presented as current assets if they are
expected to be sold within 12 months after the end of the reporting period; otherwise they are classified as
non-current assets. The Company has not elected to designate any financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. If collection of the amounts is expected in one year or less they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. Trade receivables are generally due for
settlement within 30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Held-to-maturity investments
The Company classifies investments as held-to-maturity if:

+ they are non-derivative financial assets,

+ they are quoted in an active market,

» they have fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities, and
+ the Company intends to, and is able to, hold them to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-current assets, except for those with maturities less than 12
months from the end of the reporting period, which would be classified as current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments are designated as available-for-sale financial assets if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the medium to long-term. Financial assets that
are not classified into any of the other categories (at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments) are also included in the available-for-sale category.

The financial assets are presented as non-current assets unless they mature, or management intends to dispose
of them within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Reclassification
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31 December 2016

(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Investments and other financial assets (continued)

The Company may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held for trading
category if the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial assets other
than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading category only in rare
circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Company may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables
out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale categories if the Company has the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables and
held-to-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of cash
flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss' category are presented in profit or loss within other income or other expenses in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss
as part of revenue from continuing operations when the Company's right to receive payments is established.
interest income from these financial assets is included in the net gains/(losses).

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the
security and other changes in carrying amount of the security. The translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.
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(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of
an instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income - is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income are not reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases in a subsequent period and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

(p) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value-in-use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(q) Inventories

Raw materials and stores and coal stocks
Inventories of coal are physically measured or estimated and valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined as follows:

» Coal stocks - cost comprises average mining cost under normal mining conditions or actual purchase price
and, where applicable, overburden removal, coal preparation expenditure, fixed and variable overhead costs
and transportation costs.

+ Raw materials and stores - cost comprises average cost or purchase price and associated charges. As
regular and ongoing review is undertaken to establish the extent of surplus items, and a provision is made for
any potential loss on their disposal.

Net realisable value is the amount estimated to be obtained from sale of the inventory in the normal course of
business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Land held for development

Land held for development is stated at the lower of cost and fair value less cost of disposal. Cost is assigned by
specific identification and includes the cost-of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during
development. When development is completed any subsequent borrowing costs and other holding charges are
expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the
expenditure on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while
active development is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.

(s) Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's inception at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other short term and long term payables.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

(t) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. The cost of a tangible fixed asset
comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the item and of bringing it into
working condition for its intended use. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

Once a mining project has been established as commercially viable, expenditure other than that on land,
buildings, plant and equipment is capitalised under "Operational mining properties" together with any amount
transferred from "Exploration and evaluation™. This includes costs incurred in preparing the site for mining
operations. Development costs incurred after the commencement of production are capitalised to the extent they
give rise to a future economic benefit. Interest on borrowings related to construction or development projects is
capitalised until the point when substantially all the activities that are necessary to make the asset ready for its
intended use are complete.

Costs associated with a start up period are capitalised where the asset is available for use but incapable of
operating at normal levels without a commissioning period.

Interest payable on borrowings related to qualifying construction or development projects is capitalised up to the
point when substantially all the activities that are necessary to make the asset ready for use are complete.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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(continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Assets are fully depreciated over their economic lives, or over the remaining life of the mine if shorter. For certain
assets, the economic benefits from the asset are consumed in a pattern than is linked to the level of production.
In such cases, depreciation is generally charged on a unit of production basis. The straight line method is used
for some operations where this provides a suitable alternative because production is not expected to fluctuate
significantly from one year to another. Assets for which consumption of economic benefits is linked to passage of
time are depreciated on a straight line basis.

Land is not depreciated unless acquired for mining purposes in which case it is included in mining properties.

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated over its useful life. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated on a straight line basis as appropriate.

Assets within operations for which production is not expected to fluctuate significantly from one year to another
are depreciated on a straight line basis as follows:

- Buildings 10 - 40 years
- Plant and equipment 2 -10years

remaining marketable reserves utilised on a unit of
- Mining properties : production basis

the shorter of applicable mine life and 5 - 15 years
- Machinery and equipment depending on the nature of the asset

- Buildings not being part of mining properties 40 years

Residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end balance sheet date.
Changes to the estimated residual values or useful lives are accounted for prospectively.

(u) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance costs.

(v) Onerous contracts

Provision for an onerous contract is made only when the related assets, which may be part of the wider
cash-generating unit of which the business unit forms part, are fully impaired or the contract becomes stranded
as a result of a business decision. Judgement is required as to when it is appropriate to look to the wider
cash-generating unit.

In some cases, product to be supplied under a sales contract can become onerous when the cost of production
exceeds the revenues or it is purchased externally and sold at a loss. The decision on sourcing will be dependent
on the Group’s future marketing plans and changes in those plans may impact the amount of any provision.

Onerous contracts are shown within Other provisions.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Provisions for close down restoration and environmental clean-up costs

Close down and restoration costs

Close down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, the removal of residual
materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close down and restoration costs are provided for in the
accounting period when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the
site development or during the production phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.
Provisions for close down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to
arise from future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are
calculated annually during the life of the operation to reflect known developments and are subject to formal
review at regular intervals.

Close down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of operations and the majority of close down and
restoration expenditures are incurred at the end of the life of the operation. Although the ultimate cost to be
incurred is uncertain, the Company estimates its costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current
restoration standards and techniques.

The amortisation or ‘unwinding' of the discount applied in establishing the net present value of provisions is
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in each accounting period. The amortisation of
the discount is shown as a financing cost, rather than as an operating cost.

The initial closure provision together with other movements in the provisions for close down and restoration costs,
including those resulting from new disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the lives of operations and
revisions to discount rates are capitalised within property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated
over the lives of the assets to which they relate.

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure,
provision is made for the outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each balance date and the cost is charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Environmental clean-up costs

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-up obligations outstanding
at the balance date. These costs are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions are presented as an operating cost, except for the unwind
of the discount which is shown as a financing cost.

(x) Employee benefits

Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave
expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for accumulating sick leave is
recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are
presented as payables. :

Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates paid
or payable.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) Employee benefits (continued)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage
and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period of corporate bonds with terms and currencies
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet if the entity does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period, regardless of when the
actual settlement is expected to occur.

Additional Long Service Leave payments are made monthly to the Coal Mining Industry (Long Service Leave
Funding) Corporation based on the eligible monthly payroll of employees involved in the mining of black coal.
Reimbursement is sought from the fund when long service leave is paid to employees involved in the mining of
black coal. An asset for the amount recoverable from the Coal Mining Industry (Long Service Leave Funding)
Corporation is recognised in trade and other receivables.

Retirement benefit obligations

Many employees of the Company are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death from their membership
of the Rio Tinto Staff Superannuation Fund (“The Fund”).

The Fund has both a defined benefit and a defined contribution section. Contributions to the defined contribution
superannuation plans are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when incurred.

For the defined benefit plans, as there is no agreement in place for charging the net defined benefit cost for the
plan as a whole to individual group entities, the Company will recognise a cost in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income equal to the contribution payable for the year. The cash contributions to the Fund are
made through reference to a percentage of base salary contribution per defined benefit employee as determined
by the fund actuary, advised by the fund trustee and applied to those defined benefit employees of the Fund.

There are a minimal number of employees in the defined benefit section of the scheme. Therefore the Company's
exposure to this part of the Fund is not material.

Share-based payments

The executives and employees of the Company are eligible to participate in various share based payment plans
as part of the Company's membership of the Rio Tinto Group. Generally, these are to be classified as equity
settled share based payments with the guidance contained in Interpretation 11, AASB 2 Share-based Payment -
Group and Treasury Share Transactions.

Short term incentive plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses based on a formula that takes into consideration
key performance indicators including, but not necessarily limited to safety performance and financial
performance. The Company recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created a constructive obligation.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(x) Employee benefits (continued)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of AASB 137
"Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the
case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

(y) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 45 days of recognition. Trade and
other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months from the reporting
date. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(z) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. If collection of the amounts is expected in one year or less they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. Trade receivables are generally due
for settlement within 30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by reducing the carrying amount
directly. The other receivables are assessed collectively to determine whether there is objective evidence that an
impairment has been incurred but not yet been identified. For these receivables the estimated impairment losses
are recognised in a separate provision for impairment. The Company considers that there is evidence of
impairment if any of the following indicators are present:

»  significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
+ probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or financial reorganisation, and
» default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue).

Receivables for which an impairment provision was recognised are written off against the provision when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss within other expenses. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against other expenses.

(aa) Determination of ore reserves

The Company estimates its ore reserves and mineral resources based on information compiled by Competent
Persons as defined in accordance with the Australasian Code for Reporting of Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves of December 2012 (the JORC code).

Reserves, and for certain mines, resources, determined in this way are used in the calculation of depreciation,
amortisation and impairment charges, the assessment of life of mine stripping ratios and for forecasting the
timing of the payment of close down and restoration costs. In assessing the life of a mine for accounting
purposes, mineral resources are only taken into account where there is a high degree of confidence of economic
extraction.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(ab)Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Legislative Instrument 2016/191, relating to the 'rounding off' of
amounts in the financial statements. Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance
with that Instrument to the nearest hundred thousand dollars, or in certain cases, to the nearest dollar.

(ac)Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the senior
management team (being the chief operating decision maker), comprising the Managing Director of Coal and the
Coal Executive Committee in assessing performance and determining strategy.

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes. The Group's
chief operating decision maker does not regularly review assets or liabilities on a segmented basis and therefore
this information is not disclosed.

2 Financial risk management

The Group carries out risk management under policies approved by the directors and in line with Rio Tinto Group
policy. The Group provides principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific
areas, such as mitigating interest rate and other risks, and the use of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments.

The Group's business is coal mining and not trading. Accordingly, the Group only contracts to sell coal that it
plans to produce, however purchasing coal for resale may be required in circumstances where actual production
falls short of contractual sales volumes. The Group operates entirely in Australia and is exposed primarily to
Australian dollar denominated costs. Sales are primarily denominated in US dollars. Cash deposits are
denominated in both Australian and US dollars.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group markets its products internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to export coal sales being denominated in US dollars and recognised
financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the Group's functional currency. The
Group has a number of US dollar denominated cash, trade receivables and payables balances. The exposures to
foreign currency risk at the reporting dates were as follows:
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2 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

Exposure

Cash
Trade receivables
Trade payables

Sensitivity

Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
usD UsD USD
™M ™M ™
5.0 6.2 7.4
126.4 59.7 101.0
39.9 214

101.1

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in exchange rates arises mainly from US dollar denominated financial
instruments. Profit is more sensitive to movements in the Australian dollar/US dollar exchange rates in 2016 and
2014 than 2015 because of the increased net amount of USD denominated trade receivables and trade

payables.

The tables below summarise the impact on the Group's post-tax profit of a 10% movement of the Australian dollar
against the US dollar with all other variables held constant. Other components of equity would have been

unaffected.

Index

Cash
Trade receivables
Trade payables

Cash
Trade receivables
Trade payables

Impact on post-tax profit
Sensitivity 10% increase in FX*

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
(0.4) (0.5) (0.6)
(11.1) (5.2) (7.8)
8.7 3.5 1.6
Impact of post-tax profit
Sensitivity 10% decrease in FX*

2016 2015 2014
$M $M M
0.5 0.7 0.7

13.6 6.4 9.6
(10.6) (4.3) (2.0)

*All other variables held constant. Figures include trade receivables and trade payables classified as held for

sale.
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2 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate management policy is generally to borrow and invest at floating interest rates. This
approach is based on a historical correlation between interest rates and commodity price. Cash deposits and
borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to risk of changes in cash flows due to changes in interest
rates.

During 2016, 2015 and 2014 deposits were held at variable rates and were held in both Australian dollars and US
dollars. Borrowings in 2014 were held at variable rates and denominated in Australian dollars.

Exposure
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
$™ $M $M
Cash 311.7 213.0 241.8
Borrowings - 0.1) (292.7)
Sensitivity

The table below summarises the impact on the Group's post-tax profit of a 50 basis points (bps) increase in
interest rates with all other variables held constant. A 50 bps decrease would have the same impact in the
opposite direction. Other components of equity would have been unaffected. Profit is less sensitive to interest
rate risk in 2014 than 2016 and 2015 because of lower net interest bearing financial assets and liabilities.

Impact on post-tax profit
50bps increase in interest rates

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
Cash 1.1 0.7 0.8
Borrowings - - (1.0)

(iii) Price risk

The Group’s policy is to sell coal at prevailing market prices by creating a pricing portfolio of various pricing
mechanisms available in the market. Typically for thermal coal this means three main pricing mechanisms -
annual bi-lateral price negotiations with major customers for a 12 month fixed price, short term spot pricing and
index linked pricing based on global COAL NEWC index which are settied monthly or quarterly depending on
contract terms. Semi soft coking coal is priced on a quarterly basis, set through negotiations with major
customers. A small proportion of semi soft sales are sold at spot price.

The marking to market of provisionally priced sales contracts is recorded as an adjustment to sales revenue.

Exposure
31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
$™ M ™
Provisionally priced trade receivables 49.1 62.2 30.3
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2 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity .
The table below summarises the impact on the Group's post-tax profit for a 10% increase in coal price because of
provisionally priced trade receivables with all other variables held constant. A 10% decrease in coal price would
have the same impact in the opposite direction. Other components of equity would have been unaffected. Profit is
more sensitive to coal price risk in 2016 and 2015 than 2014 due to the increased amount of provisionally priced
trade receivables.

Impact on post-tax profit
10% increase in coal price

2016 2015 2014
Index $M ™ ™M
Impact to sales revenue 3.4 3.7 2.1

(b) Credit risk

() Risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, including
bank deposits, foreign exchange transactions and trade receivables. Japan represents the highest percentage of
the Group's sales and accordingly Japanese customers represent the highest concentration of credit risk (refer to
segment information in Note 4 for further details on sales by country of destination). However, management
believes the Group has minimal exposure to credit risk related to trade receivables or by virtue of the possible
non-performance of the counterparties to the Group's other financial instruments. There is a limited number of
counterparties who purchase coal from the Group, all of which are well known, reputable counterparties with
sound financial positions. In the unlikely event of a default of counterparty, the Group is likely to be able to sell its
coal to another counterparty at short notice, reducing the scope for potential loss.

The Group has a single external customer which represents more than ten per cent of its total revenue. Refer to
Note 4(c).

Cash transactions are limited to high credit quality financial institutions. The Group has policies that limit the
amount of credit expasure to any one financial institution.
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2 Financial risk management (continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)

The maximum credit risk exposure to the Group's financial assets at balance sheet date is as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M M

Cash and cash equivalents
Counterparties with external credit rating
Deposits with Rio Tinto Finance (Baa1 credit rating - Moody's) 2314 169.2 172.5
Deposits with banking institutions with a minimum Baa1 credit
rating - Moody's ) 80.3 53.8 69.3
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) 311.7 213.0 241.8
Trade and other receivables (Note 10)
Trade and other receivables 329.7 176.9 232.1

Impaired trade receivables
Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectable are written off by reducing the carrying amount
directly. The other receivables are assessed collectively to determine whether there is objective evidence that an

impairment has been incurred but not yet identified. For these receivables the estimated impairment losses are
recognised in a separate provision for impairment.

The Group considers that there is evidence of impairment if any of the following indicators are present:

+ significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

» probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy.

At 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 or 31 December 2014 there were no impaired trade receivables.
Past due but not impaired

At 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 or 31 December 2014 there were no frade receivables that were past
due.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due.
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2 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Creditrisk (continued)

Credit risk in relation to financial guarantees

The Group only issues financial guarantees in exceptional circumstances or where required in order to secure
access to mining leases. Guarantees are usually required by government bodies in order to guarantee the
restoration of disturbed sites under mining leases granted to the Group. Refer to Note 30 on contingent liabilities
for further disclosure of the amount under risk and the counterparty involved.

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity and risk management strategies are principally driven by Rio Tinto. Liquidity needs and
surpluses of the Group are primarily managed through equity funding from and loans to Rio Tinto. Credit facilities
have also previously been used to ensure sufficient funds are available to meet contractual obligations arising in
the ordinary course of business.

() Maturities of financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on their contractual maturities. The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Total
Between Between contractual Carrying
Contractual maturities of Less than 6-12 1and2 2and5 Over 6 cash amount
financial liabilities 6 months months years years years flows liabilities
31 December 2016 $m $M $M™M $M $M $m $M
Non-derivatives
Trade and other payables 345.9 - - - - 345.9 345.9
345.9 - - - - 345.9 345.9
31 December 2015
Non-derivatives
Trade and other payables 252.2 - - - - 252.2 252.2
Borrowings 0.1 - - - - 0.1 0.1
252.3 - - - - 252.3 252.3
Total
Between Between contractual Carrying
Less than 6-12 1and2 2and5 Over 5 cash  amount
Contractual maturities of 6 months  months years years years flows liabilities
financial liabilities $M $M $M $M $M $M $M

31 December 2014

Non-derivatives

Trade and other payables 263.9 - - - - 263.9 263.9
Borrowings - 292.7 - - - 292.7 292.7
263.9 292.7 - - - 556.6 556.6
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2 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Capital risk management

The Group's overriding objectives when managing capital include safeguarding the business as a going concern;
maximising returns for Rio Tinto; and maintaining an optimal capital and tax structure in order to provide a high
degree of financial flexibility at the lowest cost of capital. The capital structure of the Group is regularly reviewed
taking into account strategic priorities and the economic conditions within which the Group operates.

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent, including issued capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group is part of a larger organisational structure and as such the ultimate parent controls the Group’s capital
management policy. The ultimate parent controls financing decisions, however, cash levels are managed within
the Group. The Group does not have a target debt to equity ratio, but considers various financial metrics
including liquidity levels, total capital, cash flow and EBITDA to ensure a strong balance sheet is maintained.

The Group's gearing ratios at 31 December were as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M M $™M
Total borrowings - 0.1 292.7
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (311.7) (213.0) (241.8)
Net (cash)/debt (311.7) (212.9) 50.9
Total equity 1,311.8 1,867.0 1,678.8
Total capital 1,000.1 1,654.1 1,729.7
Gearing ratio (%) (31.2) (12.9) 2.9
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3 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom
equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the group’s accounting
policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of
items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be-wrong.
Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is outlined below.

Mine closure and rehabilitation provisions estimates

The calculation of rehabilitation and closure provisions (and corresponding capitalised closure cost assets where
necessary) rely on estimates of costs required to rehabilitate and restore disturbed areas of land to their original
condition. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision as there are many transactions and other factors that will affect the uitimate liability payable.
Factors that will affect this liability include future disturbances caused by further development, changes in
technology and restoration techniques, changes in the timing of rehabilitation expenditure due, for example, to
changes in ore reserves or production rates, changes in regulations, price increases and changes in discount
rates. These estimates are regularly reviewed and adjusted in order to ensure the most up to date data is used to
calculate these balances. When these factors change in the future, such differences will impact the provision in
the period in which they change or become known.

Determination of coal reserves and resources

The Company estimates its coal reserves and coal resources based on information compiled by Competent
Persons as defined in accordance with the Australasian Code for Reporting of Mineral Resources and Ore
Reserves of December 2012 (the “JORC code”). Reserves determined in this way are used in the calculation of
depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges, and the assessment of mine lives and for forecasting the
timing of the payment of closure and rehabilitation costs.
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4 Segment information
(a) Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the senior
management team (being the chief operating decision maker), comprising the Managing Director of Coal and the
Coal Executive Committee in assessing performance and determining strategy.

The Group derives its revenue from coal mining and as such, performance is assessed for each of the operating
coal mines individually. The following operating segments have been identified:

Hunter Valley Operations
Mount Thorley Warkworth
Bengalla Mining

Other

'Other' refers to corporate activities (including revenue from purchased coal), Mount Pleasant and any other items
that are not appropriate to allocate to an individual operating segment.

Performance of the segments is assessed on a stand-alone, pre-tax basis as per below.

The senior management team do not regularly review assets and liabilities on a segment basis, rather at the
consolidated level and therefore assets and liabilities by segment have not been disclosed.

(b) Segment results

Hunter Valley Mount Thorley Bengalla
Operations Warkworth Mining Other Total
$M $M $M $M $M
Year ended 31 December
2016 .
Segment revenue (1) 884.0 7321 34.6 54.9 1,705.6
EBITDA (2) 71.0 215.0 570.5 (19.1) 837.4
Other material items included
in EBITDA
Debt forgiveness (1,475.0) - - - (1,475.0)
Gain on sale of operations 1,266.8 - 560.7 32.9 1,860.3
Reconciliation of EBITDA to
profit after tax
Depreciation and amortisation
expense (124.9)
Net finance income 10.8
Income tax expense (326.5)
Profit for the year 396.8
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202



4 Segment information (continued)

(b) Segment results (continued)

Year ended 31 December
2015

Segment revenue (1)
EBITDA (2)

Reconciliation of EBITDA to
profit after tax

Depreciation and amortisation
expense

Net finance expense

Income tax benefit

Profit for the year

Year ended 31 December
2014

Segment revenue (1)
EBITDA (2)

Reconciliation of EBITDA to
profit after tax

Depreciation and amortisation
expense

Net finance expense

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

Hunter Valley Mount Thorley Bengalla
Operations Warkworth Mining Other Total
™ ™ $™M ™ $Mm
1,161.1 700.7 257.5 35.7 2,155.0
241.5 164.5 84.0 . (54.2) 435.8
(184.2)
(10.2)
42.4
283.8

Hunter Valley Mount Thorley Bengalla
Operations Warkworth Mining Other Total
$Mm $Mm $Mm $M $M
1,209.2 692.3 266.8 18.4 2,186.7
275.4 90.7 102.2 (71.3) 397.0
(194.6)
(25.8)
(87.9)
88.7

(1) Segment revenue refers to total revenue as per Note 5, and are from external customers.

(2) EBITDA is earnings before net finance costs, depreciation, amortisation and income tax expense.

EBITDA is the key measure that management uses to assess pen‘orménce of individual segments and make
decisions on the allocation of resources.

EBITDA includes the Group's share of profit/(loss) from investments accounted for using the equity method,
included within 'Other' and debt forgiven as part of the deed of forgiveness entered into by the Group, Hunter
Valley Resources Pty Ltd and Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Ltd.
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4 Segment information (continued)

(c) Other segmentrevenue disclosures
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(continued)

Revenue is derived from the sale of coal. A breakdown of revenue from external parties is provided in the tables

below.

Segment revenue reconciles to total revenue from continuing operations as disclosed in Note 5.

The Group is domiciled in Australia. Sales revenue by country of destination and product are outlined below:

Segment revenue
Japan

Korea

Taiwan

Singapore
Thailand

Malaysia

. China

Switzerland

Turkey

Other foreign countries
Domestic

Total sales revenue

Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue (Note 5)

Total sales revenue by product
Thermal
Semi-soft

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
M $M $M
544.4 937.5 912.2
216.4 2136 216.0
233.4 213.8 287.0
226.7 261.8 190.1
162.6 223.8 133.4
53.4 36.5 104.4
27.5 37.1 83.1
37.5 75.7 40.6
1.2 23.2 25.8
101.8 36.3 77.2
59.3 72.0 93.2
1,664.2 2,131.3 2,163.0
17.5 5.5 5.3
23.9 18.2 18.4
1,705.6 2,155.0 2,186.7
1,190.6 1,670.9 1,752.7
473.6 460.4 410.3
1,664.2 2,131.3 2,163.0

Revenues of approximately $198.2M (2015: $252.9M, 2014: $281.4M) are derived from a single external
customer. These revenues are attributed to the Hunter Valley Operations and Mount Thorley Warkworth

segments.

(d) Segment assets and liabilities

The senior management team do not regularly review assets and liabilities on a segment basis and therefore
assets and liabilities by segment are not disclosed. All assets are located in Australia.
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5 Revenue

From continuing operations
Sales revenue

Sale of coal - produced

Sale of coal - purchased

Sea freight

Interest income

Other revenue

Management fee income - related parties
Coal handling services

Dividend income

Rental and sub-lease rental income
Other revenue

6 Other income

Net gain on sale of operations

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

31 December

31 December 2016
(continued)

31 December 31 December

2016 20156 2014
$M ™ ™
1,637.8 2,090.9 2,136.0
23.5 22.8 9.6
2.9 17.6 17.4
17.5 5.5 5.3
1,681.7 2,136.8 2,168.3
7.7 71 6.9

4.6 4.9 4.6

0.8 0.2 0.7

25 2.1 2.3

8.3 3.9 3.9
23.9 18.2 18.4
2,165.0 2,186.7

1,705.6

31 December
2016
$M

1,860.3

31 December 31 December
2015 2014
$M M

The net gain on sale of operations is a combination of the three sale events below:

On 3 February 2016, the Company completed the sale of 32.4 per cent of the assets and liabilities associated
with its Hunter Valley Operations to Mitsubishi Development Pty Ltd ("MDP"). The sale was in exchange for
acquiring MDP's interest in the Coal & Allied Group. A component of the non-cash consideration was
Intercompany receivables from Hunter Valley Resources Pty Ltd and Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Ltd (parent of
Hunter Valley Resources Pty Ltd). This intercompany receivable was later forgiven (refer Note 7(i)).

On 1 March 2016, the Company completed the sale of the 40 per cent interest in Bengalla Joint Venture

(Bengalla) to New Hope Corporation Limited.

On 4 August 2016, the Company completed the sale of the Mount Pleasant thermal coal development project to

MACH Energy Australia Pty Limited.
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6 Other income (continued)
The table below is a reconciliation of the components of the net gain on sale of operations.

31 December

2016
Notes $M
Cash consideration received 1,091.3
Less: Cash divested (4.8)
Less: Transaction costs (17.5)
Net cash consideration 1,069.0
Non-cash consideration
Intercompany receivable 7 1,475.0
Contingent consideration 20.7
Total disposal consideration 2,564.7
Less: carrying amount of net assets disposed
Assets classified as held for sale 320.5
Other current assets 21.2
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 422.8
Deferred tax assets 1.0
Trade and other payables (34.8)
Provisions (42.1)
Liabilities classified as held for sale (44.1)
Other (1.3)
643.2
Onerous contracts provision recognised on disposal (61.2)
1,860.3

7 Expenses

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M

Employee benefits expense
Salaries and other benefits 230.9 303.8 322.9
Defined contribution superannuation expense 201 23.5 23.3
Share-based payments equity settled 241 5.6 4.3
Employee benefits expense 253.1 332.9 350.5
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7 Expenses (continued)

Selling and distribution
Royalties
Rail freight
Port charges
Net demurrage

Debt forgiveness (i)

Redbank contract termination fee (i)

Finance costs
Interest expenses
Unwinding of discount on provisions

(i) Debt forgiveness

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

31 December

31 December

(continued)

31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M M $M
129.5 162.0 167.7
100.6 .138.8 147.3
76.4 112.6 129.4
15.5 23.8 10.5
322.0 437.2 454.9
1,475.0 - -
- - 51.2
0.5 7.9 20.9
6.2 7.8 10.2
6.7 16.7 311

During 2016, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries entered into a deed of forgiveness with Hunter
Valley Resources Pty Ltd and Rio Tinto Coal NSW Holdings Ltd (parent of Hunter Valley Resources Pty Ltd),
whereby each party agreed to settle all intercompany balances in existence at 31 August 2016.

(i) Redbank termination fee

During 2014, Warkworth Mining Limited (as manager of Warkworth Associates Joint Venture) successfully
terminated the Redbank fuel supply agreements.
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8 Income tax expense / (benefit)

31 December

31 December

(continued)

31 December

2016 2015 2014

$™M M M

Current tax expense on profits for the year 461.6 80.4 59.5

Adjustments to current tax for prior periods 0.4 (4.3) -

Total tax expense attributable to the current year 462.0 76.1 59.5
Deferred income tax (benefit)/expense included in income tax

expense comprises:

Deferred tax in relation to current year (136.0) (122.9) 28.5

Deferred tax in relation to prior year . 0.5 4.4 (0.1)

(135.5) (118.5) 28.4

Total income tax expense/(benefit) 326.5 (42.4) 87.9

(a) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense/(benefit) to prima facie tax payable

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 723.3 241.4 176.6
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30.0% (2015: 30.0%, 2014:
30.0%) 217.0 72.4 53.0
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable)
in calculating taxable income:
Change in tax base due to sale (336.9) (110.5) -
Debt forgiveness 442.5 - -
MRRT - - 40.0
Other 3.9 (4.3) (5.1)
Income tax expense/(benefit) 326.5 (42.4) 87.9

(b) Amounts recognised directly in equity

31 December

2016
Notes $M
Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the
reporting period and not recognised in net profit or loss
or other comprehensive income but directly debited or
credited to equity:
Deferred tax: Share based payments 0.8

31 December
2015
$M

(1.7)

31 December
2014
$™M

0.8
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8 Income tax expense / (benefit) (continued)
(c) Unrecognised temporary differences

31 December

31 December

(continued)

31 December

2016 2015 2014

M ™M $M

Tax losses . - 1.0 2.0
Unrecoverable deductions 0.2 0.2 0.2
0.2 1.2 2.2

9 Current assets - Cash and cash equivalents

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014

Notes $M $M M

Coal & Allied cash held 264.0 179.9 203.5

Coal & Allied's share of cash held in Joint Operations 47.7 331 38.3
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated statement

of financial position 311.7 213.0 241.8

Bank overdraft 18 - (0.6) -
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidated statement

of cash flows 3M1.7 212.4 241.8

10 Current assets - Trade and other receivables

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
Notes $M M M
Trade receivables 176.4 72.5 128.1
Amounts due from related parties 32(f) 54.2 21.2 39.3
Other receivables 43.1 32.9 13.8
Long service leave receivable from Coal Mining Industry
(Long Service Leave Funding) Corporation 53.8 47.3 481
Prepayments 2.2 3.0 2.8
329.7 176.9 232.1
38
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11 Current assets - Inventories

Coal stocks - at cost
Finished goods
Work in progress

Stores
Stores
Provision for obsolescence

Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
6.6 16.4 22.1

16.6 12.5 29.2

23.1 28.9 51.3

37.9 59.3 85.3

(0.3) (1.6) (0.5)

37.8 57.6 84.8

60.7 86.5 136.1

12 Current assets - Asset classified as held for sale

Property, plant and equipment
Receivables
Inventories

31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
$M ™M $M

- 287.7 -
- 27.2 -
- 5.6 -
- 3205 -

The 31 December 2015 balance relates to the sale of the Group's 40 per cent interest in the Bengalla Joint

Venture. The sale was completed in 2016, refer to Note 6.

13 Non-current assets - Receivables

Long service leave receivable from Coal Mining Industry (Long
Service Leave Funding) Corporation
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31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M ™
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(continued)

14 Non-current assets - Investments accounted for using the equity method

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 - 2014
Notes $M M $M
Shares in associates 205.9 216.3 221.8
Interest in joint venture partnership - - 0.1
33(a) 205.9 216.3 221.9
15 Non-current assets - Property, plant and equipment
Freehold Operational
land and mining Plantand Construction
buildings properties equipment in progress Total
$M $M $M $M $M
At 1 January 2014
Cost 150.0 1,277.3 2,535.0 40.2 4,002.5
Accumulated depreciation (2.3) (611.0) (1,424.8) - (2,038.1)
Net book amount 147.7 666.3 1,110.2 40.2 1,964.4
Year ended 31 December 2014
Opening net book amount 147.7 666.3 1,110.2 40.2 1,964.4
Additions - - - 79.2 79.2
Depreciation charge 0.2) (61.3) (132.9) - (194.4)
Net disposals - (1.2) (0.2) - (1.4)
Transfers to/(from) construction in progress 04 88.8 7.3 (96.5) -
Adjustment to rehabilitation and closure
provisions - (25.0) - - (25.0)
Closing net book amount . 147.9 667.6 984.4 22.9 1,822.8
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(continued)

15 Non-current assets - Property, plant and equipment (continued)

FreeholdOperational

land and mining Plantand Construction
buildings properties equipment in progress Total
™M ™M $M $M ™M
At 1 January 2015
Cost 150.4 1,339.9 2,525.9 22.9 4,039.1
Accumulated depreciation (2.5) (672.3) (1,541.5) - (2,216.3)
Net book amount . 147.9 667.6 984.4 22.9 1,822.8
Year ended 31 December 2015 :
Opening net book amount 147.9 667.6 984.4 22.9 1,822.8
Additions - 0.1 - 63.5 63.6
Depreciation charge (0.2) (33.9) (148.8) - (182.9)
Net disposals - (0.6) (5.7) - (6.3)
Assets classified as held for sale - (159.5) (122.7) (5.5) (287.7)
Transfers to/(from) construction in progress 21 4.6 48.9 (55.6) -
Adjustment to rehabilitation and closure
provisions - (5.7) - - (5.7)
Closing net book amount 149.8 472.6 756.1 253 1,403.8
At 1 January 2016
" Cost 152.5 1,018.2 2,2671 25.3 3,463.1
Accumulated depreciation (2.7) (545.6) (1,511.0) - (2,059.3)
Net book amount 149.8 472.6 756.1 25.3 1,403.8
Year ended 31 December 2016
Opening net book amount 149.8 472.6 756.1 25.3 1,403.8
Additions - - - 40.7 40.7
Depreciation charge (0.9) (17.8) (105.5) - (124.2)
Net disposals (0.6) 1.6 (0.3) - 0.7
Net assets included in divested operations (210.4) (38.5) (144.6) (4.8) (398.1)
Reclassifications 166.2 (166.2) - - -
Transfers to/(from) construction in progress 15.8 8.5 17.2 (41.5) -
Adjustment to rehabilitation and closure
provisions - (8.5) - - (8.5)
Closing net book amount 119.9 251.7 522.9 19.9 914.4
At 31 December 2016
Cost 166.3 636.2 1,696.9 ' 19.9 2,519.3
Accumulated depreciation (46.4) (384.5) (1,174.0) - (1,604.9)
Net book amount - 119.9 251.7 522.9 19.9 914.4
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16 Non-current assets - Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:

Rehabilitation and closure provision

Employee benefits

Other provision

Tax losses

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Other receivables

Unrealised foreign exchange gains/losses

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off
provisions
Net deferred tax assets

31 December

31 December 2016
(continued)

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
Notes $M M $M
38.3 51.4 471
27.6 27.4 27.7
15.8 0.4 -
1.7 1.7 2.4
69.5 - -
0.7 - -
1.5 - -
155.1 80.9 77.2
23 (11.3) (71.8) (77.2)
143.8 9.1 -

17 Current liabilities - Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Amounts due to related parties

Intercompany payable in respect of income tax
Other payables

18 Current liabilities - Bank overdraft

Bank overdraft

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

Notes $M $M $m
289.3 2224 228.4
32(f) 174 15.2 18.3
13.3 - -
25.9 14.6 17.2
345.9 252.2 263.9

31 December
2016
$M

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
M M
0.6 -
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19 Current liabilities - Borrowings

Shareholder loan - unsecured

(a) Financing facilities

Shareholder loan
Total shareholder loan facility
Used at balance date

The shareholder loan was repaid in full during 2015.

Credit standby arrangements
Total overdrafts
Unused at balance date

Loan facilities
Total revolving loan facility
Unused at balance date

Financing facilities

Coal & Allied Industries Limited

31 December
2016
$M

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

31 December 2016

31 December
2015
$M

(continued)

31 December
2014
$M

292.7

31 December
2016
$M

31 December
2015
$M

31 December
2014
$M

292.7
(292.7)

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M ™ ™M
75.0 75.0 75.0
75.0 75.0 75.0
400.0 400.0 400.0
400.0 400.0 400.0

The overdraft facility was undrawn as at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

An unsecured revolving loan facility of $400.0 million Australian dollars was available at 31 December 2016.
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, $320.0 million (80 per cent) was with Rio
Tinto Finance Limited and $80.0 million (20 per cent) was with Mitsubishi Development Pty Ltd. During the year
ended 31 December 2016, 100 per cent of this facility was with Rio Tinto Finance Limited. This facility lapsed on

9 February 2017.

All loans are in compliance with their covenants.
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(continued)

20 Current liabilities - Current tax payable
31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
Current tax payable 4.4 6.7 40.9

21 Current liabilities - Provisions
31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$m ™M M

Employee benefits 124.1 114.8 127.1
Rehabilitation 7.2 8.1 7.5
Other provisions* 40.2 - 5.3
171.5 122.9 139.9

Refer to Note 24 for the movements in each class of provisién other than employee benefits.

* Other provisions in 20186 principally relates to onerous contracts.

22 Current liabilities - Liabilities classified as held for sale

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

$M $M $M

Provisions - 253 -
Trade payables - 18.8 -
- 441 -

The balances above represent the liabilities of the Group's 40 per cent interest in Bengalla Joint Venture. Refer to
Note 12 for further information and assets classified as held for sale.

44

215




Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

23 Non-current liabilities - Deferred tax liabilities
31 December

31 December

(continued)

31 December

2016 2015 2014
Notes ™M $M ™
The balance comprises temporary differences
attributable to:
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets - 53.7 161.3
Inventories 11.3 18.0 26.9
Unrealised foreign exchange gains/losses - 0.1 0.1
Other - - 0.1
11.3 71.8 188.4
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off
provisions 16 (11.3) (71.8) (77.2)
- - 111.2

Net deferred tax liabilities

24 Non-current liabilities - Provisions
31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
M M M

Employee benefits 15.2 16.7 16.6
Rehabilitation 63.1 73.9 59.8
Closure 528 80.4 92.7
Other provisions* 12.9 - -
144.0 171.0 169.1

* Other provisions in 2016 principally relates to onerous contracts.
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24 Non-current liabilities - Provisions (continued)

(a) Movements in provisions

Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

2014

Current & Non-current

Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised

Adjustment to operational mining properties

Unwinding of discount

Unused amounts reversed
Amounts used during the year
Carrying amount at end of year

2015

Current & Non-current

Carrying amount at start of year

Additional provisions recognised
Adjustment to operational mining properties
Unwinding of discount

Assets classified as held for sale

Unused amounts reversed

Amounts used during the year

Carrying amount at end of year

2016

Current & Non-current

Carrying amount at start of year
Additional provisions recognised

. Adjustment to operational mining properties

Unwinding of discount

Unused amounts reversed
Amounts used during the year
Foreign exchange

Net amounts divested

Carrying amount at end of year

Rehabilitation Closure Other Total
$M ™ M $M

66.6 114.3 3.8 184.7

0.7 - 2.0 2.7
- (25.0) - (25.0)

3.8 6.4 - 10.2
(3.8) (1.2) - (5.0)
- (1.8) (0.5) (2.3)

67.3 92.7 5.3 165.3
Rehabilitation Closure Other Total
$M $M $M $M

67.3 927 5.3 165.3

14.9 - - 14.9
- (5.7) - (5.7)

3.3 4.5 - 7.8
(3.2) (10.6) - (13.8)

(0.3) (0.5) - (0.8)

- - (5.3) (5.3)

82.0 80.4 - 162.4
Rehabilitation Closure Other Total
$M $M $mM $M

82.0 80.4 - 162.4

6.4 1.0 61.2 68.6

(0.6) (7.9) - (8.5)

3.8 1.9 0.5 6.2

(2.4) - - (2.4)

- - (9.7) (9.7)

- - 11 1.1

(18.9) (22.6) - (41.5)

70.3 52.8 53.1 176.2
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25 Contributed equity
(a) Share capital

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Notes Shares Shares Shares $M $m $M
Ordinary
shares - 25(b), ‘
fully paid  25(c) 86,584,735 86,584,735 86,584,735 59.7 440.9 440.9

(b) Movements in share capital

Number of
Details shares $M
Balance 31 December 2015 86,584,735 440.9
Capital return (i) - (381.2)
Balance 31 December 2016 A 86,584,735 59.7

(i)b During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a capital return of $381.2 million to the shareholders.
(c) Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one
vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at shareholders meetings. In the event of winding up the Company ordinary shareholders rank
after all other shareholders and creditors and are fully entitled to any proceeds of liquidation.

Ordinary shares have no par value and the Company does not have a limited amount of authorised capital.

26 Dividends

(a) Ordinary shares
31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
M M $M
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 was paid
of $6.57 per fully paid share (2015: $1.15 per fully paid share,
2014: $nil) 568.8 100.0 -

(b) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
No dividends have been paid or declared subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil, 2014: nil).
(c) Franking credits

Dividends for all years presented were fully franked based on a tax rate of 30 per cent.
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26 Dividends (continued)

(c) Franking credits (continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
$M $™M M

Franking credits available for subsequent reporting periods
based on a tax rate of 30.0% (2015: 30.0%, 2014: 30.0%)* - 503.7 431.5

The above amounts are calculated from the balance of the franking account as at the end of the reporting period,
adjusted for:

(a) franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax,

(b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at the reporting date,
and

(c) franking credits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting
date.

* On becoming a member of the tax consolidated group on 2 February 2016, all franking credits were transferred
to the head entity, Rio Tinto Limited. Refer to Note 1(n).

27 Other reserves and retained earnings

(a) Otherreserves

(i) Share-based payments

The Company participates in a number of share-based payment plans available to executives and employees of
the Group administered by Rio Tinto Limited. The share-based payments reflected in this reserve relate to
various equity-settled Rio Tinto share option plans. The share-based payments reserve is used to recognise the
fair value of options issued but not exercised.

(i) Foreign currency translation

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign controlled entities are recognised in other comprehensive
income as described in note 1(c) and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss when the net investment is disposed of.
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(a) Other reserves (continued)

(i) Other reserves

Coal & Allied Industries Limited

27 Other reserves and retained earnings (continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

31 December 2016
(continued)

Other reserves relates to the equity instruments reserve of Port Waratah Coal Services Ltd, an equity accounted

associate of Coal & Allied Industries Limited.

Share-based payments
Foreign currency translation
Other reserves

(b) Retained earnings

Movements in retained earnings were as follows:

Balance 1 January
Net profit for the year
Dividends paid
Balance 31 December

28 Non-controlling interests

Interest in:
Retained earnings
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31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $™M
9.6 11.0 6.6

- - 0.1
0.7 07 -
10.3 11.7 6.7

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
1,411.7 1,228.9 1,140.8
396.2 282.8 88.1
(568.8) (100.0) -
1,239.1 1,411.7 1,228.9

31 December
2016
$M

2.7

31 December 31 December

2015 2014
™ ™
27 23
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(continued)
29 Joint operations
At the end of the year the Group held the
following interests in joint operations, the
principal activity of which is coal mining and  Principal place 2016 2015 2014
exploration: of business % % %
Hunter Valley Operations Australia 67.6 100 100
Bengalla Joint Venture Australia - 40 40
Mount Thorley Co-venture * Australia ‘80 .80 80
Warkworth Associates * ) Australia 55.6 55.6 55.6

* Coal & Allied Industries Limited holds an 80 per cent interest in the Mount Thorley Co-Venture and a 55.574 per
cent interest in Warkworth Associates. In 2004 these two joint ventures entered into an Operational Integration
Agreement (OIA) that allows the two joint ventures to be managed as a single operation. Under the terms of the
OIA production can be sourced from either mining lease and is allocated between the two joint ventures based on
a tonnage ratio that is contractually agreed between the two joint ventures. The tonnage ratio is agreed at the
beginning of each year. Since entering into the OIA the tonnage commitment ratio has been Warkworth
Associates 65 per cent and Mount Thorley Co-Venture 35 per cent. In effect, Warkworth Associates receives 65
per cent and the Mount Thorley Co-Venture receives 35 per cent of the output from the combined mining leases
with each joint venture then being responsible for the marketing and sale of its respective tonnage received.
Production costs are shared on the same basis as the tonnage ratio. The OlA provides for compensation to be
made for the use of each joint venture's assets and resource depletion.

Refer to Note 6 for further information.

30 Contingencies
(a) Contingent liabilities

The Group had contingent liabilities at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 in respect
of: .

(i) Guarantees

For information about guarantees given by entities within the Group and under the deed of cross guarantee,
including the parent entity, please refer to Note 33(b)(Note A).
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30 Contingencies (continued)
(a) Contingent liabilities (continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
‘ $M $M $M
Bank guarantees for restoration obligations
The consolidated entity has a programme of on-going restoration
as part of its mining operations. Guarantees have been provided
to the NSW government in respect of the cost of restoration of
certain leasehold properties, representing guarantees required by
statute. A provision for mine site restoration of $123.1 million
(2015: $162.4 million, 2014: $160.0 million) has been raised with
regard to this obligation. 175.2 227.5 208.9

Bank guarantee for port allocation

The consolidated entity has entered into various agreements with

Port Waratah Coal Services Limited to secure port allocation

arrangements and coal handling services. The consolidated entity

has entered into various agreements with Newcastle Coal -

Infrastructure Group Pty Ltd as a condition of participating in the

port nomination process. 91.4 97.8 103.1

Bank guarantees for rail network access

The consolidated entity has entered into an access holder

agreement with Australian Rail Track Corporation Limited relating

to rail access to the Hunter Valley Network. 22,5 14.2 151

Bank guarantees for land conservation and environmental

land offsets

The consolidated entity has entered into various agreements with

the Commonwealth Office of the Environment and Heritage,

trading as National Parks and Wildlife with respect to land

development in the Lower Hunter region. 18.9 18.9 18.9

Bank guarantees for infrastructure and emergency services

The consolidated entity has entered into agreements with the

NSW Department of Planning And Infrastructure for infrastructure

and emergency services relating to land development applications

in the Lower Hunter Valley. 5.2 5.2 5.2

Bank guarantee for other miscellaneous obligations
The consolidated entity has entered into various agreements with
State and local government authorities and other entities 6.3 1.2 1.2
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31 Commitments

(a) Non-cancellable operating leases

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Later than five years

(b) Capital commitments

Coal & Allied Industries Limited

31 December

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

31 December 2016

31 December

(continued)

31 December

2016 2015 2014
™M M $™
4.6 5.3 2.9
8.2 10.7 11.9

- - 0.1
12.8 16.0 14.9

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is

as follows:

Within one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

(c) Lease commitments: Group as lessee

(i) Non-cancellable mining leases

Commitments required to satisfy expenditure requirements on
mining and exploration leases:

Within one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

Greater than five years
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31 December

31 December

2016 2016 2014
M ™ $M
16.4 1.7 25
- - 3.0
16.4 11.7 5.5

31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
M $M ™M
12.3 16.1 16.1
471 60.0 61.5
65.6 108.0 122.3
125.0 184.1 199.9
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31 Commitments (continued)
(d) Unconditional purchase obligations
Unconditional purchase obligations comprise take-or-pay contracts for port and rail contracts:

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

$m ™M $M
Within one year 102.5 212.3 2157
Later than one year but not later than five years 424.5 848.6 868.2
Greater than five years 437.6 981.7 1,037.4
964.6 2,042.6 2,121.3

32 Related party transactions

The consolidated entity operates, through a Management Services Agreement with Rio Tinto Coal Australia Pty
Limited (RTCA), an integrated approach to managing and organising its operating companies. Directly
attributable costs are charged to Coal & Allied and costs that are incurred by RTCA on behalf of Coal & Allied are
charged based on an estimate of time spent providing the service.

(a) Parent entities

The immediate parent entities are Australian Coal Holdings Pty Ltd and Hunter Valley Resources Pty Ltd which at
31 December 2016 owned 75.71% and 24.29% respectively (2015 and 2014: 75.71%, 14.09%) of the issued
ordinary shares of Coal & Allied. The ultimate parent entity is Rio Tinto Limited.

(b) Subsidiaries
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in Note 33.
(c) Terms and conditions

Amounts due to and from related parties are unsecured and non-interest bearing. There are no formal
agreements for these amounts, therefore they are classified as current.

Transactions with other related parties were made on normal commercial terms and conditions.

53

224



Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

32 Related party transactions (continued)
(d) Key management personnel compensation

Australian Accounting Standard (AASB 124) requires disclosures for key management personnel (KMP). KMPs
are persons (including executive and non-executive directors of Coal & Allied) having the authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the Company’s and Group’s activities, directly or indirectly.

Compensation has been disclosed for the directors providing services to the Company even though employed by
other Rio Tinto entities. Compensation for these KMP includes 100% of their compensation and has not been
apportioned according to their actual services provided to the Company. No compensation information has been
provided for any Mitsubishi Corporation directors as these directors did not receive fees for their services
provided. The following directors have been included in total compensation relating to KMP.

Key management personnel covered in this report

Director Period covered

S Ellinor 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016
R Francis 10 October 2016 to 31 December 2016
R Hassall 10 October 2016 to 31 December 2016
S Kaufman 3 August 2016 to 31 December 2016

B White 20 Aprii 2015 to 31 December 2016

R Albones 1 April 2015 to 4 April 2016

C Salisbury 1 January 2014 to 3 August 2016

i Vella 1 March 2016 to 3 August 2016

S Watson 3 August 2016 to 10 October 2016

M Halliday 1 January 2014 to 28 October 2015

P Keenan 1 January 2014 to 1 April 2015

B Long 1 January 2014 to 24 March 2015

R Payne 1 January 2014 to 16 March 2015

in addition to the directors, the following other key management personnel have been identified due to their
positions held within the Company.

Other KMP Position Period covered
M Eaglesham  Chief Operating Officer 1 January 2014 to 28 February 2016
- T Lukeman General Manager, Hunter Valley Operations 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016
D Janney General Manager, Bengalla 1 January 2014 to 31 August 2014
J Scarini General Manager, Bengalla 1 September 2014 to 1 March 2016
C Haifpenny General Manager, Mount Thorley Warkworth 1 January 2014 to 31 May 2014
M Rodgers General Manager, Mount Thorley Warkworth 1 June 2014 to 31 December 2016
M Roberts General Manager, Sales & Marketing 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016
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32 Related party transactions (continued)

{(d) Key management personnel compensation (continued)

Key management personnel compensation

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Long-term benefits
Termination benefits
Share-based payments

(e) Ownership interests in related parties

Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$000 $000 $000
5,144.7 5,605.2 5,791.9
289.7 332.8 326.3
114.2 323.8 120.4
664.4 - -
1,460.0 1,992.0 2,657.0
7,673.0 8,253.8 8,895.6

Interests held in the following classes of related parties are set out in the following notes:

Joint operations - Note 29
Associates and Joint Ventures - Note 33(a)

(f) Amounts due to and from related parties as at 31 December

Notes
Cash deposited with Rio Tinto Finance Limited
Amounts due from related parties 10
Amounts due to related parties 17
55
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31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014
$000 $000 . $000

231,360.6  159,173.5  172,532.0
54,248.9 21,230.5 39,253.1
(17,436.8)  (15,184.4)  (18,291.7)



32 Related party transactions (continued)

(g) Transactions with other related parties

The following transactions occurred with other related parties:

Rio Tinto Group companies
Expenditure

Insurance services
Management services
Interest paid

Shipping services

Consulting services

Debt forgiveness

Revenue
Interest received
Coal sales

Other related companies

Port Waratah Coal Services Limited
Coal handling charges

Management fee

Employee related recharges

Dividend revenue - associates

Mitsubishi Development Pty Limited
Commissions paid
Interest paid
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31 December 2016

31 December 31 December

2016
$000

(4,232.3)
(53,213.0)

(2,888.3)

(1,474,987.8)

16,491.2
206,429.8

(36,403.9)
1,598.3
1,065.9

12,742.6

(1,344.1)

2015
$000

(4,375.9)
(62,129.0)
(5,964.7)
(17,554.2)
(1,804.3)

4,586.8
247,009.8

(65,103.1)
574.1
444.8

11,982.7

(780.0)
(1,575.5)

(continued)

31 December
2014
$000

(5,902.4)
(32,414.0)
(15,782.9)
(17,662.7)

(1,419.0)

4,218.9
202,791.8

(82,027.5)
1,545.3
1,108.7

11,690.6

(2,302.6)
(2,130.8)



Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

33 Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
(a) Interests in associates and joint ventures

Set out below are the associates and joint ventures of the Group as at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015
and 31 December 2014. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which
are held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business,
and the proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Place of
business/ ]
country of % of ownership Nature of Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest relationship method Carrying amount
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
% % % $M $M ™M
Port Waratah
Coal Services Equity
Limited (1) Australia 36,5 365 36.5 Associate Accounted 205.4 2158 221.3
UBE C&A Co Equity
Ltd Japan 245 245 24.5 Associate Accounted 0.5 0.5 0.5
Bengalia
Agricultural
Company Pty Equity
Limited Australia - - 40.0 Jointventure Accounted - - 0.1

205.9 216.3 2219

(1) The principal activities of Port Waratah Coal Services Limited were the provision of coal receivable, blending,
stockpiling and ship loading services in the Port of Newcastle. The investment is strategic as the Group utilises
port services provided by the associate.

(i} Summarised financial information for associates and joint ventures

The tables below provide summarised financial information for those associates that are material to the Group.
The information disclosed reflects amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant associates. They
have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value
adjustments and modifications for differences in accounting policy.
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Coal & Allied Industries Limited

33 Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

(a) Interests in associates and joint ventures (continued)

Summarised balance sheet

Total current assets
Non-current assets

Total current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Ownership share (%)
Carrying amount of investment

‘Reconciliation to carrying amounts of investment:

Carrying amount at 1 January
Share of profit after income tax
Dividends received/receivable
Carrying amount at 31 December

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit from continuing operations

Profit for the period
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
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(continued)

Port Waratah Coal Services Limited

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $™M $™M
76.0 88.4 77.2
1,620.1 1,684.5 1,763.4
(311.8) (438.3) (105.6)
(821.6) (743.3) (1,128.7)
562.7 591.4 606.3
36.5 36.5 36.5
205.4 215.8 221.3
215.8 221.3 2165
24 6.6 16.6
(12.8) (12.1) (11.8)
205.4 215.8 221.3

Port Waratah Coal Services Limited

31 December

31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
301.3 319.6 372.1
9.4 25.8 65.0
(2.8) (7.7) (19.5)
6.6 18.1 45.5
6.6 18.1 45.5
6.6 18.1 455




Coal & Allied Industries Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

33 Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

(a) Interests in associates and joint ventures (continued)

(i) Share of associates' expenditure commitment

Capital commitments
Lease commitments
Other commitments

(b) Significant investments in subsidiaries

31 December 2016
(continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December

2016 2015 2014

$M M M
14.5 23.8 38.4
42.9 47.5 53.7
14.4 19.2 25.9
71.8 90.5 118.0

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following principal
subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 1(b). The proportion of ownership interest

is the same proportion of voting rights held.

Notes

Australian Coal Resources Limited A
Black Hill Land Pty Ltd

Catherine Hill Bay Land Pty Ltd

CNA Bengalla Pty Limited

CNA Bengalla Investments Pty Limited
CNA Investments (UK) Pty Limited

CNA Resources Holdings Pty Limited
CNA Resources Limited

CNA Sub Holdings Pty Limited

CNA Warkworth Australasia Pty Limited
CNA UK Limited

Coal & Allied Mining Services Pty Limited
Coal & Allied Operations Pty Limited
Darex Capital Inc (UK)

Dolphin Properties Pty Limited
Gwandalan Land Pty Ltd

HV Operations Pty Ltd

HVO Coal Sales Pty Ltd

Kalamah Pty Ltd

Lower Hunter Land Holdings Pty Ltd
Miller Pohang Coal Company Pty limited
Minmi Land Pty Ltd

Mount Thorley Coal Loading Pty Limited
Mount Thorley Operations Pty Limited
Namoi Valley Coal Pty Limited

Nords Wharf Land Pty Ltd

Northern (Rhondda) Collieries Pty Limited
Novacoal Australia Pty Limited

Oaklands Coal Pty limited

Rio Tinto Coal (NSW) Pty Limited

b

> P> PPPrw W P> O >>» > P
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%
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

- 100

2015
%
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
67
100
100
80
100
57
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

31 December 31 December 31 December
2016

2014

%
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100
100




Coal & Allied Industries Limited
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31 December 2016

(continued)

33 Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (continued)

(b) Significant investments in subsidiaries (continued)

31 December 31 December 31 December

Notes 2016 2015 2014

% % %

R W Miller (Holdings) Limited A 100 100 100
Warkworth Coal Sales Pty Ltd 56 56 56
Warkworth Pastoral Company Pty Ltd 56 56 56
Warkworth Tailings Treatment Pty Ltd 56 56 56
Warkworth Mining Limited 56 56 56

All entities are incorporated in Australia except the following:

Entity Place of incorporation
Darex Capital Inc Republic of Panama
CNA UK Limited United Kingdom

Notes:

A These wholly-owned companies and the parent entity have entered into a deed of cross guarantee under

which each Company guarantees the debts of the others. By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned
entities are relieved from the requirement to prepare a Financial Report and directors’ report under Australian
Securities and Investment Commission Class Order 98/1418. These companies represent a “Closed Group”
for the purposes of the Class Order, and as there are no other parties to the deed of cross guarantee that are
controlled by the parent entity, they also represent the “Extended Closed Group”.

On 19 December 2016 the following entities were added to the deed of cross guarantee:

CNA Warkworth Australasia Pty Ltd
CNA Resources Limited

CNA Bengalla investments Pty Ltd
Kalamah Pty Limited

Coal & Allied Mining Services Pty Ltd
HV Operations Pty Ltd

The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held.

B Non-controlling interest in controlled entities refer to Note 28.

C Non-beneficially controlled.
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(continued)

34 Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities

Profit for the year

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Write off of inpit inventory

Changes in the fair value of employee share options

Other non-cash movements in other reserves

Capitalised accruals

Unwinding of discount

Net (gain)/loss on sale of non-current assets

Share of profits of associates not received as dividends

Exploration and evaluation

Net gain on divestments

Net loss on debt forgiveness

Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables
Decrease / (increase) in inventories
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets
Decrease / (increase) in non-current receivables
Decrease / (increase) in assets held for sale
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase / (decrease) in current employee provisions
Increase / (decrease) in deferred income
Increase / (decrease) in current provisions
Increase / (decrease) in income tax payable
Increase / (decrease) in non-current employee provisions
Increase / (decrease) in hon-current provisions
Increase / (decrease) in deferred tax liabilities

Net cash inflow from operating activities

o~~~ —
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31 December

31 December

31 December

2016 2015 2014
$M $M $M
396.8 283.8 88.7
124.9 184.2 194.6

. 0.9 8.7

(0.1) 4.4 3.0

. 0.6 .

. (0.9) 0.2

6.2 7.8 10.2
(9.5) 2.2 (0.6)
10.4 5.4 (4.9)

- 8.4 8.1
(1,860.3) - -
1,475.0 - -
5.2 (1.2) -
(137.8) 38.8 54.6
9.0 496 35.8
(135.7) (9.1) -
1.7 (1.1) (1.7)

- 11.3 -
124.4 (4.1) (83.2)
10.0 (12.3) -
(0.2) 3.1 -
0.9 4.7) 3.3
(2.3) (34.2) (3.9)
(1.5) 0.1 -
(4.4) 10.4 (2.8)

- (111.2) 25.0

12.7 432.2 335.1




Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
31 December 2016

(continued)

35 Events occurring after the reporting period

The directors deemed it prudent to disclose the following matters subsequent to the end of the financial year:

On 24 January 2017, Australian Coal Holdings Pty Limited and Hunter Valley Resources Pty Ltd, the
shareholders of the Company, signed a binding agreement to sell their respective shares of Coal & Allied
Industries Limited to Yancoal Australia Limited for up to A$3.24b*. Completion is expected in the second half of
2017. The Group's interest in the assets and liabilities have not been presented as held for sale in the 2016
financial statements. )

*The amount in AUD has been converted at the rate of A$1 = US$0.75643, being the prevailing exchange rate on
24 January 2017. .

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2016 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affect:

(a) the Company's operations in future financial years, or
(b) the results of those operations in future financial years, or
(c) the Company's state of affairs in future financial years.

36 Remuneration of auditors

Fees for services rendered to the Company by the auditors for auditing the Company's financial report are borne
by a related entity and cannot be specifically attributable to the Company.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Coal & Allied Industries Limited

Our opinion

In our opinion the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Coal & Allied Industries Limited (the Company) and its controlled entities (together the
Group) as at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards.

What we have audited
The financial report comprises:

. the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the years then ended

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the years then ended

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the years then
ended

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant

accounting policies

. the directors’ declaration.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
report section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:
http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_files/ar7.pdf. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Ltd

Steven Bosiljevac Brisbane
Authorised Representative 31 March 2017
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Appendix K Reconciliation of the adjusted financial information

A summary of the Carve-Out Adjustments to the audited adjusted financial statements by Rio Tinto management
are presented below:

A$m 2014 2015 2016
gggérﬁlﬂlrigggeneral Purpose Financial Report, 31 2187 2155 1706
Adjustment to remove Mt Pleasant 1) 1) (10)
Adjustment to remove Bengalla (265) (257) (34)
Adjustment to reflect HVO interest at 67.6% (392) (376) (22)
Adjusted reported amount 1,529 1,521 1,641

Source: Rio Tinto management analysis

Profit before income tax

A$m 2014 2015 2016
ggiﬁ lfglrigg 1C;}eneral Purpose Financial Report, 31 177 a1 723
Adjustment to remove Mt Pleasant 15 11 (14)
Adjustment to remove Bengalla (72) (60) (569)
Adjustment to reflect HVO interest at 67.6% (55) (55) 207
Adjusted reported amount 65 138 347

Source: Rio Tinto management analysis

Total assets

A$m 2015 2016
gggérﬁlﬂlrigggeneral Purpose Financial Report, 31 2.468 1981
Adjustment to remove Mt Pleasant (184) (16)
Adjustment to remove Bengalla (325) 0)
Adjustment to reflect HVO interest at 67.6% (115) -
Adjustment for DTL/TA reclassification (54) -
Adjusted reported amount 1,790 1,964

Source: Rio Tinto management analysis

A$m 2015 2016
gggérﬁlﬂlrigggeneral Purpose Financial Report, 31 1867 1312
Adjustment to remove Mt Pleasant (175) 30
Adjustment to remove Bengalla (300) 2
Adjustment to reflect HVO interest at 67.6% (56) -
Adjusted reported amount 1,336 1,340

Source: Rio Tinto management analysis
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PART 2 - FINANCIAL SERVICES GUIDE

THIS FINANCIAL SERVICES GUIDE FORMS PART OF THE
INDEPENDENT EXPERT'S REPORT

19 May 2017

1. Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited (“EY Transaction Advisory Services” or “we,” or “us” or
“our”) has been engaged to provide general financial product advice in the form of an Independent Expert's
Report (“IER”) in connection with a financial product of another person. The IER is set out in Part 1.

2. Financial Services Guide

This Financial Services Guide (“FSG”) provides important information to help retail clients make a decision as
to their use of the general financial product advice in a Report, information about us, the financial services we
offer, our dispute resolution process and how we are remunerated.

3. Financial services we offer

We hold an Australian Financial Services Licence which authorises us to provide the following services:

> financial product advice in relation to securities, derivatives, general insurance, life insurance, managed
investments, superannuation, and government debentures, stocks and bonds; and

> arranging to deal in securities.

4, General financial product advice

In our Report we provide general financial product advice. The advice in a Report does not take into account
your personal objectives, financial situation or needs.

You should consider the appropriateness of a Report having regard to your own objectives, financial situation
and needs before you act on the advice in a Report. Where the advice relates to the acquisition or possible
acquisition of a financial product, you should also obtain an offer document relating to the financial product and
consider that document before making any decision about whether to acquire the financial product.

We have been engaged to issue a Report in connection with a financial product of another person. Our Report
will include a description of the circumstances of our engagement and identify the person who has engaged us.
Although you have not engaged us directly, a copy of the Report will be provided to you as a retail client because
of your connection to the matters on which we have been engaged to report.

5. Remuneration for our services

We charge fees for providing Reports. These fees have been agreed with, and will be paid by, the person who
engaged us to provide a Report. Our fees for Reports are based on a time cost or fixed fee basis. Our directors
and employees providing financial services receive an annual salary, a performance bonus or profit share
depending on their level of seniority. The estimated fee for this Report is $200,000 (exclusive of GST).

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services is ultimately owned by Ernst & Young, which is a professional

advisory and accounting practice. Ernst & Young may provide professional services, including audit, tax and
financial advisory services, to the person who engaged us and receive fees for those services.
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Except for the fees and benefits referred to above, Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services, including any
of its directors, employees or associated entities should not receive any fees or other benefits, directly or
indirectly, for or in connection with the provision of a Report.

6. Associations with product issuers

Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services and any of its associated entities may at any time provide
professional services to financial product issuers in the ordinary course of business.

7. Responsibility

The liability of Ernst & Young Transaction Advisory Services, if any, is limited to the contents of this Financial
Services Guide and the Report.

8. Complaints process

As the holder of an Australian Financial Services Licence, we are required to have a system for handling
complaints from persons to whom we provide financial services. All complaints must be in writing and addressed
to the AFS Compliance Manager or Chief Complaints Officer and sent to the address below. We will make every
effort to resolve a complaint within 30 days of receiving the complaint. If the complaint has not been satisfactorily
dealt with, the complaint can be referred to the Financial Ombudsman Service Limited.

9. Compensation Arrangements

The Company and its related entities hold Professional Indemnity insurance for the purpose of compensation
should this become relevant. Representatives who have left the Company’s employment are covered by our
insurances in respect of events occurring during their employment. These arrangements and the level of cover
held by the Company satisfy the requirements of section 912B of the Corporations Act 2001.

Contacting Ernst & Young Contacting the Independent Dispute Resolution Scheme:
Transaction Advisory Services Financial Ombudsman Service Limited

AFS Compliance Manager PO Box 3

Ernst & Young Melbourne VIC 3001 Telephone: 1300 78 08 08

200 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000

Telephone: (02) 9248 5555

This Financial Services Guide has been issued in accordance with ASIC Class Order CO 04/1572.
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PART III
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1 Rio Tinto corporate details
1.1 Rio Tinto Limited
(A)  Rio Tinto Limited was formed on 17 December 1959 as a limited liability company under the
laws of the state of Victoria, Australia. Rio Tinto Limited’s Australian Company Number is
004 458 404. It adopted the name “Rio Tinto Limited” on 2 June 1997.
(B)  Rio Tinto Limited’s registered office and principal place of business is Level 33, 120 Collins
Street, Melbourne, Victoria 3000, Australia. The telephone number of Rio Tinto Limited’s
registered office is (+61) 3 9283 3333.
(C)  The principal legislation under which Rio Tinto Limited operates, and pursuant to which the Rio
Tinto Limited Shares have been created, is the Corporations Act 2001 and regulations thereunder.
1.2 Rio Tinto plc
(A)  Rio Tinto plc was incorporated and registered in England and Wales on 30 March 1962 under
the Companies Act 1948 as a private company limited by shares with company number 719885.
Rio Tinto plc was re-registered as a public limited company on 4 March 1982 and adopted the
name “Rio Tinto plc” on 2 June 1997.
(B)  Rio Tinto plc’s registered office and principal place of business is 6 St James’s Square, London,
SW1Y 4AD, United Kingdom. The telephone number of Rio Tinto plc’s registered office is
(+44) 20 7781 2000.
(C)  The principal legislation under which Rio Tinto plc operates, and pursuant to which the Rio
Tinto plc Shares have been created, is the UK Act and regulations thereunder.
2 Major shareholders
As at 17 May 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, and so far as
is known to Rio Tinto by virtue of notifications made to it pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001, the
following persons, directly or indirectly, had an interest in five per cent. or more of the issued ordinary share
capital of Rio Tinto Limited:
Percentage
of issued
No. of Rio ordinary
Tinto share capital
Limited of Rio Tinto
M Shares Limited
Shining Prospect Pte. Ltd®» . ................. See Note (1)  See Note (1)
BlackRock, Inc. ........ ... . 26,656,003 6.28
Note:

(1) In its substantial holding notice filed on 10 June 2009 Shining Prospect, a Singapore-based entity owned by Chinalco disclosed a holding

of 182,550,329 Rio Tinto plc Shares which, at that time, through the operation of the Corporations Act 2001 as modified, gave these
entities and their associates voting power of 9.3 per cent. in Rio Tinto on a joint decision matter, making them substantial shareholders of
Rio Tinto Limited, as well as of Rio Tinto plc. Rio Tinto plc has subsequently, by notice dated 26 January 2016, disclosed that Shining
Prospect’s holding of 182,550,329 Rio Tinto plc Shares gave these entities and their associates voting power of 13.1 per cent. in Rio Tinto
plc, which in turn would give these entities and their associates voting power of 10.1 per cent. in Rio Tinto on a joint decision matter.

As at 17 May 2017, being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this document, and so far as
is known to Rio Tinto by virtue of notifications made to it pursuant to the UK Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules, the following persons, directly or indirectly, had an interest in three per cent. or more
of the issued ordinary share capital of Rio Tinto plc (excluding treasury shares):

Percentage
of issued
ordinary

No. of Rio share capital
Tinto plc of Rio Tinto

Shareholder Shares plc
Shining Prospect Pte. Ltd® . ................... 182,550,329 13.10
BlackRock, Inc. ....... ... . . . 127,744,871 8.38
The Capital Group Companies, Inc. ............. 55,867,795 4.02

Note:
(1) Shining Prospect is a Singapore-based entity owned by Chinalco.
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Material contracts

Other than the Transaction Documents, there are no other contracts (not being contracts entered into in the
ordinary course of business) which:

(A) Rio Tinto Shareholders would reasonably require disclosure of in making a properly informed
assessment of how to vote on the Resolution; and

(B) have been entered into:

(a) by Rio Tinto within the two years immediately preceding the date of this document, and are, or
may be material; or

(b) at any time by Rio Tinto and contain provisions under which Rio Tinto has an obligation or
entitlement which is, or may be, material to Rio Tinto as at the date of this document.

Significant change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of Rio Tinto since 31 December
2016, the date to which the last audited financial statements of Rio Tinto were prepared.

ASX Listing Rule 10.1 and Independent Expert

ASX Listing Rule 10.1 provides that an entity or a subsidiary of it must not, without shareholder approval,
acquire or dispose of a substantial asset from or to certain persons in a position of influence, including:

(A) a substantial shareholder who, together with their associates, has a relevant interest (or had a relevant
interest at any time in the six months before the transaction) in at least 10 per cent. of the total votes
attached to voting securities in the entity;

(B) an associate of such a substantial shareholder; and

(C) any other person whose relationship to the entity is such that, in ASX’s opinion, the transaction should
be approved by shareholders.

For this purpose, an asset is a “substantial asset” if its value, or the value of consideration for it, is (or in
ASX’s opinion is) five per cent. or more of the equity interests of the entity as set out in the latest accounts
given to ASX under the ASX Listing Rules. The agreed purchase price for Coal & Allied Industries under
the SPA exceeds that threshold and, as such, Coal & Allied Industries is considered a substantial asset of
Rio Tinto.

As a result of Chinalco and Yankuang each being owned by Chinese state-owned entities as described in
more detail in section 8 of the letter from the Chairman of Rio Tinto, Yancoal is considered to be an
associate of Chinalco for the purposes of ASX Listing Rule 10.1. Accordingly, the Transaction requires
Rio Tinto Shareholder approval pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 10.1.

In relation to the seeking of that approval, ASX Listing Rule 10.10.2 requires that an independent expert’s
report opining on the fairness and reasonableness of the Transaction be prepared. Rio Tinto has engaged
Ernst & Young for these purposes, and the Independent Expert’s Report is set out in Part I (Independent
Expert’s Report). The Independent Expert is required to be independent from Rio Tinto in accordance with
Regulatory Guide 112 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission. Accordingly, the
Independent Expert’s Report has been prepared by the Independent Expert and not by Rio Tinto.

Consents

Ernst & Young, which has been appointed as the Independent Expert, has given and not withdrawn its
consent to the Independent Expert’s Report being included in this document, and also to references to the
Independent Expert and the Independent Expert’s Report in this document in the form and context in which
they appear.
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AMC Consultants Pty Ltd (ABN 58 008 129 164) has given and not withdrawn its consent to its report
being included in this document, and also to references to its name and report in this document in the form
and context in which they appear.

Documents available for inspection

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during normal business hours on any
weekday (Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the Rio Tinto Limited registered office at
Level 33, 120 Collins Street, Melbourne, Victoria 3000, Australia, at the offices of Allens, Deutsche Bank
Place, Corner Hunter & Phillip Streets, Sydney, New South Wales, 2000 Australia, at the Rio Tinto plc
registered office at 6 St James’s Square, London, SW1Y 4AD, United Kingdom and at the offices of
Linklaters LLP, One Silk Street, London, EC2Y 8HQ, United Kingdom up to and including the date of the
Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting. These documents are also available on Rio Tinto’s website at
riotinto.com:

(a) acopy of Rio Tinto plc’s existing articles of association;
(b) acopy of Rio Tinto Limited’s existing constitution;

(c¢) Rio Tinto’s annual reports and accounts for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016;

(d) acopy of the Rio Tinto plc Circular;
(e) the written consents referred to in section 6 of this Part Il (Additional Information); and
(f) this document and Proxy Form.

The above documentation will also be available for inspection for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the
Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting.
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PART IV
DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply throughout this document, unless stated otherwise:

$, US$ or cents
A$

ASX or Australian Securities
Exchange

ASX Listing Rules
Australia

Bee Creek Contract

BLCP

BLCP Back-to-Back Agreement

BLCP Novation Deed

Board or Directors

Business Day

Chinalco

Coal Supply and Transportation
Agreement

Coal & Allied Industries
Corporations Act 2001
CPI

DLC Sharing Agreement

Ernst & Young

Financial Conduct Authority or FCA

the lawful currency of the United States of America.

the lawful currency of the Commonwealth of Australia.

ASX Limited (ACN 008624 691) or the financial market operated by
that entity (as applicable).

the official listing rules of the ASX, as amended from time to time.
the Commonwealth of Australia.

the agreement and related side letter to be entered into by Yancoal
Sales and Hail Creek Marketing Pty Limited on completion of the
Transaction.

BLCP Power Limited.

the agreement to be entered into by the Vendor and Yancoal Sales on
completion of the Transaction in the event that the Coal Supply and
Transportation Agreement is not novated from the Vendor to a
Yancoal Group entity on completion pursuant to a BLCP Novation
Deed.

the deed of novation in respect of the Coal Supply and Transportation
Agreement to be entered into by the Vendor, a Yancoal Group entity

and BLCP on completion of the Transaction.

the common boards of directors of Rio Tinto, or, as the context
requires, the board of directors of Rio Tinto plc or Rio Tinto Limited.

means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, bank holiday or public
holiday in London or Sydney.

Aluminum Corporation of China, being a Chinese state-owned
enterprise established on 23 February 2001.

the Coal Supply and Transportation Agreement between the Vendor
and BLCP dated 13 June 2003, as amended.

Coal & Allied Industries Limited (ABN 67 008 416 760).

the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth).

consumer price index.

the DLC Merger Sharing Agreement, as amended from time to time,
between Rio Tinto plc and Rio Tinto Limited dated 21 December
1995, that regulates the relationship between Rio Tinto plc and Rio

Tinto Limited.

Emnst & Young Transaction Advisory Services Limited
(ABN 87 003 599 844).

the UK Financial Conduct Authority.
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Freight Transfer Deed

FSMA

Hunter Valley Joint Venture

HYVO Coal Supply Transfer Deed

HVO Joint Venture Agreement

HVR
Independent Expert

Independent Expert’s Report

Mitsubishi
Mitsubishi Group

Notice

NSW

Proxy Form

Resolution

Rio Tinto

Rio Tinto Group

Rio Tinto Limited or Company

Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting

Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders

the deed of novation in respect of the Agreement for the Supply of
Chartering and Freight Services to Port of Map Ta Phut, Thailand to
be entered into by the Vendor, Yancoal Sales and Rio Tinto Shipping
(Asia) Pte Limited on completion of the Transaction.

the UK Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, as amended.

the unincorporated joint venture known as the ‘Hunter Valley
Operations Joint Venture’ established pursuant to the HVO Joint
Venture Agreement.

the deed to be entered into by the Vendor, Yancoal Sales and HVO
Coal Sales Pty Ltd on completion of the Transaction.

the Joint Venture Agreement — Hunter Valley Operations dated
3 February 2016 between Coal & Allied Operations Pty Ltd, HVO
Resources Pty Ltd and HV Operations Pty Ltd.

Hunter Valley Resources Pty Ltd (ABN 69 151 471 242).
Ernst & Young.

the report produced by the Independent Expert opining on the fairness
and reasonableness of the Transaction dated 19 May 2017.

Mitsubishi Development Pty Ltd (ACN 009 779 873).
Mitsubishi and each of its subsidiary companies.

the notice convening the Rio Tinto Limited General Meeting at the
end of this document.

the Australian state of New South Wales.

the form of proxy accompanying this document for use by Rio Tinto
Limited Shareholders in relation to the Rio Tinto Limited General
Meeting.

the resolution to be proposed at the Rio Tinto Limited General
Meeting and the Rio Tinto plc General Meeting in connection with
the Transaction.

Rio Tinto Limited and Rio Tinto plc or, where the context requires,
the Rio Tinto Group.

Rio Tinto Limited, Rio Tinto plc and their respective subsidiaries and
subsidiary undertakings and, where the context requires, their
respective associated undertakings.

Rio Tinto Limited (ABN 96 004 458 404), a company incorporated in
Victoria, Australia whose registered office is at Level 33, 120 Collins
Street, Melbourne, 3000, Victoria, Australia.

the general meeting of Rio Tinto Limited to be held at the Grand
Ballroom, The Westin Sydney, 1 Martin Place, Sydney, New South
Wales at 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on 29 June 2017, notice of which is set
out at the end of this document.

holders of Rio Tinto Limited Shares.
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Rio Tinto Limited Shares

Rio Tinto plc

Rio Tinto plc Circular

Rio Tinto plc General Meeting

Rio Tinto plc Shareholders

Rio Tinto plc Shares

Rio Tinto Shareholders

Rio Tinto Shares

Royalty Deeds

Shining Prospect

SPA

Transaction

Transaction Documents

Transitional Services Agreement

UK Act

UK Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules

UK Listing Rules

United Kingdom or UK
Vendor
Yancoal

Yancoal Group

Yancoal Sales
Yankuang

Yanzhou

the ordinary shares in the capital of Rio Tinto Limited.

Rio Tinto plc, a company incorporated in England and Wales with
company number 719885 whose registered office is at 6 St James’s
Square, London, SW1Y 4AD, United Kingdom.

the circular to Rio Tinto plc Shareholders published on or about the
date hereof containing details of the Transaction.

the general meeting of Rio Tinto plc to be held at 11.00 a.m. (London
time) on 27 June 2017, notice of which is set out at the end of the Rio
Tinto plc Circular.

holders of Rio Tinto plc Shares.

the ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of Rio Tinto plc.
Rio Tinto plc Shareholders and Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders.
Rio Tinto plc Shares and Rio Tinto Limited Shares.

the four royalty deeds to be entered into by the Vendor and Coal &
Allied Industries prior to completion of the Transaction.

Shining Prospect Pte. Ltd, being a Singapore-based entity owned by
Chinalco.

the sale and purchase agreement between the Vendor, HVR and
Yancoal dated 24 January 2017.

the proposed disposal by the Vendor and HVR of Coal & Allied
Industries to Yancoal pursuant to the SPA.

the SPA, the Royalty Deeds, the Transitional Services Agreement, the
BLCP Novation Deed, the BLCP Back-to-Back Agreement, the Bee

Creek Contract and related side letter, the Freight Transfer Deed and
HVO Coal Supply Transfer Deed.

the agreement to be entered into between Rio Tinto Services Limited
and Coal & Allied Industries on completion of the Transaction.

the Companies Act 2006 of England and Wales, as amended.

the disclosure guidance and transparency rules made by the FCA for
the purposes of Part VI of the FSMA.

the listing rules made by the FCA for the purposes of Part VI of the
FSMA.

the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland.
Australian Coal Holdings Pty. Limited (ABN 79 000 066 491).
Yancoal Australia Limited (ABN 82 111 859 119).

Yancoal, the subsidiaries and holding companies of Yancoal and each
of the subsidiaries of any such holding company from time to time.

Yancoal Australia Sales Pty Ltd (ABN 88 167 884 460).
Yankuang Group Company Limited.

Yanzhou Coal Mining Company Limited.
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NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING
OF
RIO TINTO LIMITED (ABN 96 004 458 404)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a GENERAL MEETING of Rio Tinto Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at the Grand Ballroom, The Westin Sydney, 1 Martin Place, Sydney, New South Wales at 11.00 a.m.
(AEST) on 29 June 2017 for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following resolution (the
“Resolution”) which will be proposed as an ordinary resolution.

In accordance with Rio Tinto’s dual listed companies’ structure, the Resolution will be voted on by Rio Tinto
Limited Shareholders and Rio Tinto plc Shareholders as a joint electorate.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

THAT the Transaction, on the terms and subject to the conditions set out in the SPA and the other Transaction
Documents (as each term is defined in the explanatory memorandum to Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders dated
19 May 2017), be and is hereby approved and the Directors (or a duly authorised committee of the Directors) be
and are hereby authorised to waive, amend, vary or extend any of the terms and conditions of the Transaction
Documents, provided that any such waivers, amendments, variations or extensions are not of a material nature,
and to do all things as they may consider to be necessary or desirable to complete, implement and give effect to,
or otherwise in connection with, the Transaction and any matters incidental to the Transaction.

Dated: 19 May 2017

By order of the Board
Tim Paine Steve Allen
Joint Company Secretary Joint Company Secretary

Registered office: Level 33, 120 Collins Street, Melbourne, Victoria 3000, Australia

Important Notes

For the purposes of the Corporations Act, Rio Tinto Limited has determined that securities of Rio Tinto Limited
that are quoted securities at 7.00 p.m. (AEST) on Tuesday, 27 June 2017 will be taken, for the purposes of the
meeting, to be held by the persons who held them at that time.

A Proxy Form accompanies this notice of meeting. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is
entitled to appoint up to two proxies. A proxy need not be a member of Rio Tinto Limited. Where a member
wishes to appoint two proxies, an additional proxy form may be obtained by contacting Rio Tinto Limited’s
share registry or you may copy the enclosed form.

A proxy other than the chairman of the meeting is not required by law to vote on the resolution. However, if the
proxy’s appointment directs the proxy how to vote on the resolution and the proxy decides to vote as proxy on
the resolution, the proxy must vote the way specified (subject to the other provisions of this notice, including the
voting exclusions noted below).

If an appointed proxy does not attend the meeting, the chairman of the meeting will be taken to have been
appointed as the proxy. If a proxy appointment specifies the way to vote on the resolution and the appointed
proxy does not attend the meeting or attends the meeting, but does not vote on the resolution, a directed proxy
will default to the chairman of the meeting who must vote the proxy as directed. If the chairman of the meeting is
appointed, or taken to be appointed, as a proxy, but the appointment does not specify the way to vote on the
resolution, the chairman intends to exercise the relevant shareholder’s votes in favour of the resolution (subject to
the other provisions of this notice, including the voting exclusions noted below).

If a shareholder appoints two proxies they may specify the proportion or number of votes each proxy is appointed
to exercise. If a shareholder appoints two proxies and does not specify each proxy’s percentage of voting rights,
each proxy may exercise half the shareholder’s votes. Fractions of votes will be disregarded. The Proxy Form
contains instructions for appointing two proxies.
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Proxy lodgement

Shareholders can lodge their Proxy Forms online at investorvote.com.au and follow the prompts. To use this
facility you will need your Shareholder Reference Number (SRN) or Holder Identification Number (HIN),
postcode and control number as shown on the Proxy Form. You will be taken to have signed the Proxy Form if
you complete the instructions on the website by 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on Tuesday, 27 June 2017.

If using the Proxy Form accompanying this notice of meeting, the Proxy Form, together with any power of
attorney or authority under which it is signed, must be received by Rio Tinto Limited’s share registry at
Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd, GPO Box 242, Melbourne, Victoria, 3001, or Yarra Falls,
452 Johnston Street, Abbotsford, Victoria, 3067 or at Rio Tinto Limited’s registered office or by facsimile to
1800 783 447 (within Australia) or +61 3 9473 2555 (outside Australia), by 11.00 a.m. (AEST) on Tuesday,
27 June 2017.

For intermediary online subscribers only (custodians) please visit intermediaryonline.com to submit your proxy
form.

Voting arrangements under the dual listed companies structure

The voting arrangements for shareholders under Rio Tinto’s dual listed companies structure are summarised
below and a more detailed explanation of the voting arrangements is set out in the ‘Shareholder Information’
section of the 2016 Annual report and financial statements.

Additional Notes: Summary of voting arrangements for Rio Tinto Shareholders

The DLC Sharing Agreement (the agreement relating to the regulation of the relationship between Rio Tinto
Limited and Rio Tinto plc following the dual listed companies merger) provides for the public shareholders of
Rio Tinto Limited and Rio Tinto plc to vote as a joint electorate on all matters which affect shareholders of both
companies in similar ways. These are referred to as “Joint Decisions”. Joint Decisions are voted on a poll.

To facilitate the joint voting arrangements, each company has entered into shareholder voting agreements. Each
company has issued a special voting share to a special purpose company held in trust by a common trustee.

Rio Tinto Limited has issued its special voting share (“Rio Tinto Limited Special Voting Share”) to RTP
Shareholder SVC and Rio Tinto plc has issued its special voting share (“Rio Tinto plc Special Voting Share”)
to RTL Shareholder SVC. The total number of votes cast on Joint Decisions by the public shareholders of one
company are voted at the parallel meeting of the other company. The role of these special purpose companies in
achieving this is described below.

Rio Tinto Limited

At a Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders’ meeting at which a Joint Decision will be considered, each Rio Tinto
Limited Share will carry one vote and the holder of the Rio Tinto plc Special Voting Share will have one vote for
each vote cast by the public shareholders of Rio Tinto Limited. The holder of the Rio Tinto plc Special Voting
Share is required to vote strictly, and only, in accordance with the votes cast by public shareholders for and
against the equivalent resolution at the parallel Rio Tinto Limited Shareholders’ meeting.

The holders of Rio Tinto Limited ordinary shares do not actually hold any voting shares in Rio Tinto plc by
virtue of their holding in Rio Tinto Limited and cannot enforce the voting arrangements relating to the Rio Tinto
plc Special Voting Share.

Rio Tinto plc

At a Rio Tinto plc Shareholders’ meeting at which a Joint Decision will be considered, each Rio Tinto plc Share
will carry one vote and the holder of the Rio Tinto Limited Special Voting Share will carry one vote for each
vote cast by the public shareholders of Rio Tinto plc in their parallel meeting. The holder of the Rio Tinto plc
Special Voting Share is required to vote strictly, and only, in accordance with the votes cast for and against the
equivalent resolution at the parallel Rio Tinto plc Shareholders’ meeting.

The holders of Rio Tinto plc ordinary shares do not actually hold any voting shares in Rio Tinto Limited by
virtue of their holding in Rio Tinto plc and cannot enforce the voting arrangements relating to the Rio Tinto
Limited Special Voting Share.

247



Voting exclusion statement

Rio Tinto Limited will disregard any votes cast on the resolution by Yancoal Australia Limited and any of its
associates. However, Rio Tinto Limited need not disregard a vote that is cast by a person as proxy for a person
who is entitled to vote in accordance with the directions on the proxy form or by the Chairman of the meeting as
proxy for a person who is entitled to vote in accordance with a direction on the proxy form to vote as the proxy
decides.

Webcast and photography

The live webcast may include the question and answer sessions with shareholders as well as background footage
of those in attendance. Photographs may also be taken at the meeting and published in the media or used in future
Rio Tinto publications. If you attend the annual general meeting in person you may be included in the webcast
recording and photographs.

Definitions

Unless specified otherwise, words and expressions used in this notice of meeting have the meanings set out in
Part IV (Definitions) of this document.
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